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Results Announcement for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

HIGHLIGHTS

B For the year ended 31 December 2024, the audited consolidated revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB8,963,208,271.72, representing an increase of approximately 12.48% from the previous year.

B For the year ended 31 December 2024, the audited profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB59,943,006.45, representing an increase of approximately 6.19% from the previous year
(2023: RMB56,446,864.92).

B For the year ended 31 December 2024, the audited basic earnings per share was RMBO0.37 (2023: RMBO0.35).

B The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of RMBO0.20 per share for 2024 (2023: RMBO0.20
per share).

Annual Results

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (“CMAL”
or the “Company”) is pleased to announce the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the comparative figures for the corresponding
period of 2023 as follows:



CHANGAN MINSHENG APLL LOGISTICS CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
As at 31 December 2024 (RMB yuan)

As at 31 December 2024

As at 31 December 2023

Item Notes
Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
Current assets:

Cash and bank balances V.1 995,091,926.76 794,578,929.59 882,939,512.98 645,371,743.56
Notes receivable V.2 50,426,261.09 37,825,182.42 36,533.43 36,533.43
Accounts receivable V.3 1,627,248,472.38|  1,320,589,352.28| 1,466,849,212.92| 1,002,429,019.90
Receivable financing V.4 601,021,043.25 593,451,139.06 776,739,880.82 742,845,558.72
Prepayments V.5 16,159,144.79 7,643,561.26 12,126,101.53 7,154,545.81
Other receivables V.6 75,855,060.33 69,440,151.56 89,026,316.09 71,415,940.99
Inventories V.7 14,090,076.83 3,735,095.11 28,876,115.92 3,435,208.87
Contract assets V.8 432,640,805.21 253,335,857.71 245,138,987.01 132,313,200.30

Non-current assets due within one
year - - -
Other current assets V.9 17,468,026.79 13,242,860.59 168,174,280.84 152,329,029.32
Total current assets 3,830,000,817.43| 3,093,842,129.58| 3,669,906,941.54| 2,757,330,780.90

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments V.10 28,200,000.00 981,482,452.93 87,353,330.93| 1,086,535,783.85
Other equity instruments

investment V.11 74,000,000.00 74,000,000.00 71,580,000.00 71,580,000.00
Investment properties V.12 31,407,638.28 31,407,638.28 33,544,833.04 33,544,833.04
Fixed assets V.13 588,848,946.27 229,270,564.14 728,979,329.43 238,218,648.36
Construction in progress V.14 5,005,318.07 3,927,590.33 9,149,679.44 3,057,518.15
Right-of-use assets V.15 157,374,451.92 44,282,687.61 216,669,938.35 61,060,997.49
Intangible assets V.16 249,650,586.08 117,530,103.72 273,459,834.67 126,233,857.94
Goodwill VA7 5,016,185.42 2,222,222.00 5,016,185.42 2,222,222.00
Long-term deferred expenses V.18 26,427,193.33 2,830,299.54 7,716,106.11 3,526,657.86
Deferred tax assets V.19 49,145,333.61 36,756,864.85 63,796,465.44 52,489,373.41
Other non-current assets V.20 151,649,576.75 151,649,576.75 7,239,124.15 7,239,124.15
Total non-current assets 1,366,725,229.73| 1,675,360,000.15| 1,504,504,826.98| 1,685,709,016.25
TOTAL ASSETS 5,196,726,047.16| 4,769,202,129.73| 5,174,411,768.52| 4,443,039,797.15
Continued......



CHANGAN MINSHENG APLL LOGISTICS CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024 (RMB yuan)

item Notes As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023
Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
Current Liabilities:
Short-term loans V.22 12,062,465.76 - 26,526,864.44 -
Notes payable V.23 496,060,939.76 | 462,521,372.64| 532,579,693.95( 505,288,280.58
Accounts payable V.24 | 1,732,595,773.59| 1,503,531,326.38 | 1,518,537,172.85| 1,150,556,744.51
Receipts in advance V.25 45139.42 45,139.42 - -
Contract liabilities V.26 14,735,563.22 11,595,030.36 13,315,099.27 10,832,122.30
Employee benefits payable V.27 152,584,230.88| 109,707,609.47| 158,152,027.89( 117,903,409.40
Taxes payable V.28 29,940,003.20 7,046,813.77 34,615,423.85 12,502,283.67
Other payables V.29 352,309,223.32| 762,693,143.79| 313,506,475.20| 779,591,479.22
Non-current liabilities due within one year| V.30 76,097,623.88 24,826,437.98| 117,995,287.03 33,388,833.60
Other current liabilities V.31 13,585,957.96 4,502,506.00 14,313,616.86 8,015,393.89
Total current liabilities 2,880,016,920.99 | 2,886,469,379.81 | 2,729,541,661.34| 2,618,078,547.17
Non-current liabilities:

Long-term loans V.32 - 97,515,898.76 -
Lease liabilities V.33 97,394,356.94 17,408,455.86| 137,552,585.90 26,393,269.25
Provisions V.34 - 360,560.00 -
Deferred income V.35 12,433,040.16 11,155,224.32 13,141,084.85 11,312,247.07
Deferred tax liabilities V.19 228,763.45 - 6,724,905.82 4,175,219.19
Other non-current liabilities V.36 6,847.20 6,847.20 11,227.20 11,227.20
Total non-current liabilities 110,063,007.75 28,570,527.38| 255,306,262.53 41,891,962.71
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,990,079,928.74 | 2,915,039,907.19 | 2,984,847,923.87 | 2,659,970,509.88
Share capital V.37 162,064,000.00| 162,064,000.00| 162,064,000.00( 162,064,000.00
Capital reserve V.38 67,079,415.05 75,118,339.94 67,113,845.09 75,152,769.98
Other comprehensive income V.39 24,629,515.00 24,629,515.00 22,572,515.00 22,572,515.00
Specific reserve V.40 11,874,038.40 60,947.25 10,251,350.13 60,947.25
Surplus reserve V.41 85,867,093.00 85,867,093.00 85,867,093.00 85,867,093.00
Undistributed profits V.42 | 1,695985,128.55| 1,506,422,327.35| 1,668,384,520.71| 1,437,351,962.04

Total shareholders’ equity attributable to
the parent 2,047,499,190.00 | 1,854,162,222.54 | 2,016,253,323.93 | 1,783,069,287.27
Minority interests 159,146,928.42 -l 173,310,520.72 -

Total shareholders’ (or owners’)

equity 2,206,646,118.42 | 1,854,162,222.54 | 2,189,563,844.65| 1,783,069,287.27

Total liabilities and shareholders’
(or owners’) equity 5,196,726,047.16 | 4,769,202,129.73| 5174,411,768.52| 4,443,039,797.15

Legal representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:



CHANGAN MINSHENG APLL LOGISTICS CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (RMB yuan)

2024 2023
Iltem Notes - -
Consolidated | Company Consolidated Company
I. Revenue from operations V.43 18,963,208,271.72| 6,654,371,724.98| 7,968,998,231.49| 6,160,696,569.40
Less: Cost of operations V.43 |8,559,911,051.80| 6,469,631,072.10| 7,597,717,455.50| 5,982,895,771.00
Taxes and surcharges V.44 32,578,963.89|  21,425,844.99|  31,065,780.87 20,372,503.77
Selling expenses V.45 50,561,038.70|  26,434,262.97|  50,946,651.73 18,571,767.73
Administrative expenses V.46 | 231,943,315.20] 135,294,386.43| 214,717,665.51| 116,286,318.44
Research and development expenses V.47 23,011,712.49 1,860,109.36 26,803,369.07 3,874,542.73
Financial expense V.48 611,815.98 384,041.62 -3,225,090.68 -4,221,926.31
Including: Interest expenses 13,967,111.72 10,341,831.39 14,853,022.71 6,531,087.69
Interest income 19,162,321.53 15,481,848.01 20,268,842.18 15,529,602.59
Add: Other income V.49 15,971,453.11 5,259,208.66 18,703,748.11 9,683,609.26
Investment income (*-” for loss) V.50 59,023,785.66| 142,829,057.89 -1,239,545.56 8,140,454.44
Including: Gains from investments in associates and joint
ventures -5,607,545.62 -5,607,545.62 -1,060,985.29 -1,060,985.29
Gain from derecognition of financial assets af
amortized cost (“-” for loss) - - - -
Credit impairment loss (“-” for loss) V.51 -7,821,731.11 8,089,146.35 7,605,998.41 8,835,198.19
Assets impairment loss (*- for loss) V.52 -42,685,734.74 -42,532,176.01 -1,179,826.31 -1,201,927.74
Gain from disposal of assets (“-” for loss) V.53 4,418,191.50 1,688,409.41 282,776.04 208,710.78
Il. Operating profit (“-” for loss) 93,496,338.08| 114,675,653.81 75,145,550.18 48,583,636.97
Add: Non-operating income V.54 2,965,674.68 1,301,769.13 3,105,350.39 2,340,028.70
Less: Non-operating expenses V.55 4,405,653.65 3,261,634.55 3,242,318.58 1,404,005.83
Ill. Total profit (“-” for loss) 92,056,359.11 112,715,788.39|  75,008,581.99 49,519,659.84
Less: Income tax expenses V.56 23,678,118.31 11,194,289.37 17,045,642.33 5,554,222.96
IV. Net profit (“-” for net loss) 68,378,240.80( 101,521,499.02|  57,962,939.66 43,965,436.88
(1) Classified by continuity of operations:
Including: Net profit from continuing operations (“-” for net loss) 68,378,240.80( 101,521,499.02|  57,962,939.66 43,965,436.88
Net profit from discontinued operations (“-” for net loss) - -
() Classified by attribution to ownership:
Including: Net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent
(“” for net loss) 59,943,006.45( 101,521,499.02|  56,446,864.92 43,965,436.88
Net profit attributable to minority interests (*-" for net
loss) 8,435,234.35 - 1,516,074.74 -
V. Other comprehensive income - after tax 2,057,000.00 2,057,000.00 -357,000.00 -357,000.00
Other comprehensive income - after tax attributable to
shareholders of the parent 2,057,000.00 2,057,000.00 -357,000.00 -357,000.00
(1) Other comprehensive income not reclassified into profit or
loss subsequently 2,057,000.00 2,057,000.00 -357,000.00 -357,000.00
1. Changes in fair value of other equity instruments
investment V.39 2,057,000.00 2,057,000.00 -357,000.00 -357,000.00
(1) Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified into
profit or loss subsequently - -
Other comprehensive income - after tax attributable to minority|
interests - - - -
V1. Total comprehensive income 70,435,240.80( 103,578,499.02 57,605,939.66 43,608,436.88
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of the
parent 62,000,006.45( 103,578,499.02|  56,089,864.92 43,608,436.88
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests 8,435,234.35 1,516,074.74 -
VII. Earnings per share
(1) Basic earnings per share 0.37 - 0.35
(1) Diluted earnings per share 0.37 - 0.35

Legal representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:



CHANGAN MINSHENG APLL LOGISTICS CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (RMB yuan)

It Not 2024 2023
em otes
Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
l. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of
services 10,606,842,645.34| 8,021,432,188.55| 11,127,380,231.35| 8,324,381,305.11
Tax refund received - 5,639,641.71 2,950,051.60
Other cash received relating to operating activities V.57 275,366,888.41| 1,248,635,413.87 195,076,030.16( 1,972,655,612.17
Sub-total of cash inflows 10,882,209,533.75( 9,270,067,602.42 11,328,095,903.22|10,299,986,968.88
Cash paid for goods and services 9,364,117,242.31| 7,256,600,250.97|  9,997,365,494.28| 7,417,508,160.74
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 697,023,158.27( 490,078,280.80 724,531,009.73| 507,514,945.00
Payments of all types of taxes 120,920,252.40 77,059,177.78 119,055,404.32 70,984,397.97
Other cash paid relating to operating activities V.57 339,577,603.08| 1,363,103,355.43 289,325,033.96( 2,027,652,833.24
Sub-total of cash outflows 10,521,638,256.06( 9,186,841,064.98| 11,130,276,942.29|10,023,660,336.95
Net cash flows from operating activities 360,571,277.69 83,226,537.44 197,818,960.93| 276,326,631.93
Il. Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash received from disposal of investments 186,148,364.58| 186,148,364.58 -
Cash received from returns on investments 6,356,781.14 148,129,506.14 3,435,623.28 12,815,623.28
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 1,135,273.92|  51,993,949.40 820,750.61 278,726.98
Cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other
business units - -
Other cash received relating to investing activities - -
Sub-total of cash inflows 193,640,419.64| 386,271,820.12 4,256,373.89 13,094,350.26

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets and

other long-term assets 75,924,318.48|  48,479,896.29 171,928,257.31 24,961,122.69
Cash paid to acquire investments 168,900,000.00| 168,900,000.00 150,000,000.00f  195,000,000.00
Cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other business
units - - -
Other cash paid relating to investing activities V.57 21,930,498.54 - - -
Sub-total of cash outflows 266,754,817.02| 217,379,896.29 321,928,257.31|  219,961,122.69
Net cash flows from investing activities -73,114,397.38 168,891,923.83 -317,671,883.42 -206,866,772.43
lll. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from capital contribution - -
Including: Cash received from investment by minority
interests of subsidiaries - -
Cash received from borrowings 79,643,581.00 - 573,362,267.00 -
Cash received relating to other financing activities V.57 - 185,000,000.00 185,000,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows 79,643,581.00 - 758,362,267.00| 185,000,000.00
Cash repayments of amounts borrowed 93,895,546.57 - 455,786,232.58
Cash payments for interest expenses and distribution of]
dividends or profits 46,878,705.07|  32,451,133.71 34,786,472.02 23,085,217.82
Including: Dividend paid to minority interests of
subsidiaries 9,296,775.00 - -
Other cash payments relating to financing activities V.57 94,566,066.18 48,702,903.48 58,494,942.29 29,500,240.79
Sub-total of cash outflows 235,340,317.82|  81,154,037.19 549,067,646.89 52,585,458.61
Net cash flows from financing activities -155,696,736.82| -81,154,037.19 209,294,620.11| 132,414,541.39
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash 1,127,272.23 1,122,761.95 4,176,000.27 3,505,197.40
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 132,887,415.72| 172,087,186.03 93,617,697.89( 205,379,598.29
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalent 849,334,512.98| 615,071,743.56 755,716,815.09| 409,692,145.27
VL. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalent 982,221,928.70( 787,158,929.59 849,334,512.98| 615,071,743.56

Legal representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:



CHANGAN MINSHENG APLL LOGISTICS CO,, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (RMB yuan)

2024
ltems Equity attributable to theoi:areholders of the Company Minority Total
Share capital Capital reserve Less;hTarriassury comi?‘r:gggsive Special reserve | Surplus reserve U"d;fgfii?:ted interests shareeqhuoi{sers
I. Balance at end of previous year 162,064,000.00| 67,113,845.09 -|  22,572,515.00( 10,251,350.13| 85,867,093.00( 1,668,384,520.71| 173,310,520.72 2,189,563,844.65
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of errors
Business combination under common control
Others
Il. Balance in beginning of year 162,064,000.00| 67,113,845.09 -|  22,572,515.00( 10,251,350.13( 85,867,093.00| 1,668,384,520.71| 173,310,520.72 2,189,563,844.65
1. Movement over the year (“-” for loss) - -34,430.04 - 2,057,000.00| 1,731,423.37 - 27,491,872.74| -14,163,592.30 17,082,273.77
(1) Total comprehensive income - - - 2,057,000.00 - 59,943,006.45 8,435,234.35 70,435,240.80
(1) Contributions from shareholders and reduction of capital - -34,430.04 - - - -13,773,596.31 -13,808,026.35
1. Capital contribution from shareholders
2. Increase in shareholders’ equity resulted from share-
based payments
3. Others - -34,430.04 - - - -| -13,773,596.31 -13,808,026.35
(1) Appropriation of profits - - - - - -32,451,133.71 -9,296,775.00 -41,747,908.71
1. Transfer to surplus reserve
2. Distributions to shareholders - - - - -l -32,451,133.71 -9,296,775.00 -41,747,908.71
3. Others
(IV) Transfer within shareholders’ equity
1. Capital reserve converting into share capital
2. Surplus reserve converting into share capital
3. Surplus reserve covers the deficit
4. Other comprehensive income transfer to retained
earnings
5. Others
(V) Specific reserve - - - 1,731,423.37 - 471,544.66 2,202,968.03
1. Appropriation for the year - - - 7,534,025.17 - 1,314,823.14 8,848,848.31
2. Used in the year - - - -| -5,802,601.80 - -843,278.48 -6,645,880.28
(VI) Others
IV. Balance at end of year 162,064,000.00| 67,079,415.05 .| 24,629,515.00( 11,982,773.50( 85,867,093.00| 1,695,876,393.45 159,146,928.42( 2,206,646,118.42
Continued......



CHANGAN MINSHENG APLL LOGISTICS CO,, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (RMB yuan)

2023
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company o Total
fems Less: Treasu Other Undistributed Minority shareholders’
Share capital | Capital reserve s'hares ryco?!:iE;ZSiv Special reserve | Surplus reserve profits interests equity
I. Balance at end of previous year 162,064,000.00 66,907,278.00 -| 22,929,515.00 11,479,081.74| 85,867,093.00( 1,636,555,790.69( 176,070,582.49( 2,161,873,340.92
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of errors
Business combination under common control
Others
Il. Balance in beginning of year 162,064,000.00 66,907,278.00 -| 22,929,515.00 11,479,081.74| 85,867,093.00( 1,636,555,790.69( 176,070,582.49( 2,161,873,340.92
lll. Movement over the year (“-” for loss) - 206,567.09 - -357,000.00| -1,227,731.61 31,828,730.02( -2,760,061.77 27,690,503.73
(1) Total comprehensive income - - - -357,000.00 56,446,864.92 1,516,074.74 57,605,939.66
(1) Contributions from shareholders and reduction of capital - 206,567.09 - - -262,225.27 -55,658.18
1. Capital contribution from shareholders - 206,567.09 - - -262,225.27 -55,658.18
2. Increase in shareholders’ equity resulted from share-
based payments
3. Others
(1) Appropriation of profits - - - -24,618,134.90| -4,620,000.00 -29,238,134.90
1. Transfer to surplus reserve
3. Distributions to shareholders - - - -24,618,134.90( -4,620,000.00 -29,238,134.90
4. Others
(IV) Transfer within shareholders’ equity
1. Capital reserve converting into share capital
2. Surplus reserve converting into share capital
3. Surplus reserve covers the deficit
4. Other comprehensive income transfer to retained
earnings
5. Others
(V) Specific reserve - - -| -1,227,731.61 606,088.76 -621,642.85
1. Appropriation for the year - - -l 6,253,229.43 1,025,685.48 7,278,914.91
2. Used in the year - - -| -7,480,961.04 -419,596.72 -7,900,557.76
(V1) Others
IV. Balance at end of year 162,064,000.00| 67,113,845.09 -| 22,572,515.00/ 10,251,350.13| 85,867,093.00| 1,668,384,520.71| 173,310,520.72| 2,189,563,844.65

Legal representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

7

Head of accounting department:



CHANGAN MINSHENG APLL LOGISTICS CO,, LTD.
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (RMB yuan)

2024
ftem Share capital Capital Trl;:\ssilry comor:reel:ens Special Surplus Undistri.buted sharlz:)al::lers’
reserve A reserve reserve profits .
shares | ive income equity
I. Balance at end of previous year 162,064,000.00( 75,152,769.98 -| 22,572,515.00 60,947.25( 85,867,093.00| 1,437,351,962.04| 1,783,069,287.27
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of errors
Others
Il. Balance in beginning of year 162,064,000.00( 75,152,769.98 -| 22,572,515.00 60,947.25( 85,867,093.00| 1,437,351,962.04| 1,783,069,287.27
lll. Movement over the year (“-” for loss) - -34,430.04 -|  2,057,000.00 - - 69,070,365.31 71,092,935.27
(1) Total comprehensive income - - -l 2,057,000.00 - - 101,521,499.02 103,578,499.02
(1) Contributions from shareholders and reduction of capital - -34,430.04 - - - -34,430.04
1. Capital contribution from shareholders
2. Increase in shareholders’ equity resulted from share-based
payments
3. Others - -34,430.04 - - - -34,430.04
(1) Appropriation of profits - - - - - -32,451,133.71 -32,451,133.71
1. Transfer to surplus reserve
2. Distributions to shareholders - - - - - -32,451,133.71 -32,451,133.71
3. Others
(IV) Transfer within shareholders’ equity
1. Capital reserve converting into share capital
2. Surplus reserve converting into share capital
3. Surplus reserve covers the deficit
4. Other comprehensive income transfer to retained earnings
5. Others
(V) Specific reserve - - - - - -
1. Appropriation for the year - - - -l 4,462,023.66 - 4,462,023.66
2. Used in the year - - - -| -4,462,023.66 - -4,462,023.66
(V1) Others
IV. Balance at end of year 162,064,000.00( 75,118,339.94 -| 24,629,515.00 60,947.25( 85,867,093.00| 1,506,422,327.35| 1,854,162,222.54

Continued ......



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2023
Less: Other
Treasury |comprehensi Surplus Undistributed [Total shareholders’
Item Share capital |Capital reserve shares ve income Special reserve reserve profits equity
I. Balance at end of previous year 162,064,000.00| 75,150,257.00 22,929,515.00| 2,895,359.25| 85,867,093.00| 1,418,004,660.06| 1,766,910,884.31
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of errors
Others

Il Balance in beginning of year 162,064,000.00| 75,150,257.00 22,929,515.00| 2,895,359.25| 85,867,093.00| 1,418,004,660.06| 1,766,910,884.31
lll. Movement over the year (“-” for loss) 2,512.98 -357,000.00( -2,834,412.00 - 19,347,301.98 16,158,402.96
(1) Total comprehensive income - -357,000.00 - 43,965,436.88 43,608,436.88
(I1) Contributions from shareholders and reduction of capital 2,512.98 - - - 2,512.98

1. Capital contribution from shareholders

2. Increase in shareholders’ equity resulted from share-based payments

3. Others - 2,512.98 - - 2,512.98
(1) Appropriation of profits - - - -24,618,134.90 -24,618,134.90

1. Transfer to surplus reserve

2. Distributions to shareholders - - - -24,618,134.90 -24,618,134.90

3. Others

(IV) Transfer within shareholders’ equity

1. Capital reserve converting into share capital

2. Surplus reserve converting into share capital

3. Surplus reserve covers the deficit

4. Other comprehensive income transfer to retained earnings

5. Others

(V) Specific reserve - - -2,834,412.00 - - -2,834,412.00

1. Appropriation for the year - -l 4,051,932.06 - - 4,051,932.06

2. Used in the year - -| -6,886,344.06 - - -6,886,344.06
(V1) Others
IV. Balance at end of year 162,064,000.00| 75,152,769.98 22,572,515.00 60,947.25| 85,867,093.00( 1,437,351,962.04| 1,783,069,287.27

Legal representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I. Company information

CMAL was established domestically on 27 August 2001. It became a Sino-foreign joint venture in 2002
and was restructured into a joint stock limited company on 31 December 2004. On 23 February 2006,
the Company’s H-shares were listed and traded on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). On 18 July 2013, they were transferred from the GEM to the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The place of registration is NO.1881 Jinkai Road, Yubei District,
Chongqing, China.

As of 31 December 2024, the total number of shares of CMAL is 162,064,000.00 shares. The
Company’s business term started on 27 August 2001 and has no fixed term.

The Group is primarily engaged in providing finished vehicle transportation services, automotive raw
materials and parts supply chain management services, transportation services for non-automotive
goods, production and sales of packaging materials, as well as tire packaging, and tire sales.

The financial statements and accompanying notes were approved by the 20" meeting of the sixth Board
of Directors held on 27 March 2025.

I1. Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and guidelines, interpretations and other related provisions promulgated by the Ministry
of Finance (collectively, “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concerning basis.
The Group adopts the accrual basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost convention. If impairment of assets occurs, a provision for impairment is made
accordingly in accordance with the relevant regulations.

The new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance came into effect in 2015, and these financial statements
have been adjusted in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

I1I. Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

1. Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises to truly and completely reflect the consolidated and Company’s financial
positions as of 31 December 2024, and their operating results and their cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2024 and other relevant information.

2. Financial year
The financial year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December of each calendar year.

3. Operating cycle
The Group’s operating cycle is 12 months.

4. Functional currency

The financial statements of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have been prepared in Renminbi
(“RMB”). The currency used by the Company in preparing these financial statements is RMB.
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5. Determination method and selection basis of materiality criteria

Item Materiality criteria

Individually significant accounts receivable

for provision for bad debts Amount > 2.5 million

Significant construction in progress Amount > 2.5 million

Considering the proportion of relevant entity assets to the total assets of the

consolidated financial statements, the proportion of operating income to the

Significant non wholly owned subsidiaries  total revenue of the consolidated financial statements, and the proportion of
net profit to the net profit of the consolidated financial statements, any one

of which exceeds 10%

Significant investment activities Amount > 2.5 million

6. Accounting treatment of business combinations not involving enterprises under common control
(1) Business combinations involving enterprises under common control

For a business combination involving enterprises under common control, assets acquired, and liabilities
assumed by acquirer in the business combination are measured at their carrying amounts of the acquiree
in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party at the combination date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination and the carrying
amount of the net assets acquired is adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not sufficient to
absorb the difference, any excess is adjusted to undistributed profits.

Business combinations involving entities under common control achieved in stages and involved
multiple transactions

In the separate financial statements, initial investment cost is the acquirer’s share of the carrying amount
of the net assets of the acquiree in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
at the combination date. The difference between the initial investment cost and the sum of carrying
amount of investment prior to combination date and carrying amount of new considerations paid for
the combination at the combination date is adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not
sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess is adjusted against undistributed profits.

(2) Business combinations not involving enterprises under common control

For business combinations involving enterprises not under common control, the consideration costs
include acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred or assumed, and the
equity instruments issued by the acquirer in exchange for control of the acquire. At the acquisition date,
the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree are measured at their fair value.

Where the combination cost exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the difference is recognized as goodwill and subsequently measured on the basis of its costs
less accumulated impairment provisions. Where the combination cost is less than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is credited in profit or loss for
the current period after reassessment.

Business combinations involving entities not under common control achieved in stages and involved
multiple transactions

The combination cost is the sum of the consideration paid at the acquisition date and the fair value of
equity investment of the acquiree held prior to the acquisition date. The cost of equity investment of
the acquiree held prior to the acquisition date is re-measured at the fair value at the acquisition date,
the difference between the fair value and carrying value is recognized as profit or loss for the current
period. Other comprehensive income and changes of other owners’ equity from the equity interest held
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date are transferred to profit or loss for the current period, except
for other comprehensive income resulted in the change of net liabilities or assets in the investee’s re-
measurement of defined benefit plan and investments in non-trading equity instruments originally
designated as measured at fair value.

(3) Transaction costs for business combination
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The overhead for the business combination, including the expenses for audit, legal services, valuation
advisory, and other administrative expenses, are recorded in profit or loss for the current period when
incurred. The transaction costs of equity or debt instruments issued as the considerations of business
combination are included in the initial recognition amount of the equity or debt instruments.

7. Basis in determination of control and preparation of consolidated financial statements
(1) Basis in determination of control

The scope of consolidated financial statements is determined on the basis of control. Control exists
when the Group has power over the investee; exposure, or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect its returns through its power over the investee.
When changes in relevant facts and circumstances lead to changes in the elements involved in defining
control, the Group will conduct a reassessment.

When determining whether to include a structured entity in the scope of consolidation, the Group
assesses whether it controls the structured entity based on a comprehensive review of all facts and
circumstances. This includes evaluating the purpose and design of the structured entity, identifying the
types of variable returns, and assessing whether the Group bears part or all of the variable returns by
participating in its related activities.

(2) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by the Group based on the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries and other relevant information. In preparation of consolidated financial
statements, the accounting policies and accounting periods of the subsidiaries should be consistent with
those established by the Group, and all significant intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated.

Where a subsidiary or business was acquired during the reporting period, through a business
combination involving enterprises under common control, the subsidiary or business is deemed to be
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date they are controlled by the ultimate
controlling party. Their operating results and cash flows are included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated cash flow statement respectively from the date they are controlled by the
ultimate controlling party.

Where a subsidiary or business has been acquired during the reporting period, through a business
combination not involving enterprises under common control, the revenue, expenses and profit of the
subsidiary or business after the acquisition date are included in the consolidated income statement, the
cash flows after the acquisition date are included in the consolidated cash flow statement.

The portion of a subsidiary’s equity that is not attributable to the parent is treated as minority interests
and presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’ equity. The portion of
net profit or loss of subsidiaries for the period attributable to minority interests is presented in the
consolidated income statement below the “net profit” line item as “minority interests”. When the
amount of loss for the current period attributable to minority interests of the subsidiary exceeds the
minority interests’ share of the opening equity of the subsidiary, the excess is still allocated against the
minority interests.

(3) Acquiring minority interests of subsidiaries

Where the Company acquires a minority interest from a subsidiary’s minority shareholders or disposes
of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the transaction is treated as equity
transaction, and the book value of shareholder’s equity attributed to the Company and to the minority
interest is adjusted to reflect the change in the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries. The difference
between the proportion interests of the subsidiary’s net assets being acquired or disposed and the
amount of the consideration paid or received is adjusted to the capital reserve (share premium) in the
consolidated balance sheet, with any excess adjusted to undistributed profits.

(4) Losing control over the subsidiary

When the Company loses control over the subsidiary because of disposing part of equity investment or
other reasons, the remaining part of the equity investment is re-measured at fair value at the date when
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losing control over the subsidiary. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss for the current period
and is calculated by the aggregate of the consideration received in disposal and the fair value of
remaining part of the equity investment deducting the share of carrying value of net assets in proportion
to previous shareholding percentage in former subsidiary since acquisition date and the goodwill.

Other comprehensive income related to the former subsidiary is transferred to profit or loss for the
current period when the control is lost, except for the comprehensive income arising from the
movement of net liabilities or assets in the former subsidiary’s re-measurement of defined benefit plan.

8. Joint arrangement classification and accounting treatment for joint operation

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. The Company
classifies joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures.

(1) Joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the joint operators have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognizes the following items in relation to its interest in joint operation, and account for
them in accordance with relevant accounting standards:

A. its solely-held assets, and its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
B. its solely-assumed liabilities, and its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
C. its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
D. its share of the revenue from the sale of output by the joint operation; and
E. its solely-incurred expenses, and its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
(2) Joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the joint venturers have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

The Group adopts equity method under long-term equity investment in accounting for its investment
in joint venture.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that can be readily drawn on demand. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

10. Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group at the spot
exchange rates on the dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences between the spot exchange rate on balance
sheet date and the spot exchange rate on initial recognition or on the previous balance sheet date are
recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in foreign
currencies are translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the transaction date. Non-monetary
items that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the
date the fair value is determined. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss for
the current period or other comprehensive income according to the nature of non-monetary items.
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11. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.

(1) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument.

If one of the following conditions is met, the financial assets are derecognized:
(D The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire;

(2 The financial asset has been transferred, and is in accordance with the following conditions for
derecognition.

A financial liability (or part of it) is derecognized when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
discharged or cancelled or expires. If the Group (as a debtor) makes an agreement with the creditor to
replace the current financial liability with assuming a new financial liability, and contractual provisions
are different in substance, the current financial liability is derecognized and a new financial liability is
recognized meanwhile.

If the financial assets are traded routinely, the financial assets are recognized and derecognized at the
transaction date.

(2) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Upon initial recognition, the Group classifies the financial assets according to the business model for
managing the financial assets and characteristics of the contractual cash flows as follows: financial
assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, and financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial recognition. For financial assets measured at fair
value thorough profit or loss, the related transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss; for
other types of financial assets, the related transaction costs are included in the amount initially
recognised. For receivables arising from the sale of products or provision of services that do not contain
or do not take into account a significant financing element, the Group recognises them initially at the
amount of consideration that it expects to be entitled to receive.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if they meet both of the following conditions and are
not designated as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

*  The Group’s business model for managing such financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows.

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset stipulate that cash flows generated on specific dates
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is measured at amortized cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship shall be recognized in profit or loss for the current period when the
financial asset is derecognized, amortized using the effective interest method or with impairment
recognized.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is classified as measured at fair value through other comprehensive incomes if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss:
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*  The Group’s business model for managing such financial assets is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling such financial assets;

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset stipulate that cash flows generated on specific dates
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method, impairment losses or gains and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognized in profit or loss for the current period, and other gains or losses are recognized
in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized
in other comprehensive income is reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies the financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income as financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Upon initial recognition, the Group irrevocably designates certain financial assets that are
required to be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income as
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss in order to eliminate or significantly reduce
accounting mismatch.

Upon initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at fair value. Except for those held for
hedging purposes, gains or losses (including interests and dividend income) arising from such financial
assets are recognized in the profit or loss for the current period.

The business model for managing financial assets refers to how the Group manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flow. That is, the Group’s business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both. The Group determines
the business model for managing financial assets on the basis of objective facts and specific business
objectives for managing financial assets determined by key management personnel.

The Group assesses the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of financial assets to determine
whether the contractual cash flows generated by the relevant financial assets on a specific date are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The principal refers to
the fair value of the financial assets at the initial recognition. Interest includes consideration for the
time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks, costs and profits. In addition, the Group
evaluates the contractual terms that may result in a change in the time distribution or amount of
contractual cash flow from a financial asset to determine whether it meets the requirements of the above
contractual cash flow characteristics.

All affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model where the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets;
otherwise, financial assets shall not be reclassified after initial recognition.

(3) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the financial liabilities of the Group are classified as financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. For financial
liabilities not classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss, relevant transaction costs are
included in the amount initially recognized.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise held-for-trading financial

liabilities and financial liabilities designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. Such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, and the gains or losses
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from the change in fair value and the dividend or interest expenses related to the financial liabilities are
included in the profit or loss of the current period.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method, and the gains or losses arising from derecognition or amortization are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period.

Classification between financial liabilities and equity instruments
A financial liability is a liability if:
(D it has a contractual obligation to pay in cash or other financial assets to other parties.

(@) it has a contractual obligation to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under potential
adverse condition with other parties.

(3 it is a non-derivative instrument contract which will or may be settled with the entity’s own equity
instruments, and the entity will deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments according
to such contract.

@ it is a derivative instrument contract which will or may be settled with the entity’s own equity
instruments, except for a derivative instrument contract that exchanges a fixed amount of cash or
other financial asset with a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

Equity instruments are any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

If the Group cannot unconditionally avoid the performance of a contractual obligation by paying cash
or delivering other financial assets, the contractual obligation meets the definition of financial liabilities.

Where a financial instrument must or may be settled with the Group’s own equity instruments, the
Group’s own equity instruments used to settle such instrument should be considered as to whether it is
as a substitute for cash or other financial assets or for the purpose of enabling the holder of the
instrument to be entitled to the remaining interest in the assets of the issuer after deducting all of its
liabilities. For the former, it is a financial liability of the Group; for the latter, it is the Group’s own
equity instruments.

(4) Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivative instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency
exchange rate swap contracts, interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange option contracts, etc.
They are initially measured at the fair value of the date a derivative contract entered into and
subsequently measured at their fair value. Derivative financial instruments of positive fair value are
recognized as assets; those of negative fair value are recognized as liabilities. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value which do not meet the requirements of hedge accounting are directly
recognized as profit or loss for the current period.

For hybrid instrument with embedded derivative, where financial assets or liabilities not designated as
fair value through profit or loss, the economic features and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to that of the host contract, and a similar instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, then embedded derivative is separated from hybrid
instrument and accounted for as a derivative. If embedded derivative is unable to measure separately
either at acquisition or subsequently at balance sheet date, hybrid instrument as a whole is designated
as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

(5) Fair value of financial instruments

Determination of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities refers to Note I11.12.
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(6) Impairment of financial assets

The Group makes a provision for impairment based on expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

»  Financial assets at amortized cost;

*  Receivables and debt instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

*  Contract assets as defined in “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14-Revenue”
e Lease receivables;

*  Financial guarantee contract (Except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, the
transfer of financial assets does not meet the conditions for derecognition or continuing
involvement in transferred financial assets).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are the weighted average of credit losses of financial instruments weighted by the risk of default.
Credit losses refer to the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable according to the
contract and discounted according to the original effective interest rate and all cash flows expected to
be received, i.e. the present value of all cash shortages.

The Group takes into consideration of account reasonable and well-founded information such as past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, and calculates the probability-
weighted amount of the present value of the difference between the cash flows receivable from the
contract and the cash flows expected to be received weighted by the risk of default.

The Group measures ECLs of financial instruments at different stages. If the credit risk of the financial
instrument did not increase significantly upon initial recognition, it is at the first stage, and the Group
makes provision for impairment based on the ECLs within the next 12 months; if the credit risk of a
financial instrument increased significantly upon initial recognition but has not yet incurred credit
impairment, it is at the second stage, and the Group makes provision for impairment based on the
lifetime ECLs of the instrument; if the financial instrument incurred credit impairment upon initial
recognition, it is at the third stage, and the Group makes provision for impairment based on the lifetime
ECLs of the instrument.

For financial instruments with low credit risk on the balance sheet date, the Group assumes that the
credit risk did not increase significantly upon initial recognition and makes provision for impairment
based on the ECLs within the next 12 months.

Lifetime ECLs represent the ECLs resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECLs are the ECLs resulting from possible default events on a
financial instrument within 12 months (or a shorter period if the expected life of the financial instrument
is less than 12 months) after the balance sheet date and is a portion of lifetime ECLs.

The maximum period to be considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk, including renewal options.

For the financial instruments at the first and second stages and with low credit risks, the Group
calculates the interest income based on the book balance and the effective interest rate before deducting
the impairment provisions. For financial instruments at the third stage, interest income is calculated
based on the amortized cost after deducting impairment provisions made from the book balance and
the effective interest rate.

For accounts receivable, notes receivable, financing receivables, other receivables, contract assets, and
other receivables, if the credit risk characteristics of a particular customer significantly differ from those
of other customers in the portfolio, or if there is a significant change in the credit risk characteristics of
that customer, the Group recognizes an individual bad debt for that receivable. In addition to
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individually recognizing bad debt, the Group segregates receivables based on credit risk characteristics
and calculates provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis.

Bills receivable, accounts receivable and contract assets

For bills receivable, accounts receivable and contract assets, regardless of whether there is a significant
financing component, the Group always makes provision for impairment at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

When the Group is unable to assess the information of ECLs for an individual financial asset at a
reasonable cost, it classifies Bills receivable and accounts receivable into portfolios based on the credit
risk characteristics and calculates the ECLs on a portfolio basis. The basis for determining the portfolios
is as follows:

A. Bills receivable

. Bills receivable portfolio 1: Bank acceptance bills

. Bills receivable portfolio 2: Commercial acceptance bills

B. Accounts receivable

. Accounts receivable portfolio 1: Receivable from general customers

. Accounts receivable portfolio 2: Receivable from related parties

C. Contract assets

. Contract assets portfolio 1: Logistics services not completed and settled

For note receivables and contract assets classified as a portfolio, the Group refers to the historical credit
loss experience, combined with the current situation and the forecast of future economic conditions, to
assess the exposures to default risk and the expected credit loss rate for the lifetime and calculate the
ECLs.

For accounts receivable classified as a portfolio, the Group refers to the historical credit loss experience,
combined with the current situation and the forecast of future economic conditions, to compile a matrix
of accounts receivable aging / overdue days and expected credit loss rate for the lifetime and calculate
the ECLs. The aging of accounts receivable is calculated from the date of recognition, while the overdue
days are calculated from the expiration of the credit period.

Other receivables

The Group classifies other receivables into portfolios based on the credit risk characteristics and
calculates the ECLs on a portfolio basis. The basis for determining the portfolios is as follows:

. Other receivables portfolio 1: Security deposits and deposits

. Other receivables portfolio 2: Advances for taxes and expenses

. Other receivables portfolio 3: Staff petty cash borrowing

. Other receivables portfolio 4: Current accounts

. Other receivables portfolio 5: Withholding for sale and purchase of goods
. Other receivables portfolio 6: Others
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For other receivables divided into portfolio, the Group calculates the expected credit loss on the
exposures to default risk and the expected credit loss rate within the future 12 months or the lifetime.
For other receivables categorized by aging, the aging is calculated from the date of recognition.

Debt investment and other debt investment

For debt investments and other debt investments, the Group calculates the expected credit loss on the
exposures to default risk and the expected credit loss rate within the future 12 months or the lifetime,
based on the nature of the investment and various types of counterparties and risk exposures.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly upon initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default of the financial instrument at the balance sheet date
with that at the date of initial recognition to determine the relative change in risk of default within the
expected lifetime of the financial instrument.

In determining whether the credit risk has increased significantly upon initial recognition, the Group
considers reasonable and well-founded information, including forward-looking information, which can
be obtained without unnecessary extra costs or efforts. Information considered by the Group includes:

*  The debtor’s failure to make payments of principal and interest on their contractually due dates;

*  An actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if any);

*  An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

+  Existing or expected changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on their common credit
risk characteristics, such as past due information and credit risk ratings.

If more than 30 days have passed due, the Group determines that the credit risk of financial instruments
has increased significantly.

The Group believes that financial assets default in the following situations:

* It is unlikely that the borrower will pay its debts to the Group in full, and this assessment does
not consider the Group’s recourse actions such as the realization of mortgaged assets (if held); or

*  Financial assets are more than 90 days past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are credit impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have an adverse effect on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

*  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
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* A breach of contract by the debtor, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

*  Foreconomic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty, the Group granted
the debtor a concession that would not otherwise consider;

* It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

»  The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties of
the issuer or debtor.

Presentation of provisions for ECLs

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk upon initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognized as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for the current period. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the provision
of impairment is deducted from the carrying amount of the financial assets presented in the balance
sheet; for debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, the Group makes
provisions of impairment in other comprehensive income without reducing the carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Write-offs

The book balance of a financial asset is directly written off to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery of the contractual cash flows of the financial asset (either partially or in full). Such a write-
off constitutes derecognition of such financial assets. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due.

If a write-off of financial assets is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss in the period
in which the recovery occurs.

(7) Transfer of financial assets

Transfer of financial assets refers to the transference or deliverance of financial assets to the other party
(the transferee) other than the issuer of financial assets.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee. If substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are retained, the financial asset is not derecognized.

The Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, and the accounting treatment is shown as follows: if the Group has forgone control over
the financial asset, the financial assets are derecognized, and new assets and liabilities are recognized.
If the Group retains control over the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of its
continuing involvement in the transferred financial asset, and an associated liability is recognized.

(8) Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

If the Group owns the legitimate rights of offsetting the recognized financial assets and financial
liabilities, which are enforceable currently, and the Group plans to realize the financial assets or to clear
off the financial liabilities on a net amount basis or simultaneously, the net amount of financial assets
and financial liabilities shall be presented in the balance sheet upon offsetting. Otherwise, financial
assets and financial liabilities are presented separately in the balance sheet without offsetting.

12. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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The Group measures the related assets or liabilities at fair value assuming the assets or liabilities are
exchanged in an orderly transaction in the principal market or, in the absence of a principal market, the
most advantageous market. Principal market (or most advantageous market) is the market that the
Group can normally enter into a transaction on measurement date. The Group adopts the presumptions
that would be used by market participants in achieving the maximized economic value of the assets or
liabilities.

For financial assets or financial liabilities in active markets, the Group uses the quoted prices in active
markets as their fair value. If there is no active market, the Group uses valuation techniques to
determine their fair value.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset at its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs. If the
observable inputs are not available or impractical, then unobservable inputs are used.

For assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, the level in
which fair value measurement is categorized is determined by the level of the fair value hierarchy of
the lowest level input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement: Level 1 inputs are quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other
than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

At the balance sheet date, the Group revalues assets and liabilities being measured at fair value
continuously in the financial statements to determine whether to change the levels of fair value
measurement.

13. Inventories
(1) Classification of inventories

Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, turnover materials and contract
fulfillment costs.

(2) Method for calculating value of inventories

The Group values inventory at the actual cost upon acquisition. The cost of raw materials and finished
goods are calculated using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method when issued.

(3) Basis for determining the net realizable value and method for provision for decline in value of
inventories

At balance sheet date, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value. When the net
realizable value is lower than the cost, an allowance for inventory impairment is recognized.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred upon completion,
estimated selling expenses and related taxes. When determining the net realizable value of inventory,
basis is relied on the actual evidence obtained while the objectives of inventories holding and the impact
of post balance sheet date event are also considered.

The Group normally makes provision for losses in the value of inventories based on individual items
of inventories. For large quantities of inventories with relatively low unit prices, provision for loss of
value of inventories is made according to the type of inventory.

When the factors causing the inventory impairment no longer exist at balance sheet date, the provision
for decline in value of inventories previously made is reversed.

(4) Inventory system
The Group adopts perpetual inventory system.

(5) Amortization methods of low-value consumables
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The Group adopts one-time write-off when low-value consumables and packaging materials are taken
for use.

14. Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments include equity investments in subsidiaries and equity investments in
joint ventures and associates. An associate is an enterprise over which the Group has significant
influence.

(1) Determination of initial investment cost

Long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination: For a business combination
involving enterprises under common control, the initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment is the combining party’s share of the carrying amount of the owners’ equity of the combined
party in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party at the date of
combination. For a business combination not involving enterprises under common control, the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment is the cost of acquisition.

Long-term equity investment acquired other than through a business combination: For a long-term
equity investment acquired by cash, the initial investment cost is the amount of cash paid. For a long-
term equity investment acquired by issuing equity securities, the initial investment cost is the fair value
of the equity securities issued.

(2) Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss

Long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost method, unless the
investment satisfies the conditions of held-for-sales. An investment in a joint venture or an associate is
accounted for using the equity method for subsequent measurement.

For long-term equity investment which is accounted for using the cost method, investment income is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period as the cash dividend or proﬁt announced and
distributed, except for those cash dividend or profit which have already included in the actual payment
or consideration of offer when the investment was made.

For long-term equity investment, which is accounted for using the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds the Group’s interest in the fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets, no adjustment is made to the initial investment cost. Where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is charged to profit or loss for the current period, and the carrying amount of the long-
term equity investment is adjusted accordingly.

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit or losses and other
comprehensive income as investment income or losses and other comprehensive income respectively
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly. The carrying amount of the investment
is reduced by the portion of any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by the investee that is
attributable to the Group. The Group’s share of the investee’s owners’ equity changes, other than those
arising from the investee’s net profit or loss, other comprehensive income or profit distribution, is
recognized in the capital reserve (other capital reserve), and the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profits or losses
based on the fair values of the investee’s individual separately identifiable assets at the time of
acquisition, after making appropriate adjustments thereto in conformity with the accounting policies
and accounting periods of the Group.

When the Group becomes capable of exercising significant influence or joint control (but not sole
control) over an investee due to additional investment or other reasons, the accounting is changed to
the equity method and the initial investment cost on the date of change is the sum of the fair value of
the previously held equity investment and additional investment cost. If the original equity is classified
as non-trading equity instrument investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the relevant accumulative changes in fair value originally included in other comprehensive
income will be transferred to retained earnings when changed to equity method accounting.

When the Group can no longer exercise joint control of or significant influence over an investee due to
partial disposal of equity investment or other reasons, the remaining equity investment on the date of
losing joint control or significant influence is accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard
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for Business Enterprises No.22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments and the
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount at the date of the loss of joint control or
significant influence is charged to profit or loss for the current period. When the previously held equity
investment is accounted for under the equity method, any other comprehensive income previously
recognized is accounted for on the same basis as if the Group directly disposes of the related assets or
liabilities for the current period upon discontinuation of the equity method. Other movement of owner’s
equity related to previously held equity investment is transferred in profit or loss for the current period.

When the Group can no longer exercise control over an investee due to partial disposal of equity
investment or other reasons and the remaining equity investment after disposal can exercise joint
control of or significant influence over an investee, the remaining equity investment is accounted for
under equity method and re-measured by equity method as if it has been acquired since date of
acquisition. Where the remaining equity investment can no longer exercise joint control of or
significant influence over an investee, the remaining equity investment is accounted for in accordance
with Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No.22-Recognization and Measurement of
Financial Instruments and the difference between the fair value and the carrying amount at the date of
the loss of control is charged to profit or loss for the current period.

When the Group can no longer exercise control over an investee due to dilution of shareholding by
issuance of new shares to other investors by the investee but the Group can still exercise joint control
of or significant influence on the investee, the difference between the Group’s share of the increment
of net assets in investee by the new shareholdlng percentage after new share issuance and the pro-rata
portion of carrying value of long term equity investment for the decreased shareholding percentage is
recognized in profit or loss in the current period. The remaining equity investment is accounted for by
the equity method as if it was acquired since initial acquisition.

The unrealized profit or loss from internal transactions entered into between the Group and its associate
or joint venture is offset according to the shareholding percentage held by the Group and the remaining
portion is recognized as investment income or loss. However, the unrealized loss from internal
transactions entered into between the Group and its investee is not offset if it belongs to impairment
loss from assets transferred.

(3) Basis for determination of joint control or significant influence over an investee

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. In
assessing whether joint control of an arrangement exists, the Group firstly assesses whether all the
parties or a group of the parties control the arrangement collectively. When all the parties or a group of
the parties must act together unanimously in directing the relevant activities, then all the parties or a
group of the parties are regarded as having joint control of an arrangement. Then assess whether
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of those parties that control the
arrangement collectively. When more than one combination of the parties can control an arrangement
collectively, joint control does not exist. Protective rights of any party are not considered when
determining joint control.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. When determining whether an investor can
exercise significant influence over an investee, the effect of potential voting rights (for example,
warrants, share options and convertible bonds) held by the investors or other parties that are currently
exercisable, or convertible, shall be considered.

When the Group, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, owns more than 20% (20% inclusive) but
less than 50% of the voting share of the investee, the Group has significant influence on the investee
unless there is clear evidence to show that the Group cannot participate in the business and operation
decisions of the investee, and accordingly cannot exercise any significant influence. When the Group
owns less than 20% of the voting share of the investee, the Group has no significant influence on the
investee unless there is clear evidence to show that the Group can participate in the business and
operation decisions of the investee and accordingly can exercise a significant influence.

(4) Method of impairment testing and impairment provision
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For investment of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, refer to Note III. 21 for the method of
asset impairment.

15. Investment properties

Investment properties refer to real estate held for earning rental income or for capital appreciation, or
both. The investment properties of the Group include leased land use rights, land use rights held for
appreciation and subsequent transfer, and leased buildings.

The investment properties of the Group are initially measured at cost and subsequently depreciated or
amortized according to the relevant provisions for fixed assets or intangible assets.

For investment properties measured using the cost model, impairment is recognized according to the
method as stated in Note III. 21.

The difference between the disposal proceeds, net of any related taxes and fees, and the carrying amount
of investment properties sold, transferred, scrapped, or damaged is recognized in the profit or loss for
the current period.

16. Fixed assets
(1) Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of services, for rental
to others, or for administrative purposes and have useful lives for more than one year of accounting.

Fixed assets are only recognized when its related economic benefits are likely to flow to the Group and
its cost can be reliably measured.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost.

Subsequent expenditures related to fixed assets are included in the cost of fixed assets when the
economic benefits related to them are likely to flow into the Group and their costs can be measured
reliably; the daily repair expenses of fixed assets that do not meet the criteria for subsequent expenditure
of fixed assets capitalization shall be included in the current profit or loss or the cost of relevant assets
according to the beneficiary at the time of occurrence. The carrying amount of the replaced part shall
be derecognized.

(2) Depreciation methods

The cost of a fixed asset is depreciated using the straight-line method since the state of intended use,
unless the fixed asset is derecognized or classified as held for sale. Not considering impairment
provision, the estimated useful lives, residual rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of fixed
assets are as follows:

Category Useful life (years) Residual rate % Annual depreciation rate %
Housing and buildings 20-30 3% 3.23-4.85
Machinery and equipment 4-10 3% 9.70-24.25
Motor vehicles 3-5 3% 19.40-32.33
Electronics and office equipment 4-8 3% 12.13-24.25

Among the above, depreciation rate of impaired fixed assets is determined after deduction of the
cumulative amount of impairment provision.

(3) Impairment testing and the impairment provision of fixed assets refers to Note III. 21.

(4) The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net residual value and the depreciation method of fixed
assets at the end of each financial year

Useful lives of fixed assets are adjusted if they are different with the initial estimates. Estimated net
residual values are adjusted if they are different from the initial estimates.

(5) Disposal of fixed assets
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When the fixed assets are disposed, or no economic benefit is expected to be generated through the use
or disposal, the fixed assets shall be derecognised. The amount of the disposal income from the sale,
transfer, scrapping or destruction of fixed assets after deducting their carrying value and relevant taxes
is recorded into the current profit or loss.

17. Construction in progress

Construction in progress is recognized based on the actual construction cost, including all expenditures
incurred for construction projects, capitalized borrowing costs for the construction in progress before
it has reached the working condition for its intended use and other related expenses during the
construction period.

Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when it has reached the working conditions for
its intended use.

Provision for impairment of construction in progress refers to Note III. 21.
18. Borrowing costs
(1) Recognition of borrowing costs capitalization

Borrowing costs are capitalized when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset and included in the cost of related assets. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as expenses and recorded in profit or loss for the current period when incurred.
Capitalization of such borrowing costs commenced only when all of the following conditions are
satisfied:

(D Expenditures for the asset are being incurred, capital expenditure includes the expenditure in the

form of cash payment, transfer of non-cash assets or interest bearing liabilities for the purpose of
acquiring or constructing assets eligible for capitalization;

(2) Borrowing costs are being incurred; and

(3 Activities relating to the acquisition, construction or production of the asset that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have commenced.

(2) Borrowing costs capitalization period

Capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying assets being acquired, constructed
or produced become ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs incurred after the qualifying
assets became ready for their intended use or sale are recognized as an expense when incurred and
recorded in profit or loss for the current period.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in which the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when the suspension is for a continuous
period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs continue to be capitalized during the normal suspension
period.

(3) Borrowing costs capitalization rate and calculation of capitalization amount

For funds borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest
expense incurred on that borrowing less any bank interest earned from depositing the borrowed funds
before being used into banks or any investment income on the temporary investment of those funds.
For funds borrowed for general purposes, the amount of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings
is calculated by applying a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess amounts of
cumulative expenditures on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose borrowings.
Capitalization rate is determined by calculating weighted average interest rate of general borrowings.
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In the capitalization period, exchange differences of specific borrowings in foreign currency are fully
capitalized. Exchange differences of general borrowings in foreign currency are recorded in profit or
loss for the current period.

19. Intangible assets
The Group’s intangible assets include land use rights, software, patent rights, and trademark rights.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and their useful life is determined on acquisition. An
intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized by a method which can reflect the expected
realization of economic benefits related to the asset since the intangible asset is available for use. When
the expected realization of economic benefits cannot be reliably determined, intangible asset is
amortized under straight-line method. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortized.

Amortization methods of intangible assets with finite useful life are shown as follows:

Category Use(t;:!l;:; Basis for determining useful life =~ Amortization method
Land use rights 30-50 Real estate title certificate Straight line method
Software 3 Contract signed Straight line method
Trademark rights 3 Trademark registration certificate Straight line method
Patent rights 3 Patent certificate Straight line method

The Group reviews the finite useful life of an intangible asset and the amortization method at the end
of each financial year. Any change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

If an intangible asset is expected no longer in generating future economic benefits to the Group at the
balance sheet date, the carrying amount of the asset is charged to profit or loss for the current period.

Impairment method of intangible assets refers to Note III. 21.

20. Research and development expenditure

The research and development (R&D) expenditure of the Group comprises expenses directly related to
the Group’s R&D activities. These include salaries of R&D personnel, direct input costs, depreciation
and amortization of equipment, design expenses, equipment debugging costs, amortization expenses of
intangible assets, expenses for outsourcing R&D activities, and other related costs. Among these, the
salaries of R&D personnel are allocated to R&D expenses based on project hours. Equipment,
production lines, and facilities shared between R&D activities and other production operations are
allocated to R&D expenses based on the proportion of hours used and the proportion of space utilized.

Expenditure on an internal research and development project is classified into expenditure on the
research phase and expenditure on the development phase.

Expenditure on the research phase is recorded in profit or loss when incurred.

Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized only when the Group can satisfy all of the
following conditions: it is technical feasible that the intangible asset can be used or sold upon
completion; there is intention to complete the intangible asset for use or sale; the intangible asset can
generate economic benefits, including there is evidence that the products produced using the intangible
asset has a market or the intangible asset itself has a market; if the intangible asset is for internal use,
there is evidence that there is usage for the intangible asset; there is sufficient support in terms of
technology, financial resources and other resources in order to complete the development of the
intangible asset, and there is capability to use or sell the intangible asset; the expenses attributable to
the development stage of the intangible asset can be measured reliably. Expenditure on the development
phase is recorded in profit or loss for the current period if the above conditions are not met.
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Research and development projects of the Group will enter into the development phase when they meet
the above conditions and pass the technical feasibility and economic feasibility studies and necessary
approval of the project.

Capitalized expenditure on the development phase is presented as “development costs” in the balance
sheet and is transferred to intangible assets when the project is completed to its intended use.

Capitalization conditions of specific research and development projects:

Research Phase: A phase of innovative and planned investigation and research activities aimed at
acquiring and understanding new scientific or technological knowledge, among other things.
Development Phase: In contrast to the research phase, the development phase should encompass work
completed after the research phase, to a large extent meeting the basic conditions for forming a new
product or technology. For instance, activities such as the design, construction, and testing of prototypes
and models before production or use, as well as the design, construction, and operation of trial
production facilities not yet at a commercially viable scale, all fall under development activities.
Expenditures incurred during the development phase can only be recognized as intangible assets if they
meet the following conditions:

(D Completion of the intangible asset to make it capable of being used or sold, with technological
feasibility.

(2 Intent to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it, with the Group able to explain the purpose
of developing the intangible asset.

(3) Ability of the intangible asset to generate economic benefits.

(@ Adequate technical, financial, and other resources to support the development of the intangible asset,
and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

(5 Expenditures attributable to the development phase of the intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Expenditures incurred that cannot be distinguished between the research and development phases will
be recognized as expenses in the profit or loss for the current period.

21. Impairment of assets

The impairment of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in long-term equity investments,
Investment properties that adopt cost models for subsequent measurement, fixed assets, construction
in progress, right-of-use assets, intangible assets and goodwill (excluding inventories, deferred tax
assets and financial assets) are determined as follows:

At each balance sheet date, the Group determines whether there may be indications of impairment of
the assets, if there is any, the Group will estimate the recoverable amount of the asset and perform test
for impairment. For goodwill arising from a business combination, intangible assets with indefinite
useful life and intangible assets that have not reached the usable condition are tested for impairment
annually regardless of whether such indication exists.

The recoverable amount of an asset is determined by the higher of the net amount after deducting the
disposal costs from the asset’s fair value and the present value of the asset’s estimated future cash flow.
The recoverable amount of assets is estimated on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the
asset group to which the asset belongs. The identification of the asset group is based on whether the
cash flow generated from the asset group is independent of the major cash inflows from other assets or
asset groups.

When the asset or asset group’s recoverable amount is lower than its carrying amount, the Group
reduces its carrying amount to its recoverable amount, the reduced amount is recorded in profit or loss
for the current period and the provision for impairment of assets is recognized.

For tests of goodwill impairment, the carrying amount of goodwill arising from a business combination
is allocated reasonably to the relevant asset group since the acquisition date. If the carrying value of
goodwill is unable to be allocated to asset group, the carrying value of goodwill will be allocated to
asset portfolio. Asset group or portfolio of asset group is asset group or portfolio of asset group which
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can benefit from synergies of a business combination and is not greater than the reportable segment of
the Group.

In impairment testing, if an indication of impairment exists in asset group or portfolio of asset group
containing allocated goodwill, impairment test is first conducted on asset group or portfolio of asset
group that does not contain goodwill, and corresponding recoverable amount is estimated, and any
impairment loss is recognized. Then the asset group or portfolio of asset group containing goodwill
conducts an impairment test by comparing its carrying amount and its recoverable amount. If the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, impairment loss of goodwill is recognized.

Once an impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed in a subsequent period.
22. Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are recorded at the actual cost and amortized evenly over the expected
benefit period. For the long-term deferred expense that cannot benefit in future accounting period, their
amortized value is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

23. Employee benefits
(1) Scope of employee benefits

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or compensation given by the Group in exchange
for service rendered by employees or for the termination of the employment relationship. Employee
benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination benefits and
other long-term employee benefits. Benefits provided to the employee’s spouse, children, dependents,
family members of deceased employees, or other beneficiaries are also employee benefits.

According to their liquidities, employee benefits are presented as “employee benefits payable” on the
balance sheet.

(2) Short-term employee benefits

In the accounting period in which employees have rendered services, the Group recognized the
employee wages, bonus, and social security contributions according to regulations such as medical
insurance, work injury insurance and maternity insurance as well as housing funds as liability and
charged to profit or loss for the current period or cost of relevant assets.

(3) Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which a corporate pays fixed contributions
into an escrow fund and will have no further obligation. Defined benefit plans are post-employment
benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans include basic pension insurance, unemployment insurance and enterprise
annuity plans.

Apart from basic pension insurance, the Group has established an enterprise annuity plan (“annuity
plan”) in accordance with relevant policies of the national enterprise annuity system. Employees can
voluntarily participate in this annuity plan. Besides this, the Group has no other significant employee
social security commitments.

In the accounting periods which employees render services, the amount of defined contribution plan is
recognized as liability and charged to profit or loss for the current period or cost of relevant assets.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, independent actuaries estimate the actuarial value at the balance sheet date
to determine the cost of welfare by using the Projected Unit Credit method. The Group recognizes the
following components of employee benefits cost arising from defined benefit plan:

(D service cost, comprising current service cost, past service cost and any gain or loss on settlement.
Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation
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resulting from employee service in the current period. Past service cost is the increase or decrease
in the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation for employee service in prior periods,
resulting from a plan amendment.

2 net interest on the defined benefit plan net liabilities or assets, including interest income on plan
assets, interest cost on the defined benefit plan obligation and interest on the effect of the asset
ceiling.

(@ changes as a result of remeasurement of the net defined benefit plan liabilities or assets.

Item(D and item(2) above are recognized in profit or loss for the current period unless another
Accounting Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the employee benefit costs in the cost of assets.
Item(@3) is recognized in other comprehensive income and is not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent period. On termination of defined benefit plans, other comprehensive income previously
recognized is transferred to undistributed profits.

(4) Termination benefits

Termination benefits provided by the Group to employees are recognized as an employee benefits
liability and charged to profit or loss for the current period at the earlier of the following dates: the
Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits because of an employment
termination plan or a curtailment proposal; and when the Group recognizes costs or expenses related
to the restructuring that involves the payment of termination benefits.

For early retirement arrangement, early retirement benefits are accounted for termination benefits, in
which the salaries and social security contributions to be paid to and for the early retired employees
from the off-duty date to the normal retirement date are charged to the profit or loss for the current
period. Compensations after the normal retirement date (such as formal endowment insurance) are
accounted for as post-employment benefits.

(5) Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits provided by the Group to the employees satisfied the conditions for
classifying as a defined contributions plan; those benefits are accounted for in accordance with the
above requirements relating to the defined contribution plan. When the benefits satisfy a defined
benefits plan, they are accounted for in accordance with the above requirements relating to defined
benefits plan, but the movement of net liabilities or assets in re-measurement of defined benefit plan is
recorded in profit or loss for the current period or cost of relevant assets.

24. Provisions

A provision is recognized as a liability when an obligation related to a contingency satisfied all of the
following conditions:

(1) The obligation is a present obligation of the Group;
(2) It is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
3) The amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Provisions are initially measured at the best estimate of the payment to settle the associated obligations
and consider the relevant risk, uncertainty and time value of money. If the impact of time value of
money is significant, the best estimate is determined as its present value of future cash outflow. the
Group reviews the carrying amount of provisions at the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying
amount to reflect the best estimate.

If all or part of the expenses necessary for settling the provision is expected to be compensated by a
third party, the amount of compensation is separately recognized as an asset when it is basically certain
to be received. The recognized compensation amount shall not exceed the carrying value of the
provision.

25. Share-based payments
(1) Types of share-based payments
Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payment.
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(2) Determination of fair value of equity instruments

If there exists an active market for options and other equity instruments granted by the Group, their fair
value is determined by the price quotes in an active market. If an active market does not exist for options
and other equity instruments granted by the Group, their fair value is determined by using an option
pricing model. Selection of option pricing model considers the following factors: A) Exercise price of
option; B) Validity period of option; C) Spot price of subject shares; D) Estimated volatility of share
price; E) Estimated dividend of shares; F) Risk-free interest rate in the validity period of option.

(3) Basis for the best estimate of vested equity instruments

At each balance sheet date of the vesting period, the Group revises the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest based on the best estimate of the latest number of eligible employees and other
subsequent information. On vesting date, the number of expected vested equity instruments should be
agreed with the actual number vested.

(4) Accounting treatment for implementation, modification, and termination of share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of equity instruments granted to
employees. Instruments which are vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant costs or
expenses at the fair value on the date of the grant and the capital reserve is credited accordingly.
Instruments of which vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment of performance
conditions are measured by recognizing services rendered during the period in relevant costs or
expenses and crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date of grant according
to the best estimates conducted by the Group at each balance sheet date. No subsequent adjustment is
made to the recognized relevant cost and expenses and owners’ equity after the vesting date.

Cash-settled share-based payments are measured based on the value of shares or other equity
instruments undertaken by the Group. Instruments which are vested immediately upon the grant are
charged to relevant costs or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and a liability is credited
accordingly. Instruments of which vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment of
performance conditions are measured by recognizing services rendered during the period in relevant
costs or expenses and crediting a liability accordingly at the fair value on the date of grant according
to the best estimates conducted by the Group at each balance sheet date. The fair value of the liability
is remeasured at each balance sheet date and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are modified, if the modification increases
the fair value of the equity instruments granted, the incremental fair value is recognized as additional
service obtained; if the modification increases the number of equity instruments granted, the
incremental fair value is recognized as additional service received. The incremental fair value granted
is the difference between the fair value of the modified equity instrument and that of the original equity
instrument both estimated as at the date of modification. If the modification of the terms and conditions
of share-based payment arrangement reduces the total fair value of the share-based payment or is not
otherwise beneficial to the employee, the Group nevertheless continues to account for the services
received as if that modification had not occurred, other than the Group cancels of some or all the equity
instruments granted.

If a grant of equity instruments is cancelled during the vesting period (other than a grant cancelled by
forfeiture when the vesting conditions are not satisfied), the Group accounts for the cancellation as an
acceleration of vesting and recognizes immediately the amount that otherwise would have been
recognized over the remainder of the vesting period and the capital reserve is credited accordingly.
When employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-vesting conditions but have not
fulfilled during the vesting period, the Group deems the granted equity instruments are cancelled.

26. Revenue
(1) General principle

The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in the contract, i.e. when the
customer obtains control of the relevant goods or services.

Where a contract has two or more performance obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation based on the percentage of respective unit prices of goods or services
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guaranteed by each performance obligation and recognizes as revenue based on the transaction price
that is allocated to each performance obligation.

If one of the following conditions is fulfilled, the Group performs its performance obligation within a
certain period; otherwise, it performs its performance obligation at a point in time:

(D when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group
when the Group performs its obligations under the contract; or

(2 when the customer is able to control the goods in progress in the course of performance by the
Group under the contract; or

(3 when the goods produced by the Group under the contract are irreplaceable and the Group has the
right to payment for performance completed to date during the whole contract term.

For performance obligations performed within a certain period, the Group recognizes revenue by
measuring the progress towards completion of that performance obligation within that certain period.
When the progress of performance cannot be reasonably determined, if the costs incurred by the Group
are expected to be compensated, the revenue shall be recognized at the amount of costs incurred until
the progress of performance can be reasonably determined.

For performance obligation performed at a point in time, the Group recognizes revenue at the point of
time at which the customer obtains control of relevant goods or services. To determine whether a
customer has obtained control of goods or services, the Group considers the following indications:

(D The Group has the current right to receive payment for the goods, which is when the customer has
the current payment obligations for the goods;

(2 The Group has transferred the legal title of the goods to the customer, which is when the client
possesses the legal title of the goods;

(3 The Group has transferred the physical possession of goods to the customer, which is when the
customer obtains physical possession of the goods;

@ The Group has transferred all of the substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the
customer, which is when the customer obtains all of the substantial risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods to the customer;

(5 The customer has accepted the goods or services;

(6 other information indicates that the customer has obtained control of the goods.
(2) Specific revenue recognition

The specific method for revenue recognition is as follows:

Sales of goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control over
the asset is transferred to the customer, typically upon delivery of the goods.

Rendering of services: Service revenue, including the provision of vehicle transportation services,
automotive raw materials and parts supply chain management services, transportation services for non-
automotive commodities, and the recognition of service revenue at the time when the customer signs
for the receipt of the Vehlcle auto parts or non-automotive commodities and both parties confirm the
completion of the service. Since customers are unable to simultaneously obtain and consume the
benefits provided by the Group’s transportation services and supply chain management services upon
performance, and the Group cannot control the goods at the time of service provision, and the Group
also lacks the enforceable right to payment for services performed to date, the Group believes that
control over services transfers to the customer at the point when the customer receives the services
provided by the Group.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to the customer, the Group determines
whether its commitment is to perform (i.e., the Group is the principal) or to arrange for the goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e., the Group is the agent). If the Group controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer, then the Group is considered the principal.

If the Group’s obligation is to arrange for another party to provide specific goods or services, then the
Group acts as an agent. In this case, the Group does not control the specified goods or services provided
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by the other party before transferring them to the customer. When acting as an agent, the Group
recognizes revenue for any fees or commissions expected to be entitled to. This amount is recognized
as the net amount after deducting the amount payable to other related parties from the total
consideration received or receivable, or as determined based on the established commission amount or
percentage, etc.

27. Contract costs
Contract costs consist of incremental costs of obtaining a contract and contract fulfillment costs.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that an entity incurs to obtain a contract with
a customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained (for example, a sales
commission). The Group recognizes as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer if those costs are expected to be recoverable. Other expenses incurred by the Group other
than the incremental costs that are expected to be recovered in obtaining a contract are recognized in
profit or loss for the current period when incurred.

The Group recognizes as an asset the costs incurred in fulfilling a contract with a customer if those
costs are not within the scope of another Standard (for example, Inventories) and meets all of the
following criteria:

(D the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract, including direct labour, direct
materials, manufacturing costs (or similar costs) , costs that are explicitly chargeable to the
customer and other costs that are incurred only because the Group entered into the contract;

(@) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying performance
obligations in the future; and

(3 the costs are expected to be recovered.

Assets recognised on incremental costs of obtaining a contract and contract fulfillment costs
(hereinafter refer as “contract assets”) are amortized on a systematic basis that is consistent to the
revenue recognition of the related goods or services and are charged to profit or loss for the current
period. If the amortization period is not more than one year, it is recognized in the current period’s
income statement when it occurs.

The Group recognises a provision for impairment of assets when the carrying amount of contract assets
is higher than the difference between the following two items:

(D the remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods
or services to which the asset relates;

() costs anticipated to be incurred for the transfer of goods or services.
28. Government grants

Government grants are recognized when prescribed conditions are satisfied and the grant will be
received.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured at the amount
received or receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a non- monetary asset, it is
measured at fair value. If fair value cannot be reliably determined, it is measured at a nominal amount
of RMB 1.

A government grant related to an asset is a grant obtained by the Group for purchase, construction or
formation of long-term assets. The grant not related to an asset is classified as a government grant
related to income.

For government grant with unspecified purpose, the amount of grant used to form a long-term asset or
related to an asset is regarded as government grant related to an asset, the remaining amount of grant
is regarded as government grant related to income. If it is not possible to distinguish, the amount of
grant is treated as government grant related to income.

A government grant related to an asset is recognized as deferred income and amortized to profit or loss
over the useful life of the related asset on a reasonable and systematic basis. For a government grant
related to income, if the grant is compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred, the grant
is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current period. If the grant is compensation for related
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expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income and
recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the related expenses or losses are recognized.
Government grants measured at nominal amounts are directly recognized in profit or loss for the period.
The Group adopts the same treatment for those transactions of similar government grants.

Government grants relating to daily activities, according to the substance of business transaction, it is
recorded as other income or offset relevant expenditures. If it is not related to daily activities, it is
recorded as non-operating income.

Repayment of a government grant related to an asset, that initially deducted the carrying amount of the
asset, is recognized by increasing the carrying amount of the asset; if there exists of the related deferred
income balance, then the deferred income balance is reduced by the amount repayable, any excess is
charged to profit or loss for the current period. Repayment of a government grant related to other
situations, it is directly charged to profit or loss for the current period.

If policy-based subsidized loans are obtained and the government disburses the subsidy funds to the
lending bank, the fair value of the loan is recognized as the borrowing value, and borrowing costs are
calculated using the effective interest rate method. The difference between the actual amount received
and the fair value of the loan is recognized as deferred income, which is amortized using the effective
interest rate method over the term of the loan, offsetting borrowing costs. If the government disburses
the subsidy funds directly to the Group, the subsidy offsets borrowing costs.

29. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to transactions or items recognized directly in equity
and goodwill arising from a business combination.

Temporary differences arising from the difference between the carrying amount of an asset or liability
and its tax base are recognized as deferred tax using the balance sheet liability method.

All the temporary tax differences are recognized as deferred tax liabilities except for those incurred in
the following transactions:

(1) Initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which
is neither a business combination nor affects accounting profit or taxable profit (or deductible
loss) when the transaction occurs (Except for individual transactions that result in equal taxable
temporary differences and deductible temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of assets and liabilities) ;

(2) The taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, and the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset for the carry forward of deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits to subsequent periods, to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, deductible losses
and tax credits can be utilized, except for those incurred in the following transactions:

(1) The transaction is neither a business combination nor affects accounting profit or taxable profit
(or deductible loss) when the transaction occurs (Except for individual transactions that result in
equal temporary differences and deductible temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities) ;

(2) The deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, the corresponding deferred tax asset is recognized when both of the following
conditions are satisfied: it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable
future, and it is probable that taxable profits will be available in the future against which the
temporary difference can be utilized.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, and their tax
effect is reflected.

At the balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset. Ifit is probable
that sufficient taxable profits will not be available in future periods to allow the benefit of the deferred
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tax asset to be utilized, the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reduced. Any such reduction in
amount is reversed when it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

On the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented as a net amount
after offsetting when they simultaneously meet the following conditions:

(1) The legal right exists for the tax-paying entity within the Group to settle current income tax assets
and current income tax liabilities on a net basis.

(2) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same tax-paying entity within the Group.

30. Leases
(1) Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group, as a lessee or a lessor, shall assess whether the customer under
the contract has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset during the period of use and has to right to direct the use of the identified asset during the period
of use. The Group considers the contract to be a lease or to include a lease if one of the parties to the
contract conveys the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a certain period of time
in exchange for consideration.

(2) The Group acts as the lessee

At the commencement date, the Group recognizes the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
leases, except for simplified short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

For the accounting policy of the right-of-use assets, see Note III. 31.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the outstanding lease payments at the
commencement date of the lease using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the interest rate implicit
in the lease cannot be determined, the incremental borrowing rate shall be used as the discount rate.
The lease payments include: fixed payments and in-substance fixed payments; if there are lease
incentives, the relevant amount of lease incentives shall be deducted; variable lease payments
depending on an index or a rate; the exercise price of the option provided that the lessee is reasonably
certain that the option will be exercised; the amount to be paid to exercise the option to terminate the
lease if the lease term reflects that the lessee will exercise the option to terminate the lease; and the
amount expected to be payable based on the residual value of the security provided by the lessee. The
interest expense of the lease liability in each period of the lease term shall be calculated in accordance
with the fixed periodic interest rate and recorded into the profit or loss of the current period. The
variable lease payment not included in the measurement of lease liabilities shall be recorded into the
current profit or loss when actually incurred.

Short-term lease

A short-term lease is a lease that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less,
except for a lease that contains a purchase option.

The Group will record the lease payment amount of short-term lease into the cost of relevant assets or
current profit or loss in each period of the lease term according to the straight-line method.

Leases of low value assets

Leases of low value assets refer to the lease of a single leased asset whose value is less than RMB
40,000 when it is a brand-new asset.

The Group will include the lease payment of the low-value asset lease into the cost of the relevant asset
or current profit or loss in each period of the lease term according to the straight-line method.

For leases of low value assets, the Group chooses to adopt the above simplified treatment method
according to the specific situation of each lease.

Lease modifications

A lessee shall account for a lease modification as a separate lease if both: (1) the modification increases
the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and (2) the consideration
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for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the contract.

When lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, on the day of the lease
modification, the Group re-allocates the consideration in the modified lease, re-determines the lease
term, and re-measures the present value of lease liability according to the revised lease payments and
revised discount rate.

For lease modifications that result in a decrease in the lease scope or the lease term, the Group decreases
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset accordingly and recognizes in the profit or loss of the
current period any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

For all other lease modifications that result in remeasurement of lease liabilities, the Group makes a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

(3) The Group acts as the lessor

When the Group acts as the lessor, the leases that substantially transfer all the risks and rewards related
to the ownership of the assets are recognized as finance leases, and other leases other than finance
leases are recognized as operating leases.

Finance leases

In the case of finance leases, the Group takes the net investments in the lease as the carrying amounts
of finance lease receivable at the commencement date, and the net lease investments are the sum of the
unguaranteed residual value and the present value of the lease payments receivable at the
commencement date, discounted at the implicit interest rate. the Group, as the lessor, calculates and
recognizes interest income for each period of the lease term at a fixed periodic rate. The variable lease
payments obtained by the Group as the lessor and not included in the measurement of the net lease
investments shall be recorded into the current profit or loss when actually incurred.

The derecognition and impairment of finance lease receivable shall be accounted for in accordance
with the provisions of the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 - Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments” and the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.
23 - Transfer of Financial Assets”.

Operating lease

For the rent in the operating lease, the Group shall recognize the profit or loss of the current period in
accordance with the straight-line method during each period of the lease term. The initial direct costs
incurred in connection with the operating lease shall be capitalized, allocated on the same basis as the
recognition of rental income during the lease term and recorded into the current profit or loss in
installments. The variable lease payments obtained in connection with the operating lease and not
included in the lease payments shall be recorded into the current profit or loss when actually incurred.

Lease modifications

When an operating lease is modified, the Group will treat it as a new lease for accounting treatment
from the effective date of the modification, and the amount of lease payments received in advance or
receivable related to the lease before the modification will be regarded as the amount of new lease
payments.

The Group will treat the finance lease modification as a separate lease if the following conditions are
met: (1) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and (2) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with
the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the contract.

If the finance lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group will deal with the
modified lease under the following circumstances: (1) If the modification takes effect on the
commencement date of the lease, the lease will be classified as an operating lease, and the Group will
treat it as a new lease from the effective date of the lease modification, and take the net investment in
lease before the effective date of the lease modification as the carrying amount of the leased asset; (2)
If the modification takes effect on the commencement date of the lease, the lease will be classified as
a finance lease, and the Group will conduct accounting treatment in accordance with the provisions of
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the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments” concerning the modification or renegotiation of the contract.

31. Right-of-use assets
(1) Criteria for the recognition of right-of-use assets

The Group’s right-of-use assets refer to the Group’s right to use the leased assets during the lease term
as the lessee.

On the commencement date, the right-of-use assets shall be initially measured at cost. The cost includes:
the initial measurement of the lease liability; for the amount of lease payments paid on or before the
commencement date of the lease term, if there is a lease incentive, the relevant amount of lease
incentive already enjoyed will be deducted; initial direct costs incurred by the Group as the lessee; the
costs which the Group, as the lessee, expects to incur in dismantling and removing the leased assets,
restoring the premises on which the leased assets are located or restoring the leased assets to the state
agreed in the lease terms. the Group, as the lessee, shall recognize and measure the costs of demolition
and restoration in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.13 —
Contingencies”. Subsequent adjustments are made for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

(2) Depreciation method of the right-of-use assets

The Group uses the straight-line method of depreciation. Where the Group, as the lessee, can reasonably
determine that it obtains the ownership of the leased assets upon expiration of the lease term,
depreciation shall be accrued over the remaining useful life of the leased assets. Where it is impossible
to reasonably determine that the ownership of the leased asset can be acquired at the expiration of the
lease term, depreciation shall be accrued in the shorter period between the lease term and the remaining
useful life of the leased asset.

(3) See Note III. 21 for the impairment test method of the right-of-use assets and the loss allowance.
32. Safety production costs and simple reproduction fee

According to relevant regulations, the Group accrues and uses safety production costs in accordance
with the “Management Measures for the Extraction and Use of Enterprise Safety Production Costs”
[Cai Qi (2022) No. 136].

Circulation processing business is subject to the standard for machinery manufacturing enterprises, and
an average monthly withdrawal is made on a regressive basis:

(1) 2.35% for operating income not exceeding RMB10 million;

(2) 1.25% for the portion ranging RMB10 million to RMB100 million;
(3) 0.25% for the portion ranging RMB100 million to RMBI billion;
(4) 0.1% for the portion ranging RMBI1 billion to RMBS billion;

(5) 0.05% for the portion exceeding RMBS5 billion.

The amount to be accrued for the current year is determined based on the previous year’s operating
income and is extracted on a monthly average basis. Specifically:

(1) General freight transportation business: 1%;

(2) Passenger transportation business, pipeline transportation, hazardous goods, and other special
freight transportation businesses: 1.5%.

When the Group, acting as a contractor or carrier, provides services to customers that fall within the
scope specified in this regulation, and if the cost of purchased materials and services exceeds 85% of
the revenue earned from customers, the Group can use the net amount obtained by deducting the
relevant cost of purchased materials and services from the revenue as the basis for provisioning safety
production costs.
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Safety production costs, when extracted, are recorded as part of the cost of related products or as an
expense in the profit or loss for the current period. Simultaneously, they are also recorded under the
“special reserve” account.

When payment is made for safety production costs within the specified scope, if it is an expense, it is
directly deducted from special reserve. If it is related to fixed assets, the expenditures incurred are
initially accounted in “Construction in progress” and transfer to fixed assets when the safety project is
completed and reaches the predetermined usable status and after that, the cost of fixed assets is
deducted from special reserve and the same amount is recognized in accumulated depreciation. Such
fixed assets will not accrue for depreciation in subsequent periods.

33. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The Group makes continuous evaluations on critical accounting estimates and key assumptions based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The followings are the critical accounting estimations and key
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Classification of financial assets

Significant judgements involved in determining the classification of financial assets include the
analysis of business models and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model for a group of financial assets
include how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks
are assessed and managed and how the relevant management personnel are compensated.

When the Group assesses whether the contractual cash flows of the financial assets are consistent with
basic lending arrangements, the main judgements are described as below: whether the principal amount
may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal) ;
whether the interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic
lending risks and a profit margin and cost. For example, whether the amount repaid in advance reflects
only the outstanding principal and interest thereon, as well as reasonable compensation paid for early
termination of the contract.

Measurement of the ECLs of accounts receivable

For the receivables that are provisioned for bad debts based on the aging group, the Group calculates
the migration rate step by step based on the balances of different aging periods in the past several years,
and then determines the expected credit loss rate. When determining the expected credit loss rate, the
Group uses internal historical credit loss experience and other data, and adjusts the historical data in
combination with the current situation and forward-looking information. When considering forward-
looking information, the indicators used by the Group include GDP growth rate, broad money (M2)
growth rate, total retail sales of consumer goods, consumer price index (CPI), and logistics business
climate index. For the receivables that are provisioned for bad debts on an individual basis, the Group
calculates the present value of the expected future cash flows based on the expected cash inflow time
and amount under different assumption scenarios, and the determined discount rate. The Group
regularly monitors and reviews the assumptions related to the calculation of expected credit losses.
Goodwill impairment

The Group evaluates whether goodwill is impaired at least annually. This requires an estimate of the
use-value of the asset group to which goodwill has been allocated. When estimating the value in use,
The Group needs to estimate the future cash flows from the asset group and select the appropriate
discount rate to calculate the present value of the future cash flows.

Determination of fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group assesses the value of non-listed equity investments based on market-based valuation
techniques. This valuation requires the Group to identify comparable companies in the same industry
as the non-listed companies holding the equity and select corresponding value ratios. Besides the
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aforementioned, the Group also needs to adjust the value ratios based on differences in indicators such
as asset size and profitability, and calculate the investment value according to the adjusted value ratios.

34. Changes in accounting policies and accounting estimates
(1) Changes in significant accounting policies
@ Interpretation No. 17 of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

The Ministry of Finance issued Interpretation No. 17 of the Enterprise Accounting Standards (Finance
and Accounting [2023] No. 21) in November 2023 (hereinafter referred to as “Interpretation No. 17”).

Classification of current liabilities and non-current liabilities

Interpretation No. 17 stipulates that for liabilities arising from corporate loan arrangements, the right
of a company to defer debt repayment for more than one year after the balance sheet date may depend
on whether the company has complied with the conditions specified in the loan arrangement
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractual conditions”). The contractual conditions that enterprises
should comply with on or before the balance sheet date, even if the compliance with the contractual
conditions is evaluated only after the balance sheet data (if any contractual conditions stipulate that
the evaluation should be based on the financial condition on the balance sheet date after the balance
sheet date), affect the judgment of whether the right exists on the balance sheet date, and thus affect
the liquidity allocation of the liability on the balance sheet date. The contractual conditions that
enterprises should follow after the balance sheet data (if any contractual conditions stipulate that the
evaluation should be based on the financial condition of the six months after the balance sheet date)
do not affect the judgment of whether the right exists on the balance sheet date and are unrelated to the
liquidity classification of the liability on the balance sheet date.

If the term of a liability causes a company to settle by delivering its own equity instruments at the
option of the counterparty, and if the option is classified as an equity instrument and separately
recognized as an equity component of a composite financial instrument according to the standard, then
this clause does not affect the liquidity classification of the liability.

The group will implement this regulation from 1 January 2024 and adjust the comparable period
information.

The adoption of Interpretation No. 17 has not had a significant impact on the financial condition and
operating results of the Group.

©) Interpretation No. 18 of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

On 31 December 2024, the Ministry of Finance released Interpretation of Enterprise Accounting
Standards No. 18 (Finance and Accounting [2024] No. 24) (the “Interpretation No. 18”).

Accounting treatment of guaranteed quality assurance that does not belong to a single performance
obligation

Interpretation No. 18 stipulates that when accounting for the estimated liabilities arising from quality
assurance that do not belong to a single performance obligation, enterprises shall, in accordance with
the relevant provisions of Enterprise Accounting Standard No. 13- Contingencies, debit the accounts
of “main business costs” and “other business costs” and credit the account of “estimated liabilities”
based on the determined estimated liability amount, and accordingly present them in the “operating
costs” in the income statement and the “other current liabilities”, “non-current liabilities due within

29 ¢

one year”, “estimated liabilities” and other items in the balance sheet.

The Group shall implement this regulation from the date of issuance of Interpretation No. 18 and make
retrospective adjustments.

The implementation of Interpretation No. 18 has not had a significant impact on the financial condition
and operating results of the Group.

(2) Significant changes in accounting estimates
None.
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IV. Taxation

1. Major taxes and their tax rates

Taxes Tax basis Statutory tax rate %
Value-added tax VAT taxable amount 13,9 0r 6
Urban maintenance and construction tax Actual turnover tax paid 7orl
Education surcharge Actual turnover tax paid 3
Local education surcharge Actual turnover tax paid 2
Enterprise income tax Subject to taxable profit 25,20 or 15

Details are in below:

P— fncome
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (£ B & % K. & # 7R A PR 3]) 15.00
CMAL BO Yu Transportation Co., Ltd. (& B &% K A FE @A LA F]) 15.00
Fulu International Logistics Co., Ltd. (3 ¥4 B B4 i A F 2> 8)) 20.00
Chongging Saimei Shuzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (& B & % $&5 AHH A R 8]) 25.00
Chongqing Changzu Feiyue Technology Co., Ltd. (& B & 2 R AAFH A TR F)) 15.00
Chongqing Future Supply Chain Management Logistics Co, Ltd. (& 43 &4t & 42 & 22 A PR 3]) 25.00
Chongqing Changxiang Supply chain Technology Co., Ltd. (& B & F4 & s A A FR A 8]) 15.00
Nanjing CMSC Logistics Co., Ltd. (¥ % &% K AEAE XM 73 A [N 8)) 25.00
Changan Minsheng (Shanghai) Supply Chain Co., Ltd. (&% K, 4 (£ %) BL 4 A TR 8]) 25.00
Hangzhou Changan Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (4t 1 & % K. & #i7A PR 8)) 25.00
Wuhan Changjiang Zhilian Port Development Co., Ltd (3% f iT %5 B 5 2 28 A TR ) 25.00

2. Tax incentives and approval documents

According to Announcement No. 23 of 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation, and the National Development and Reform Commission on “Announcement on the
Continuation of Enterprise Income Tax Policies for the Development of the Western Region”, from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2030, enterprises in encouraged industries located in the western region
are subject to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15%. The Company, CMAL BO Yu Transportation
Co., Ltd. (“CMAL Bo Yu”), Chongqing Changxiang Supply Chain Technology Co., Ltd. are subject to
a 15% enterprise income tax rate for calculating its payable enterprise income tax.

According to Announcement No. 13 of 2022 issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation on “Announcement on Further Implementation of Preferential Policies for
Small and Micro Enterprises Income Tax”, from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, for small and
micro enterprises with annual taxable income exceeding RMB 1 million but not exceeding RMB 3
million, 25% of the portion exceeding RMB 1 million and up to RMB 3 million is deducted from the
taxable income, and the enterprise income tax is levied at a rate of 20%. According to the
Announcement No. 6 of 2023 by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on
Preferential Policies for Income Tax for Small and Micro Enterprises and Individual Industrial and
Commercial Households, and the Announcement No. 12 of 2023 by the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on Further Supporting the Development of Small and Micro
Enterprises and Individual Industrial and Commercial Households, from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2027, the portion of the annual taxable income of small and micro profit enterprises that
does not exceed RMB 1 million will be reduced by 25% and included in the taxable income, and
enterprise income tax will be paid at a rate of 20%. Fulu International Logistics Co., Ltd. enjoys the
preferential income tax exemption policy for small and micro enterprises.

According to the “Administrative Measures for the Recognition of High-tech Enterprises” jointly
promulgated by the Ministry of Science and Technology, the Ministry of Finance, and the State
Administration of Taxation in April 2008, and the high-tech enterprises recognized in the “National
Key Supported High-tech Fields”, technology service enterprises recognized as high-tech enterprises
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can be subject to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15% in accordance with the new “Enterprise
Income Tax Law” and its “Implementation Regulations”, the “PRC Tax Collection and Administration
Law”, and the “Implementation Rules of the PRC Tax Collection and Administration Law”
implemented since 1 January 2008. Chongqing Changzu Feiyue Technology Co., Ltd. (“Changzu
Feiyue”) is a high-tech enterprise with high-tech certificate number: GR202251100591. The term is

three years, starting from 12 October 2022, and the corporate income tax rate is 15%.

Other subsidiaries of the Company are subject to the enterprise income tax rate of 25%.

V. Notes to the items of consolidated financial statements

1. Cash and bank balances

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Cash on hand 20,126.17 138,637.03
Cash at bank 801,490,893.85 702,050,146.27

Deposits in the finance company

Other monetary funds

188,131,908.68
5,448,998.06

177,445,729.68
3,305,000.00

Total

Among them: total amount of funds stored overseas

995,091,926.76

882,939,512.98

Note: At the end of the period, the Company had restricted funds frozen by court amounted to RMB
7,420,000.00, deposits for bank acceptance bills amounted to RMB 5,448,998.06 and the official

vehicle ETC deposit was RMB1,000.00.

2. Notes receivable

Closing balance Beginning balance
Category Provision _ Provision )
for bad Carrying Book for bad Carrying
Book balance debts amount balance debts amount
Bank acceptance bills 49,919,626.97 49,919,626.97 - - -
gi‘l’g‘merc'a' acceptance 506,634.12 506,634.12  36,570.00 3657 36,533.43
Total 50,426,261.09 50,426,261.09 36,570.00 36.57 36,533.43

(1) Accounts receivable that has been endorsed or discounted by the Group but have not yet matured

at the end of the period

Types

End of term termination
confirmation amount

Confirmation amount not
terminated at the end of the period

Bank acceptance bill

12,294,483.18

(2) Disclosure by method of provision for bad debts

Book balance

Closing balance
Provision for bad debts

Category Expected Carrying
credit loss amount
Amount Ratio (%) Amount rate (%)

Provision for bad debts on an
individual basis
Provision for bad debts on a

portfolio basis 50,426,261.09 100.00 50,426,261.09
Including:
Bank acceptance bill 49,919,626.97 99.00 49,919,626.97
Commercial acceptance bill 506,634.12 1.00 506,634.12
Total 50,426,261.09 100.00 50,426,261.09
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Continued:
Beginning balance
Book balance Provision for bad debts
Category Expected Carrying
creditloss ~ amount
Amount  Ratio (%) Amount rate (%)

Provision for bad debts on an individual
basis
Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis 36,570.00 100.00 36.57 0.10 36,533.43
Including:

Bank acceptance bill

Commercial acceptance bill 36,570.00 100.00 36.57 0.10 36,533.43
Total 36,570.00 100.00 36.57 0.10 36,533.43

Notes receivable for which bad debts provision is made on a portfolio basis

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Bank acceptance bills

Closing balance Beginning balance
ltem Provision Expected Provision = Expected
Notes for bad  credit loss Notes for bad credit loss
receivable debts rate (%) receivable debts rate (%)

Bank acceptance bill 49,919,626.97 - - - - -

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Commercial acceptance bills

Closing balance Beginning balance
ltem Provision  Expected Provision Expected
Notes for bad credit loss Notes for bad credit loss
receivable debts rate (%) receivable debts rate (%)
Commercial acceptance bill 506,634.12 - - 36,570.00 36.57 0.10

(3) Accrual, recovery or reversal of bad debts provision during the year

Amount of provision for bad debts

Beginning balance 36.57
Provision for the year -
Recovered or reversal in the year 36.57

Closing balance -

3. Accounts receivable

(1) By ageing
Ageing Closing balance Beginning balance
0-3 months 1,547,018,778.79 1,378,720,144.29
4-6 months 29,084,964.20 43,053,036.47
7-12 months 37,712,067.31 33,075,436.09
1-2 years 30,028,694.46 19,664,317.21
2-3 years 11,374,705.88 5,976,331.29
Over 3 years 66,065,871.00 79,297,037.89
Subtotal 1,721,285,081.64 1,559,786,303.24
Less: Provision for bad debts 94,036,609.26 92,937,090.32
Total 1,627,248,472.38 1,466,849,212.92
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Note: The main trading condition between the Group and customers is credit. The credit period for
major clients is generally 3 months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group is
committed to strictly controlling its outstanding accounts receivable to reduce credit risk. The
overdue balance is regularly reviewed by senior management. The aging of accounts receivable
is calculated based on the invoice date.

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s receivables, including
debtors overdue as at the reporting date, was RMB82,760,000 (2023: RMB79,534,000).

(2) Disclosure by method of provision for bad debts

Closing balance

Category

Book balance

Ratio

Amount (%)

Provision for bad debts
Expected
credit loss

Amount rate (%)

Carrying
amount

Provision for bad debts on
an individual basis

Including:

Zhongcun Trading
Yunnan Co., Ltd. (*f 4+
R E A R 4)
Yizhao Huasheng
Logistics Co., Ltd.(f&
I3 Yy A PR 3])
Yunnan Yuzhen Supply
Chain Co., Ltd.(& d#
B TR 48])

Golmud Jingbei Salt
Industry Co., Ltd.(#-#
A dh A E A R F])

Golmud North
Economic and Trade
Co., Ltd.(#&-#@ Kb 7
48 A TR 8])

Chongqing Jiazhe
Yongbang Building
Materials Sales Co.,
Ltd. (& B 5% 5
K E A TR F))

Tianjin Free Trade
Qiancheng Taifeng
Technology Co.,
Lid.(R# 8 % #42 &
BRI F])

Wuhan Xinhengrong
Technology Co.,

Ltd. (3% &8 kAt 4%
H TR E])

Other Customers

Provision for bad debts on
a portfolio basis

Including:

Receivable from
general customers

Receivables from
related parties

65,248,445.57 3.79

31,684,467.44 1.84

17,806,256.60 1.03

5,797,990.98 0.34

5,482,401.08 0.32

1,671,365.98 0.10

1,486,421.80 0.09

753,064.00 0.04

210,185.60 0.01

356,292.09 0.02

1,656,036,636.07 96.21

371,518,470.14 21.58

1,284,518,165.93 74.63

21,910,011.08 33.58

4,752,670.12 15.00

7,122,502.64 40.00

2,898,995.49 50.00

3,837,680.75 70.00

1,169,956.19 70.00

1,486,421.80 100.00

75,306.40 10.00

210,185.60 100.00

356,292.09 100.00

72,126,598.18 4.36

38,794,178.36 10.44

33,332,419.82 2.59

43,338,434.49

26,931,797.32

10,683,753.96

2,898,995.49

1,644,720.33

501,409.79

677,757.60

1,583,910,037.89

332,724,291.78

1,251,185,746.11

Total

1,721,285,081.64 100.00

94,036,609.26 5.46

1,627,248,472.38
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Continued:
Beginning balance
Book balance Provision for bad debts
Category Expected Carrying
Ratio credit loss amount
Amount (%) Amount rate (%)
Provision for bad debts
Y . 38,194,467.44 2.45 622,569.82 1.63 37,571,897.62
on an individual basis
Including:
Zhongcun Trading
Yunnan Co., Ltd. (¥ 38,194,467.44 2.45 622,569.82 1.63 37,571,897.62
A EE A RN E)
Provision for bad debts 1,521,591,835.80  97.55 92,314,520.50 6.07 1,429,277,315.30
on a portfolio basis
Including:
Receivable from 59465945482 38.12 46,531219.28 782 548,128.235.54
general customers
Receivables from 926,932,380.98  59.43 45.783.301.22 494  881,149,079.76
related parties
Total 1,559,786,303.24 100.00 92,937,090.32 5.96 1,466,849,212.92

Accounts receivable for which bad debts provision is made on an individual basis

Closing balance

Name Expected
Book  Provision for credit loss Basis for accrual
balance bad debts rate (%)
. Based on collateral
Zhongcun Trading Yunnan Co., Ltd.
(b A T A A 5] 31,684,467.44 4,752,670.12 15.00 and expected future
payment
. o Based on collateral
Yizhao Huasheng Logistics Co.,
Ltd (45 962 24 2 T 3]) 17,806,256.60 7,122,502.64 40.00 and expected future
payment
: Based on collateral
Yunnan Yuzhen Supply Chain Co.,
Ltd.(F i 42 5548 i kb AT TR 2]) 5,797,990.98 2,898,995.49 50.00 and expected future
payment
. . Based on collateral
Golmud Jingbei Salt Industry Co.,
Ltd. (4 A b 46 58 3 A7 FE A 4]) 5,482,401.08 3,837,680.75 70.00 and expected future
payment
. Based on collateral
Golmud North Economic and Trade
Co., Ltd.(Fs i A& 4t 5 42 5 A P2 91) 1,671,365.98 1,169,956.19 70.00 and expect%i;ﬁg:]et
Chonggqing Jiazhe Yongbang Building
Materials Sales Co., Lid.(£ B &% 148642180 148642180 100.00 payrr?ear?tegr?)?ezltjitgrzi
B AR KE A TR F])
Tianjin Free Trade Qiancheng
Taifeng Technology Co., Ltd.(X# & 753,064.00 75,306.40 10.00 payrfea:fgrg;‘e‘;‘:itggi
B HAL R EA TR )
Wuhan Xinhengrong Technology Co., Based on future
Ltd (% &8 koA A TR F]) 210,185.60 210,185.60 100.00 payment projections
Other Customers 356,292.09 356,292.09 100.00 _ Expected
irretrievable
Total 65,248,445.57  21,910,011.08 33.58
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Continued:
Beginning balance .
Name Book Provision for Expected credit B:cszlf::i
balance bad debts loss rate (%)

According to

Zhongcun Trading Yunnan Co., the litigation
Ltd. (P A T @A R E)) 38,194.467.44 163 and collateral
conditions

Accounts receivable for which bad debts provision is made on a portfolio basis

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Receivable from general customers

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Ageing Provision Expected Provision  Expected
for bad  credit loss for bad credit loss

Book balance debts rate (%) Book balance debts rate (%)

0-3 months 312,238,418.97  1,467,520.57 047 507,129,413.44 963,545.89 0.19
4-6 months 13,876,538.82 222,024.62 1.60 36,432,291.89 874,375.00 240
7-12 months 9,414,935.21  1,475,320.35 15.67 5,877,825.00 576,614.63 9.81
1-2 years 498,179.14 259,003.33 51.99 3,690,734.47  2,689,438.21 72.87
2-3 years 454,536.37 334,447.86 73.58 3,226,090.89 3,124,146.42 96.84
Over 3 years 35,035,861.63 35,035,861.63 100.00 38,303,099.13  38,303,099.13 100.00
Total 371,518,470.14  38,794,178.36 10.44 594,659,454.82 46,531,219.28 7.82

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Receivables from related parties

Closing balance

Provision Expected

Beginning balance
Provision  Expected

Ageing
for bad  credit loss for bad credit loss
Book balance debts rate (%) Book balance debts rate (%)
0-3 months 1,234,704,797.41  1,082,719.49 0.09 871,590,730.85 871,590.73 0.10
4-6 months 14,890,159.69 52,115.56 0.35 6,620,744.58 15,227.71 0.23
7-12 months 3,249,584 .47 644,392.60 19.83 4,236,351.72 1,020,537.13 24.09
1-2 years 271,802.01 172,268.11 63.38 740,374.67 437,043.17 59.03
2-3 years 490,570.22 469,671.93 95.74 2,750,240.40  2,444,963.72 88.90
Over 3 years 30,911,252.13  30,911,252.13 100.00  40,993,938.76  40,993,938.76 100.00
Total 1,284,518,165.93  33,332,419.82 259 926,932,380.98 45,783,301.22 4.94

(3) Accrual, recovery or reversal of bad debts provision during the year

Amount of provision for

bad debts
Beginning balance 92,937,090.32
Provision for the year 6,296,723.85
Recovered or reversal in the year 106,113.00
Write-off in the year 4,747,508.13
Transfer in the year
Others-impact of the disposal of Shenyang Changyou -343,583.78
Closing balance 94,036,609.26
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(4) Accounts receivable actually written-off in the period

Project Write-off amount

Accounts receivable actually written off 4,747,508.13

Significant accounts receivable write-off status

Verification Is the payment

Unit Name ﬁeccc(e(i):fl:lt)ie Write off Reason for procedures generated from
amount verification for related party
nature performance transactions
Suzhou Baogi Logistics Business MaGngnggsl
Co., Ltd. and 6 other fund 2,552,072.16  Debtor cancellation O%f' No
companies unds 1ce
Meeting

Shanghai Sizhi General
. . . . Debtor goes ;
Automotive Engineering Business 1.860.734.47 bankrupt with no Manager’s No
Technology Co., Ltd. and funds I ptwi Office
9 other companies enforceable assets Meeting
Total 4,412,806.63

(5) Accounts receivable and contract assets due from the top five debtors

Accounts receivable and contract assets due from the top five debtors as of 31 December 2024 was
totaling RMB 1,159,092,677.90, which accounted for 53.79% of total accounts receivable and contract
assets, and the corresponding impairment provision was totaling RMB 6,995,782.34.

4. Receivables financing

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Notes receivable 595,339,035.82 774,531,760.51
Notes receivable from BYD e-platform 5,682,007.43 2,208,120.31
Subtotal 601,021,043.25 776,739,880.82
Less: Other comprehensive income-Changes in fair value - -
Fair value at year end 601,021,043.25 776,739,880.82

(1) Closing balance of notes receivable being endorsed or factored and not yet matured

Category Amount derecognized at year end Amount not derecognized at year end

Bank acceptance bills 75,938,110.72 -

5. Prepayments

(1) Prepayments by ageing

Ageing Closing balance Beginning balance
Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)
0-3 months 11,099,027.58 64.81 8,102,050.06 59.25
4-6 months 880,422.76 5.14 845,363.13 6.18
7-12 months 2,305,983.39 13.47 2,805,966.76 20.52
1-2 years 1,742,748.31 10.18 960,915.00 7.03
2-3 years 152,212.56 0.89 892,501.15 6.53
Over 3 years 945,090.05 5.52 67,843.90 0.50
Subtotal 17,125,484.65 100.00 13,674,640.00 100.00
Less: Provision for bad debts 966,339.86 1,548,538.47
Total 16,159,144.79 12,126,101.53

45



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(2) Important prepayments with an age of over 1 year

Proportion
. of total Provision for
Debtor’s name Book balance prepayment bad debts
s (%)
Chongqing Yanxiang Logistics Co., Ltd. (& & &4 R A [Ra &) 970,583.06 6.01 194.12
Nanjing Handshake Information Technology Co., Ltd. (& %42 ¥
15 AL A TR 2)) 101,886.79 0.63 20.38
Beijing Zhongjiao Xinglu Connected Vehicle Technology Co., Ltd.
(L3 2 955 £ B AR RO 3)) . 062 2000
Total 1,172,469.85 7.26 234.50

(3) Prepayments due from the top five debtors

Prepayments to the top five debtors as at 31 December 2024 was totaling RMB 9,492,271.32, which
accounted for 55.43% of total prepayments.

6. Other receivables

Item

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Interest receivable
Dividends receivable
Other receivables

75,855,060.33

89,026,316.09

Total

75,855,060.33

89,026,316.09

(1) Other receivables

(D By ageing
Ageing Closing balance Beginning balance
0-6 months 22,858,541.26 48,645,349.08
7-12 months 9,694,056.14 7,528,055.12
1-2 years 20,388,395.48 9,528,816.71
2-3 years 7,600,519.65 11,155,535.95
Over 3 years 20,602,719.75 15,828,214.35
Subtotal 81,144,232.28 92,685,971.21
Less: Provision for bad debts 5,289,171.95 3,659,655.12
Total 75,855,060.33 89,026,316.09
(2 Disclosure by nature
Closing balance Beginning balance
Item Provision Provision
Book for bad Carrying for bad Carrying
balance debts amount Book balance debts amount
Current accounts 2,703,242.16  1,090,087.54  1,613,154.62  3,737,087.59  2,573,276.09 1,163,811.50
Security deposits, deposit 64,095,149.08 1,399,737.14  62,695411.94  71,291,739.44 732,951.75  70,558,787.69
Staff petty cash borrowing 435,174.00 - 435,174.00 159,100.00 - 159,100.00
g{%ﬁq“s‘fs for taxes and 223792946 6224814 217568132  539,18564  37,421.70 501,763.94
xﬁfﬁggglfgg?; Jale and . 43,810.00 1,698.46 42,1154
Others 11,672,737.58 2,737,099.13  8,935,638.45 16,915,048.54 314,307.12  16,600,741.42
Total 81,144,232.28 5,289,171.95 75,855,060.33  92,685,971.21 3,659,655.12  89,026,316.09
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(3 Information of provision for bad debts

At 31 December 2024, provision for bad debts on those in first stage:

Expected

Category Book balance ci‘leltitil:;(:lssxl;altg Pr&g?gg Carrying amount
months (%)

Provision for bad debts on an individual basis

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis 77,351,293.75 1.93 1,496,233.42 75,855,060.33

Including:
Current accounts 1,636,070.51 1.40 22,915.89 1,613,154.62
Security deposits, deposit 63,892,649.08 187 1,197,237.14 62,695,411.94
Staff petty cash borrowing 435,174.00 - - 435,174.00
Advances for taxes and expenses 2,194,119.46 0.84 18,438.14 2,175,681.32
Others 9,193,280.70 280  257,642.25 8,935,638.45

Total 77,351,293.75 193 1,496,233.42 75,855,060.33

At 31 December 2024, the Company had no other receivables classified as second stage.

At 31 December 2024, provision for bad debts on those in third stage:

Expected
Category b Book credit lqss rate Provision for Carrying
alance for the llfet(l(l)}(ls bad debts amount
Provision for bad debts on an individual basis 3,792,938.53 100.00 3,792,938.53
Including:
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %4452 A R a) 2,183,486.91 100.00 2,183,486.91
Hafei Automobile Co., Ltd. (474 & Bt A e 8))  713,359.16 100.00 713,359.16
(cg;cg%n#?{?%gg%g% ?Z%Zr\?ﬁ%e)‘“ Branch 471 814 49 100.00  471,814.49
;‘{‘gég;}r‘ ﬁ‘g 3%1?%1%1\%%1213? Vehicle Co., Ltd. % 990 000,00 10000  200,000.00
Other Customers 224 ,277.97 100.00 224.277.97
Total 3,792,938.53 100.00 3,792,938.53
At 31 December 2023, provision for bad debts on those in first stage:
Exnected
Category Book balance f;teg g::?llfzz Pm;;s(;o(;lelf;;: ngglill:lgt
months (%)
Provision for bad debts on an individual basis
Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis 90,159,607.60 1.26 1,133,291.51 89,026,316.09
Including:
Current accounts 1,210,723.98 3.87 46,912.48 1,163,811.50
Security deposits, deposit 71,291,739.44 1.03 732,951.75 70,558,787.69
Staff petty cash borrowing 159,100.00 - - 159,100.00
Advances for taxes and expenses 539,185.64 6.94 37,421.70 501,763.94
Withholding for sale and purchase of goods 43,810.00 3.88 1,698.46 42,111.54
Others 16,915,048.54 1.86 314,307.12 16,600,741.42
Total 90,159,607.60 1.26 1,133,291.51 89,026,316.09
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At 31 December 2023, the Company had no other receivables classified as second stage.

At 31 December 2023, provision for bad debts on those in third stage:

. Expected credit Provision for Carrying
ategory Book balance  loss rate for the bad debts

lifetime (%) amount
Provision for bad debts on an 2,526,363.61 100.00 2,526,363.61
individual basis
Including:
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd.
(ﬁ%gj% A A TR 3]) 1,006,404.45 100.00 1,006,404.45
e oy F 71085016 100.00 710,859.16
Others 809,100.00 100.00 809,100.00
Total 2,526,363.61 100.00 2,526,363.61
(@) Accrual, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year
y p g y
First stage Second stage Third stage
. Expected credit
Provision for bad debts Expected credit Expected‘cre:dlt loss loss for lifetime Total
loss within the for lifetime (no (credit
credit impairment . .
next 12 months occurred) impairment has
occurred)
Beginning balance 1,133,291.51 - 2,526,363.61 3,659,655.12
Movement of beginning
balance during the period
--Transfer to second stage
--Transfer to third stage
--Reverse to second stage
--Reverse to first stage
Provision for the year 364,581.91 - 2,075,674.92 2,440,256.83
Reversal in the year - - 809,100.00 809,100.00
Transfer in the year
Write-off in the year
Other movement -1,640.00 - - -1,640.00
Closing balance 1,496,233.42 - 3,792,938.53 5,289,171.95
Significant bad debt provisions reversed or recovered during the period
Original bgs[s Amounts
Item Reason for reversal Recovery for determining reversed or
method the bad debt
. recovered
provision
Other customers- | Om;lfset against |
claims Debt settlement ot erb?ccounts Unrecoverable 809,100.00
payable
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(5) Other receivables due from the top five debtors

Closing Proportion to Closing
Name of balance of . total other balance of
entity Nature other Ageing receivables provision for
receivables (%) bad debts
Security 0-6 months, 1-2 years, 2-3
Company 1 deposits 5,591,281.28 years, 3 years or more 6.89 114,782.88
Securit 0-6 months, 7-12 months, 1-
Company 2 ity 4,715,265.19 2 years, 2-3 years, 3 years or 5.81 54,700.90
deposits more
Company 3 Others 3,158,000.00 More than 3 years 3.89 196,743.40
Security 7-12 months, 1-2 years, 2-3
Company 4 deposits 3,000,000.00 years, 3 years or more 3.70 47,813.00
Company 5 gggggg 3,000,000.00 0-6 months 3.70 12,300.00
Total 19,464,546.47 23.99 426,340.18
7. Inventories
Closing balance Beginning balance
Provision for Provision for
decline in decline in
value/ value/
Item Book Provision for Carrying Book Provision for Carrying
balance impairment amount balance  impairment amount
of contract of contract
performance performance
cost cost
Raw materials 1,513,838.73 1,513,838.73 1,460,127.97 1,460,127.97
Work-in-progress 1,085,067.07 1,085,067.07 659,347.66 659,347.66

Finished goods 11,491,171.03 11,491,171.03  17,133,651.00 17,133,651.00
Reusable - - 1,048,261.40 1,048,261.40
materials
Contract - - 8574727.89 8,574,727.89
performance cost
Total 14,090,076.83 14,090,076.83  28,876,115.92 28,876,115.92
8. Contract assets
Closing balance Beginning balance
It Provision . Provision .
em Book balance for Carrymgt Book balance for Carrymgt
impairment amoun impairment amoun
Logistics servicesnot 433 477 51614 836710.93 432,640,805.21 245,605,637.72  466,650.71 245,138,987.01
completed and settled
Sub-total 433,477,516.14  836,710.93 432,640,805.21 245,605,637.72  466,650.71 245,138,987.01
Less: Contract assets
as presented as other
non-current assets
Total 433,477,516.14  836,710.93 432,640,805.21 245,605,637.72  466,650.71 245,138,987.01
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(1) Information on impairment of contract assets

Book balance

Closing balance

Provision for impairment

Category Expected Carrying
credit loss amount
Amount Ratio (%) Amount  rate (%)
Provision for bad debts on an 33,866.10 0.1 3,386.61 10.00 30,479.49
individual basis
Including:
Tianjin Free Trade Qiancheng
Taifeng Technology Co., Ltd
(K B 7 42 AR 33,866.10 0.01 3,386.61 10.00 30,479.49
R~ 3])
Provision for bad debts on a 433,443,650.04 99.99 833,324.32 019 432,610325.72
portfolio basis
Including:
Logistics services not 433,443,650.04 99.99 833,324.32 019 432,610325.72
completed and settled
Total 433,477,516.14 100.00 836,710.93 0.19 432,640,805.21
(Continued)
Balance at end of previous year
Book balance Provision for impairment
Category Carrying
Expected credit amount
Amount Ratio (%) Amount loss rate (%)
Provision for bad debts on an
individual basis
PrOViSi.On for. bad debts on a 245,605,637.72 100.00 466,650.71 0.19 245,138,987.01
portfolio basis
Including:
Logistics services not completed  oy5 60563770 10000  466,650.71 019  245138,987.01
and settled
Total 245,605,637.72 100.00 466,650.71 0.19 245,138,987.01

Provision for bad debts on an individual basis

Ending balance

Name . . Expected
Book balance 1mpalrr-n.ent credit loss rate Basis for provision
provision o
(%)
Tianjin Free Trade Qiancheng o
Taifeng Technology Co., Ltd Based on litigation and
33,866.10 3,386.61 10.00 projected future cash

(R# B H A2 BRI

/X 8])

collections
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Provision for impairment on a portfolio basis:

Provision for impairment on a portfolio basis: Logistics services not completed and settled

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Ageing Provision  Expected Expected
Contract for credit loss Contract Provision for  credit loss

assets impairment rate (%) assets  impairment rate (%)

0-3 months 433,432,702.91 833,169.97 0.19  245,605,637.72 466,650.71 0.19
4-6 months 10,947.13 154.35 1.41 - - -
Total 433,443,650.04 833,324.32 0.19  245,605,637.72 466,650.71 0.19

(2) Additions, recoveries or reversals of provision for impairment of contract assets

Item

Provision for the year

Reversal in
the year

Weritten-off in

the year

Reason

Contract assets

370,060.22

Provision based

- on projected future

cash collections

9. Other current assets

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Prepaid value-added tax 12,114,571.83 6,136,982.19
Deductible input tax 3,000,998.29 7,899,678.84
Prepaid income tax 2,351,617.04 3,983,228.00
Prepaid other taxes 839.63 -
VAT carry forward 127,263.49
Certificates of deposit and interest 150,027,128.32
Total 17,468,026.79 168,174,280.84
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10. Long-term equity investment

Beginning
balance of
provision
for
impairme
nt

Beginning
balance
(Carrying
amount)

Additio
ns in
investm
ent

Investee

Movement in the year

Adjustme
nt of
other
comprehe
nsive
income

Investment
Decrease income/loss
in recognized
investment under equity

method

Changes
of other
equity

Announ
ced
distribu
tion of
cash
dividen
dor
profit

Provision
for
impairment

Closing
Closing balance of
balance provision
(Carrying for

Other O
amount) impairmen

(DJoint ventures

Hangzhou
Changhe Anji
Supply Chain
Management Co.,
Ltd. (AL & &%
TR E A
Rz 4])

(@ Associates

12,747,661.95

Chongqing
Guoyuan Ro-Ro
Terminal
Company Limited
(Z B R K
SAA [ 8])

74,605,668.98

17,248,364.59 4,500,702.64

-4,341,290.79 -34,430.04

42,029,948.15 28,200,000.00 42,029,948.15

Total 87,353,330.93

17,248,364.59 159,411.85 -34,430.04

42,029,948.15 28,200,000.00 42,029,948.15

Notes:

1. Overall situation of impairment test

The Company conducted impairment testing on long-term equity investments based on the evaluation benchmark date of 31 December 2024. After
testing, the recoverable amount of the 31% equity of Chongqing Guoyuan Ro-Ro Terminal Company Limited (“Guoyuan Ro-Ro”) held by our
company is RMB 28.2 million, which is lower than its book value of RMB 70.2299 million. An impairment loss of RMB 42.029 million has been

provisioned for this period.
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2. Method for determining recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of Guoyuan Ro-Ro is determined based on the higher of the net amount of the fair value of the asset minus disposal
expenses and the present value of the expected future cash flows of the asset. After testing, the present value of the expected future cash flow for
orchard roll on/roll off is RMB 28.2 million. Based on the situation of the Guoyuan Ro-Ro, it is determined that the fair value of the Company shall
be measured using the income method when calculating the net fair value after deducting the disposal cost in accordance with the assumption of
the whole transfer. Disposal costs are incremental costs that can be directly attributed to asset disposal. Taking into account all factors, this valuation
estimates disposal costs at 5% of fair value.

The present value of the expected future cash flows of orchard roll on/roll off equipment is estimated using the income method, and the discounted
amount is determined by selecting an appropriate discount rate based on the expected future cash flows generated by the asset during its continuous
use. This income approach adopts the discounted cash flow model of enterprise free cash flow in the discounted cash flow method. The expected
cash flow for the future will be based on the pretax free cash flow of the enterprise. According to the principle of consistency between the income
amount and the discount rate, the discount rate is selected as the weighted average cost of capital before income tax. The valuation adopts a perpetual
period as the income period. Among them, the first stage is from 1 January 2025 to 31 December 2031, a total of 7 years. During this stage, based
on the company’s historical performance and future market analysis, the revenue situation is changing and gradually stabilizing; The second stage
is from 1 January 2032 to sustainable operation, during which our company considers maintaining a stable level of income as predicted in 2031.

3. Cancellation of joint venture in this period

During the reporting period, in accordance with the unanimous resolution of the Fourth Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Hangzhou Changhe
Anji Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (“Changhe Anji”) held on 28 November 2024, the joint venture company Changhe Anji was deregistered.
According to relevant laws and regulations and the company’s articles of association, as of 31 December 2024, Changhe Anji completed the
cancellation procedures and recovered an investment amount of RMB 17.25 million.
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11. Other equity instruments investment

Item Closing balance Beginning balance

China South Industries Group Finance Co.,

Ltd, (5 5 5 4 45 [ 0 36 A PR A2 ) 74,000,000.00 71,580,000.00

Note: Due to the strategic purpose of long-term holding planned by the Company, China South
Industries Group Finance Co., Ltd. (3% 25 % 1% %&£ 8 8+ 35 A R & 4L/ 4]) is designated by the

Company as a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, with
changes recognized in other comprehensive income.

Accumulated
. . Accumulated
Gains and gains and ains and
losses losses  Dividend g losses Reason for
recognized in  recognized in income o
. . transferred to  termination
Project other other recognized retained of
comprehensive comprehensive in this . .
. . . earnings due confirmation
income for the income at the period .
. . to termination
current period end of this .
period of recognition
China South Industries
Group Finance Co., Ltd. (£
AL IR B A TR AR 2,057,000.00 28,975,900.00
- 8))
12. Investment properties
Item Housing and buildings
I. Book value
1. Beginning balance 49,223,928.04
2. Increase -
3. Decrease -
4. Closing balance 49,223,928.04
I1. Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
1. Beginning balance 9,630,577.66
2. Increase 1,269,307.44
(1) Amortisation for the year 1,269,307 .44
3. Decrease -
4. Closing balance 10,899,885.10
I11. Provision for impairment
1. Beginning balance 6,048,517.34
2. Increase 867,887.32
(1) Provision 867,887.32
3. Decrease -
4. Closing balance 6,916,404.66
IV. Carrying amount
1. Carrying value at year end 31,407,638.28
2. Carrying value at beginning of year 33,544,833.04

Note: As of 31 December 2024, Sinovalue Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd. evaluated the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and issued an “Investment Property Fair Value Assessment
Project Asset Appraisal Report”. The appraisal report determined the appraisal value based on
market approach, and some properties had a partial impairment of RMB 867,887.32.
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13. Fixed assets

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Fixed assets 588,239,961.64 728,808,090.70
Fixed assets for disposal 608,984.63 171,238.73
Total 588,848,946.27 728,979,329.43
(1) Fixed assets
(D Details of fixed assets
Housing and Machinery and Motor Electronics
Item buildings equipment vehicles anq office Total
equipment
I. Book value:
1.Beginning balance 822,878,191.12  498422,229.31 179,438,506.89 88,614,579.36  1,589,353,596.68
2.Increase 404305223  115412554.87  7,848952.94 954874240  136,853,302.44
(1) Purchase - 108,388,66595  4,282,999.18  8,999229.11  121,670,894.24
((:i)n;rriﬁfg; ‘;;Oglogress 4,043,052.23 702388892 356595376 54951329  15,182,408.20
3.Decrease 56,919,123.74  167,364,003.87  30,628,835.94 14,826,679.27  269,738,642.82
(1) Disposal or scrap 347644100  71236,067.77  30225030.61 9,370,887.20  114,308,426.58
(2) Disposal of 5344268274  96127,036.10 40380533 545579207  155430,216.24
4.Closing balance 770,002,119.61  446470,780.31  156,658,713.89 83,336,64249  1,456,468,256.30
1. Accumulated
depreciation
1.Beginning balance 391,155483.38  220,207,029.02  166,741,834.95 72,017,082.64  859,211,429.99
2.Increase 2870469318  64485487.30  3638,358.92 878930393  105617,843.33
(1) Provision 2870469318  64485487.30  3638,358.92 878930393  105617,843.33
3.Decrease 897564053 4837246395  28750,518.34 1149995068  97,598,573.50
(1) Disposal or scrap 3,378,531.61 25080,571.28  28,677,60597  8,227,06050  65,363,769.36
gﬁ{)g&fgﬁi@' of 550710892  23,291892.67 7201237 327289018  32,234,804.14
4.Closing balance 410,884,536.03  245410,052.37 141629,67553 69,306,43589  867,230,699.82
I11. Provision for impairment
1.Beginning balance - 248,133.43 1,085,942.56 - 1,334,075.99
2.Increase - - -
(1) Provision
3.Decrease - 248,133.43 88,347.72 - 336,481.15
(1) Disposal or scrap - 248,133.43 88,347.72 - 336,481.15
4.Closing balance - 997,594.84 - 997,594.84
IV. Carrying amount
;Cda”ying valueatyear — ag9 11758358  201,060,727.94 1403144352 1403020660  588,239,961.64
2.Carrying value at 431722,707.74  268,877,066.86  11,610,819.38 16,507,496.72  728,808,090.70

beginning of year
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(2 Fixed assets held under finance leases

Item Carrying amount
Housing and buildings 92,723,038.14
Motor vehicles 1,514,149.77
Total 94,237,187.91

(2) Fixed assets for disposal

Item Closing balance Beginning balance Reason for disposal
Housing and buildings 113,778.36 Unused
Machinery and 118,046.72 3,877.08 Unused
equipment

Motor vehicles 286,473.92 139,985.50 Unused
fcllicigg;ﬁs and office 2,230.64 26,885.59 Unused
Other equipment 87,926.99 490.56 Unused
Others 528.00 408.00 Unused
Total 608,984.63 171,238.73

14. Construction in progress

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Construction in progress 5,005,318.07 9,149,679.44
Construction materials - -
Total 5,005,318.07 9,149,679.44

(1) Construction in progress

(D Information of construction in progress

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Item Provisi

on for Provision

impair Net book Book for Net book

Book balance ment value balance impairment value

Yubei New Factory
Smart Logistics Project 2,085,312.74 2,085,312.74 - -
Yubei New Factory
Logistics Integration 883,552.30 883,552.30 - -
Project
TMS system for milk- 550,537.18 550,537.18 . .
run e e
Installing equipment 505,560.61 505,560.61 - -
Vehicle Loading
Project of Chongging 234,446.40 234,446.40 - -
Regional Company
New energy smart 173,977.70 173,977.70  2,928,085.36 2,928,085.36

logistics project
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Item

Book balance

Closing balance

Provisi
on for
impair
ment

Net book
value

Beginning balance

Provision
Book for
balance impairment

Net book
value

Supply Chain Business

Unit Spare Parts
Customer Service
System Upgrade
Project

Milk-run route
arrangement system

Steel Platform Project

Automated Allocation
Module Project for
Transportation
Management System
of Vehicle Division

Intelligent Visual
Scanning System for

Unmanned Warehouses

HR Digital

Transformation Project

VTC CHEYI CLOUD
PLATFORM
PROJECT

Beijing Inland Storage i-
WMS Promotion Project

Jianan i-WMS-SRM
interface project

DC SORTING
GOODS TO PERSON
AGV PROJECT

DC LIBRARY
OPERATION PULL
PROJECT

RFID AUTOMATIC
COLLECTION
PROJECT

Class C Warehouse
Project

TPMS ONLINE
READING AND
WRITING
EQUIPMENT

Dedicated spoke
design

Online Freight
Platform Phase 11
Project

Online Freight
Platform Upgrading
Project

166,795.20 166,795.20

144,000.00 144,000.00

111,609.79 111,609.79

92,378.88 92,378.88

51,769.91 51,769.91

5,377.36 5,377.36

51,769.91 51,769.91

559,681.07 559,681.07

72,455.33 72,455.33

5,207.55 5,207.55

1,022,240.73 1,022,240.73

141,283.02 141,283.02

2,037,897.42 2,037,897.42

1,241,740.24 1,241,740.24

240,265.50 240,265.50

18,875.00 18,875.00

405,650.00 405,650.00

424,528.31 424,528.31

Total

5,005,318.07 5,005,318.07

9,149,679.44 9,149,679.44
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(2) Changes in significant construction in progress

Project

Beginning
balance

Transfer to
fixed assets/
Intangible
assets

Increase

Cumulative
amount of

Other
decrease

capitalization

Interest
capitaliz
ation
rate in
the year

Including:
interest
capitalize
d in the
period

Closing

interest balance

()

Yubei New
Factory Smart
Logistics
Project

New energy
smart logistics
project

Class C
warehouse
project

DC SORTING
GOODS TO
PERSON
AGV
PROJECT

RFID
AUTOMATIC
COLLECTIO
N PROJECT

2,928,085.36

1,241,740.24

1,022,240.73

2,037,897 .42

- 2,085,312.74

7,272,243.07

2,777,727.08

777,152.53

490,694.12

10,026,350.73

4,019,467.32

1,799,393.26

2,528,691.54

2,085,312.74

173,977.70

Total 7,229,963.75

13,403,129.54

18,373,802.85

2,259,290.44

Changes in significant construction in progress (Continued):

Proportion of

Lo cumulative o

Project item Budget input to budget Progress (%) Source of fund
(%)

Yubei New Factory Smart 43,334,500.00 4.81 481 Selffinancing
Logistics Project
New energy smart logistics project 60,772,700.00 81.00 81.00 Self-financing
RFID AUTOMATIC ) .
COLLECTION PROJECT 5,500,000.00 73.08 100.00 Self-financing
Category C warehouse project 2,600,000.00 69.21 100.00 Self-financing
DC SORTING GOODS TO N
PERSON AGV PROJECT 3,500,000.00 72.25 100.00 Self-financing
Total 115,707,200.00
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15. Right-of-use assets

Housing and Machinery and

Motor

Ttem buildings equipment vehicles Total
1. Book value:
1.Beginning balance 286,848,082.26 18,810,983.88 3,337,677.29 308,996,743.43
2.Increase 29,016,877.40 - 3,856,943.34 32,873,820.74
(1) Additions by lease in 29,016,877.40 - 3,856,943.34 32,873,820.74
3.Decrease 48,251,200.81 - 3,206,301.83 51,457,502.64
(1) Expiration of contract 27,160,680.00 - 3,206,301.83 30,366,981.83
(2) Early renunciation 14,353,974.24 - - 14,353,974.24
(3) Contract modification 6,736,546.57 - - 6,736,546.57
4.Closing balance 267,613,758.85 18,810,983.88 3,988,318.80 290,413,061.53
II. Accumulated depreciation
1.Beginning balance 81,435,588.54 8,387,968.15 2,503,248.39 92,326,805.08
2.Increase 74,722,048.58 5,635,650.42 1,210,950.12 81,568,649.12
(1) Provision 74,722,048.58 5,635,650.42 1,210,950.12 81,568,649.12
3.Decrease 37,650,542.76 - 3,206,301.83 40,856,844.59
(1) Expiration of contract 27,160,680.00 - 3,206,301.83 30,366,981.83
(2) Early renunciation 6,235,815.19 - - 6,235,815.19
(3) Contract modification 4,254,047.57 - - 4,254,047.57
4.Closing balance 118,507,094.36 14,023,618.57 507,896.68 133,038,609.61
III. Provision for impairment
1.Beginning balance
2.Increase
3.Decrease
4.Closing balance
IV. Carrying amount
1.Carrying value at year end 149,106,664.49 4,787,365.31 3,480,422.12 157,374,451.92
2.Carrying value atbeginning - 50541249370 1042301573 83442890  216,669,938.35

of year

Note: The Company recognizes lease expenses related to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. Please
refer to Note V. 60 for details.
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16. Intangible assets

Land use

Item rights Software  Trademark Patent Total
1. Book value
1.Beginning balance 331,263,839.17  167,143,996.72 107,000.00 48,928.19  498,563,764.08
2 Increase - 15,277,019.90 - 15,277,019.90
(1) Purchase - 14,498,517 .42 - 14,498,517.42
(2) Other increase - 778,502.48 - 778,502.48
3.Decrease 12,977,955.20 10,966,360.39 48,928.19  23,993,243.78
(1) Disposal 268,867.92 4,957,341.60 - 5,226,209.52
(2) Disposal of 12,709,087.28  6,009,018.79 4892819  18767,034.26
subsidiaries
4.Closing balance 318,285,883.97  171,454,656.23 107,000.00 - 489,847,540.20
II. Accumulated
amortisation
1.Beginning balance 87,506,391.35  137,482,275.15 107,000.00  8,262.91  225,103,929.41
2.Increase 6,959,149.38 17,342,421.80 3,669.30  24,305,240.48
(1) Provision 6,959,149.38 17,342,421.80 3,669.30  24,305,240.48
3.Decrease 711,940.90 8,488,342.66 11,932.21 9,212,215.77
(1) Disposal 126,965.38 3,971,464.27 - 4,098,429.65
(2) Disposal of 584,07552  4,516,878.39 103221 5113,786.12
4.Closing balance 93,753,599.83  146,336,354.29 107,000.00 - 240,196,954.12
III. Provision for impairment
1.Beginning balance
2.Increase
3.Decrease
4.Closing balance
IV. Carrying amount
;rﬁa“ymg valueatyear 594 53998414 25,118,301.94 - 249,650,586.08
2. Carrying value af 24375744782 29,661,72157 40,665.28  273459,834.67
eginning of year
17. Goodwill
Investee or matters formed the - Closing
goodwill Beginning balance Increase Decrease balance
Vehicle transportation service unit 5,016,185.42 - 5,016,185.42

Note: The goodwill arising from the Group’s business combinations has been allocated to the cash-
generating unit of the whole vehicle transportation service unit for impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is determined based on its estimated future cash flow, which is
projected for the next five years. The impairment testing of goodwill is approved by the senior
management of the Group, and management conducts the goodwill impairment testing based on cash
flow forecasts.

Other key assumptions used in determining the fair value relate to estimates of cash inflows/outflows
(including budgeted revenue and gross margin rates). These estimates are based on the historical
performance of existing cash-generating units and management’s expectations for market development.

The key assumptions encompass market conditions, and the discount rate is consistent with external
sources of information. According to the opinion of the directors of the Company, as of 31 December
2024, the directors believe that the recoverable amount significantly exceeds the carrying amount of
the cash-generating unit. Any possible changes in the key assumptions of the recoverable amount would
not result in the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit exceeding its recoverable amount.
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18. Long-term deferred expenses

Beginni Decrease Closi
eginning osing
Item balance Increase L Other balance
Amortization decrease
Renovation costs 1,520,095.06 641,106.80 464,802.65 1,696,399.21
Overhaul repair expenses 2,329,559.95 - 292,712.55 2,036,847.40
Engineering improvement 1,198,112.92 - 597,574.37 600,538.55
expenditures
Factory renovation expenses 1,815,412.57 8,387.78 658,693.52 1,165,106.83
g:;work'““ked glass fiber 83834810  3,424,778.76 724,601.46 3,538,525.40
Tot tags - 1,955,798.76 164,558.96 1,791,239.80
China chassis base project - 3,540,435.23 342,360.98 3,198,074.25
Yubei new factory project - 3,982,265.26 289,270.18 3,692,995.08
Heavy pallet project - 5,309,734.42 1,050,884.90 4,258,849.52
Changan Mazda after-sales . 5575650.85  1486,840.16 4,088,810.69
parts logistics project
Others 14,577.51 420,792.45 75,563.36 359,806.60
Total 7,716,106.11  24,858,950.31 6,147,863.09 26,427,193.33

19. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(1) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities before offsetting

Closing balance

Deductible or

Deferred tax

Beginning balance

Deductible or

Deferred tax

It

em taxable timing assets or taxable timing assets or

differences liabilities differences liabilities

Deferred tax assets:
Lease liabilities 160,075,240.00 34,968,263.54 221,292,307.85  47,320,926.12
Deductible tax loss 151,457,484.45 22,720,454.29 196,631,634.00  29,745,742.45
Provision for bad debts 99,325,781.21 15,211,608.43 95,787,665.25 14,534,053.03
Assets depreciation and 59,158,330.20  12,190,081.78 7223343033 13,464,223.62
amortization differences
Deferred income 12,433,040.16 1,992,737.61 13,098,275.62 2,143,344.20
Provision for impairment 90717,05029  1,466,496.52 865742636  1304,361.72
of assets
Internal transactions 1,226,200.17 273,454.02 1,336,151.68 334,037.92
Accrued expenses - - 360,560.00 90,140.00
Subtotal 493,393,126.57 88,823,096.19 609,397,451.09  108,936,829.06
Deferred tax liabilities:
Increqse in asset
appraisal value under 9,150,30570  2,267,251.32 0.356,411.65  2,339,102.91
business combination not
under common control
Changes in fair value of
receivables financing 28,975,900.00 4,346,385.00 26,555,900.00  3,983,385.00
recognised in other
comprehensive income
Right-of-use assets 157,374,451.92 33,292,889.71 219,208,558.68  45,542,781.53
Subtotal 195,509,657.62 39,906,526.03 255,120,870.33 51,865,269.44
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(2) Deferred income tax assets or liabilities presented on a net basis after offsetting

Item

Offset amount of
deferred tax assets
and liabilities at

of deferred tax
assets or

Closing balance  Offset amount of

liabilities after liabilities in prior

deferred tax

Beginning balance

of deferred tax

assets and

assets or liabilities

year end R after offsetting

offsetting year
Deferred tax assets 39,677,762.58 49,145,333.61 45,140,363.62 63,796,465.44
Deferred tax liabilities 39,677,762.58 228,763.45 45,140,363.62 6,724,905.82

(3) Deductible temporary differences and deductible tax losses of unrecognized deferred tax assets

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Deductible temporary differences 42,029,948.15 1,549,472.91
Deductible tax loss - 44,030,579.31
Total 42,029,948.15 45,580,052.22

(4) Deductible tax loss of unrecognized deferred income tax assets will expire in the following year

Year Closing balance Beginning balance
2025 -
2026 -
2027 -
2028 -
2029 -
2030 6,406,710.28
2031 20,869,257 .47
2032 12,612,640.71
2033 4,141,970.85
2034

Total 44,030,579.31

20. Other non-current assets

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Item Provision Provision
Book for Carrying Book for Carrying

balance impairment amount balance impairment amount
Prepaid project funds 8,490.57 8,490.57 -
Prepaid building, 7,239,124.15 7,239,124.15
equipment payment
Contract performance 24142771 24142771 }
cost
Large denomination
certificates of deposit 151,399,658.47 151,399,658.47 -
and accrued interest
Total 151,649,576.75 151,649,576.75  7,239,124.15 7,239,124.15
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21. Ownership or using rights of assets subject to restriction

Item

Closing balance

Book balance Carrying amount Types of restriction R:isttl:‘:ilﬁsg
Cash and bank 7,420,000.00 7,420,000.00 Frozen by court Frozen
balances
Cash and bank 5.448.998.06 5,448.998.06 Deposits for bank Security
balances acceptance bills deposits
Cash and bank ETC deposit for official .
balances 1,000.00 1,000.00 vehicles Deposit
Total 12,869,998.06 12,869,998.06

Continued:
Beginning balance

Item ;

Book balance Carrying amount Types of restriction R:isttlgﬁzg
Cash and bank 3.305.000.00 3.305,000.00 Deposits for bank Security
balances acceptance bills deposits
Cash and bank 30,300,000.00 30,300,000.00 Frozen by court Frozen
balances
Accounts 106,048,352.38 105,846,860.51 Loan pledge Pledge
receivable
Fixed assets 145,976,940.14 127,477,987.11 Loan mortgage Mortgage
Intangible assets 12,709,087.28 12,319,103.60 Loan mortgage Mortgage
Total 298,339,379.80 279,248,951.22

22. Short-term loans

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Factoring financing Amount 12,062,465.76 -
Unsecured loans - 26,526,864.44
Total 12,062,465.76 26,526,864.44

Note: The principal amount of factoring financing between the subsidiary Changzu Feiyue and China
South Industries Group Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.(F B % 2% # £ 8 & £ /R A IR F))is
RMB 12,000,000.00. The factoring financing amount is the factoring financing from China North
Equipment Group Commercial Factoring Co., LTD., based on all existing and future receivables and
related rights of Chongqing Saimei Shuzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (& B & £ FHHA RN F) a
subsidiary of the Company, during the period from 20 November 2024 to 20 February 2026. The
principal amount is RMB12,000,000.00 and the closing balance includes accrued interest of RMB
62,465.76. Among them, the interest-bearing date of the RMB 8,000,000.00 factoring financing is
November 20, 2024, and the maturity date is February 20, 2025; The interest-bearing date of the RMB
4,000,000.00 factoring Facility is 2 December 2024 and the maturity date is 2 June 2025, and the

interest rate of the above two factoring facilities is 5.00%.

23. Notes payable

Category

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Bank acceptance bills

496,060,939.76

532,579,693.95
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24. Accounts payable

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
0-3 months 1,703,178,056.95 1,477,535,445.25
4-6 months 5,768,951.81 18,571,697.85
7-12 months 1,936,378.27 7,678,455.48
1-2 years 15,455,608.47 9,934,813.68
2-3 years 5,483,581.10 2,731,544 .61
Over 3 years 773,196.99 2,085,215.98
Total 1,732,595,773.59 1,518,537,172.85

Trade payables are interest free and generally settled within 90 days. The aging of accounts payable

is calculated based on the invoice date.

Including significant accounts payable ageing over 1 year

Item Closing Reasons for outstanding or not
balance transferred
WM Motor Manufacturing Wenzhou Co., Ltd. (& 5% i4, 3.000.000.00 Involving litigation, payment will not be
B 08 A R 3]) ARt made temporarily
P . . . There are differences in business cleaning,
Hubel%Xmghul NeXZ En:ggg :Ikntelhgenty ?hlde Co., 2,450,000.00 and there will be offsetting of accounts
Ltd. (#1462 0EA7 AL R AT LA A PR 2]) receivable and payable in the future
Sanyangma (Chongqing) Logistics Co., Ltd (=% 5 3.020.512.02 Verify with the carrier that the settlement
(ZB) ViR A iRnd) e has not been made yet

Chongqing Minsheng Comprehensive Logistics Co., e
Ltd (B 5 R A 42 At A RN 3 2,899,434.30 Reconciliation in progress

Lezhi County Elephant Logistics Co., Ltd (4% £ 3% X e
%Ay A RN 8] 3,560,376.03 Reconciliation in progress

Chongqing Huamao Electromechanical Equipment e
Co. Ltd (/5% %M % HEA KAL) 2,114,700.18 Reconciliation in progress

Total 17,045,022.53

25. Advance receipts

Project

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Within 1 year (including 1 year)

45,139.42

26.Contract liabilities

Item Closing balance  Beginning balance
Advance receipts of transportation and storage 15,899,001.07 14,570,042.13
Less: Contract liabilities included in other current liabilities 1,163,437.85 1,254,942.86
Total 14,735,563.22 13,315,099.27
27. Employee benefits payables
Item Beginning Increase Decrease Closing
balance balance
Short-term employee benefits 155,364,612.78  617,424,404.34  623,021,650.29  149,767,366.83
Post-employment benefits -Defined 27048335  75435347.98  75405,899.04 299,932.29
contribution plans
Termination benefits 2,516,931.76 530,549.83 530,549.83 2,516,931.76
Total 158,152,027.89  693,390,302.15 698,958,099.16  152,584,230.88
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(1) Short-term employee benefits

Item Beginning Increase Decrease Closing
balance balance
Salaries, bonus and allowances 109,341,916.67 435,557,359.40 439,916,254.02 104,983,022.05
Staff welfare - 35,824,966.11 35,824,966.11
Social insurances 134,894.69 33,838,324.37 33,841,983.52 131,235.54
Including: 1. Medical insurance 129,492.23 30,350,762.45 30,356,552.15 123,702.53
2. Work injury insurance 5,402.46 3,076,784.35 3,074,653.80 7,533.01
3. Maternity insurance - 410,777.57 410,777.57
Housing fund 101,619.03 66,116,432.88 66,102,300.92 115,750.99
Union funds and staff education 44,506,446.15 15,059,340.43 15,052,442.04 44513,344.54
Other short-term employee benefits 1,279,736.24 31,027,981.15 32,283,703.68 24,013.71
Total 155,364,612.78 617,424,404.34  623,021,650.29  149,767,366.83
(2) Defined contribution plans
Item Belg):;:li:;% Increase Decrease E;:’:li:;%
Post-employment benefits
Including: Basic pension insurance 240,788.24 62,831,482.29 62,810,590.88 261,679.65
Unemployment insurance 11,872.14 2,513,524.06 2,511,192.75 14,203.45
Corporate annuity plan 17,822.97 10,090,341.63 10,084,115.41 24,049.19
Total 270,483.35 75,435,347.98 75,405,899.04 299,932.29
(3) Termination benefits
Item Beginning Increase Decrease Closing
balance balance
Termination benefits 2,516,931.76 530,549.83 530,549.83 2,516,931.76

28. Taxes payable

Taxation Closing balance Beginning balance
Value-added tax 11,421,367.90 18,732,166.92
Enterprise income tax 9,742,000.46 6,766,598.06
Individual income Tax 3,249,879.46 678,970.61
Urban maintenance and construction tax 770,439.70 624,655.91
Property tax 2,210,257 .87 2,865,610.27
Education surcharge 369,602.64 332,412.44
Local education surcharges 130,595.12 61,585.33
Land use tax 694,478.74 563,119.93
Stamp duty 1,323,875.63 1,453,989.76
Deed duty - 2,514,583.49
Other taxes 27,505.68 21,731.13
Total 29,940,003.20 34,615,423.85
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29. Other payables

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Interest payable -

Dividends payable -

Other payables 352,309,223.32 313,506,475.20
Total 352,309,223.32 313,506,475.20

Other payables

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Current accounts 198,732,537.62 138,113,108.88
Warranty deposits 153,571,423.28 169,536,032.62
Paid on behalf - 5,824,926.56
Others 5,262.42 32,407.14
Total 352,309,223.32 313,506,475.20

30. Non-current liabilities due within one year

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Long-term loans due within one year 13,416,740.82 34,255,565.08
Lease liabilities due within one year 62,680,883.06 83,739,721.95
Total 76,097,623.88 117,995,287.03

(1) Long-term loans due within one year

Item

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Unsecured loans

13,416,740.82

34,255,565.08

31. Other current liabilities

Item

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Output VAT pending for transfer 1,291,474.78 1,254,942 .86
Endorsed not.es receivable not 12,294 483.18 13.058.674.00
yet derecognized
Total 13,585,957.96 14,313,616.86
32. Long term loans

. Range of - Range of

Item Ii:;’::;i interest rate Beg:;::;i interest rate
(%) (%)

Unsecured loans 13,416,740.82 3.65-3.90 22,256,219.40 3.65-3.90
Mortgage loans - - 29,430,800.00 3.65-3.80
Pledged loans - - 80,084,444 .44 3.80
Subtotal 13,416,740.82 - 131,771,463.84 -
Less: Long-term loans due within 13.416,740.82 i 34,255 565.08 i
one year
Total - 97,515,898.76
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33. Lease liabilities

Item Closing balance Beginning balance
Lease payment 167,973,155.60 238,508,801.54
Less: Unrecognized financing expenses 7,897,915.60 17,216,493.69
Less: Lease liabilities due within one year 62,680,883.06 83,739,721.95
Total 97,394,356.94 137,552,585.90

Note: The interest expense for lease liabilities recognized in 2024 amounted to RMB 2,666,609.12,
which recorded under financial expenses - interest expenses at RMB 2,666,609.12.

34. Provisions

Item Closing balance Beginning balance Reason of formation
Pending litigations - 360,560.00 -
35. Deferred income

Item Beginning Increase Decrease Closing
balance balance

5G+ collaborative manufacturing project 2,250,000.00 - - 2,250,000.00

Chongqing Municipal People’s Government Port and

Logistics Office supports port logistics development 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,212,241.02 2,787,758.98

subsidies

Supply chain system construction subsidy funds 1,701,116.01 - 348,184.95 1,352,931.06

Hangzhou Qlant.ang New District Fixed assets 897,083 50 . 361,882.71 535.200.79

investment subsidy

Supply Chain Inte!ligent Logistics Consol.idation 724 945,05 - 105,330.00 619.615.05

Centre Stereoscopic Warehouse Construction

Subsidy for BMW Brilliance Automotive Wheel

Assembly Phase I Project Fixed assets 42,809.23 i 42,809.23 i

Application Demonstration Project of Regional

Automotive Industry Ecological Circle Network

Collaborative Manufacturing Shared Cloud Service 350,000.00 - 34450951 549049

Platform

Liangjiang New Area Financial Subsidy 3,066,666.68 - 133,333.33 2,933,333.35

Forq after-sales parts D1, D2 site improvement 1,013,798.28 i 92.163.48 921.634.80

project compensation

Government subsidies for land purchase loan with

China Merchants Bank 930,666.10 - 26,590.46 904,075.64

Changan Minsheng Hangzhou Auto Parts i

Manufacturing and Distribution Project 164,000.00 41,000.00 123,000.00

Total 13,141,084.85 2,000,000.00 2,708,044.69 12,433,040.16

Note: Government grants recorded as deferred income refer to Note VIII. Government grants.

36. Other non-current liabilities

Item

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Party building funds

6,847.20

11,227.20
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37. Share capital

Movement in the year

.. Provident .
Beginning Issue of Closing
Ttem balance new  bonus fund ook Subtotal balance
shares shares Share
transfer
Total shares  162,064,000.00 - - - - - 162,064,000.00
38. Capital reserve
Item Beginning balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
Capital premium 67,111,332.11 - - 67,111,332.11
Other capital reserve 2,512.98 - 34,430.04 -31,917.06
Total 67,113,845.09 - 34,430.04 67,079,415.05

Note: The change in other capital reserves amounted to RMB -34,430.04.
method accounting for the change in other equity of the Guoyuan Ro-Ro.

39. Other comprehensive income

This change is attributed to the equity

Other comprehensive income attributable to the parent company in the balance sheet:

Current year

Less: Included in other

L. car Closing
Plies Amomtatwibuableto ITASICICONE  alane
) parent company after ta;x and transferred to @H=@Q1) +(2§-
@ retained earnings in the @)
current period (3)
I. Other comprehensive income
not reclassified into profit or loss
subsequently
1.Changes in fair value of other 22,572,515.00 2,057,000.00 - 24,629,515.00
equity instrument investments
I1. Other comprehensive income
that will be reclassified into profit
or loss subsequently
Total other comprehensive income  22,572,515.00 2,057,000.00 - 24,629,515.00
Other comprehensive income attributable to the parent company in the income statement:
Current year
s Amot
Less: transferred to  Less: Income . attributable to
Ttem Amount before talx profit or loss in  tax expenses atttrlb_utal_)le parent company
M current year (2) (®)) 0 l.mnorlty after tax (5) =
interests 2) -(3) -(4
after tax (4) (D) "2 -3)-)
I. Other comprehensive income not
reclassified into profit or loss
subsequently
_l.Changes in fair value of other equity 2.420,000.00 ) 363,000.00 } 2,057,000.00
Instrument ivestments
I1. Other comprehensive income
that will be reclassified into profit
or loss subsequently
Total other comprehensive income 2,420,000.00 - 363,000.00 - 2,057,000.00

Note: The after-tax net amount of other comprehensive income for the

current period is RMB 2,057,000.00.

Among which, the portion attributable to the shareholders of the parent company is RMB 2,057,000.00.
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40. Special reserve

Beginning

Item Increase Decrease Closing balance
balance
?:efety production 10,251,350.13 7,534,025.17 5,802,601.80 11,982,773.50
41. Surplus reserve
Item Beginning Increase Decrease  Closing balance
balance
Statutory surplus reserve 81,032,000.00 81,032,000.00
Discretionary surplus reserve 4,835,093.00 4,835,093.00
Total 85,867,093.00 85,867,093.00
42. Undistributed profits
Item Current year Prior year

Closing balance of undistributed profits of prior year before
adjustment

Total adjustments of beginning undistributed profits
Beginning balance of undistributed profits after adjustment

Add: Net profit attributable to parent company for the current
year

Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve
Appropriation of discretionary surplus reserve
Appropriation of general risk reserve
Appropriation for dividends to ordinary shares
Appropriation for dividends to other equity holders
Dividend to ordinary shares converted to share capital

Closing balance of undistributed profits

1,668,384,520.71

1,668,384,520.71
59,943,006.45

32,451,133.71

1,695,876,393.45

1,636,555,790.69

1,636,555,790.69
56,446,864.92

24,618,134.90

1,668,384,520.71

Note: According to the resolution of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of the Company on 28 June
2024, it was agreed that the year-end dividend distribution plan for 2023 would be: to distribute
RMBO0.20 per share (including tax) to all shareholders, totaling RMB32,451,100.

43. Operating income and operating cost

(1) Operating income and operating cost

Current year Prior year
Item
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
Primary operations 8,939,763,695.95 8,556,962,914.80 7,944,011,762.38 7,593,254,891.58
Other operations 23,444 575.77 2,948,137.00 24,986,469.11 4,462,563.92
Total 8,963,208,271.72 8,559,911,051.80 7,968,998,231.49 7,597,717,455.50
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(2) Operating revenue and operating costs based on the timing of goods transfer

Current year
Item Transportation service Others

Revenue Cost Revenue Cost

Primary operations

Including: Recognized at a point in time 8,939,763,695.95 8,556,962,914.80
Other operations

Including: Recognized at a point in time - - 23,444 575.77 2,948,137.00
Total 8,939,763,695.95 8,556,962,914.80 23,444,575.77 2,948,137.00

(3) Description of Performance Obligations
Provision of services:

Revenue from the provision of services by the Group includes transportation services for finished
vehicles, logistics services for automobile parts and components and raw materials, supply chain
management services for parts and components, and transportation services for non-automobile
commodities. After the completion of the Group’s transportation services and warehousing and
logistics services and the completion of the regular reconciliations with the customers, the services
rendered are recognised and the Company recognises the related revenue. In these services, the Group
assumes the main performance obligations for services such as transport from the customers and is the
primary obligor. Payment for these services is generally due within 90 days after acceptance of the
complete vehicle, auto parts or non-vehicle merchandise.

Sales of goods:

Performance obligations are fulfilled when the goods are delivered and the customer obtains control
of the goods, and payment is generally required within 90 days after delivery of the goods.

44. Taxes and surcharges

Item Current year Prior year
Property tax 9,228,152.51 9,333,403.82
Stamp duty 7,897,056.52 7,998,412.85
Land use tax 6,568,482.08 5,975,434 .17
Urban maintenance and construction tax 5,038,009.22 4,258,072.43
Education surcharge 2,181,155.44 2,607,651.83
Local education surcharge 1,454,103.63 512,915.75
Vehicle and vessel use tax 61,206.58 76,985.18
Others 150,797.91 302,904.84
Total 32,578,963.89 31,065,780.87

Note: For details of the rates of various taxes and surcharges, please refer to Note 4, Taxation.
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45. Selling expenses

Item Current year Prior year
Employee’s salary 40,011,842.89 42,209,498.94
Travel expenses 2,829,131.30 2,022,260.89
Depreciation and amortization 2,016,178.38 1,795,684.04
Business entertainment expenses 1,167,831.95 938,432.31
Utility bill 769,154.53 296,007.33
Advertising fee 664,746.08 623,314.29
Repair fee 547,300.29 58,056.27
Conference fees 261,930.09 132,749.45
Rental fees 259,991.50 526,289.12
Safety expenses 203,174.08 328,286.27
Low value consumables 145,280.34 148,418.84
Communication fees 96,684.86 81,366.20
Office expenses 68,060.39 247,295.91
Service charge 5,095.24 103,403.37
Others 1,514,636.78 1,435,088.50
Total 50,561,038.70 50,946,651.73

46. Administrative expenses

Item Current year Prior year
Employee’s salary 168,410,206.96 152,229,012.44
Depreciation and amortization 19,120,017.90 18,528,433.99
Depreciation of right-of -use assets 5,333,196.07 4,770,974.31
Travel expenses 3,923,767.39 3,986,399.50
Board of Directors fees 3,875,258.41 2,104,913.65
Low value consumables 3,778,749.34 1,203,991.13
Utility bill 3,457,034.09 2,346,147.73
Consulting service fees 2,847,371.23 4,521,729.22
Business entertainment expenses 2,429,712.37 2,816,562.84
Repair fee 2,228,355.40 3,080,823.84
Hiring intermediary agency fee 1,865,276.12 1,994,292.96
Communication fees 1,439,638.19 1,369,935.33
Office expenses 1,114,695.46 1,022,964.02
Short-term rental expenses 803,619.24 915,131.95
Conference fee 573,564.74 158,969.14
Property insurance premium 448,296.89 528,124.39
Disability employment security changes 347,629.22 149,223.69
Security fees 244,437.84 273,132.42
Vehicle expenses 188,272.55 319,195.63
Service charge 150,040.28 252,655.58
Others 9,364,175.51 12,145,051.75
Total 231,943,315.20 214,717,665.51
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47. Research and development expenses

Item Current year Prior year
Employee’s salary 20,111,593.09 22,628,307.49
Amortization of intangible assets 1,441,056.22 1,801,712.61
Depreciation 932,928.26 949,463.20
Material fee 300,793.47 517,648.36
Rental fees 32,561.60 340,945.04
Utility bill 21,216.78 12,194.16
Low value consumables - 4,550.44
Test trial production fee - 482,849.40
Travel expenses - 4.361.18
Others 171,563.07 61,337.19
Total 23,011,712.49 26,803,369.07

48. Financial expenses
Item Current year Prior year
Interest expense 13,967,111.72 14,853,022.71

Less: Interest income 19,162,321.53 20,268,842.18

Exchange gain or loss 4,783,900.36 919,860.99
Bank charges and others 1,023,125.43 1,270,867.80
Total 611,815.98 -3,225,090.68

49. Other income

Item Current year Prior year

Government grants

Refund of individual income tax

handling fee
Value added tax incentives

15,757,943.96
41,191.39
172,317.76

15,670,945.31
197,437.94
2,835,364.86

Total

15,971,453.11

18,703,748.11

Note: Detail information of government grants refers to Note VIII.

50. Investment income

Government grants.

Item Current year Prior year
Income from long-term equity 159,411.85 -1,060,985.29
investment by equity method

Ir}vestment income genergted. from the 59.967,452.77 )
disposal of long-term equity investments

DlVldends income from other equity i 2.435.623.28
mstruments mvestment

Discount interest on derecognised notes -1,103,078.96 -2,614,183.55
Total 59,023,785.66 -1,239,545.56
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51. Credit impairment loss (“-” for loss)

Item Current year Prior year
Bad debts of notes receivable 36.57 -36.57
Bad debts of accounts receivable -6,190,452.40 8,718,424 .32
Bad debts of other receivables -1,631,315.28 -1,112,389.34
Total -7,821,731.11 7,605,998.41
52. Assets impairment loss (“-” for loss)
Item Current year Prior year
Impaired loss of contract assets -370,060.22 392,181.61
Impairment loss of prepayments 582,160.95 -303,997.44
Impairment losses on long-term equity investments -42,029,948.15 -
Impairment loss of investment properties -867,887.32 -1,019,877.05
Impairment loss of fixed assets - -248,133.43
Total -42,685,734.74 -1,179,826.31
53. Gains from disposal of assets (“-” for Loss)
Item Current year Prior year
Gain from disposal of fixed assets (“-” for Loss) 2,459,443.16 317,030.56
Others 1,958,748.34 -34,254.52
Total 4,418,191.50 282,776.04

Note: The others of RMB 1,958,748.34 represents gains from the early termination of right of use
assets or lease changes.

54. Non-operating income

Amount included

Item Current year Prior year in non-recurring
gains and losses
Scc;i\;eigler;lent subsidies unrelated to daily 30,531.00 i 30,531.00
Penalty revenue 165,703.01 173,834.61 165,703.01
Compensation income of breach of contract 132,360.98 73,750.00 132,360.98
Gain from retirement of non-current assets 545,995.94 689,881.74 545,995.94
Insurance claims income 116,205.48 1,380,338.61 116,205.48
Income from various incentives - 7,557.17
Unpaid payables 6,299.69 - 6,299.69
Others 1,968,578.58 779,988.26 1,968,578.58
Total 2,965,674.68 3,105,350.39 2,965,674.68

Note: Detail information of government grants refers to Note VIII. Government grants.
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55. Non-operating expenses

Amount included

Item Current year Prior year in non-recurring
gains and losses
Donations 600,000.00 600,000.00 600,000.00
Loss of damage and scrapping of 165,619.26 75,446.13 165,619.26
non-current assets
Deficits in physical count 828,176.46 274,198.33 828,176.46
Penalty expenses 127,521.55 305,484.08 127,521.55
Extraordinary loss 50.00 - 50.00
Compensation expenses 64,206.17 1,402,704.31 64,206.17
Decided litigation losses 2,349,538.09 - 2,349,538.09
Others 270,542.12 584,485.73 270,542.12
Total 4,405,653.65 3,242,318.58 4,405,653.65
56. Income tax expenses
(1) Details of income tax expenses
Item Current year Prior year
Current income tax 16,000,514.08 12,325,698.75
Deferred income tax 7,677,604.23 4,719,943.58
Total 23,678,118.31 17,045,642.33
(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profits
Item Current year Prior year
Profit before tax 92,056,359.11 75,008,581.99

Income tax expenses calculated at statutory (or applicable)

tax rates (Profit before tax*15%)

Impact from tax preferential rates on certain subsidiaries

Adjustment to income tax in prior year

Gain or loss from investments in associates and joint

ventures by equity method

Non-taxable income

Non-deductible costs, expenses and losses

Utilization of tax losses in prior years that are not
recognized as deferred tax assets

Unrecognized tax losses and deductible temporary
differences

Impact of super-deduction of research and development
expenses

Others

Income tax expenses

13,808,453.87

4,376,771.75
629,454.39

-23,911.78

2,159,302.95

-1,537,676.75

6,304,492.22

-3,465,862.01

1,427,093.67
23,678,118.31

11,251,287.30

5,952,886.40
392,865.26

-206,195.70

-1,014,872.47
1,322,639.72

-898,363.55

5,326,535.80

-4,941,706.42

-139,434.00
17,045,642.33
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57. Notes to cash flows statement

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

Item Current year Prior year
Deposits interest income 11,425,743.57 20,268,842.18
Operating Rental income 1,381,481.34 4,021,864.81
Government grants income 15,820,558.16 16,151,634.15
Penalty revenue 165,703.01 173,834.61
Income from liquidated damages 132,360.98 73,750.00
Non-operating income related to other business activities 178,499.00 2,857,765.78
Receipts of operational Current accounts 101,268,882.95 41,296,119.56
Income from waste purchase and other operating activities 718,282.32 1,022,695.23
Security deposits received 76,839,036.28 40,047,720.74
Security deposits collected and returned 7,053,508.04 37,992,535.63
Other income 20,584,892.22 25,074,078.28
Net income 1,421,481,467.19

Others 39,797,940.54 6,095,189.19
Total 1,696,848,355.60 195,076,030.16

(2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Item Current year Prior year
Handling fee expenses (in financial expenses) 1,023,125.43 1,270,447.80
Pay cash for Selling expenses 10,169,138.13 10,587,042.71
Pay cash for administrative expenses 42,707,306.53 42,823,424.40
Penalty expenses 127,521.55 305,484.08
Cash donation expenditure 600,000.00 600,000.00
Liquidated damages expenses 64,206.17 1,402,704.31
glc(:ir:/ict)i%iratmg expenses related to other business 870,542.12 1534.130.19
Payment of operational Current accounts 216,063,049.84 115,362,944.84
Payment Deposits and security deposits 19,887,792.35 72,893,168.10

Security deposits refund
Expenditures accounted for by the net method

38,941,097.74
1,421,481,467.19

16,101,825.21

Others 9,123,823.22 26,443,862.32

Total 1,761,059,070.27 289,325,033.96
(3) Other cash paid relating to investing activities

Item Current year Prior year

Reclassify negative net cash received from
disposal of subsidiaries

21,930,498.54

75



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(4) Other cash received relating to financing activities

Item Current year Prior year

Receive restricted Cash and bank balances - 185,000,000.00
(5) Other cash paid relating to financing activities

Item Current year Prior year

Repayment of lease liabilities 94,566,066.18 46,590,555.93

Time deposit certificates for pledge, etc. - 11,904,386.36

Total 94,566,066.18 58,494,942.29

58. Supplement to cash flow statement

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

Supplement information Current year Prior year

1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit 68,378,240.80 57,962,939.66

Add: Assets impairment loss 42,685,734.74 1,179,826.31
Credit impairment loss 7,821,731.11 -7,605,998.41
;I))r%%r:r(ﬁgson of Depreciation of fixed assets and investment 106,887,150.77 103,593,895.02
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 81,568,649.12 71,461,631.50
Amortization of intangible assets 24,305,240.48 29,780,141.30
Long-term prepaid expenses amortization 6,147,863.09 1,530,169.71
{B(Elsgs_etz rOnIll gézg?ss?égfnﬂgse?nef_s’%ts, intangible assets and other -4,418,19150 -282.776.04
Loss on retirement of fixed assets (Gain as in “-) -380,376.68 -614,435.61
Losses on changes in fair value (Gain as in “-”) - -
Financial expenses (Gain as in “-”) 17,351,353.61 9,547,474.79
Investment losses (Gain as in “-”) -59,023,785.66 1,239,545.56
Decrease in deferred tax assets (Increase as in ““-”) 14,651,131.83 1,217,978.98
Increase in deferred tax liabilities (Decrease as in “-") -12,321,743.41 311,905.82
Decrease in inventories (Increase as in “-”) 14,786,039.09 -10,353,935.05
Decrease in operating receivables (Increase as in “-”) -215,269,362.01  -631,865,218.57
Increase in operating payables (Decrease as in “-”) 267,401,602.31 570,715,815.96
Others - -

Net cash flows from operating activities 360,571,277.69 197,818,960.93

2. Significant investment or finance activities not involving cash:
Conversion of debt into capital
Convertible bonds mature within one year
Additions to right-of-use assets
3. Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balance at end of year
Less: cash and bank balance at beginning of year
Add: cash equivalents at end of year
Less: cash equivalents at beginning of year
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

32,873,820.74

982,221,928.70
849,334,512.98

132,887,415.72

211,846,592.11

849,334,512.98
755,716,815.09

93,617,697.89
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(2) Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries in this period

Current amount

Item incurred

Cash or cash equivalents received from disposal of subsidiaries in the current period 47,900,000.00
Among them: Shenyang Changyou Supply Chain Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang Changyou”) 47,900,000.00

Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by the subsidiary on the day of loss of control 69,830,498.54
Among them: Shenyang Changyou 69,830,498.54

Add: Cash or cash equivalents received from disposal of subsidiaries in previous periods

Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries

-21,930,498.54

(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents

Item

Closing balance

Beginning balance

I. Cash
Including: Cash on hand
Cash at bank readily available for payment
Other monetary fund readily available for payment
II. Cash equivalents
Including: bonds investment mature within 3 months

III. Cash and cash equivalents as at closing balance

Including: Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by the
Company or subsidiaries of the Group

982,221,928.70
20,126.17
982,201,802.53

982,221,928.70

849,334,512.98
138,637.03
849,195,875.95

849,334,512.98

(4) Cash and bank balances not classified as cash equivalents

Reason that does not belong to

Item Closing balance  Beginning balance cash and cash equivalents
Bills deposit 5,448,998.06 3,305,000.00 Deposits for bank acceptance bills
Frozen in litigation 7,420,000.00 30,300,000.00 Frozen by court
Others 1,000.00 - ETC deposit for official vehicles

Total 12,869,998.06 33,605,000.00

59. Items in foreign currencies

Closing balance

Item . .
in foreign currency

Conversion

Closing balance

rate translated into RMB

Cash and bank balances

Including: US Dollar 9,778,138.31
Accounts receivable

Including: US Dollar 476,824.79
Other receivable

Including: US Dollar 242,735.00
Accounts payable

Including: US Dollar 2,979,278.71
Other payables

Including: US Dollar 118,149.77

7.1884

7.1884

7.1884

7.1884

7.1884

70,289,169.43
70,289,169.43
3,427,607.32
3,427,607.32
1,744,876.27
1,744,876.27
21,416,247.08
21,416,247.08
849,307.81
849,307.81
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60. Leases
(1) As leasee

Item

Current year

Short-term rental expenses

Low-value rental expenses

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Total cash outflows related to leases

44,652,869.76
2,147,149.98

94,566,066.18

Total

141,366,085.92

(2) As lessor
Operating leases

(D Rental income

Item

Current year

Rental income

Including: Income related to variable lease payments not included in lease receipts

3,566,193.29

(2) Total undiscounted lease payments to be received annually for each of the five accountin
pay y g
years following the balance sheet date, as well as the total undiscounted lease payments to

be received for the remaining years

Period after balance sheet date

Closing balance

Beginning balance

VL.

In first year 430,000.00 876,000.00
In second year 320,000.00 430,000.00
In third year 325,000.00 320,000.00
In fourth year - 325,000.00
Total 1,075,000.00 1,951,000.00
Research and development expenses
Current year Prior year

Item Expensed Capitalised Expensed Capitalised

amount amount amount amount
Employee’s salary 20,111,593.09 22,628,307.49
Depreciation and amortization 2,373,984.48 2,751,175.81
Material fee 300,793.47 517,648.36
Rental fees 32,561.60 340,945.04
Utility bill 21,216.78 12,194.16
Test trial production fee - 482,849.40
Low value consumables - 4,550.44
Travel expenses - 4,361.18
Others 171,563.07 61,337.19
Total 23,011,712.49 26,803,369.07
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VII. Interests in other entities

1. Interests in subsidiaries

(1) Group structure

i i i Shareholding (% isiti
Name of subsidiary Registered Paid-in capital Business Type Operatgng [Place of Business ing (%) - Acquisition
capital location registration nature  Direct Indirect method
CMAL BO Yu Transportation Limited liability company (sole
Co,Ltd. (£ R ZR AW T 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 proprietorship) (foreign Chongging Chongging Logistics ~ 100.00 1
E A [ a]) investment enterprises)
. . Limited liability company (sole
Fulu International Logistics Co. . : . . . -
5 AL o i 60,000,000.00 11,500,000.00 proprietorship) (foreign Chongqing Chongqing Logistics ~ 100.00 1
Ltd. (483 B P4y 3 TR 21) investment enterprise investment)
Chongqing Saimei Shuzhi Limited liability company (sole
Technology Co., Ltd. (& & £ 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 proprietorship of foreign Chongqing Chongqing Logistics ~ 100.00 1
By AR R 4)) investment enterprise)
Chongqing Changzu Feiyue Limited liability company Sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. (£ &k & 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00  (invested or controlled by natural Chongqing Chongqing packaging 55.00 1
FeARFFH A PR E)) persons) materials
gdi%ﬁgg%ﬁ%rﬂu&g;ﬁp& Cﬁ?lin Limited liability company (sole . . o
(%%j% S F dib 52 A TN 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 proprietorship of forelgé]n{gy;fig.ae(; Chongqing Chongqing Logistics ~ 100.00 1
Chongging Changxiang Supply Limited liability company
chain Technology Co., Ltd. (£ 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00  (invested or controlled by natural Chongqing Chongqing Logistics 70.00 1
Bk FAE AR AT A PR 3]) persons)
Nanjing CMSC Logistics Co., Limited liability company
Ltd. (% k& RAE XD IR 100,000,000.00  100,000,000.00 (chinese-foreign equity joint Nanjing Nanjing Logistics 67.00 1
A IR 8]) venture)
. . Limited liability company (sole
Changan Minsheng (Shanghai) proprietorship gy a Iegal );;e(rson - - -
Supply Chain Co., Ltd. (& 2 &, 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 not invested or controlled by a Shanghai Shanghai Logistics  100.00 1
(R if) BORAEA TR 2]) natural person)
Hangzhou Changan Minsheng Limited liability company Logistics
Logistics Co., Ltd. (Ju M &% K 610,000,000.00 610,000,000.00 (wholly owned by foreign Hangzhou Hangzhou and tire  100.00 1
A Y FA PR 4)) invested enterprises) assembly
Wuhan Changjiang Zhilian Port
Development Co., Ltd (&£ & 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 Other limited liability company Wuhan Wuhan Logistics 55.12 2

LB 1 B TR 8])

Note: Acquisition method: 1. Set up by investment, 2. Business combination not under common control.
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(2) Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries

Minority Profit and loss Dividends declared Balance of Minorit
g shareholders attributable to to minority R y
Name of subsidiary . A . : interests at the end
shareholding  minority shareholders shareholders in this of the period
(%) in the current period period P
Nanjing CMSC Logisties Co., Lid. (45 o 5,335,148.19 8,250,000.00 96,511,611.94
R RAAE R FA [ E]) ' R R R
(3) Principal financial information of significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries
Closing balance
c o Non-
Name of subsidiary Current Current  Non-current Total
assets current  Total assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
assets
Nanjing CMSC Logistics

Co., Ltd. (A ¥ k&R E 387,184,767.06  131,684,056.50  518,868,823.56  183,638,959.57 42,770,433.86  226,409,393.43
AE XMy A TRy 8])

Continued (1) :

Beginning balance

Name of Non- Non-
subsidiary Current current Current current Total
assets assets  Total assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
Nanjing CMSC

Logistics Co.,

Ltd. (% k% 365,825,288.98  150,135,002.74  515960,291.72  158,013282.06  58,376,362.39  216,389,644.45
RAZE A YR

H R E))

Continued (2) :

Current year

Name of subsidiary ] Total
Operating comprehensive Cash flows from
income Net profit income operating activities
Nanjing CMSC Logistics
Co., Ltd. (g ® k& KA 579,910,770.15 16,167,115.72 16,167,115.72 35,489,857.78
Ay A RN 8])
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Continued (3) :

Prior year
Name of subsidiary Total comprehensive Cash flows from
Opening income Net profit income operating activities
Nanjing CMSC Logistics Co., Ltd.
,uns e 404,921,00053  12,182,316.33 1218231633 -62,206,216.72

() R KRR RAAE XD IRA PR )

2. Disposal of subsidiaries

1) Subsidiaries reduced from single disposal to loss of control

The difference

between the
disposal price Goodwill
and the share of related to

. Basis for cae
‘s Equity ?Equlty Equity The point determining the subs1d}ary S . .the
Subsidiary . disposal .. . . net assets in the subsidiary
disposal . disposal oflosing the point of . .
name rice ratio method control losin consolidated in the
P (%) g financial consolidated
control .
statements financial
corresponding  statements
to the disposal
investment
Complete
RMB asset
Shenyang 47.9 51.00 transfer 2024.9.27 delivery and RMB59'.9 6.75 -
Changyou oo million
million payment of
consideration

After disposal, the Company no longer holds equity interest in Shenyang Changyou.

3. Interests in joint arrangement or associates
(1) Significant joint ventures or associates

Joint ventures or Place of Placeof  Business Shareholding (%)  Accounting
associates treatment of

Name of entity business registration nature Direct Indirect investment

I. Associates

Guoyuan Ro-Ro (R & . . . Equity
) Chongqing  Chongqging  Logistics 31.00 method
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(2) Main financial information of significant associates

Item

Guoyuan Ro-Ro (£ E & %)

Closing balance Beginning balance

Current assets 19,577,374.48 15,341,672.53
Including: Cash and cash equivalents 5,890,932.92 7,368,276.31
Non-current assets 372,979,700.94 391,046,964.24
Total Assets 392,557,075.42 406,388,636.77
Current liabilities 5,250,547.88 4,446,704.45
Non-current liabilities 176,055,159.00 176,575,335.32
Total liabilities 181,305,706.88 181,022,039.77
Net assets 211,251,368.54 225,366,597.00
Including: Minority interests - -
Owners’ equity attributable to parent company 211,251,368.54 225,366,597.00
Sﬁggﬂ(ﬁiﬁ:ﬁf caleulated based on 65,487,924.25 69,863,645.07
Adjustments 4,742,023.91 4,742,023.91
Including: Goodwill 4,742,023.91 4,742,023.91
g\?gsltsrfélntfgr impairment of long-term equity -42.029.948.15 )
Carrying value of equity investment in associates 28,200,000.00 74,605,668.98
Fair value of publicly quoted equity investments - -
Continued:
Guoyuan Ro-Ro (RH &%)

Item
Current year Prior year
Operating income 29,953,010.00 28,012,520.37
Net profit -6,341,990.83 -7,780,169.52
Total comprehensive income -6,341,990.83 -7,780,169.52

Dividends received by the company from
associates in the current period
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VIII. Government grants

1. Government grants recorded in deferred income

Item Beginning balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
Government subsidies related to assets 7,615,953.79  2,000,000.00 2,070,447.91 7,545,505.88
Government subsidies related to income 5,525,131.06 - 637,596.78 4,887,534.28
Total 13,141,084.85 2,000,000.00 2,708,044.69 12,433,040.16

Government grants recorded as deferred income and measured at gross amount method

subsequently

Subsidy item

Beginning
balance

Additions
during the
year

Amount
recognized in
profit or loss

in the year

Other
changes

Closing
balance

Item
presented in
profit or loss

in the year

Government subsidies
related to assets:

5G+ collaborative manufacturing
project

Logistics market entity cultivation
policy incentive funds

Supply chain system construction
subsidy funds (supply chain
system construction platform
subsidy income)

Hangzhou Qiantang New District
Fixed assets investment subsidy

Supply Chain Intelligent Logistics

Consolidation Centre Stereoscopic

Warehouse Construction Project

Subsidy for BMW Brilliance
Automotive Wheel Assembly
Phase I Project Fixed assets

Sub-total

Government subsidies
related to income:

Application Demonstration
Project of Regional
Automotive Industry
Ecological Circle Network
Collaborative Manufacturing

Shared Cloud Service Platform

Liangjiang New Area Financial
Subsidy

Ford after-sales parts D1, D2 site
improvement project
compensation

Government subsidies for land
purchase

CMAL Hangzhou Auto Parts
Manufacturing and Distribution
Project

Sub-total

2,250,000.00

2,000,000.00

1,701,116.01

897,083.50

724,945.05

42,809.23

7,615,953.79

350,000.00

3,066,666.68

1,013,798.28

930,666.10

164,000.00

5,525,131.06

2,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

1,212,241.02

348,184.95

361,882.71

105,330.00

40,232.38

2,067,871.06

344,509.51

133,333.33

92,163.48

26,590.46

41,000.00

637,596.78

2,250,000.00

2,787,758.98

1,352,931.06

535,200.79

619,615.05

2,576.85 -

2,576.85  7,545,505.88

5,490.49

2,933,333.35

921,634.80

904,075.64

123,000.00

4,887,534.28

Other income

Other income

Other income

Other income

Other income

Other income

Other income

Other income

Other income

Other income

Total

13,141,084.85

2,000,000.00

2,705,467.84

2,576.85 12,433,040.16
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2. Government grants recognized in income for the year by gross method

Amount

Amount recognized in

Tvpes recognized in profit or loss Reported
yp profit or loss in the items
for the current previous included in
period period profit or loss
Government subsidies related to assets:
Jiangjin District Comprehensive Bonded Zone Management
Committee Industrial Development Fund - 1,168,400.00 Other income
Subtotals - 1,168,400.00 -
Government subsidies related to income:
Tianjin Online Freight Platform Business Policy Return 2,390,000.00  1,480,000.00 Other income
Chonggqing Liangjiang New Area Social Insurance Management
Center’s third batch of social insurance subsidies in 2023 2,388,576.13 - Other income
Chongqing Shuangqiao Economic and Technological Development
Zone Finance Bureau Factory Rent Subsidy 2,150,969.60 2,670,969.60 Other income
Customs operation subsidy for Chongqing Shuangqiao Economic and
Technological Development Zone Development Investment Group Co.,
Ltd 1,200,000.00  1,200,000.00 Other income
Anshang Education Financial Support Funds 957,000.00 629,300.00 Other income
Received performance evaluation for the supervision of workplaces by
Chongging Shuangqiao Economic and Technological Investment
Group 800,000.00 - Other income
Employment subsidies 761,987.81 - Other income
Chongging Science and Technology Subsidy 430,000.00 10,000.00 Other income
Lingang Management Committee Enterprise Development Funds 415,000.00 - Other income
Stable employment subsidy 353,626.56 595,182.21 Other income
National 1V diesel vehicle elimination subsidy 337,650.00 - Other income
Received the National High tech Policy Award from the Finance
Bureau of Liangjiang New Area, Chongqing 300,000.00 - Other income
Received rewards from Chongqing Liangjiang New Area Finance
Bureau for high-tech enterprises in Liangjiang New Area 150,000.00 - Other income
Received daily funding for postdoctoral fellows from the Chongqing
Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau and full-time
funding for the recruitment of workstations 130,000.00 - Other income
Supporting industrial enterprises to accelerate the release of production
capacity rewards in the first quarter of 2024 100,000.00 - Other income
Nanchang Xiaolan Economic and Technological Development Zone
Management Committee Party Fees Fund Committee Party Fees Non-operating
Return 30,531.00 - income
Social security subsidies for college graduates 91,392.86 112,938.76 Other income
Received DSF internship subsidy from the Social Security Bureau 51,849.16 - Other income
Government subsidies 15,427.00 13,762.00 Other income
Received intellectual property patent funding from the Dazu District
Market Supervision Administration of Chongqing in 2022 10,000.00 - Other income
Received subsidies from the Municipal Unemployment Insurance
Office for the Unemployment Insurance Fund 9,003.00 - Other income
Enterprise development funds paid by the Finance Bureau of Tongnan
District, Chongqing 6,994.00 315,459.00 Other income
Subsidies from the Human Resources and Social Security Bureau 3,000.00 - Other income
Second Prize for Outstanding Collective Statistics in Liangjiang New
Area in 2022 - 800.00 Other income
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Amount

Amount
recognized in

Types recognized in profit or loss Reported
yp profit or loss in the items
for the current previous included in
period period profit or loss
According to Chongqing Liangjiang Caiye (2023) No. 61, allocate
industry support funds - 170,000.00 Other income
Encourage small and medium-sized enterprises to grow rapidly with
incentive funds - 200,000.00 Other income
National high-tech enterprise subsidy - 100,000.00 Other income
One time reward for enterprises with harmonious labor relations (Labor
Security Supervision Brigade of Liangjiang New Area) - 10,000.00 Other income
Training subsidy from the Labor Bureau - 21,000.00 Other income
Social Insurance Subsidies from Liangjiang New Area Social Insurance
Management Center - 2,280,794.64 Other income
Revenue from stamp duty with six taxes and two fees - 127,137.16 Other income
Reward for large taxpayers - 60,000.40 Other income
Social insurance subsidy for hiring college graduates by enterprises - 17,461.00 Other income
Stable Growth Reward - 200,000.00 Other income
One time expansion subsidy - 53,500.00 Other income
Chonggqing Jiangbei District Employment and Talent Center
Employment Subsidy - 2,353.00 Other income
Chonggqing Liangjiang New Area Finance Bureau Science and
Technology Enterprise Storage Award - 10,000.00 Other income
The Chongqing Liangjiang New Area Management Committee has
received the first prize for the 2022 Liangjiang New Area Statistical
Excellent Collective Award - 1,000.00 Other income
Chonggqing Liangjiang New Area Social Insurance Management Center
2023 Youth Employment Internship Subsidy - 1,148,800.00 Other income
Chongqing Dazu District Science and Technology Association Dazu
District Science and Technology Association Transfer Science
Popularization Project Subsidy Funds - 5,000.00 Other income
Subsidy funds for 69 projects accepted by Chongqing Science and
Technology Bureau - 1,950,980.00 Other income
Funding Award for Postdoctoral Workstation of Finance Bureau of
Shuangqiao Economic and Technological Development Zone,
Chongqing - 280,000.00 Other income
Subtotals 13,083,007.12 13,666,437.77 -
Total 13,083,007.12 14,834,837.77

IX. Financial instrument and risk management

The Company’s main financial instruments include cash and bank balances, notes receivable, accounts
receivable, receivables financing, other receivables, non-current assets due within one year, other
current assets, other equity instruments investment, notes payable, accounts payable, other payables,
short-term loans, non-current liabilities due within one year, long term loans and lease liabilities.
Details of each financial instrument have been disclosed in the relevant notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the Company’s risk management policies to mitigate these risks
are described below. The Company’s management manages and monitors these risk exposures to

ensure that the above risks are controlled within the defined scope.
1. Risk management objectives and policies

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, and

market risk (including interest rate risk and commodity price risk).
(1) Credit risk
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Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty of financial assets will cause a financial loss for the Company
by failing to discharge an obligation.

The Company managed the credit risk by groups. Credit risk mainly came from bank balances, notes
receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables.

The bank deposits of our company are mainly held in state-owned banks and in financial institutions
with a good reputation and high credit ratings. The Company expects that there is no significant credit
risks exist on the bank deposit.

For notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables, the Company makes relevant policies
to control credit risk exposures. The Company assesses the quality of customers’ credit rating and set
their credit limits and credit period based on the customers’ financial position, credit history and other
factors such as current market condition. The Company monitors the debtors’ credit records regularly
and ensures its overall credit risk within controllable range by written reminders, shorten or cancel
credit periods to the debtors with bad credit history.

The Company’s debtors of account receivables are customers distributed in different industries and
geographical areas. The Company continuously performs credit assessments on the debtors and
purchases credit guarantee insurance when necessary.

The maximum exposure to credit risk borne by the Company is the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the balance sheet. The Company does not provide any other guarantee that may expose the
Company to credit risk.

Accounts receivable due from the top five customers of the Company accounted for 53.79% of total
accounts receivable (2023: 54.24%); other receivables due from the top five customers of the Company
amounted to RMB 36,767,371.95, which accounted for 23.99% of total other receivables (2023:
39.66%).

(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is short of funds to deliver cash or other financial assets or
meet settlement obligations.

To manage liquidity risk, the Company maintains cash and cash equivalents at a level that the
management considers adequate and monitors them so as to meet its operation demand as well as to
reduce the effect of cash flow fluctuations. The management is responsible for monitoring the
usefulness of bank loans to ensure they comply with the covenants in loan agreements. Meanwhile,
the management obtains the commitment from the principal financial institutions to provide enough
surplus in reserve to satisfy the Company’s short and long-term fund demands.

The Company finances working capital with funds arising from operations and bank and other
borrowings. As at 31 December 2024, the available loan facilities for withdrawal by the Company are
RMB1,630.00 million (At 31 December 2023: RMB 2,460.65 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the analysis of the due date of the Company’s financial liabilities and oft-
balance sheet guarantees by remaining undiscounted contractual cash flows are as follows (unit: RMB):

Closing balance

Item Within a year 1-3years Over 3 years Total
Financial liabilities:

Short-term loans 12,062,465.76 - - 12,062,465.76
Notes payable 496,060,939.76 - - 496,060,939.76
Accounts payable - - - -1,732,595,773.59
Other payables 352,309,223.32 - - 352,309,223.32
Non-current liabilities due within one year 76,097,623.88 - - 76,097,623.88
S]E:r:)er:]g;rrent liabilities (excluding deferred 13585 957.96 i i 13.585,957.96
Lease liabilities - 96,167,344.32  7,243,725.15 103,411,069.47
Total 2,682,711,984.27 96,167,344.32  7,243,725.15 2,786,123,053.74
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As at 31 December 2023, the analysis of due date of the Company’s financial liabilities and off-balance
sheet guarantees by remaining undiscounted contractual cash flows of are as follow (unit: RMB):

Closing balance

Item
Within a year 1 to 3 years Over 3 Total
years

Financial liabilities:

Short-term loans 26,526,864.44 - - 26,526,864.44
Notes payable 532,579,693.95 - - 532,579,693.95
Accounts payable 1,518,537,172.85 - - 1,518,537,172.85
Other payables 313,506,475.20 - - 313,506,475.20
lglnoen;/cel;rrrent liabilities due within 117.995,287.03 i i 117.995.287.03
oo e - L
Long term loans - 72,515,898.76  25,000,000.00 97,515,898.76
Lease liabilities - 18,140,010.20 35,672,853.75 53,812,863.95
Total 2,523,459,110.33 90,655,908.96 60,672,853.75 2,674,787,873.05

The amount of financial liabilities disclosed above are undiscounted cash flow of contracts, so they
may be different with those presented in the balance sheet.

(3) Market risk

The market risk of a financial instrument is the risk of fluctuation in the fair value or future cash flow
due to changes in market price, including interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk and other pricing
risks.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuation in the fair value or future cash flow of financial instrument
due to the changes of market interest rate. Interest rate risk can come from the recognized interest-
bearing financial instruments and unrecognized financial instruments (such as loan commitments).

The interest rate risk of the Company mainly arises from interest bearing borrowings, such as long-
term bank loans and bonds payable. A financial liability with floating interest rates causes interest rate
risks in cash flow to the Company; and a financial liability with fixed interest rates causes interest rate
risks in fair value to the Company. The Company determines the proportion of bank loans with fixed
and floating interest rate according to current market situation and maintains the appropriate
combination of the instruments with fixed and floating interest rate by regular review and monitoring.

The Company pays close attention to the effect of interest rate changes on the Company’s interest rate
risk. The Company does not adopt any interest rate hedge, but the management is responsible for
monitoring interest rate risk and will consider hedging on significant interest rate risk. Rising interest
rates will increase the cost of new interest-bearing debts and the interest expenses of interest-bearing
debts with floating interest rates that the Company has not paid in full and will have a significant
adverse impact on the Company’s financial performance. The management will make timely
adjustments based on the latest market conditions. These adjustments may be arrangements for interest
rate swaps to reduce interest rate risk.
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The interest-bearing financial instruments held by the Company are as follows (unit: RMB):

Item Closing balance Beginning balance

Fixed interest rate financial instruments

Financial liabilities 122,873,563.52 295,850,914.18
Including: Short-term loans 12,062,465.76 26,526,864.44
Long-term loans due within one year 13,416,740.82 34,255,565.08
Long-term loans - 97,515,898.76
Lease liabilities 97,394,356.94 137,552,585.90
Financial assets 1,146,471,459.06 1,032,966,641.30
Including: Cash and bank balances 995,071,800.59 882,939,512.98
Other current assets - 150,027,128.32
Other non-current assets 151,399,658.47 -

For financial instruments held on the balance sheet date that expose the Company to fair value interest
rate risk, the impact of net profit and shareholder’s equity in the above sensitivity analysis assumes
that the effect of remeasurement of financial instruments by the interest rate changes on the balance
sheet date.

Foreign exchange rate risk

Foreign exchange rate risk is the risk of fluctuation of financial instrument fair value or future cash
flow fluctuation due to the changes of foreign exchange rate. Foreign exchange rate risk can arise from
financial instruments measured at foreign currencies other than the functional currency.

The main operations of the Company are within China and mainly settled in RMB. At as 31 December
2024, the RMB equivalent of the cash denominated in foreign currencies held by the Company was
USD 9,778,138.31, as detailed in Note V.59. Exchange rate changes had no material impact on the
Company.

2. Capital management

The purpose of the Company’s capital management policy is to ensure the Company is going concern
so as to provide returns to the shareholders and benefit other stakeholders and maintain the optimal
capital structure to reduce capital cost.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Company monitors capital structure on the basis of asset-liability ratio (total liabilities divided by
total assets). As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s asset-liability ratio is 57.54% (As at 31
December 2023: 57.68%).
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X. Fair value

The level in which fair value measurement is categorized is determined by the level of the fair value
hierarchy of the lowest level input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement. The levels
are defined as follows:

Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are either directly (i.e. price) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from the price) observable for underlying assets or liabilities.

Level 3: inputs that are unobservable for underlying assets or liabilities.
(1) Item and amount measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2024, assets and liabilities measured at fair value are as follows:

Level 1 fair Level 2 fair Level 3 fair
Item value value value Total
measurement measurement measurement

I. Recurring fair value measurement

1. Receivables financing 601,021,043.25 601,021,043.25
2. Other equity instruments 74,000,000.00  74,000,000.00
investment T U

(2) Quantitative information of important unobservable input values used in level 3 of fair value

measurement
Fair value at Valuation Range
Content . Unobservable inputs (weighted
year end techniques
average)
Other equity .
instruments 7400000000 ~ Netassets _ Net asset multiplier N/A
. value (revised price-book ratio)
investment
I;"“’W.ables 601,02104325  Bookvalue  Cash flow, discount rate OO0 (discount
inancing rate)
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(3) Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Total current gains or Purchase, issuance, sale, and settlement Change.s n
losses unrealized
gains or losses
. . Transfer to  Transfer to . ; recognized in
gll;:)gﬁ;tt)(current %g?::é% the third the third Included Includehm E:li l:fe profit or loss
level level  in profit or ﬁt “Y  Purchase Issue Sell Settlement for assets held
loss ‘comprenensi at the end of
ve iIncome the reporting
period
Other equity
instrument 26,555,900.00 2,420,000.00 28,975,900.00
investments
Accounts
receivable - - -
financing
Total 26,555,900.00 2,420,000.00 28,975,900.00
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XI. Related party and related party transactions

1.Information on shareholders

As of 31 December 2024, the shareholding of the Company is as follows: China Changan Automobile
Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “China Changan”) holds 25.44%, APL Logistics Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “APLL” or “APL Logistics”) holds 19.99%, Minsheng Industrial (Group)
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Minsheng Industrial”) holds 15.90%, Ming Sung Industrial Co.,
(HK) Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Ming Sung (HK)”) holds 3.98%, and other shareholders hold
34.69%. The actual controlling party of the Company is China South Industries Group Co., Ltd.

(hereinafter referred to as “CSGC”).

On 22 August 2024, the Company entered into a share subscription agreement with China South
Industries Assets Management Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “SIAMC”). The Company has
conditionally agreed to issue and distribute, and Southern Asset has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 40,000,000 new domestic shares at a subscription price of RMB 2.54648 per share (equivalent to
HKD 2.78), with a total cash consideration of RMB 101,859,200 (equivalent to approximately HKD
111,200,000). The proposal was officially passed by vote at the shareholders’ meeting on 22 November
2024. On 6 March 2025, the Company received the “Approval on the Registration of the Issuance of
Shares to Specific Investors by Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.*” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke
[2025] No. 373) ( «MA R & & B k% R AW R A TR 8] 045 2 31 2847 R ZE Mo s8>
B 24 7T[2025]373 %%)) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”) on
27 February 2025 (being the registration approval date). The CSRC has approved the registration

application for the issuance of 40,000,000 (inclusive) domestic shares of the Company.

2. Subsidiaries of the Company
Details of subsidiaries refer to Note VII.1.

3. Joint ventures or associates of the Company
Details of joint ventures or associates refer to Note VI1.3.

4. Other related parties of the Company

Related party name

Relationship with our group

Chongging Huxi Motor Industry Co., Ltd. (& B & % & # T £ A R AL 8)
Chongging Dajiang Jiexin Forging Co., Ltd. (& & K12 4 A R 8])

Chengdu Lingchuan Automotive Fuel Tank Co., Ltd. (SR &R k)1 & i 34 46 A TR 8])

I;%u)bei Huazhong Marelli Automotive Lighting Co., Ltd. (#8 4t 3 7 5 72 5] 14, & B8 80 A PR
Hubei Xiaogan Huazhong Automotive Lamp Co., Ltd. (#] Jb 2 gk 3 o S35 RN 8])

Hubei 295 Technology Co., Ltd. (#1 4t —Ju B4 H A IR 8])

Chongging Construction Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (Z##3% T % (£8) ARAEAET)
Chongging Construction Tongda Industrial Co., Ltd. (& B & & A& K £ A R F)

Chongging Construction Transmission Technology Co., Ltd. (& /& & 3 4% Sh AL H A TR 4])

Chengdu Jialing Huaxi Optics Precision Machinery Co., Ltd. (4 5 [t 3 0 %% 45 F 4R
A P 3])
Nanyang Lida Optoelectronics Co., Ltd. (& 55 #) i£ 568 A R 8))

Chongging Shangfang Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. (& & L 7 & & Be b A FR A F))

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
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Related party name

Relationship with our group

Chengdu Wanyou Filter Co., Ltd. (/4R & & &4 A TR 3))
Chongqing Yihong Defense Technology Co., Ltd. (& & 3 74 By 7 A FR A 4])

Southern Industrial Technology Trading Co., Ltd. (& % T %43 % 5 A 1R 48)

China South Industries Group Human Resources Development Center( ¥ B & £ 4 £ A
7 F R BR3P )

China South Industries Group Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (Y B EZEHEB @AM EH
FRFAE 2 3])
China South Industries Group Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. (P B £ Z 2 H 5B & £5R A

A [ 4])
Changan Automobile Finance Co., Ltd. (& %4 & 28k A ML 8])

China South Industries Group Automation Research Institute Co., Ltd. (P B £ Z 2 #H 5 H
B By AT 5 BT A P 8])
Chongging Hongyu Friction Products Co., Ltd. (& 41 F B4 8 & A 1R ])

Chongging Construction Automotive Air Conditioner Co., Ltd. (£ F#3% & A THEH R
FAEAE])

Chongqing Anbo Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. (& & %14 15, £ 4512 A FR 2 4])

Chongging Changan Property Management Co., Ltd. (£ & # k24 £ % A LA 4)

Chongging Changan Property Management Co., Ltd. Ya’an Branch(£ & &k & £ % 2 H
TR 3] HE 2 0 F])

China Weapon News Agency( ¥ B & 3248 4L)

Chongging Changan Smart City Operation and Management Co., Ltd. (& & & %% Z %7 1&

BE TR RN E))

Construction Industry Group (Yunnan) Co., Ltd. (323 T2 £ 8 (&) RMHARAE)

TAFRFALNF])

Yangzhou Suken Galaxy Connecting Rod Co., Ltd. (35 # S8 4% 7T i 47 A FR A 8])

Chongging Changfeng Jiquan Machinery Co., Ltd. (& & & B A& AR A R 8])

Chongging Changjiang Electric Industry Group Co., Ltd. (€& & i1E T T ¥ £ 8 A A
a])

Chongging Changan Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (£ k2T % (£8) AMRFIENE)
G e T EA IR FAENE])
Chongging Changan Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (& & & % & & TA2H FR28])

Chongging Construction Electromechanical Co., Ltd. (& B 2 3% 4

Chengdu Lingchuan Special Industry Co., Ltd. (4R %

Chongging Changan Intelligent Industrial Technology Service Co., Ltd. (¥ & &k %% %
HAT IR AT R 5])
Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (& £ 474 (R 8)

Minsheng International Container Transport Co., Ltd. (5, 2 B B £ % 4 18 $r A [ 3])

Minsheng International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. ( 5,4 B K% 418 #4224 TR 8))

Tianjin Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd. (X 3 K, & B A5 74X 2 A7 TR
)

Hubei Minsheng International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. (0 Jb &, & B & & iR 22 A
R 8])

Shanghai Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (k% &, & #A5 A FRA 8))

Hong Kong Minsheng Industrial Co., Ltd. (F# K A& & £ A (R E4EF)

Guangzhou Minsheng International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. (& # K, 4 B B8 #1€ # 4%,
AR 3))
Chongging Minsheng Customs Declaration Co., Ltd. (& 8 K. 2 38 B A FE 2 3])

Chongging Minsheng Comprehensive Logistics Co., Ltd. (& B K. & 4 &4 7 A [ 3))

Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (&, 2 #A% A3 A 2 8])

Guangzhou Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd. (& M K. & B BAs 34K 2 A
[ 8])

Ningbo Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd. (5 % K. 24 B B AR 4% 22 A TR
a)

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC
Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by CSGC

Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial

Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial

Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial

Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
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Related party name

Relationship with our group

Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch( &, 2 #5#5 A [ 8] L ik 2 3])
Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (K, 2 #A5 & [ 3])

Sichuan Changhong Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (v9 )1 & %z &, 2 % 55 f& 40 A TR 4])
Shenzhen Minsheng Jiefukai Logistics Co., Ltd. GE3| K, £ 3 5 94 7 A R 4))

APLL Transportation (China) Co., Ltd. (& £ 42 (¥ B)A R 8))

Chongging Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& B & % 4.5 B4 A [R 2 8])

Chongging Changan Automobile International Sales Service Co., Ltd. (& & & %4, & Bl B 44
B IRAEA R 4])

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. Beijing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& B &%
AR R A RN G T RZARNE)

Chongging Changan Automobile Customer Service Co., Ltd. (& B & %42 & B R A 1
s 8])

Chongging Changan Kaicheng Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. (£ & & %9424 A3 A
Rz 4])

Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (37 Jb %%, 2 4 [ 5))

Chongging Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd. (£ B4 44 £ A R 8])

Chongging Xingzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (& 47 % A& A IR 8])

Chongging Chemei Technology Co., Ltd. (& & & fo £ A H A R 8])

Nanjing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& % & %4 & A Lo 9])

Chongqing Changan Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. (& & & 4 % A A2 A FRa4])
Hangzhou Changan Yixing Technology Co., Ltd. (#u & % AT A FLA 3))
Hefei Changan Yixing Technology Co., Ltd. (42 &% TATAHEA TR 8))

Chongqing Changan Chelian Technology Co., Ltd. (¥ /& & 4 & B A H A TR 8])

Chongging Changan Chelian Technology Co., Ltd. Jinhua Branch( & & & % & Bt £ H A R
8] 5N 8])

Chongging Changan Chelian Technology Co., Ltd. Ningbo Branch( % & & % & Bt A1 3 A &
ARSI

Chongqing Changan Chelian Technology Co., Ltd. Jiaxing Branch( % & & % % %A 3 A [k
B BN E])

Chongqing Changan Xing Automobile Co., Ltd. (& & & 2474 £ A R/ F)

Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (&-8& %%, 2 A TR/ 5))

Deep Blue Automobile Sales (Chongging) Co., Ltd. (E %4 2454 (F8&) AR 3E])

Changan Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. Chengdu Parts Branch( & %%, 3 4542 7 [\ 3] A AR B
5 5))

Deep Blue Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. (if 8 4 & F- A FRA 4])

Chongqing Anyi Automotive Technology Service Co., Ltd. (& 3 45 14, & B A7 R A R

Changan Automobile (Group) Co., Ltd. (&% 4 £ (£ B)H REEAF)

thangan Ford New Energy Vehicle Technology Co., Ltd. (& 278 4537 4% R 14,2 A} 3 A TR A
Jia)ngling Motors Holdings Limited (7z 4445 % A T2 4])

Zhongqi Chuangzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (¥ 48] 45 A A4 FR 2 8])

Era Changan Power Battery Co., Ltd. (BF/X &% A & b 1R 5))

Avita Technology (Chongqing) Co., Ltd. (FT4354+3 (£8) AR E)

Avita (Chongqing) Automotive Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (FT43% (£ ) AL 4E R
A (R 8])

Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial

Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial
Ultimately controlled by Minsheng Industrial

Ultimately controlled by APLL

Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile

Changan Automobile

Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile
Ultimately controlled by Changan
Automobile

Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture

Changan Automobile’s joint venture

Subsidiary of Changan Automobile Joint
Venture
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Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Related party name

Relationship with our group

IMC(ix 85 4,3 R A R 8])

Changan Mazda Engine Co., Ltd. (&% % A iZ 2 S A FLA-F)
Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd. (&% 5% § 12 A2 AH TR 3F])
Changan Mazda Automobile Sales Branch (&% 5 B i& A 2452 5 49))

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %43 414 & A TN 3))

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. Power System Branch( & 24 454 2 A RN 3 81 /1 & %5
2-E])
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Branch( & %748 4% 4, & A 2 3] A M 22> 8])

Changan Ford Automobile Co., Ltd. Sales Branch( & %42 44, & A [ 8] 4514 52 8))

Changan Ford Automobile Co., Ltd. Harbin Branch(& %48 454, & 4 FR 2 5 "5/ 3 54> 8])
Changan Ford New Energy Vehicle Sales and Service (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (& %4 4537 48 /R
ARSKERS (R A FRAE)

Chongging Ante Import and Export Trading Co., Ltd. (£ B 2458 8 0 § 5 A R 4F])
Anhui Jian’an Chassis System Co., Ltd. (Z# 3% & At A %A IR F AL 4])

Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd. (w9 )] 24 T ¥ A R ZA4ENF])

Chengdu Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (5% F L& £ A R AL F])

Aol LA RN E)

Hunan Tianyan Machinery Co., Ltd. (#1 # X e # A%A PR & AE 2 8])

Cajh)engdu Ningjiang Zhaohe Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. (s&4} % i 08 Fo i4, 2 F 30 A TR
Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. (& 7 #h & 2= /4, & 354 A TR F])

Chengdu Huachuan Denso Co., Ltd. (s &%) & 4 A TR HAEN )

Longchang Shanchuan Machinery Co., Ltd. (I 8\l N A4 A TR FAE A F])

Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan Machinery Co., Ltd. (w9 1| 5 i\l 1| # 4 A TR F AL 2 8])
Chongging Wanyou Economic Development Co., Ltd. (& & ¥ A& 55 A TR AENF))
Yunnan Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& & & & 4 2 454 R4 TR 3])

Guizhou Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (F I & 43 /4. % 4512 IRF5A IR F))
China Changan Automobile Group Tianjin Sales Co., Ltd. (P B & %4 & £ 8 X 24542 A
MR 3])

Dali Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. ( X 32 45 14, & 45 IR A R 4))
Chongqing Wanyou Ducheng Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& & & A # & 4 £ 45
A& JRF A TR E])

Dehong Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& & & 48 14, &£ 4512 JR%A FR 9])
Chuxiong Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (% # % 4% 4, & 45 & IR A R
a])

Anhui Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (24 A4 & 451 IRFA TR 8))

Jiangsu Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (T #k & A4 £ 45 R A IR 3])

Chengdu Wanyou Automobile Trade Service Co., Ltd. (5A} & A4 F RFA [ &)

Chengdu Wanyou Automobile Trade Service Co., Ltd. Luzhou Branch( SR #f & 24 8 A
PR 3] 3 M 52 8])

Chengdu Wanxing Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (5AR % 2 14 & 45 & RBA TR
)

Chongqing Wanyou Xingjian Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& & & A AT 4. & 4%
&R A TR F])

Guizhou Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (F M & A4 & 451& R A TR
)

Yunnan Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (F & ¥ 78 14, % 45 & IR A FLA )

Guizhou Wanjia Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& M & 1% 4, & 45 & IR A TR 8])

Chongqing Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (£

Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture
Changan Automobile’s joint venture

Changan Automobile’s joint venture

Subsidiary of Changan Automobile Joint
Venture
Subsidiary of Changan Automobile Joint
Venture

Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan

Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan

Ultimately controlled by China Changan

Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
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Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Related party name

Relationship with our group

Chongqing Anfu Automobile Marketing Co., Ltd. (& B %4 4, 24745 A TR 8))
Chongqing Anfu Automobile Marketing Co., Ltd. Maintenance Service Branch( & B %424,
AT GEA TR 3] M5 IRFS 22 3)

Beijing North Changfu Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. (4t 7 Jb F & 48 A £ 45 A IR FE N 4])

Chongging Wanyou Longrui Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& B & A FE3% 4.2 44
B IRFS A PR E])

Chongging Wanyou Zunda Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& B ¥ A 3 1% 4, £ 4512
FRA5 7 TR 3])

Chongging Wanyou Zhicheng Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (£ & & A KA £ 44
B IRASA PR 2])

Honghe Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (437 & 4@ 4, & 4542 IR A FRA 3])

Beijing Baiwang Changfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (b % & IE k484, 2 45 &
AR TR )

Chongqing Wanyou Chengxing Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (£ B & A #AT A%
SHAE IRFS A TR 2])

Harbin Dong’an Automotive Power Co., Ltd. ("4 i R %42 8 77 R0 78 [ 8])

Harbin Dong’an Automotive Engine Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (- 3% & 44 25 S 4 i
RN 3])

Southern Intel Air Conditioning Co., Ltd. (& 7 345 % A FRA 4))

Chenzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (R E A H A 2 4])

Mianyang Wanzhong Auto Parts Co., Ltd. (4% & % {4 BAH MR AL &)

Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. Haining Branch( & 7 # & 2 4, & 38 4 A TR
&) i E o E])

Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. Nanjing Branch( & 7 # & % 14, 2 3R 44 TR
3 W E])

Faurecia (Chongqing) Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. (#h & &= (E &) A& KIR4H RN )
Chengdu Wanyou Economic and Technological Development Corporation( 5% & & & 42 77 3%
iR (AR

Guangxi Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (B % % A4 & 4512 TR A TR
a])

Nanning Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& 5 % A 4.5 45E JRA%A FRa
)

Liangshan Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (3% 1y ¥ A%, & 45142 IR A IR
a])

Chenzhi (Chongqing) Brake System Co., Ltd. (f& 2(F &)%) 8 £ LA R 4))

Chongqing Wanyou Economic Development Co., Ltd. Tongliang Gravity Branch( £ 5 & A
BHB A R FAE N F AR5 ) 5 8))

Chongqing Wanyou Economic Development Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Branch( & B & A 48 & 5 &
A FREAE R S AL 52 4])

Chengdu Wanyou Automobile Trade Service Co., Ltd. Checheng Branch( s 4 # 4 4, F IR
A TR 8] 3R 5/ 8])

China Changan Automobile Group Co., Ltd. Ya’an Chassis System Branch( ¥ B & %4 % &
) A R &) He 22 Ak 2 - 8])

Chenzhi (Chongqing) Brake System Co., Ltd. (&2 (&) 1% & LA LA 3])
Chenzhi (Chengdu) Intelligent Suspension Co., Ltd. (R# (& #R) HEBEH RN EF)
Wanyou Automotive Investment Co., Ltd. (% &% % 3% 5 A A 8))

Hubei Hannan Port Industrial Co., Ltd. (# 3t & % 8 £ A TR 5))

Wuhan Shengde Rixin Automobile Industry Park Co., Ltd. (X /& B #7142 & LB A R
2a])
Nanjing Baosteel Zhushang Metal Products Co., Ltd. (8 7 % 484E 7 2 /8 % S A A 3))

Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan

Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan

Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan

Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan
Ultimately controlled by China Changan

Minority shareholder of Changjiang Zhilian

Minority shareholder of Changjiang Zhilian

Related parties of Nanjing CMSC
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Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

5. Related party transactions

(1) Purchase or sale with related parties

(D Purchase of goods/receiving of services

Related parties

Related party transaction content

Current amount Amount incurred in
incurred the previous period

Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (&, & % i7A R 8))
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %43 4514 & A FLN 3))

Changan Automobile Finance Co., Ltd. (& %%, % & @A
3])

Chongging Minsheng Comprehensive Logistics Co., Ltd. (£ &
R &5 -4 A [ 8))

Minsheng International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. (& 2 B B
B W3 AR A RN )

Shanghai Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (& i K, & #5454 FE A
a])

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& & & % 4 & &1
A R 8])

Guangzhou Minsheng International Freight Forwarding Co.,
Ltd. (B M R A B 5 Y @i R A TR F])

Tianjin Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd. (X
FRA B BAHREA R )

Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (777 b & %%, 2 A TR/
a])

Minsheng International Container Transport Co., Ltd. (K.

M SR AAG LA TR 3]

Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd. (&% % @ ik /424 [
- 8])

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& 448 4574, 2 4 FRA 8])
Chongging Changan Property Management Co., Ltd. Ya’an
Branch( & B & &4 £ & BA RN 8 Je% 40 8])
Chongging Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd. (£ & #4424 £ A R
s 8])

China South Industries Group Automation Research Institute
Co., Ltd. ("7 B & E R £ B A AT THTA TR E])
Southern Industrial Technology Trading Co., Ltd. (& # I %}
HH AR

Chongging Wanyou Zunda Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd. Shaanxi Branch (& & % & 3 & 74 2 45 & IR T 8]
PR G 2-2 F])

Chengdu Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (B4 # L £ A PR #
AE 2 F])

Chongqing Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (£ & & .u T £ A &
FALAE])

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. Beijing Changan
Automobile Co., Ltd. (Z B &£ 42 RA IR 8 b k%
AN E))

Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (K. #i7A 2 8])

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
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167,446,294.95
287,429.66

8,462.79

19,640,914.59

21,141,701.47

3,691,931.32

2,132,035.69

1,019,004.94

871,031.00

557,907.80

490,031.60

348,180.05

298,295.42

104,016.00

81,499.00

79,245.28

74,911.33

45,835.00

41,717.41

607.17

294.84

-8,182.65

195,489,296.34
4,276.99

28,072,336.77

14,279,195.61

5,843,616.17

486,317.51

1,509,868.26

1,101,281.94

998,015.85

260,796.03

48,656.00

875,964.41



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Ningbo Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd. (5
R B BRAS AR A PR )

Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (&-fe& %4 & A T 38))

Chongqing Minsheng Customs Declaration Co., Ltd. (& B K. A&
3 A FRE])

Guangzhou Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd.
(B M KA B B A 75K B A TR )

Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (&8 & %4, 2 A FR A 9])
China South Industries Group Human Resources Development
Center (F B X BEMEB AN FRHE T O)

Southern Industrial Technology Trading Co., Ltd. (& % T %4}
HH H AR )

Chongging Anbo Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. (& & 221 14, & 4%
B A R )

Nanjing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& ¥ & %4 & A o
3])

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& 448 4534 2 4 FEA 8])

Hefei Changan Yixing Technology Co., Ltd. (&2 & % & 474+
A RN F])

Hong Kong Minsheng Industrial Co., Ltd. (## K & F £ A R
FAEAE])

China Weapon News Agency( ¥ B % %3 41)

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %43 4¥ 4 & A FL 8))

Chongging Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd. (& & 448 4 & A %
2 4])

Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (A& & 44 & A R 8])

Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd. (&4 % A i 424 R
s E])

Chongqging Chang’an Smart City Operation and Management
Co., Ltd( & & & 2% B3R T &% & A RN F])

Chongqing Chang’an Smart City Operation and Management
Co., Ltd. Nanjing Branch( & & & 2% 2 3% 7 & & & A PR
&) ¥ 4 8])

Chongqing Chang’an Smart City Operation and Management
Co., Ltd. Sichuan Branch( & & & %% 2. 3% T & % & 22 A [
sl e )l 4 8])

Chonggqing Changan Smart City Operation and Management
Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Branch( & & & 245 B IR T & % & WA R
B AN 5 8])

Chongqing Changan Property Management Co., Ltd. Ya’an
Branch(& & 1 k&4 & A RN S M2 5 F))

component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Other

Other

Other

Other

Other
Other

Other

Other

Other

Lease
Lease
Lease

Lease

Security and cleaning services

Security and cleaning services

Security and cleaning services

Security and cleaning services

Security and cleaning services

834,754.36

29,879.09

7,316.60

2,438.00

74,133.49

52,166.03 1,300.00

14,150.94 24,751.89

4,017.69 11,862.84

14,127.78

11,963.48

9,398.23

2,360.65

-101,550.00 406,134.72
1,521,684.48
843,217.64
655,787.38

220,705.93 450,745.29

13,473,705.29 10,546,640.80
1,576,907.38
117,806.15

50,943.39 -

29,292.45 -
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Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(2 Sales of goods/rendering of services

Related parties

Related party transaction
content

Current amount incurred

Amount incurred in
the previous period

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(ZRRZARRMA R )

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %78 44
AR E])

Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (7 4t
REAS A RN E)

Deep Blue Automotive Technology Co., Ltd.
(RE AP A I 4])

Changan Mazda Automobile Sales Branch(&
ZHAFEALME SN )

Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (&-f&
R A LA R 4])

Chongging Changan Automobile
International Sales Service Co., Ltd. (& & &
SRR B RS RS A TR 8])

China South Industries Group Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd. (P B = B £ FHEH &4
R A R FAENF])

Avita Technology (Chongqing) Co., Ltd. (]
EREAH (ZR) AMRAE)

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
Beijing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& &
R AR A TR &) b TR AL A )
Chongging Changan Xing Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (& B & ZAT AR A R 4])
Chongqing Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd.
(B S AL AT A )

Chongging Changan Kaicheng Automotive
Technology Co., Ltd. (¥ & &k Z¥424 2 4+
FA R 3)

Guizhou Wanyou Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (F M & A4 & 451 IR
A FRn-2])

Changan Ford New Energy Vehicle
Technology Co., Ltd. (& %7 4537 it IR 14 &
FHHA TR )

Chonggqing Wanyou Economic Development
Co., Ltd. (& i & A4 3R A TR
a])

Hefei Changan Yixing Technology Co., Ltd.
(S fef % TATHHA R 2])

Zhonggqi Chuangzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (¥
Ay AR TR 4))

Hangzhou Changan Yixing Technology Co.,
Ltd. (41 F % mATFHHA IR a])
Chongqing Changan Chelian Technology
Co., Ltd. (& B+ % S BHAH A T2 4)
Changan Automobile Finance Co., Ltd. (&%
AR B GRA TR E])

Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (K. & 47 A [k
28]

Chengdu Wanyou Automobile Trade Service
Co., Ltd. (AR & A A H MR A [ 8])

Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business
Vehicle transportation business

Vehicle transportation business
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1,650,644,855.24

376,667,026.49

300,140,852.64

192,985,949.13

136,969,644.28

26,032,914.03

17,333,791.62

16,752,680.84

6,892,913.12

6,667,713.15

4,478,463.91

2,500,555.89

2,246,893.19

2,116,858.50

1,820,502.86

717,716.29

630,106.41

629,744.01

583,382.76

582,466.36

397,071.56

288,765.23

282,697.25

1,954,476,673.24

487,963,812.60

316,321,337.23

414,831,683.59

130,237,276.03

30,380,358.79

18,951,476.38

27,740,463.72

1,224,108.19

46,479.54

703,941.60

1,408,595.38

344,963.98

608,672.96

1,509,731.92

40,603.77

115,555.11



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Chongqing Anbo Automobile Sales Co., Ltd.
(ZEE AR EATRAS)

Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan Machinery
Co., Ltd. (w9 )1 & iz Ly )] M AR A TR F AR Vehicle transportation business 149,364.15 2,529.25
a])

Jiangsu Wanyou Automobile Sales and

Service Co., Ltd. (L & A4 2 45 IR Vehicle transportation business 108,406.27 37,519.03
A T 4))

Chongqing Wanyou Zhicheng Automobile

Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (£ B & A 3 Vehicle transportation business 107,738.53 -
AR KR IR TR 3))

Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. ( K. $ A5 & 4%
A FRn-8])

Chongqing Wanyou Chengxing Automobile
Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& B & A 34T Vehicle transportation business 26,011.45 10,965.09
AR KR IR A TR 4])

Chonggqing Wanyou Xingjian Automobile

Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (¥ & ¥ A474& Vehicle transportation business 22,627.24 42,890.56
AR AR R A TR E])

Chongqing Chemei Technology Co., Ltd. (&

Vehicle transportation business 214,425.59 306,991.51

Vehicle transportation business 43,264.93 28,677.15

B Ao £ AR TR 2]) Vehicle transportation business 22,172.64 -
Yunnan Wanyou Automobile Sales and

Service Co., Ltd. (‘& v ¥ A% % 45 & IRF Vehicle transportation business 20,124.52 127,358.49
A FRn-2])

Chonggqing Changan Special Purpose Vehicle . . .

Co., Ltd. (& £ 4% A 74,8 4 LA 3]) Vehicle transportation business 18,084.91 489,716.98
Chongqing Shangfang Automotive Parts Co., Vehicle transportation business 5,643.40 -

Ltd. (& B L7 A $ BAEA FRITHE 2 4])

Chongging Wanyou Ducheng Automobile
Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& 5 ¥ A4 & Vehicle transportation business 4,783.44 9,178.30
AR E IR PR E])

Baoding Changan Bus Manufacturing Co.,

Ltd. (1 % 408 & 3 35 AT KA 3]) Vehicle transportation business - 16,142,213.40
Ij;gi;gﬁcg%g?ggg%mowe Co., Ltd. (0 Vehicle transportation business - 179,988.08
%gl iqilngﬁQ; f;};?;giggrial Co Lid-(F yenjcle transportation business - 49.811.25
?;ijfm;}%};ll—?;g g]n)d itioning Co., Ltd. (% Vehicle transportation business - 833.02
A ) et susly can seics TBIGE 86606762498

Chongging Changan Automobile Automotive raw material and

International Sales Service Co., Ltd. (Z & & component sunply chain services 802,846,903.46 762,966.50
Ze A B AR AR A 5]) P il

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and

(F B Fe 202 WA TR 3)) component supply chain services 264,844,857.35 316,942,123.09
Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd. (& % Automotive raw material and

BHEARARANE) component supply chain services 189,139,765.08 125,361,273.57
Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (&-& Automotive raw material and

RZARA A E]) component supply chain services 131,187,578.04 111,766,778.96
Deep Blue Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and

(R B AR A A PR 8)) component supply chain services 71,398,290.97 45,825,047.85
Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (7 4k Automotive raw material and

RZARA RN E]) component supply chain services 59,921,627.47 19,574,545.83
Chongqing Xingzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (&£ Automotive raw material and 58 258.855.29 i
B AT A A TR F)) component supply chain services HEIEES:

Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd. (w9 )] #& Automotive raw material and

2L EH REALNE]) component supply chain services 56,923,613.53 51,293,072.54
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Chongqing Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (¥ Automotive raw material and
Bl LA FRFCAE A 3]) component supply chain services 53,673,281.21 55,874,293.52
Nanjing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& Automotive raw material and
FTREARARAE) component supply chain services 51,506,396.08 51,753,168.20
Chongging Changan Automobile Customer - -
. ik o Automotive raw material and
%er{{;:lj:; S()) Lid (EREZARFER IS o0onon’Siooiy chain services 48,800,467.25 54,459,855.52
Chongqing Wanyou Zunda Automobile Sales . .
and Service Co., Lid. (£ # 4 ik 4 41 Auromotive raw material and 40,266,202.91 24,037,532.62
A A D) component supply chain services
Chengdu Huachuan Denso Co., Ltd. (4R 3% Automotive raw material and
N EBEAREAENE]) component supply chain services 21,892,891.57 21,057,626.47
Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. : :
Beijing Changan Automobile Co., Lid. (5 _ “utomotive faw material and 18,402,701.98 30,192,856.04
R R R A R 3 TR & d]) S0P il
Anhui Jian’an Chassis System Co., Ltd. (% Automotive raw material and
IR RBE R G A AN E) component supply chain services 17,108,223.71 10,483,504.05
Era Changan Power Battery Co., Ltd. (B4, Automotive raw material and 14.836.246.61 i
RZH T A R E]) component supply chain services BISETE
Chenzhi (Chonggqing) Brake System Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and 13.448 650,70 i
(RE (ZB) A F25AH RNE]) component supply chain services AIDEVE
Automotive raw material and
- N I\ B3 N .
IMC(iL 8434 % I A0 A R 8]) component supply chain services 9,769,454.05 12,635,614.27
Avita Technology (Chongqing) Co., Ltd. (T Automotive raw material and 9.281 622 55 )
A (TE) AMRAE) component supply chain services a0 hBes
Changan Ford New Energy Vehicle . .
s Automotive raw material and
P 55 Ak 2 AL 5 oE -
;if}g;gl]?g}%o)” Ltd. (R & AR H5 97 R A component supply chain services 6,648,871.62
Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan Machinery . .
. Automotive raw material and
2 = N
Cé]o)., Ltd. (29 )] 5 i V] AR A PR A AE 2 component supply chain services 5,311,987.90 4,191,300.89
Chongqing Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and
(Z B A LA TENE) component supply chain services 4,534,184.91 6,826,484.66
Chongqing Shangfang Automotive Parts Co., Automotive raw material and
Ltd. (F B £ 7 A2 BUA IR FTAELF]) component supply chain services 4:252,535.94 1,345,946.62
Southern Intel Air Conditioning Co., Ltd. (& Automotive raw material and
7 R AR R 3)) component supply chain services 3,892,146.78 1,619,808.04
Changan Mazda Engine Co., Ltd. (&% % A Automotive raw material and
E RS HA TR E]) component supply chain services 3,295,:470.32 4695,498.72
Hubei Huazhong Marelli Automotive : :
S Automotive raw material and
N A N 24 N A
IE;flji?t;Erii\C;J.), Ltd. (#3b 3 B35 4] 14 2 B component supply chain services 3,255,737.49 3,146,544.67
China Changan Automobile Group Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and
(PR EZARERARNE) component supply chain services 2,907,919.21 11,220.00
Chongging Construction Transmission A : .
N s utomotive raw material and
”fl{"gij;r;(])l)ogy Co., Lid. (ERABRMIFIA 0 onen ooy chain services 2,833,463.50 3,754,285.45
Harbin Dong’an Automotive Engine - -
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (% k&4 k46 Auomotive raw material and 246512565 2,276,505.21
A A P 4)) component supply chain services
Hubei Xiaogan Huazhong Automotive Lamp Automotive raw material and
Co., Ltd. (32 s B A RN ) component supply chain services 2,223.279.50 1,551,691.30
Chengdu Wanyou Filter Co., Ltd. (XA&: & A Automotive raw material and
AR PR E]) component supply chain services 2,099,027.84 2,249,711.08
Chongqing Huxi Motor Industry Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and 1379.196.35 i
(EBREATHRITERARITAENET) component supply chain services MR
Faurecia (Chongging) Automotive Parts Co., - .
Ltd (5 (E8) ASEIRE LA Automotive raw material and 1.268.527.39 1.274.240.06

a0 component supply chain services
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Chongqing Construction Automotive Air Automotive raw material and

%f’?;g?gj\%o)" Ld (TR AZRAE component supply chain services 1,096,348.19 500,596.96
Changan Mazda Automobile Sales Branch(& Automotive raw material and 856.046.21 i
ZHBEARMESNE) component supply chain services e
Chongqing Construction Tongda Industrial Automotive raw material and
Co.,Ltd. (ZBAZAETEAMRAE) component supply chain services 831,567.44 319,607.68
Construction Industry Group (Yunnan) Co., Automotive raw material and 797 217.28 i
Ltd (% T £ EB(E@)RMmAMA3)  component supply chain services e
Nanjing Baosteel Zhushang Metal Products . .
. N Automotive raw material and
< ZEARAT T AN B A 7
(;,JO)" Ltd. (& o SUSRAE T 28 W oo A7 IR component supply chain services 580,311.27 4,102,063.35
Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and
(% 7 B & iR 3R A FRAF)) component supply chain services 225,09.36 257,600.46
Harbin Dong’an Automotive Power Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and
CERMFARLALE N RAA R E]) component supply chain services 215,121.37 783,056.62
Chongqing Dajiang Jiexin Forging Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and 90 750.94 20 112.91
(F B KT BEAZ 4 A TN 3]) component supply chain services e e
Chengdu Lingchuan Automotive Fuel Tank Automotive raw material and 5789416 550285
Co., Ltd. (RARE ) & A h 46 A FRA F]) component supply chain services e e
Longchang Shanchuan Machinery Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and 5697202 51007.29
(F& 3L N AR TR FTAE N E]) component supply chain services e A
Mianyang Wanzhong Auto Parts Co., Ltd. Automotive raw material and
(4815 % FARA RN ) component supply chain services 52,924.67 40.841.66
Nanyang Lida Optoelectronics Co., Ltd. (& Automotive raw material and
% )i 6 E A TR 48]) component supply chain services 44,056.62 35,896.24
Chenzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (R B A # A Automotive raw material and
[R2-3]) component supply chain services 43,860.00 11,390.00
Chongging Changan Smart City Operation . .
and Management Co., Ltd. (& & & 2% B3% com?gf”?ewt() ;:Y;p:;VZhrgﬁfesré?\l/iigg 43,067.89 -
AR & E A TR 4])
Chengdu Jialing Huaxi Optics Precision . .
> . Automotive raw material and
Machinery Co., Ltd. (R AR &k £ B L L4 - - 16,823.31 44,397.28
A TR 7)) component supply chain services
Chongqing Hongyu Friction Products Co., Automotive raw material and 9.299 64 15.982.75
Ltd. (E B4 F BEEE A A E]) component supply chain services e R
Guizhou Wanfu Automobile Sales and Automotive raw material and
. pRA o5 2k ‘:;ﬁ N A
Service ?0-, Ltd. (M & 48 42452 IR T component supply chain services 6,557.13 3,174.76
A FRn-2])
Chongqing Anfu Automobile Marketing Co., Automotive raw material and 6.467 88 108617
Ltd. (& B %48 A 2 AT 8 A TR 4]) component supply chain services A e
Chonggqing Yihong Defense Technology Co., Automotive raw material and 5.660.39 353774
Ltd. (F 8 A 70 B %A HA TR F) component supply chain services A e
Anhui Wanyou Automobile Sales and Service Automotive raw material and
%0)" Ltd. (G AR 8 IR A IR component supply chain services 4,021.38 i
Beijing Baiwang Changfu Automobile Sales A . .
. . - utomotive raw material and
and Service Co., Ltd. (3t % & B & 48 4 £ 4% - . 4,015.07 -
1 A A 4]) component supply chain services
Chuxiong Wanfu Automobile Sales and . .
. - N Automotive raw material and
Ak CANA SPES . -
Service Ejo., Ltd. (% 4 3% 484 2 4515 IRF component supply chain services 2,807.46 192.65
A FRn-2])
Yunnan Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service . .
- Automotive raw material and
g 234 & 4E4E A : ;
%O)" Ltd. (% v %48 5 85 B IRAF A TRA component supply chain services 2,28041 420.14
Beijing North Changfu Automobile Sales . .
Co., Ltd. (b7 A7 FAf A 248 AT g4z Automotive raw material and 2,007.42 96.41

component supply chain services
A 8)) p pply
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Chengdu Wanyou Automobile Trade Service
Co., Ltd. (AR 8 A A H MR A TR E))
Dali Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service
Co., Ltd. (R %43 A 264 E R A R
a])

Chongqing Wanyou Longrui Automobile
Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& B ¥ A FE7#
AR E R A TR 48))

Chongqing Anbo Automobile Sales Co., Ltd.
(E B2 ARHERRNS)

Guizhou Wanjia Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (F M & 1 4. 2 452 R F
A FRn-8])

China Changan Automobile Group Tianjin
Sales Co., Ltd. (F Bl k%4 £ £ B X E5H
B A R 48)

Chengdu Wanxing Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (a4} & 2 4. 2 452 IR A%
H R E])

Honghe Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service
Co., Ltd. (4077 ¥ 48 /4 2 45 & JRAG A PR
a])

Baoding Changan Bus Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. (ff k%% $ A [ 4])
Jiangling Motors Holdings Limited(;x 4 4=
JEA R 3])

Chongqing Changan Special Purpose Vehicle
Co., Ltd. (£ e k% & A S A B 4)
Chengdu Ningjiang Zhaohe Automotive Parts
Co., Ltd. (RARF /L B8 Ao 4 B T4 A7 PR
a])

Chengdu Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (/x4
L EA FREAEAF)

Chongging Construction Industry (Group)
Co,Ltd. (ZRx Tk (£8) ARFME
24])

Hunan Tianyan Machinery Co., Ltd. (341 & X
JRAEWA FREALAE])

Minsheng International Container Transport
Co., Ltd. (KA B B R A4 B A IR 8])
Dehong Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service
Co., Ltd. (&% % 42 14 2 44 & IR A PR
a])

Hubei 295 Technology Co., Ltd. (#1 3b =7
A FA R E])

Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd. (e9)1] &
Z T ¥R RFAELN )

Chengdu Huachuan Denso Co., Ltd. (5% #k #
NEEA AR E])

Anhui Jian’an Chassis System Co., Ltd. (%
B RAE R G RIFTAE 3)

Nanyang Lida Optoelectronics Co., Ltd. (&
5 A i LT A &)

Chongqing Construction Transmission
Technology Co., Ltd. (¥ & &% A4 ShH A
[R2>5])

Chengdu Lingchuan Automotive Fuel Tank
Co., Ltd. (AARFE )] )R i 45 A FR AN 8])

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Automotive raw material and
component supply chain services

Sales of automotive parts
packaging materials

Sales of automotive parts
packaging materials

Sales of automotive parts
packaging materials

Sales of automotive parts
packaging materials

Sales of automotive parts
packaging materials

Sales of automotive parts
packaging materials

102

1,777.79

1,146.15

902.78

533.45

468.81

334.33

161.45

26.78

-102,440.12

77,693,666.36

15,948,765.49

1,866,686.03

251,358.76

32,000.00

876.37

2,598.92

155.17

218.66

11.93

18.43

16,308,693.98

35,547,241.13

896,230.19

182,120.91

103,950.00

30,535.00

24,659.88

953.21

803.88

552.99

18,935,112.53

3,311,400.09

536,000.00

33,750.00
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Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %43 %4
A TR E))

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(B RZARRA R )

Chongging Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(B RZARRA R )

Avita Technology (Chongqing) Co., Ltd. (FT
BEAMF (EB) ARAE)

Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (7 4t
FZA R AR E])

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %43 %4
B R E])

Chongqing Changan Automobile
International Sales Service Co., Ltd. (£ &k
AR B R4 B RS A TR F])
Chongqing Changan Property Management
Co., Ltd. (£ & T kLW £ 5 HA RN F)

Automobile tire packaging
Automobile tire packaging
Other
Other
Other

Other

Rent

Rent

279,576,204.70

2,888,759.60

22,905,085.52

1,343,971.69

390,500.00

389,919.03

1,427,418.76

311,012,554.69

121,559.63

72,269.73

The pricing of services provided by the company to customers is mainly driven by the market. The
price of outsourced logistics services is often determined through internal price comparison, while the
price of newly outsourced logistics services is often determined through bidding.

(2) Rental with related party
(D The Company as tenant

Rental expense

Rental expense

Landlord Type oflasset; payable in payable in prior
ease current year year
C\hongqing{Minsheng Integrated Logistics Co., Ltd. (& B R A &6 Factory building 1,805,311.36 498,980.57
A TR 8])
Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd. (&% % B i& A2 A R F) Factory building 662,117.77
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %42 454, & A FELA-9]) Factory building 716,188.23 2,583,604.62
Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (77 Jb& 2242 A FR A 4]) Land 30,951.00 20,525.40
Chongging Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd. (£ /& &3 A2 A RN F)) Site 1,636,136.32

Right-of-use assets newly added by The Company as a lessee in the current year:

Landlord Type of assets Increase Inc.rease in
leased prior year

Chongging Minsheng Integrated Logistics Co., Ltd. (¥ & K. 4 43 o )

LW A P 8] Factory building 9,301,246.10

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %43 442 A o 3]) Factory building - 3,239,673.08

Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (7] db & 24 & A FEL - 8]) Land 89,453.23 -

Interest expenses of lease liabilities incurred by the Company as a leasee:

Landlord

Type of assets

Interest expense

Interest expense

leased for this period in prior period
Chongging Minsheng Integrated Logistics Co., Ltd. (& & K & 45 4 oo )
M R 3]) Factory building 331,164.65 62,217.36
Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd. (&% % B i& A2 A R 4) Factory building - 17,739.48
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %48 454 & A TR 48]) Factory building 3,747.31 59,331.90
Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (7 4t & 24, & A FE A 8]) Land 927.63 540.38
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(3) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are responsible for formulating strategic goals, business plans,
commanding and scheduling production and operation activities, mainly including the chairman,
directors, board secretary, general manager, chief accountant, financial director, deputy general
manager in charge of various affairs, and personnel performing similar functions.

The Company has 15 key management personnel in the current period and 18 key management
personnel in the previous period. The salary payment is shown on the table below:

Item Current year Prior year

Remuneration of key management personnel 10,382,980.94 10,137,315.37

(4) Other related party transactions
Deposits with related party

Item Amount of deposit Deposit interest rate

China South Industries Group Finance Co., Ltd. . .

(o 35 45 4 45 ) R TR AL A 1) 188,131,908.68 0.10%-1.55%
Interest income

Item Current year Prior year

China South Industries Group Finance Co., Ltd.

(e 35 45 1 2 18 B3 TR AL A 2)) 2,989,401.67 3,249,960.82
Dividend income

Item Current year Prior year

China South Industries G Fi Co., Ltd.

EH:\? J:Ol,l . n LIS? 1€S I'-(::lp gle‘mce (0] ) 2,435,62328

(% B8 M0 R W B85 A PR FTAE N 4))
Factoring services

Item Current year Prior year

China South Industries Group Commercial

Factoring Co., Ltd. (P B £ £ 24 EH & £14% 12,000,000.00 -

78 A7 [R /N 4])
6. Receivables and payables with related parties

(1) Receivables from related parties
Closing balance Beginning balance
Provision
Ttem Related party Book balance for bad book balance bad debt
debts reserves

. Chongqing Changan Automobile Co.,
Accounts receivable Ltd, (% 5 £ 405 B WAy A A 31 526,730,962.56  6,106,035.99 240,898,321.99  5,626,936.99

Accounts receivable Deep Blue Automobile Sales
(Chongging) Co., Ltd. (R E A 2452  181,718,203.17 145,374.56
(k) AR )
Accounts receivable Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch(& %48 4542 A TR 94,071,301.19 75,257.04

28] A 5 8])
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Closing balance

Beginning balance

Item Related par Provision
party Book balance for bad book balance bri(sie(li'fflz:
debts
Accounts receivable Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(7 e B2 A AT A ) 73,927,241.28 59,250.10  62,909,799.84 62,937.30
Accounts receivable Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (&%
A ) 53,314,850.03 411,489.99  244,143,109.73 698,985.29
Accounts receivable Changan Mazda Automobile Sales
Branch( 4t £ i 74,8 45/ 9/ 4]) 43,235,694.67 52,357.82 - -
Accounts receivable Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(AR e 32 2B AT A ) 42,292,367.43 42,626.75  31,806,598.65 32,683.29
Accounts receivable Nanjing Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. () % £ 40 A 5 A TR 9]) 36,309,936.85 29,047.95  26,958,214.86 26,958.21
Accounts receivable Avita (Chongqing) Automotive Sales
and Service Co., Ltd. (743 (£ 35,164,387.23 28,131.51 - -
B) AR SR IR RN E])
Accounts receivable Deep Blue Automotive Technology
Co., Ltd. (£ 8 74,8 A4 A 3]) 30,997,302.98 25,781.08 141,631,739.67 635,142.20
Accounts receivable Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd.
(Fde b B i AR A A 3]) 30,409,220.39 24,327.38  56,330,621.38 56,330.62
Accounts receivable Changan Ford Automobile Co., Ltd.
Sales Branch( & %48 45 4 2 A (R 8] 10,689,862.11 78,963.95 - -
SHAE 5 a])
Accounts receivable Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd.
(v9 1] 42 T3 A P F AR 3]) 10,611,732.56 20,273.98  19,304,925.02 23,118.52
Accounts receivable Anhui Jian’an Chassis System Co.,
Ltd. (R %Rk 2 BA FRFTAEL 6,742,591.57 5,470.77 3,069,004.01 3,069.01
3])
Accounts receivable Chongging Changan Automobile
Customer Service Co., Ltd. (Z k& 6,664,646.95 5331.72  13,230,904.89 13,230.90
AR E P IRAS A R 3])
Accounts receivable Avita Technology (Chongqing) Co.,
Ltd. (M4 A4 (58) A A 4) 6,129,343.39 4917.77 524,575.40 524.57
Accounts receivable Chongqing Qingshan Industrial Co.,
Ltd. (& b T3 A R 42 3]) 6,089,612.39 4,871.69 4,571,148.93 4,571.15
Accounts receivable Chengdu Huachuan Denso Co., Ltd.
RAR | B A A T B AL 7)) 5,833,808.49 179,174.16 3,157,105.37 41,031.77
Accounts receivable IMC(iZ 853 3 R A TR 8)) 5,641,854.26 4,513.48 2,945,188.79 2,945.19
Accounts receivable Chenzhi (Chongqing) Brake System
Co., Ltd. (k% (ZTH) #FEAEALA 4,667,661.59 442,657.94 - -
R 2])
Accounts receivable Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd.
Chongging Jian’an Chassis System ) )
Branch(vg )i 2 4 T % 4 FRFAL A 3] 4,240,627.83 3,432.82
TR ERRE RGN )
Accounts receivable Chongging Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. Beijing Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (5 f 22 15 A A P 4] b 4,233,153.46 3,421.35 4,943,842.51 17,419.60
mREARENE])
Accounts receivable Era Changan Power Battery Co., Ltd. ) i
(R 2B ) B TR 3]) 4,201,536.84 19,747.22
Accounts receivable Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. Power
System Branch( & %4 454 3 A FR 2 2,265,760.55 1,812.61 - -
A # ) R H e E)
Accounts receivable Chongqing Lingyao Automobile Co., 192910298 154328 679.748.09 679.75

Led. (B84 LR A A 3)
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Item

Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Chongqing Wanyou Zunda
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd. Shaanxi Branch(& & ¥ & %% 4
B EHE IR R 5] PR TG 5 8])
Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd.
Dingzhou Jian’an Axle Branch(z )|
REIEARAENNEMNEZE
5%~ 8])

Chongqing Changan Kaicheng
Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. (&
B B HAL IR P AT PR 8])
Changan Mazda Engine Co., Ltd. (&
ZH A EEBHEA TR E))
Chongqing Shangfang Automotive
Parts Co., Ltd. (£ B L7 A £ B4R
FRFAE2 )

Chengdu Wanyou Filter Co., Ltd. (/&
AR AR AR TR F])

Southern Intel Air Conditioning Co.,
Ltd. (v 77 3E4F 2 A R 8])
Chenzhi (Chongqing) Brake System
Co., Ltd. Nanjing Branch(/& 3% (&
B) H B ARG NG R E)
China Changan Automobile Group
Co., Ltd. Ya’an Chassis System
Branch(¥ B £ % 4.4 18 4 T 4
T2 R MR G5 F)

Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan
Machinery Co., Ltd. (w9 )1] 7 2.4 )|
HARA FRAAE 2 3])

Faurecia (Chongqing) Automotive
Parts Co., Ltd. Nanjing Branch(# &
B (ER) ARIRIEA RS BT
2 8])

Chongqing Wanyou Zunda
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd. Jiangsu Branch( & & & A& %% 4
P EHE R PR B ILER 5 )
Hubei Xiaogan Huazhong Automotive
Lamp Co., Ltd. (# b2 g% & 205
A R 8])

Chongqing Huxi Motor Industry Co.,
Ltd. (Z &R EEHK T EA RFEL
3])

Harbin Dong’an Automotive Engine
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (& /& R &
AR E IR A RN F)
Chongqing Construction Transmission
Technology Co., Ltd. (& B & %1% %)
AHEA TR 2)

Hubei Huazhong Marelli Automotive
Lighting Co., Ltd. (#0423 + & 72 4
AR BB A TR E])

Zhongqi Chuangzhi Technology Co.,
Ltd. (F A 47 AR TR 8)
Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (K. A%
A R 3])
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1,213,917.25

972,660.42

914,139.29

830,792.31

822,400.13

665,809.25

581,408.84

568,133.87

564,123.36

474,736.85

456,167.00

396,158.15

389,625.29

352,064.74

305,558.31

289,775.09

200,422.83

164,330.08

116,700.00

971.13

77813

731.31

664.63

657.92

3,646.52

465.13

45451

451.30

379.79

364.93

316.93

11,549.11

281.65

24465

231.82

81,194.33

772.35

93.36

182,692.77

1,080,407.04

391,170.87

712,232.25

190,304.48

3,551,424.50

484,276.72

392,060.04

2,407,660.38

182.69

1,080.41

1,622.71

68,579.77

190.30

474,446 44

16,688.17

392.24

77,756.59



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Item

Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Chongqing Dajiang Jiexin Forging
Co., Ltd. (& B XITBAZ A FR
3])

Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan
Machinery Co., Ltd. Longchang
Shock Absorber Branch( e )i 3 iz.L
I HEARAT FRFTAE 2N 3 5 B Rk 5 2
s 8])

Baoding Changan Bus Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (R 2R ZE S WEA RN
a])

Chongging Changan Xing Automobile
Co., Ltd. (& B K ZAT AR A RA3])
Construction Industry Group (Yunnan)
Co,Ltd. (% L% %£® (Th) K
WA Fn 3])

Chongging Changan Chelian
Technology Co., Ltd. Jinhua
Branch(& & & % $ Bt AH A R4 9]
EE 5N F])

Chongqing Wanyou Zunda
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Lid. (&% A G & AL ERAA
[ 2])

Nanyang Lida Optoelectronics Co.,
Ltd. (d 5 #liE L E A R F])
Chongging Construction Automotive
Air Conditioner Co., Ltd. (& B #&3%
A E A EAR REALNF)
Chongqing Construction
Electromechanical Co., Ltd. (& & &
JHE A AL E])

Chongging Changan Chelian
Technology Co., Ltd. (£ & & 4 & 5
FHEA R )

Chongging Changan Chelian
Technology Co., Ltd. Jiaxing

Branch( & & + % $ Bt AHEOA R 5]
BN E])

Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts
Co., Ltd. Haining Branch( & 7 # & &
AR IR RN 8] i N F))
Harbin Dong’an Automotive Power
Co., Ltd. (@& RZA LI KM
H s 8])

Chongging Changan Chelian
Technology Co., Ltd. Ningbo
Branch( & & & % & B A3 A [R5
TN E])

Mianyang Wanzhong Auto Parts Co.,
Ltd. (4315 & R A BA R FAEAF))
Jiangsu Wanyou Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (& & A A 24512
R Ay TR 4])

Chongqing Wanyou Economic
Development Co., Ltd. Hechuan
Branch( £ & % A 487 35 A R AE

28] AN 5 4F])
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105,827.83

100,457.67

96,117.36

88,368.99

86,015.01

85,144.50

74,026.23

66,160.00

54,858.70

43,105.49

42,014.80

36,969.66

36,095.32

31,130.00

29,160.00

15,996.58

15,760.00

12,974.00

58,506.76

100,457.67

55,927.07

70.70

68.81

68.12

59.22

742.73

43.89

43,105.49

33.61

29.58

28.88

24.90

23.33

5,790.45

12.61

29.92

63,614.23

96,117.36

3,060,432.18

3,000.00

7,283.93

43,105.49

147,587.00

42,683.99

58,474.48

516.80

3,060.44

3.00

7.28

43,105.49

147.59



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Item

Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Chenzhi (Chengdu) Intelligent
Suspension Co., Ltd. (/&2 (m#R)
S BG4 ﬁpg/A )

Chongqing Wanyou Economic
Development Co., Ltd. Hechuan
Gravity Branch( & ¥ A BB EH
FALN 8 BN 5] ) 5 8])
Yangzhou Suken Galaxy Connecting
Rod Co., Ltd. (351 8k B4R T i AT A
MR 2])
Minsheng International Container
Transport Co., Ltd. (& 24 B B 4 4 45
& AT T ‘;])

Chongging Wanyou Economic
Development Co., Ltd. Changshou
Automobile Trade City Branch(Z &
BRI RA R ENE R FA
H 3o 8])

Chongqing Wanyou Economic
Development Co., Ltd. Nan’an
Branch(Z & %, )ii‘“ A R

28] v BB 5 E])

Chengdu Lingchuan Automotive Fuel
Tank Co., Ltd. (RARB £ 0 w48 A
M2 4))

Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts
Co., Ltd. Nanjing Branch( & 7 #h & &
LR SRR TR B) ) T 4 E))
Guizhou Wanfu Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (¥ M & 484 245
ABFS A R 3])

China South Industries Group
Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. (*f
KRR MER T EREARNE)
Chonggqing Yihong Defense
Technology Co., Ltd. (& & 3.
FHEA R )

Chongqing Anfu Automobile
Marketing Co., Ltd. (& B %48 4247
SKA RN 5))

Changan Ford New Energy Vehicle
Sales and Service (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (& %48 437 ik R A2 45 & IR FF
GEIN) AR 4)
Chongging Wanyou Chengxing
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd. Yubei Branch( £ B & A 34T 4
PG AE IR R B i A5 8])
Guizhou Wanjia Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (%M & 24 452
RS A TR 3])
Anhui Wanyou Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (Z# 8 A4 24542
RS A TR 3])
Yunnan Wanfu Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (& & & 4814 24512
RS A TR 3])

35Ty
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11,517.58

6,030.00

4,754.40

4,200.00

2,632.00

1,977.00

1,867.81

1,816.56

1,438.00

1,195.26

1,000.00

939.00

394.00

346.00

301.00

260.00

221.00

9.21

4.82

4,551.86

4,200.00

9.21

2.78

6.54

1.45

1.15

1,195.26

0.80

0.75

394.00

0.28

0.24

0.21

0.18

4,754.40

4,200.00

43,970.52

662.00

1,195.26

88.00

394.00

29.00

2,806.52

4,200.00

43.97

0.87

1,195.26

0.09

358.15

0.03



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Item

Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Beijing Baiwang Changfu Automobile
Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (it % & iE
Fo B AR 5B IR AT TR 3))
Chongging Wanyou Longrui
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd. (£ & % A e 808 A
FR/-4])

Chongqing Anbo Automobile Sales
Co., Ltd. (Z & A E AR
3])

Dali Wanfu Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (K2 &84 £ 45
AR TR )

Chuxiong Wanfu Automobile Sales
and Service Co., Ltd. (# # % 434, &
S JRAS A T F])

Beijing North Changfu Automobile
Sales Co., Ltd. Changzhi Branch(4t %%
b kAR AR EA RN K
B4 E])

Beijing North Changfu Automobile
Sales Co., Ltd. Jingnan Changfu
Branch(Jdb 7 b 7 &k 424 £ 45 E A TR
FENE] KR4z 5N 4E)

Honghe Wanfu Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (407 & 48 4. 2 452
SRS TR 5))

China Changan Automobile Group
Tianjin Sales Co., Ltd. (¥ B & %4
S RASEARNE])

Chenzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (& %
FHHA PR )

Jiangling Motors Holdings Limited(’=
I A TR 8])

Shenzhen Minsheng Jiefukai Logistics
Co., Ltd. (R R A3 F 9L A
- 8])

Faurecia (Chongqing) Automotive
Parts Co., Ltd. (h & = (£ ) A%
AR RN E])

Nanjing Baosteel Zhushang Metal
Products Co., Ltd. (# % F4E 5 &
B L S A PR 8])

Hangzhou Changhe Anji Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (4t M & &% &
Ak JE 4k PR RN F])

Chongqing Changan Automobile
International Sales Service Co., Ltd.
(FBRZAR B B4 E R A TR
3])

Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts
Co., Ltd. (¥ 77 & B4 2 3R 4HA TR
- E])

Chongqing Chemei Technology Co.,
Ltd. (F B % Ao £ A A R E)
Chongqing Construction Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd. (Z T % (£
H) A RFAEAE)
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219.00

101.00

89.00

59.00

49.00

37.00

34.00

29.00

15.00

0.10

49,430,643.19

1,319,874.95

0.18

0.08

0.07

0.05

0.04

0.03

0.03

0.02

0.01

0.00

25,197,473.99

6,203.41

86.00

188.00

73.00

31.00

12,415.10

56,298,407.11

3,428,744.25

1,268,597.69

951,065.47

835,182.13

352,986.04

67,301.06

51,604.00

50,000.00

0.09

0.21

0.07

0.03

12.42

37,804,381.76

4,911.04

1,268.60

951.07

835.18

904.93

67.31

51.60

50,000.00



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Item

Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Changan Automobile Finance Co.,
Ltd. (A2 2 aA R F)
Chonggqing Wanyou Chengxing
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd. (£ & & ABITALHE RS A
MR 3])

Chonggqing Changfeng Jiquan
Machinery Co., Ltd. (& & & B k&
AR A RN )

China Changan Automobile Group
Co., Ltd. (¥ B & %A% 8 A MR
Chonggqing Changjiang Electric
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Z & & =&
T T EEBARNE)

Guizhou Wanyou Automobile Sales
and Service Co., Ltd. (5 M ¥ A &A%
S JRAS A T F])

Chengdu Wanyou Automobile Trade
Service Co., Ltd. (AHR & ALK IRFH
A PR 8])

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (&%
AT AR R )

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch(f&k %48 454, & # &
S RN 5 8])

Chongging Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (& A3 B A IR 3])
Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd.
(k%% AEARATRNE)
Changan Mazda Automobile Sales
Branch(&% % A #E AR E 5 48)
Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(B Rk %A A R 3])

Nanjing Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. () F R LA R A R 9])
Changan Ford New Energy Vehicle
Technology Co., Ltd. (& %48 45%7 fit
BB AT HA TR F])

Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd.
(w4 T A RFAENF)
Chongqing Qingshan Industrial Co.,
Ltd. (B b T A RFAELA)
China South Industries Group
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (f B £ %
HHEERAAE A EIEAE])
China Changan Automobile Group
Co., Ltd. Ya’an Chassis System
Branch(¥ B & %4 & 8 A [R5
He 2 R AR R BN E])

Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(T Ak %A A R 8])

Changan Ford Automobile Co., Ltd.
Sales Branch(+& %48 4F 4, & A 2 4
S 58]
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142,767,929.37

47,518,178.61

37,171,124.19
17,949,653.15
13,912,219.97
13,036,022.05

7,767,581.00

4,375,994.30

4,163,109.71

3,809,652.66

2,836,845.12

2,043,222.72

1,872,887.50

1,175,018.71

129,124.90

38,014.54

29,736.90
14,359.72
11,129.78
10,428.82

6,214.06

3,500.80

3,330.49

3,047.72

2,269.48

1,634.58

1,498.31

940.01

46,000.00

20,562.18

12,753.39

12,229.80

9,000.00

7,326.00

277.00

78,288,609.15

32,039,278.79

6,841,075.18

12,438,398.59

2,725,526.01

2,968,626.64

6,551,965.46

1,666,050.40

46.00

20.56

7,528.33

12.23

5,312.70

7.32

0.41

87,474.05

32,039.28

6,841.08

12,438.40

2,7125.52

2,968.63

6,551.97

1,666.05



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Item

Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Chongging Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. Beijing Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (& B k&R R R A TR 8] b
wREARENE)

IMC(ix 85153 Rt A IR 4])
Changan Mazda Engine Co., Ltd. (&
25 A EEHEA RN E))

Anhui Jian’an Chassis System Co.,
Ltd. (o2 kM R A IRFELD
a])

Chongging Changan Automobile
International Sales Service Co., Ltd.
(ZERZARERHERSEA R
3])

Hubei Xiaogan Huazhong Automotive
Lamp Co., Ltd. (#14b 2 &%+ 245
A FR8])

Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd.
Chongging Jian’an Chassis System
Branch(wg )1 2 % T 3 4 IR H AL 5]
TRIELRER G NE)

Guizhou Wanyou Automobile Sales
and Service Co., Ltd. (¥ M & A4 %
BB RIS A R F])

Chongging Wanyou Zhicheng
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd. (£ 5 & AR A R ERBA
R 4])

Era Changan Power Battery Co., Ltd.
(FFREZE A E A R )
Chongging Wanyou Economic
Development Co., Ltd. (& & & A 4&
AR R E])

Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts
Co., Ltd. Haining Branch( & 7 #h & &
AR SR TR B 5N E])
Chengdu Huachuan Denso Co., Ltd.
ORARFE ) B HRA R )
Chongging Changan Chelian
Technology Co., Ltd. Ningbo
Branch( & B & % % BAHHA R 8]
EIR N E])

Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (K 2 %
A5 R PR 8])

Chongqing Anbo Automobile Sales
Co., Ltd. (£ B2 AR E A R
a])

Chongqing Construction Automotive
Air Conditioner Co., Ltd. (£ & 2%
PR = BA FREAENF)

Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan
Machinery Co., Ltd. (w9 )] & izl )1
BARA TR FTAE A F])

Hangzhou Changan Yixing
Technology Co., Ltd. (4%} & % B 47
A R )

111

976,173.46

910,501.17
713,916.39

556,136.05

265,000.00

262,272.36

208,451.56

111,148.00

87,445.87

78,783.82

65,874.30

50,658.33

32,417.19

20,186.32

14,000.91

13,769.48

9,331.28

5,029.00

2,391.31

780.94

728.40
571.13

44491

212.00

209.82

166.76

88.92

69.96

370.28

52.70

40.53

25.93

16.15

11.20

11.02

147

4.02

1.91

704,010.86

8,494,667.54
1,214,707.30

119,000.00

88,202.75

537,541.36

14,048.18

18,760.00

7,283.93

8,760.00

704.01

1,214.71

119.00

88.20

537.54

14.05

18.76

7.28

8.76



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Item Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Chongqing Changan Chelian
Technology Co., Ltd. Jinhua
Branch(® £ 4 & B AHLA A 3]
235N F)
Chongging Construction Tongda
Contract assets Industrial Co., Ltd. (£ B #% 4% %
EA RN E])
Deep Blue Automotive Technology
Co., Ltd. (R & A £ AHELA TR 4])
Chonggqing Lingyao Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (Z B4R AL A R F])
Baoding Changan Bus Manufacturing
Contract assets Co., Ltd. (R 2 kX ZE P HEAH R
a])
Hefei Changan Yixing Technology
Contract assets Co., Ltd. (A fe &% TAT A H A TR
a])
Chongqing Construction Transmission
Contract assets Technology Co., Ltd. (& & & %1% %)
FHEA R )
Southern Faurecia Automotive Parts
Contract assets Co., Ltd. (a7 #h & B iR £ 34 A TR
s 8])
Southern Intel Air Conditioning Co.,
Ltd. () 7 345 = A [ 8])
Nanyang Lida Optoelectronics Co.,
Ltd. (%5 #4) & £ E A TR F))
Deep Blue Automotive Technology
Co., Ltd. (iR B /AR A HA TR 8])
Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(et gA R A TN d)
China South Industries Group Human
Prepayment Resources Development Center(
EBEMER AN TRAEF W)
Southern Industrial Technology
Prepayment Trading Co., Ltd. (g 7 T (M #HEF H
H s 8])
Chongging Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (£ B &2 B H IR 48])
Chengdu Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd.
(BRARFr ol B A FRFTAE 2 4))
Chongqing Changan Automobile
International Sales Service Co., Ltd.
(F B k% AS B IR E RFFA R
a])
Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(B le k&R RA RN d)
China South Industries Group Human
Prepayment Resources Development Center(
K BEMER AN TRHAEF )
Chonggqing Changan Automobile
International Sales Service Co., Ltd.
(F B R %A B 448 TR A TR
a])
Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd.
(R&BHAEARAMRAE)

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets
Contract assets
Prepayment

Prepayment

Prepayment

Prepayment

Prepayment

Prepayment

Prepayment

Other receivables

112

1,426.42

776.96

5,319,673.96

324,793.07

112,590.00

68,503.00

43,403.34

29,798.19

7,620.00

5,591,281.28

1.14

0.62

56.95

34.72

2.51

114,782.88

10,587.23

3,018,002.10

345,156.92

108,586.53

57,804.00

51,563.18

30,936.75

22,500.01

1,300.01

43,403.34

508,494.25

18,600.00

12,540.00

11,541,281.28

10.58

3,018.00

345.16

108.59

57.80

51.56

30.94

22.50

1.30

43,403.34

14.88

12.66

121,043.93



Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Item

Related party

Closing balance

Book balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Chongging Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (F Bk 2 A SR A R 4])
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (&%
A8 AR A TR 8])

Changan Ford Automobile Co., Ltd.
Sales Branch( & %43 4§14, & 4 R 8]
SHE 5N 3])

Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan
Machinery Co., Ltd. (29 )1l % =L )|
HBARA FRFTAE 2 4])

Nanjing Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (8 TR LA LA RA9])
Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(TR &AL A )

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. Power
System Branch(+& 4% 4§48 A FR 2
A #h ) R H e E)

Chongqing Lingyao Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (& 40 S A R 3])
Chongqing Minsheng Comprehensive
Logistics Co., Ltd. (&£ R A 4%
A TR 3])

Baoding Changan Bus Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (#f & k% % 2 2 A TR
a])

Nanjing Baosteel Zhushang Metal
Products Co., Ltd. (# XX RAET &
B 3 e A TR 8])

Southern Industrial Technology
Trading Co., Ltd. (da 7 T A4 E 5
H [ 8])

Shanghai Minsheng Shipping Co.,
Ltd. (L& R ASBASH R F])

Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.
(S le k2R R A RN E])

Chongging Changan Chelian
Technology Co., Ltd. (& B & % & 5
FHEA R 4)

Deep Blue Automotive Technology
Co., Ltd. (/R 8 4 £ AHEA TR 2])
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch(& 443 454 £ A R
8 R 5 E))

Chonggqing Ante Import and Export
Trading Co., Ltd. (£ 245 h o ¥
5 A TR 8))

Avita Technology (Chongqing) Co.,
Ltd. (FT#EH3 (£ &) AR )
Harbin Dong’an Automotive Engine
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (% & £ %
AP HE BB AR R 3])
Chonggqing Changan Smart City
Operation and Management Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch( & B & %% Z R
8 A TR B AL 2 8))
Hong Kong Minsheng Industrial Co.,
Ltd. (A% KA T EA RAAEN )
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Item

Closing balance

Provision
for bad
debts

Related party Book balance

Beginning balance

book balance

bad debt
reserves

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Chongqing Changan Industry (Group)
Co,Ltd (EAKk%&Tk (K@) A
FR AL E])

Chongging Construction Automotive
Air Conditioner Co., Ltd. (¥ B &%
2R ERAEAREAENF)

Chengdu Lingchuan Special Industry
Co., Ltd. (RARF ) 4448 TEH &
AE 2 4F])

Wuhan Shengde Rixin Automobile
Industry Park Co., Ltd. (X% &4 B - -
AR EERA R

Shenzhen Minsheng Jiefukai Logistics

Co., Ltd. G R4 3 F 9L 7 A T - -
A8

Changan Automobile Finance Co.,

Ltd. (K& AP 2RA RN )

Hangzhou Changhe Anji Supply Chain

Management Co., Ltd. (4t M & &% F - -
A R4k E B R )

Chongqing Qingshan Industrial Co.,

Ltd. (Aol T34 PR ACAE 2 )

Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd.

(w9 ) % T EATRFAEN )

Chongqing Wanyou Zunda

Automobile Sales and Service Co.,

Ltd (Z& & A FEALHERBA

[ 2])

Chongqing Changan Automobile Co.,

Ltd. Beijing Changan Automobile Co.,

Ltd. (& B k%A 2 B A TR 8] b

TREALNE)

Chongqing Changan Property

Management Co., Ltd. (£ & T k&4 - -
¥ E LA M E])

2,000.00 124.60
500.00 -

26.54 0.01

2,000.00

3,158,000.00

310,000.00

249,224.80

197,024.95

193,994.00

100,000.00

100,000.00

100,000.00

7,848.00

8.20

226,112.80

1,963.00

23,676.36

3,114.82

1,062.07

3,430.00

540.00

1,920.00

)

Payables to related parties

Item

Related party

Closing
balance

Beginning
balance

Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable

Accounts payable
Accounts payable

Accounts payable

Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (&, & 474 [ 4])

Chongqing Minsheng Comprehensive Logistics Co., Ltd. (& B K A 4% 644
A - a])

Hubei Hannan Port Industrial Co., Ltd. (¥ Jb3# d 35 £ A 1R 4])
Minsheng International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. ( &, 4 B B & 4 38 #y X, 32
A FRn-2])

Shanghai Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (_E# & & # A5 A FRA &)

Guangzhou Minsheng International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. (& M K. 4
P 8 R LA R 8])

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (f %48 454, & A R 8])

Tianjin Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd. (X K, & B s
R IA [ F])

Changan Mazda Automobile Co., Ltd. (&% % A Z A2 A TR F)

Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (7] 4t f& %%, £ A FEA-8])

Chongqing Wanyou Zunda Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. Shaanxi
Branch(# B % & F & (4,8 45 & M5 A (R 8] Bk 08 5> 8)

51,931,161.79
5,138,433.04
1,872,995.25
1,106,872.00
909,688.91
494,160.84
208,040.00
189,209.00

141,250.00
139,928.43

96,811.36

42,877,421.56
7,610,256.64

1,544,689.47
1,333,847.06
3,909.46
599,902.76
136,863.00

100,000.00
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Closing Beginning
Item Related party balance balance
. . . YR AE AE A% > \
Accounts payable Dglﬁgfl/l\ergg)lntemanonal Container Transport Co., Ltd. ( K. 4 B B 5% 44 i€ &y 67,162.73 195,970.19
I 9,
Accounts payable Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd. (w9 )1] &% T £ A R F /£ 8)) 53,974.79 1,350,634.64
Accounts payable Deep Blue Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. (if 2 4, & A4 A R 8)) 1,556,967.07
Accounts payable gl)enzhen Minsheng Jiefukai Logistics Co., Ltd. GE3| &, £ 3 5 9L A TR 2,917 415.26
3 3 b ST AE =1
Accounts payable S;l]?;/gg%l% Guoyuan Roll on/Roll off Terminal Co., Ltd. (£ & 3 B % % 75 38 2,595,137.80
I 9,
Accounts payable Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (K. 2 $ A5 B4 7 [ 8)) 2,200.00
T & N 3] 4
Contract liabilities ()jl%uiiljganjl;ord Motor Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Branch( & %24 4% 4. % A R 2 8] 41 2.719,371.67
A A=4
Contract liabilitics ?zhfil/gfr% l;ord Automobile Co., Ltd. Sales Branch(+& 44 4§ 14,2 74 [ ] 44 1152,239.78
/A
Contract liabilities Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& B & %4 & A TR 8) 700,419.96 124,907.65
Contract liabilities Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (¥ %42 %42 A FL8)) 305,951.07  3,254,065.92
S Chongqing Changan Automobile International Sales Service Co., Ltd. (& & &
Contract liabilities S B A AT A 4]) 203,019.57 159,479.00
Contract liabilities %;“fgg%‘;{g%‘; Automobile Customer Service Co., Ltd. (£ & &4 7713343 7235507
/AR
Contract liabilities Chengdu Huachuan Denso Co., Ltd. (5Z8 2 )| & £ A R H 4N ) 37,647.24 35,315.11
Contract liabilitics S:Jh)enzhi (Chongqing) Brake System Co., Ltd. (& 3( & &)%) $) & LA TR/ 35,163.03
Contract liabilitics E};c{l;u/a\nﬂl\l)mg]lang Shanchuan Machinery Co., Ltd. (29 )1 % /=y )| 48 A TR 15.047.47 0.88
/AR
Contract liabilities Chongging Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd. (& &3 A 2 A LA 3) 14,424.58 13,531.03
= ok =
Contract liabilitics ?;/o\n%]q)mg Shangfang Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. (£ B L7 A £ BM4A R A 3.447.97 5.203.96
FASA=S
. . iz 3k NN
Contract liabilities %I?;/gql_%li;ﬁl‘ling%r; Automobile Co., Ltd. Sales Company( & & & %4, & B 4p 2.377.36 2.230.09
A As? A As?
Contract liabilitics %ggsgﬁggjﬁ?lfg‘fs %“’“p Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. (" B % & % 1127.58 1,057.73
A A=4
s Chonggqing Anfu Automobile Marketing Co., Ltd. Maintenance Service
Contract liabilities Branch( & 224 4, % 47 $ 47 FR A 4] %{%ng;f PONEN 122.64
S Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan Machinery Co., Ltd. Longchang Shock
Contract Habilities s orber Branch(vs il 7 i i I B A7 B e 4222 31 B B 0845 2 9/ ) 0.94
NG,
Contract liabilities gl%nlg%ﬁan\lior(% /)%utomoblle Co., Ltd. Harbin Branch(+& &4 454, & A [/ ) 0.04
A A=4
Contract liabilities ~ Chengdu Wanyou Filter Co., Ltd. (B4R & A KA FEA 8)) 0.01 0.01
: : : st e = o .
Contract liabilities Sg?)enzhen Minsheng Jiefukai Logistics Co., Ltd. (R 3| K, & 3 & 9L A A s 127.713.58
Contract liabilities Chongging Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (£ & # .1 T (A FRE4EAF) 62,787.62
Contract liabilities (él]h)ongqing Anfu Automobile Marketing Co., Ltd. (& B 248 14, 24T 45 A TR 30000
. = 55 o 1%
Contract liabilities Beijing Nort}i Changfu Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. (b 7 4t 7 f 484 £ 454 46.90
A FRFAENE])
5 8 1
Contract liabilitics Dehong Wanfu Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (& % & #4814 & 451 IR 1858
Ay PR E])
S Chongqing Wanyou Longrui Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (£ & ¥
Contract liabilities R B AE R T 3] 16.81
Other payables Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd. (K. & 47 A R 8) 3,028,611.00  3,028,611.00
Chongqing Changan Smart City Operation and Management Co., Ltd. (£ &
Other payables P S D) 2,794,021.79
Other payables Chongqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (& B & &4 3 B Ap A [ 3]) 2,636,725.51  2,559,859.06
. . . . 5 T
Other payables %ﬁ;i\qg% Minsheng Comprehensive Logistics Co., Ltd. (& & K & 4 547 104373826  1,083738.26
Other payables Minsheng Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd. (K. & & £ (£ B)A LA 8) 633,386.09
Other payables Chongging Changan Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (¥ & k% &% T 601488.89 601488.89

TR E))
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Closing Beginning
Item Related party balance balance
Other payables Sichuan Jian’an Industrial Co., Ltd. (w9 )1 &% T XA R FAENF]) 429,417.79 405,204.60
Other payables Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (¥ %42 %42 A FL3)) 399,335.20
: £ o Y- 2 =
Other payables ?;/O\ngjq)lng Changan Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (£ B k% LT ((EB)A TR A 280,628.31
/SRS
Other payables Chongqing Lingyao Automobile Co., Ltd. (& 442 A £ A TR 3]) 21742990  1,636,136.32
Other payables l\i/lfi;lgilsnﬂg)lnternational Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. (K& 4 B B8 418 #r/X, 22 200500.00
/A
Chongqing Changan Smart City Operation and Management Co., Ltd. Sichuan
Oer payables  pranch( i f 2 47 S 18 8 5 A LA ) 52 9) 118,392.00
Other payables China South Industries Group Co., Ltd. (F B & ZEHEE A R F)) 112,241.70 110,362.74
Other payables Shanghai Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. (_Ei# K, & A5 R 8]) 100,000.00 100,000.00
Chongqing Changan Smart City Operation and Management Co., Ltd. Nanjing
Other payables Branch( & . 42 % 3 37 18 5 4 10 4 FR A 6] 1 7 54> 8]) 100,000.00
Other payables APLL Transportation (China) Co., Ltd. (& &4 & #r(F B)A R F) 89,838.41
China South Industries Group Automation Research Institute Co., Ltd. (*f B &
Other payables B A BT A A 3]) 84,00000
Other payables Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (7] Jbf %4, & A FR2 8]) 72,024.00 256,385.44
China South Industries Group Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. (7 B & £ % #
Other payables S 7 AR T 3] 62,465.76
Chongqing Anyi Automotive Technology Service Co., Ltd. (& B2 B4, & 4L
Other payables A A 3]) 55,107.00 131,157.60
Chongqing Changan Smart City Operation and Management Co., Ltd.
Other payables Hangzhou Branch( & & & %% 2387 18 & % 5 A PR 8 M FUN 4]) 53,559.39
Tianjin Minsheng International Shipping Agency Co., Ltd. (X% &, 4 B A5
Other payables AR I A A 4]) 50,000.00 50,000.00
Other payables Chongging Qingshan Industrial Co., Ltd. (£ & &0 T (A TR HAENF)) 48,275.00 58,670.42
Other payables Mianyang Wanzhong Auto Parts Co., Ltd. (4515 % % A8 A IR E A F) 34,927.94
China South Industries Group Human Resources Development Center( F B %
Other payables AR A R B A ) 31,600.00
Chongqmg Changan Property Management Co., Ltd. Ya’an Branch( £ & 7 &
Other payables Gy T AT PR 8 A G A 9]) 28,326.00
Other payables Hubei Hannan Port Industrial Co., Ltd. (#] t% & % F £ A R 8)) 21,605.91
. . > B 2
Other payables S;/eil%d)u Wanyou Automobile Trade Service Co., Ltd. (s %8 ¥ A48 IRFHH 20,706.85 20,706.85
JASA=S
Chonggqing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. Beijing Changan Automobile Co.,
Other payables Ltd. (B b £ 52 5 W i AT PR 3] Jb 7 o 22 2, 2 4]) 17,582.48 17,582.48
Other payables Southern Industrial Technology Trading Co., Ltd. (& 7 T %44 % & A RN 4) 8,526.42
Chongqing Changan Intelligent Industrial Technology Service Co., Ltd. (£ &
Other payables Fode s BT B AT A TR 3]) 2,826.05 2,826.05
Other payables Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. ( &2 A8 B TR/ 8]) 2,200.00
a P
Other payables l\éjh)nsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch( &, 2 #&#5 A FE o 8] L5 1,094.00
. : h;. & AR B
Other payables Chongqing Wanyou Economic Development Co., Ltd. (& B & A& F B EA 607.50 88050
R FAE 2 E])
Other payables Southern Intel Air Conditioning Co., Ltd. (& 7 345 % A FEA 9]) 500.00 500.00
Other payables h%i;;l:\er;)lntemational Container Transport Co., Ltd. (K, 2 B B 554 45 8 8y 400.00
Chongging Wanyou Zunda Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (£ & & A
Other payables ik B 2K A TR 3]) 294.61
Other payables I;Igu/belj))(laogan Huazhong Automotive Lamp Co., Ltd. (#1 4t % B3 & & )54 150.00 150.00
A A=4
Other payables Baoding Changan Bus Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (#% % & %% & 4% % 4 R 8)) 50.00 50.00
Other payables ?\h%n)gqmg Changfeng Jiquan Machinery Co., Ltd. (& B & B 2 4 4 4 A & 40.00 40.00
I 9,
Other payables Changan Automobile (Group) Co., Ltd. (& % & 2 (&£ E)H REFIELF) 12.00
Other payables Wanyou Automotive Investment Co., Ltd. (& A4 £ 4% & A PR F)) 0.06
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Item Related party g;?;li:;% Bsgi:::igg

Other payables Jiangling Motors Holdings Limited(iT 4442 I A FL 2 2)) - 5,790,723.17
Other payables Sé?;:nzhen Minsheng Jiefukai Logistics Co., Ltd. (G| K, & 32 & 9L 7 A (R 2,050,000.00
Other payables Sélz\rlé(])ing Changan Property Management Co., Ltd. (£ & T kW E£EHAH 1,546,004.17
Other payables Minsheng Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd. (KA T % (£8) AR d) - 1,052,786.60
Other payables China Weapon News Agency( ¥ B & 2 3 4t) - 428,398.87
Other payables g;gli\q;% Changan Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (£ B k%1% (£H) AR 280,628.31
Other payables }iefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (&8 & %A £ F PR ) - 174,133.49
Other payables APLL Transportation (China) Co., Ltd. (£ &7 E#H (FE) AHRNF) - 89,838.41
Other payables Minsheng Shipping Co., Ltd. ( &, 2 $& A5 A FR2- 8]) - 1,094.00
Other payables Changan Automobile (Group) Co., Ltd. (%42 (£H) FREFHEAE) - 12.00

XII. Share-based payments

1. Information about share-based payments

The stock appreciation incentive plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Plan”) of the Company was
approved by the shareholders’ meeting on 28 August 2020 and further revised and approved by the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China. The main purpose is to provide incentives for directors and eligible employees, and
it will expire on 27 April 2026. On 27 April 2021, the Company approved the issuance of 4,861,400
shares of underlying stock to 29 eligible employees, accounting for 3% of the total issued share capital
of the Company, which is 162,064,000 shares. The holders of stock appreciation rights may exercise
them in stages within two years from the date of grant. The rights granted to eligible employees shall
become effective after one-third of the term expires in each of the following three years.

Exercise Price: Determined by the directors of the Company at HKD 2.98. This is the closing price of
the Company’s H-shares listed on the stock exchange on the grant date (i.e., 27 April 2021) as quoted
in the daily quotation sheet of the stock exchange, which was HKD 2.98.

The stock appreciation rights granted under this plan are expected to be assessed and exercised
annually during the three accounting periods from 2021 to 2023. Performance appraisals and exercises
will be conducted annually, with the Company’s business performance objectives serving as the
vesting conditions.

The Company has granted stock appreciation rights and does not have any outstanding equity options
or other equity instruments at the end of the year.

As of 31 December 2024, none of the stock appreciation rights granted under the plan have been
exercised. The Company has not incurred any compensation expenses related to the stock appreciation
rights. Consequently, there are no liabilities recorded on the balance sheet attributable to the stock
appreciation rights.
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XIII. Commitments and contingencies

1. Significant commitments

Capital commitments

Capital commitments entered into but not

recognized in the financial statements Closing balance

Beginning balance

Commitment to the purchase of long-term assets

2,100,440.25

2. Contingencies

Potential liabilities arising from pending litigation and arbitration and their financial impact

s Cause of . Amount
Plaintiff Defendant action Accepting court involved in Progress of the case
the lawsuit
Chongqing Yangcheng . Chongqing
Qiqi Logistics Co., Ltd The Compan 5;32 uii;?:; Liangjiang New RMB Pending court
(ZEHARBLB Y AA pany lgon tracts Area People’s 1,000,000 judgment
[fR/-2]) Court
Shuangxing Dongfeng Warehouse Chongqing Pilot Shuanexing comparn
Tire Co., Ltd. (% 2 & The Company contract Free Trade Zone = RMB988,500 & 1 & 1 p };
JESh A R E]) dispute People’s Court 0s¢ a fawsut
Eg:;iag lzlsrifilczlﬁizn) CMAL Bo \_{u Factoring Chongqi_ng J iangbf,:i Pending court
L my o Transportation contract District People’s ~ RMB900,000 .
Co., Ltd (3% X @k &A1 Co.. Ltd dispute Court judgment
§ (mal) AR OO b
Sichuan Jiashun The Compan Disputes over Mingshan District Pendine court
Logistics Co., Ltd (m)1] pany transportation People’s Court, RMB876,400 1ng cou

and Ya’an Branch

/fi )’]g #ﬁ] mﬁb*]‘ Fg/A\ 57) contracts Ya’an Clty ]udgment

Note 1: Chongging Chuangpei Logistics Co., Ltd. (Chuangpei Logistics) signed a "Finished Vehicle
Road Transport Service Contract” with the company on 30 January 2019, and paid a deposit of
RMB 1 million to the company. The above business has been terminated in July 2021.
Chuangpei Logistics transferred its creditor’s rights to Chongqging Yangcheng Qigi Logistics
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Yangcheng Qiqi) on 19 August 2021. The effectiveness of
the transfer of the creditor’s rights has been confirmed by (2022) #r 8601 K47 315 5 and
(2023) ar 01 K% 2814 5 K. %= )+ . In the aforementioned cases, it was ruled that the
company should pay the freight to Yangcheng Qiqi, and the company will transfer the deposit
to Yangcheng Qiqi. made the payment, and YangCheng Qiqi sued the company for the refund

of the RMB 1 million deposit.

Note 2: On 14 May 2024, Shuangxing Dongfeng Tire Co., Ltd. filed a lawsuit with the People’s Court
of Chongqing Pilot Free Trade Zone, claiming that there were material differences during the
period of providing warehousing services to the company from 2015 to 2017, and demanded
that the company compensate for the difference in material payments of RMB 988,458.92. The
company received a court summons on 26 July 2024. On 24 January 2025, the first instance
judgment was received rejecting the lawsuit request of Double Star Tire. On 10 March 2025,
the appeal was rejected and the original judgment was upheld.
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Note 3: In May 2022, CMAL Bo Yu, a subsidiary of the Company, carried out the pharmaceutical
logistics and transportation project of Taiji Group, and in June 2022, its supplier Chongging
Honghua Shengan Pharmaceutical Logistics Co., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as “Honghua
Shengan”) applied for factoring financing of its accounts receivable by Broad Financial
Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as “Broad Leasing”). In December
2022, due to the poor operation and management of Honghua Sheng’an, Yuanda Leasing has
not yet repaid the arrears of Yuanda Leasing, thus Yuanda Leasing sued the Jiangbei District
People’s Court of Chongqing, requiring CMAL Bo yu to pay the receivables financing
principal of 900,000 yuan and interest, overdue interest, factoring fees, legal fees and litigation
costs. The lawsuit went to trial on 23 October 2024, and is still pending.

Note 4: Sichuan Jiashun Logistics Co., Ltd. has filed a lawsuit demanding that its Ya’an branch pay
the additional fees of RMB 876,400 incurred during the cooperation period due to reasons such
as epidemic supply guarantee detours and has listed our company as a joint defendant.

XIV. Event after balance sheet date

1. Explanation of significant non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

The impact on Unable to
financial condition estimate the
and operating number of
results impacts

Project Content

On 16 January 2025, the Group, Minsheng Shipping (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. (“Minsheng Shipping (Thailand)”) and CTI
LOGISTICS Co., Ltd, Ltd. (“CTI”) has signed a joint venture
contract, and the parties agree to establish a joint venture
company in Thailand. The main purpose is to use Changan
Automobile’s Thailand base supply chain integrated logistics
business as the foundation, and the shareholders support the joint
venture company to establish independent capabilities and
gradually expand other logistics businesses in the ASEAN  Increase long-term

Important : N

outbound 8N . . . equity investment

investments According to the joint venture contract, the registered capital of by RMB 13.2
the joint venture company is equivalent to 30 million Thai baht. million in 2025

The Company, Minsheng Shipping (Thailand), and CTI will each
contribute RMB 13.2 million equivalent to Thai baht, RMB 9
million equivalent to Thai baht, and RMB 7.8 million equivalent
to Thai baht, which will be paid in Thai baht cash. After the
completion of their respective contributions to the joint venture,
the Company, Minsheng Shipping (Thailand), and CTI will hold
approximately 44%, 30%, and 26% of the equity in the joint
venture, respectively.

2.Profit distribution subsequent to balance sheet date

Profit or dividend to be distributed 32,412,800.00

Profits or dividends declared and distributed upon
review and approval
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XV. Other significant matters

1. Segment reporting

The Company’s directors, as the primary decision-makers in the Company’s operations, believe that
the Company’s business activities are associated with various individual operational divisions. These
divisions include providing transportation services for complete vehicles, supply chain management
services for automotive raw materials, transportation services for spare parts and non-automotive
goods, sales of packaging materials, and tire processing.

As all of the Company’s assets are located within China and operations are conducted solely within
China, no further disclosure is made regarding geographical segments based on operational divisions.

2. Audit fees

Item Current year Prior year
Audit fee 1,280,000.00 1,280,000.00

3. Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

The remuneration of Directors and Supervisors in 2024 is set out as follows:

Remuneration, . . .
Social insurance, housing provident

Name allowances_, e}nd funds, and enterprise annuity Total
subsidies.

Executive Directors

Xie Shikang 1,082,992.00 134,102.64  1,217,094.64

Wan Nianyong 1,082,992.00 134,102.64  1,217,094.64

Non-executive Directors

Che Dexi

Chen Wenbo

Jin Jie

Dong Shaojie

Supervisors

Deng Li 356,400.00 127,505.64 483,905.64

Liu Shasha 295,500.00 124,082.64 419,582.64

Wang Huaicheng

Ang Lai Fern

Yang Gang

Independent Non-executive

Directors

Li Ming 120,000.00 120,000.00

Man Wing Pong 120,000.00 120,000.00

Chen Jing 120,000.00 120,000.00
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The remuneration of Directors and Supervisors in 2023 is set out as follows:

Remuneration,  Social insurance, housing provident

Name allowances, and subsidies funds, and enterprise annuity Total
Executive Directors

Xie Shikang 1,052,788.00 127,571.40  1,180,359.40
Wan Nianyong 1,052,788.00 127,571.40 1,180,359.40
Non-executive Directors

Che Dexi

Chen Wenbo

Ms. Jin

Jie

Dong Shaojie

Supervisors

Deng Li 388,800.00 121,598.40 510,398.40
Liu Shasha 282,000.00 117,860.40 399,860.40
Wang Huaicheng

Ang Lai Fern

Yang Gang

Independent Non-executive

Directors

Chong Teck Sin 75,000.00 75,000.00
Poon Chiu Kwok 75,000.00 75,000.00
Jie Jing 75,000.00 75,000.00
Zhang Yun 75,000.00 75,000.00
Li Ming 50,000.00 50,000.00
Man Wing Pong 50,000.00 50,000.00
Chen lJing 50,000.00 50,000.00

4. Top five highest-paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments during the year include two directors of the Group,
whose emoluments are set out in Note XV.3. The emoluments of the remaining three individuals (who
are not directors or supervisors) with the highest emoluments are set out below:

Item 2024 2023
Salaries, allowances, and employee benefits 1,065,880.80 993,391.20
Performance bonuses 1,565,245.00 1,533,300.00
Social insurance, housing provident funds, and enterprise annuity 443,563.60 427,058.70

The number of individuals who are not directors or supervisors fall within the scope of the highest-
paid employees is as follows:

Number of individual

2024 2023
HKD 0-1,000,000.00 0 0
More than HKD 1,000,000.00 3 3
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5. Significant litigation progress

(1) On 29 September 2022, the company signed a “Transportation Service Contract” with Chongqing
Xinshuo Group Co., Ltd. (Xinshuo Company). The company provides coal transportation services to
Xinshuo Company. In April 2023, the 5,227.83 tons of coal stored by Xinshuo Company at
Dagingyang Station were lost due to poor storage. Later, Xinshuo Company filed a lawsuit with the
People’s Court of Chongqing Pilot Free Trade Zone, demanding that the company return the freight
and compensate for the coal loss and capital occupation fees. On 20 December 2024, the People’s
Court of Chongqing Pilot Free Trade Zone made a first instance judgment, requiring the company to
return freight charges of RMB 1,834,500.56, compensate for coal transportation losses of RMB
1,777,462.20, road transportation losses of RMB 2,457,080.10, and capital occupation fees (calculated
from 30 April 2023 to the date of full payment according to the one-year loan market quotation interest
rate standard published by the National Interbank Funding Center, with interest paid along with
principal) and lawyer fees of RMB 160,000.00. The company has already accrued an estimated liability
of RMB 6,641,118.75 on its books. After the judgment takes effect, the estimated liability will be
carried forward to other payables. As of 31 December 2024, the court has frozen the company’s bank
deposit of RMB 7,420,000.00. In January 2025, the company paid the above-mentioned amount to
Xinshuo Company.

(2) On 1 December 2021, Beijing Huayang Hong Freight Service Co., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as
“Huayang Hongda”) signed a contract of carriage with the Company (valid period: from 1 December
2021 to 31 December 2022), to undertake the Company’s after-sales logistics business. The bid
security of RMB 300,000.00 paid by Huayang Hongda before the signing of the contract will be
converted into contract performance security after the signing of the contract, and the refund condition
stipulated in the contract is “interest-free refund after the termination of the contract and smooth
operation”. In January 2022, Huayang Hongda requested that it no longer participate in the business
from February 2022 to terminate the contract in advance, and the two parties did not reach an
agreement on the refund of the deposit. Therefore, Huayang Hong sued the Court of Chongqing Free
Trade Zone to return the deposit of RMB 300,000.00and pay interest, attorney fees and other expenses.
According to the civil ruling of Chongqing Pilot Free Trade Zone People’s Court on July 30, 2024
(2024) Chongqing 0192 No. 7923 in the Early Republic of China, the court agreed to Huayang
Hongda’s application for property preservation and froze the Company’s bank deposit of RMB
300,000.00. On January 20, 2025, the court made a judgment of the first instance, and the company
won the lawsuit and rejected all the litigation claims of Huayang Hongda.

(3) On 7 September 2023, the subsidiary CMAL Bo Yu Transportation Co., Ltd. Tongnan Branch
(“Boyu Tongnan Branch”) signed a transportation agreement with Yizhao Huasheng Logistics Co.,
Ltd. (“Yizhao Huasheng”), entrusting Boyu Tongnan Branch to provide road freight transportation
services.

On 12 September 2023, ELION ENERGY Company Limited Dalad Branch (“ELION Dalad Branch”,
an upstream customer of Yizhao Huasheng) issued a “Guarantee Letter” to Boyu Tongnan Branch,
stating its joint and several guarantee responsibility as the guarantor for all debts payable to the
guarantor under the “Transportation Contract” (signed by Yizhao Huasheng and ELION Dalad Branch
in September 2023, No. YLIN-DLTC-SHSY S-2023-11) during the performance of the main contract
between Yizhao Huasheng Logistics and Boyu Tongnan Branch. The guarantee period is six months
from the expiration of the main contract debt period.
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After the signing of the aforementioned transportation agreement, Boyu Tongnan Branch fulfilled its
transportation obligations in accordance with the contract, but Yizhao Huasheng failed to pay the
accumulated freight of RMB 18.3063 million from November 2023 to February 2024.

On 6 May 2024, Boyu Tongnan Branch signed a “Freight Compensation Agreement” with Yizhao
Huasheng and Yili Jieneng ELION Dalad Branch, agreeing that ELION Dalad Branch would make
payments on behalf of Boyu Tongnan Branch within the payable scope to repay Yizhao Huasheng’s
debts. Starting from 6 May 2024, the weekly compensation would not be less than RMB 500,000.
ELION Dalad Branch paid a freight fee of RMB 500,000 through an acceptance bill on 11 May 2024,
but did not make the payment according to the compensation agreement afterwards.

On 20 May 2024, Boyu Tongnan Branch filed a lawsuit with the Tongnan District People’s Court in
Chongqing, demanding that Yizhao Huasheng and ELION Dalad Branch pay the outstanding freight
of RMB 17.81 million, and demanded that Yili Jieneng (delisted on 18 July 2024) assume the
responsibility of repayment as the head office of ELION Dalad Branch. At the same time, Boyu
Tongnan Branch also applied to the court to freeze the bank deposits under the names of the three
defendants or to seal or freeze other assets of equal value.

In October 2024, the People’s Court of Chongqing Pilot Free Trade Zone was on the waiting list to
seal the real estate property rights No. 0007172 of Meng (2019) Dalad Banner under the name of
ELION Dalad Branch, with an area of 199,420.4 square meters. In November 2024, the People’s Court
of Chongqing Pilot Free Trade Zone was on the waiting list to seal the real estate property rights No.
0008218 of Meng (2022) Dalad Banner under the name of ELION Dalad Branch, with an area of
257,881.1 square meters. The group expects to recover outstanding debts through judicial auction of
pledged and seized assets.
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XVI. Notes to significant items of financial statements of parent company

1. Notes receivable

Closing balance Beginning balance

Category Book ' rovision Carrying Book | rovision Carrying

for bad for bad
balance amount balance amount

debts debts
Bank acceptance bill 37,825,182.42 - 37,825182.42 - - -

Commercial

acceptance bills - - - 36,570.00 36.57 36,533.43
Total 37,825,182.42 - 37,825,182.42 36,570.00 36.57 36,533.43

(1) Accounts receivable that has been endorsed or discounted by the group but have not yet
matured at the end of the period

End of term termination Confirmation amount not

Types confirmation amount terminated at the end of the

period
Bank acceptance bill - 1,545,055.94
(2) Disclosure by method of provision for bad debts
Closing balance
Book balance Provision for bad debts
Category Expected Carrying
credit loss amount
Amount Ratio (%) Amount rate (%)
Provision for bad debts on
an individual basis
Provision for bad debts on
a portfolio basis
Including:
Bank acceptance bills 37,825,182.42 100.00 37,825,182.42
Commercial acceptance ) ) )
bills
Total 37,825,182.42 100.00 37,825,182.42
Continued:
Beginning balance
Book balance Provision for bad debts
Category Expected Carrying
credit loss amount
Amount Ratio (%) Amount rate (%)
Provision for bad debts on
an individual basis
Provision for bad debts on
a portfolio basis
Bank acceptance bills
Lommercial acceptance 36,570.00 100.00 36.57 0.10 36,533.43
Total 36,570.00 100.00 36.57 0.10 36,533.43
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Bills receivable for which bad debt provision is made on a portfolio basis

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Bank acceptance bills

Closing balance Beginning balance
Item Notes Pr;)vision Exp.ected Notes Provision Exp.ected
receivable or bad credit loss receivable for bad credit loss
debts rate (%) debts rate (%)
Bank
acceptance  37,825,182.42 - - - - -
bills

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Commercial acceptance bills

Closing balance Beginning balance
Item Notes Provision Exp.ected Notes Provision Exp.ected
receivable for bad credit loss receivable for bad credit loss
debts rate (%) debts rate (%)
Commercial
acceptance - - - 36,570.00 36.57 0.10
bills

(3) Accrual, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year

Amount of provision for bad debts

Beginning balance 36.57
Provision for the year
Recovered or reversal in the year 36.57

Closing balance

2. Accounts receivable

(1) By ageing
Ageing Closing balance Beginning balance
0-3 months 1,299,446,214.90 968,526,082.90
4-6 months 16,075,056.46 26,970,536.79
7-12 months 11,982,522.79 8,959,060.35
1-2 years 1,337,066.63 2,466,847.21
2-3 years 846,859.33 5,950,605.01
Over 3 years 65,575,267.63 77,644,850.88
Subtotal 1,395,262,987.74 1,090,517,983.14
Less: Provision for bad debts 74,673,635.46 88,088,963.24
Total 1,320,589,352.28 1,002,429,019.90
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(2) Disclosure by method of provision for bad debts

Closing balance

Book balance Provision for bad debts

Category Expected Carrying
Ratio loss rate
Amount (%) Amount (%)
Provision for bad debts on an
individual basis 7,330,419.15 0.53 5,184,289.03 70.72 2,146,130.12
Provision for bad debts on a
portfolio basis 1,387,932,568.59 99.47 69,489,346.43 5.01 1,318,443,222.16
Including:
Receivable from general
customers 248,143,370.12 17.78 36,447,351.59 1469  211,696,018.53
Receivables from related parties 1,135,682,657.67 81.40 33,041,994.84 291 1,102,640,662.83
Receivables from the related partis
within the scope of consolidation 4,106,540.80 0.29 ) ) 4,106,540.80
Total 1,395,262,987.74  100.00 74,673,617.97 5.35 1,320,589,352.28
Continued:
Beginning balance
Book balance Provision for bad debts
Category . Expected Carrying amount
Ratio credit loss
Amount (%) Amount  rate (%)
Provision for bad debts on
individual basis
Provision for bad debts on
portfolio basis 1,090,517,983.14 100.00 88,088,963.24 8.08 1,002,429,019.90
Including:
Receivable from general
cuStomers 291,190,851.96 26.70 42,390,001.12 14.56 248,800,850.84
?jgfégables fromrelated 79039004114 7248 45,698,962.12 5.78 744,691,279.02
Receivables from the
Group’s related parties 8,936,890.04 0.82 - - 8,936,890.04
Total 1,090,517,983.14 100.00 88,088,963.24 8.08 1,002,429,019.90

Provision for bad debts of accounts receivable on an individual basis

Closing balance

Name Book Provision for bad  Expected credit Basis for
balance debts loss rate (%) accrual
Golmud North Economic and Trade According to
Co., Ltd. (46 Kb 748 & A R 1,671,365.98 1,169,956.19 70.00 the litigation
a]) conditions
. . According to
Golmud Jingbei Salt Industry Co., .
Ltd. (- K o 46 B £ A PR 3]) 5,482,401.08 3,837,680.75 70.00 theé(l)lrtlld%ilit(l)cr)lrsl
Other Customers 176,652.09 176,652.09 10000  Expected
Total 7,330,419.15 5,184,289.03 70.72
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Accounts receivable for which provision for bad debts is made on a portfolio basis

Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Receivable from general customers

Closing balance Beginning balance

Provision for Expected Provision for Expected
Book balance bad debts credit loss Book balance bad debts credit loss
rate (%) rate (%)
0-3 months 201,693,214.60 887,449.82 0.44 224,535,847.36 426,618.11 0.19
4-6 months 8,286,868.51 116,844.85 1.41 20,349,792.30 488,395.02 240
7-12 months 2,882,191.93 446,451.54 15.49 4,722,708.63 463,297.72 9.81
1-2 years 415122.73 215,365.68 51.88 1,731,226.94 1,261,545.07 72.87
2-3 years 320,714.09 235,981.44 73.58 3,200,364.61 3,099,233.08 96.84
Over 3 years 34,545,258.26 34,545,258.26 100.00 36,650,912.12 36,650,912.12 100.00
Total 248,143,370.12 36,447,351.59 14.69 291,190,851.96 42,390,001.12 14.56
Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Receivables from related parties
Closing balance Beginning balance
) Expected Expected
(%) (%)
0-3 months 1,093,646,459.50 962,568.53 0.09  735,053,345.50 735,053.35 0.10
4-6 months 7,788,187.95 27,258.66 0.35 6,620,744.49 15,227.71 0.23
7-12 months 2,579,140.26 505,511.49 19.60 4,236,351.72 1,020,537.13 24.09
1-2 years 271,802.01 170,283.96 62.65 735,620.27 434,236.65 59.03
2-3 years 485,815.82 465,120.07 95.74 2,750,240.40 2,499,968.52 90.90
Over 3 years 30,911,252.13  30,911,252.13 100.00 40,993,938.76  40,993,938.76 100.00
Total 1,135,682,657.67  33,041,994.84 291  790,390,241.14  45,698,962.12 5.78
Provision for bad debts on a portfolio basis: Receivables from related parties of the Group
Closing balance Beginning balance
Ageing Provision Expected Provision Expected
Book balance for bad credit loss Book balance for bad credit loss
debts rate (%) debts rate (%)
0-3 months 4,106,540.80 - - 8,936,890.04 - -

(3) Accrual, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year

Amount of provision for

bad debts
Beginning balance 88,088,963.24
Provision for the year -9,657,533.65
Recovered or reversal in the year
Write-off in the year 3,757,794.13
Closing balance 74,673,617.97
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(4) Accounts receivable actually written off in this period

Item

Write-off amount

Accounts receivable actually written off

3,757,794.13

Important accounts receivable write-off status

Accounts the
receivable Verification
Unit Name Write-off amount  Reason for write-off  procedures for
Nature performance from related
transactions
Chongging
Younanyuan )
Agricultural The court judgment General
Technology Current cannot be enforced, and ;
Developmént Co., accounts 381,250.00 there are no enforceable offié\él?\ﬁggﬁ;s No
Ltd (& B4 &3t assets g
REFFEEA
FR/2])
Henan Suda ]
Electric  Vehicle The court judgment General
Technology Co., Current cannot be enforced, and 5
Ltd (77 ik & accounts 186,782.92 here are no enforceable Offi gg?&ggﬁ;s No
B A A TR assets 9
2 4))
Jinzhou Anda .
Automotive Parts Current cann-lt-)tt]%g%%rftojruc%%m:nnc} General
(}P:% Ld (& % accounts 137,500.00 here are no enforceable Offi M?\I/llagqr 'S No
?éj; f.;}) P B A assets ice Meeting
Suzhou Baoq(} he debtor has b General
Logistics Co., Lt Current 2342 647.00 The debtor has been M , N
(BN F A ARA accounts OHL,00 1 cancelled vianager § 0
) Office Meeting
Chongging )
Changan Airport The court judgment General
Automotive Parts Current 10998971 cannot be enforced, and Manager’s No
Co., Ltd (£ & accounts E¥ 0 there are no enforceable g

7w AR R
AIREAENE])

assets

Office Meeting

Total

3,158,169.63

(5) Accounts receivable and contract assets due from the top five debtors

Accounts receivable and contract assets due from the top five debtors as of 31 December 2024 was
totaling RMB 1,063,366,211.36, which accounted for64.49% of total accounts receivable and contract
assets, and the corresponding provision for bad debts was totaling RMB 32,090,317.44.

3. Other receivables

Item

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Interest receivable
Dividends receivable

Other receivables

69,440,151.56

71,415,940.99

Total

69,440,151.56

71,415,940.99
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(1) Other receivables

(D By ageing
Ageing Closing balance Beginning balance
0 to 6 months 27,291,218.74 26,999,197.24
7-12 months 8,419,891.62 8,889,147.00
1-2 years 6,486,758.32 11,767,446.81
2-3 years 6,420,460.75 10,610,156.90
Over 3 years 25,341,185.42 16,100,932.46
Less: Provision for bad debts 4,519,363.29 2,950,939.42

Total

69,440,151.56

71,415,940.99

(2 Disclosure by nature

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying

Book balance bad debts amount Book balance bad debts amount
Current accounts 2794945282 369383903  24,255613.79 39,799,56546  2,527,888.98  37,271,676.48
gggg;'ltty deposits, 35,446,848.59 800,203.13  34,646,645.46 29,231,423.29 300,528.83  28,930,894.46
Staff petty cash 384,090.00 384,090.00 19,100.00 19,100.00
borrowing
Advances for
taxes and 1,146,934.45 6,503.95  1,140,340.50 466,871.23 32,402.77 434,468.46
expenses
Others 9,032,188.99 1872718 9,013.461.81 4,849,920.43 90,118.84  4,759,80159
Total 73959,514.85 451936329  69,440,151.56 74,366,880.41  2,950,939.42  71,415940.99

(@ Information of provision for bad debts

At 31 December 2024, provision for bad debts on those in first stage:

Expected credit

loss rate in the Provision for Carrying

Category Book balance next 12 months bad debts amount
(%)

Provision for bad debts on an
individual basis
Provision for bad debts on a 70,306,941.47 123 866,789.91  69.440,151.56
portfolio basis
Current accounts 24,296,879.44 0.17 41,265.65 24,255,613.79
Security deposits, deposit 35,446,848.59 2.26 800,203.13 34,646,645.46
Staff petty cash borrowing 384,090.00 - - 384,090.00
Advances for taxes and expenses 1,146,934 .45 0.57 6,593.95 1,140,340.50
Others 9,032,188.99 0.21 18,727.18 9,013,461.81
Total 70,306,941.47 1.23 866,789.91 69,440,151.56
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At 31 December 2024, the Company had no other receivables classified as second stage.

At 31 December 2024, provision for bad debts on those in third stage:

Expected credit

Provision for Carrying
Category Book balance loss rate for the
lifetime (%) bad debts amount
Provision for bad debts on
individual basis 3,652,573.38 100.00 3,652,573.38
Including:
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. 2,183,486.91 100.00 2,183,486.91

(RZRAFARA R a)
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd.

gg%e{ﬁs Sggg%ggg‘gg N 471,814.49 100.00 471,814.49
a])

Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch&&«?‘d% Hria 46,920.65 100.00 46,920.65

F A TR 8] AL 22 4])
Changan Ford Automobile Co.,

Ltd. Sales Branch(& 4% 44 26,992.17 100.00 26,992.17

A R B SEE 5 a])

Guowei Technology Co., Ltd.

(B BLAH A TR 2]) 10,000.00 100.00 10,000.00

Jiangsu Weilong New Energy

Vehicle Co., Ltd. (T #k BFE#T 200,000.00 100.00 200,000.00

AL IR A2 A TR F])

Hafei Automobile Co., Ltd. (%5

YN N 713,359.16 100.00 713,359.16
Total 3,652,573.38 100.00 3,652,573.38

At December 31, 2023, provision for bad debts on those in first stage:

Expected credit

Category Book balance nlg)s‘i i;tflll;lnilllli Provision foagg‘ t(: Carrying amount
(%)

Provision for bad debts on an
individual basis
Provision for bad debtsona 74 544 516 89 0.59 424,575.81 71,415,940.99
portfolio basis
Current accounts 37,273,201.85 0.00 1,525.37 37,271,676.48
Security deposits, deposit 29,231,423.29 1.03 300,528.83 28,930,894.46
Advances for taxes and
expenses 466,871.23 6.94 32,402.77 434,468.46
Withholding for sale and
purchase of goods 19,100.00 - - 19,100.00
Others 4,849,920.43 1.86 90,118.84 4,759,801.59
Total 71,840,516.80 0.59 424,575.81 71,415,940.99

At December 31, 2023, the Company had no other receivables classified as second stage.
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At December 31, 2023, provision for bad debts on those in third stage:

Expected credit

Category Book loss rate for the  Provision for Carrying
balance lifetime (%) bad debts amount
Provision for bad debts on individual basis 2,526,363.61 100.00 2,526,363.61
Including:
Changan Ford Motor Co., Ltd. (& %48 4%
ﬁ‘?iw‘&\éjb)l ) e 1,006,404.45 100.00 1,006,404.45
Hafei Automobile Co., Ltd. (%44 £ &
PN 710,859.16 100.00 710,859.16
Others 809,100.00 100.00 809,100.00
Total 2,526,363.61 100.00 2,526,363.61
@ Accrual, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year
First stage Second stage Third stage
Expected credit Expected credit
- loss for lifetime loss for lifetime
Provision for bad debts Expected credit (no credit (credit Total
loss within the impairment impairment has
next 12 months occurred) occurred)
Beginning balance 424,575.81 2,526,363.61  2,950,939.42
Movement of beginning balance
during the period
--Transfer to second stage
--Transfer to third stage
--Reverse to second stage
--Reverse to first stage
Provision for the year 442,214.10 1,935,309.77  2,377,523.87
Reversal in the year - 809,100.00 809,100.00
Transfer in the year
Write-off in the year
Other movement
Closing balance 866,789.91 3,652,573.38  4,519,363.29
Reversal or recovery of significant bad debts
. Method of Basis for determining the Reversal or
Name of entity Reason for reversal -
recovery provision for bad debts recovery amount
Insurance payout Debt settlement Offset against Expected to be uncollectible 809,100.00
other payables

(5 Other receivables due from the top five debtors

Other Proportion Provision for
Name of receivables to total bad debts
entit Nature Closin Ageing other Closin
y b g receivables g
alance (%) balance
Company 1 Current accounts 9,196,445.80 0-6 months, 7-12 mogﬂ;%a}é 12.43
0-6 months, 7-12 months, 2-
Company 2 Current accounts 8,862,578.76 3 years, Over 3 years 11.98
- hs, 1-2 2-
Company 3 Curreflt accoun.ts 4,322,149.62 0-6 mo;::ai’s, Ovzs%rs};earz 5.84
Company 4 gggg;'l‘ty deposits, 3,000,000.00 0-6 months 4.06 12,300.00
Security deposits, 7-12 months, 1-2 years, 2-3
Company 5 deposits 3,000,000.00 years, Over 3 years 4.06 47,813.00
Total 28,381,174.18 38.37 60,113.00
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4. Long-term equity investment

Closing balance

Beginning balance

Provision Provisio
Item for n for

impairme Carrying impairm

Book balance nt amount Book balance ent Carrying amount

Investment
in 953,282,452.93 - 953,282,452.93 999,182,452.93 999,182,452.93
subsidiaries
Investment
in joint - - - 12,747,661.95 12,747,661.95
ventures
Investment 70,229,948.15 42,029,948.15  28,200,000.00 74,605,668.98 74,605,668.98
1n associates
Total 1,023,512,401.08 42,020,048.15 981,482,452.93 1,086,535,783.85 1086,535,763.8

(1) Investment in subsidiaries

Beginning

Investee balance

Closing

Decrease
balance

Increase

Provision
for
impairment
in the year

Provision for
impairment
closing
balance

CMAL BO Yu
Transportation Co., Ltd. (&
Bk Z R AW T EMA R
2 4])

Fulu International Logistics
Co., Ltd. (i§ % B B4 i A
FR25])

Chonggqing Saimei Shuzhi
Technology Co., Ltd. (£ &
T E BT A BA TR E))
Chonggqing Changzu Feiyue
Technology Co., Ltd. (& &
e R RAAT HA TR 2))
Chongqing Future Supply
Chain Management
Logistics Co, Ltd. (& & 43
SR R TR RN 4])
Chonggqing Changxiang
Supply chain Technology
Co., Ltd. (& B & F 4 MG 42
FFIA PR )

Nanjing CMSC Logistics
Co., Ltd. (1 % &4 R A4
Ry A TR E])

Changan Minsheng
(Shanghai) Supply Chain
Co., Lid. (f % KA (Li#)
A 42 A7 PR 8])
Hangzhou Changan
Minsheng Logistics Co.,
Ltd. (M k% KA RA
[R2>5])

Wuhan Changjiang Zhilian
Port Development Co., Ltd
(RERTHB B EEA
[R2>8])

Shenyang Changyou Supply
Chain Co., Ltd. GE% & A
A e 48 AT TR 5])

60,000,000.00

11,500,000.00

50,000,000.00

28,469,452.93

30,000,000.00

14,000,000.00

85,533,000.00

30,000,000.00

610,000,000.00

33,780,000.00

45,900,000.00

- 60,000,000.00

- 11,500,000.00

- 50,000,000.00

- 28,469,452.93

- 30,000,000.00

- 14,000,000.00

- 85,5633,000.00

- 30,000,000.00

610,000,000.00

- 33,780,000.00

45,900,000.00

Total 999,182,452.93

45,900,000.00  953,282,452.93
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(2) Investment in associates and joint ventures

Movement in the year

; Closing
Beoning o meomon, lesmenel Ao Closing_ Palanceof
Additions - - . anges distributi Provision isi
Investee balance i in Decreasein  recognized  comprehensive of otﬁer 1S nofuc;(;E vi Ifor Other balance PrOVlSlf(:)l;
investment Investment :qnl?ii; Income equity dividend or impairment impairment
method profit
(@ Associates
Chongqing
Guoyuan Ro-Ro
Terminal
Company 74,605,668.98 -4,341,290.79 -34,430.04 42,029,948.15 28,200,000.00 42,029,948.15
Limited (£ & %
B R EAHIAR
Rz~ 8])
@ Joint
ventures
Hangzhou
Changhe Anji
Supply Chain
Management
Co., Ltd. (M 12,747,661.95 17,248,364.59  4,500,702.64 - -
kEZEHE
b B TR PR
a])
Total 87,353,330.93 17,248,364.59 159,411.85 -34,430.04 42,029,948.15 28,200,000.00 42,029,948.15

Note: See note V.10 for details.
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5. Operating income and operating cost

(1) Operating income and operating cost

Current year Prior year
Item
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
Primary operations 6,631,927,582.13 6,462,003,550.11 6,142,728,649.95 5,978,474,843.65
Other operations 22,444 142.85 7,627,521.99 17,967,919.45 4,420,927.35
Total 6,654,371,724.98 6,469,631,072.10 6,160,696,569.40 5,982,895,771.00

(2) Operating revenue and operating costs based on the timing of goods transfer

Current year
Item Transportation service Others
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
Primary operations
Including: Recognized at
a point in time 6,631,927,582.13 6,462,003,550.11 - -
Other operations
Including: Recognized at
a point in time - - 22,444 142.85 7,627,521.99
Total 6,631,927,582.13 6,462,003,550.11 22,444 142.85 7,627,521.99
6. Investment income
Item Current year Prior year
Income from long-term equity investment by cost method 141,772,725.00 9,380,000.00
Income from long-term equity investment by equity method 159,411.85 -1,060,985.29
1nvestment income generated from the disposal of long-term equity 2.000,000.00
mvestments
Dividends income from other equity instruments investment - 2,435,623.28
Interest expenses for discounted acceptance bills derecognised -1,103,078.96 -2,614,183.55
Total 142,829,057.89 8,140,454.44
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XVILI. Supplement information

1. Schedule of non-recurring gains or losses

Item Current year

Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets, including the reversal 64.766,020.95
of provisions for impairment of assets.

Government grants that are included in the profit and loss (except for

government grants that are closely related to the Group’s normal

business operations and that meet the national policy requirements 15,788,474.96
and continue to enjoy a certain amount or quantitative basis according

to certain standards)

Reversal of provision for impairment of receivables that are 915.213.00
individually tested for impairment :

Other non-operating income and expenses other than the above -1,850,886.65
Total amount of non-recurring items 79,618,822.26
Less: effects of income tax on non-recurring items 3,765,085.28
Net amount of non-recurring items 75,853,736.98
Less: Non-recurring items attributable to the minority shareholders 2899 884 45
(after tax) T

légg:scurring items attributable to the shareholders of the 72.953,852.53

2. Return on equity and earnings per share

Weighted average Earnings per share
Profits in reporting period net assets Bagjc earnings per  Diluted earnings

Rate of return(%) share per share
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of 294 0.37

the Group

Net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Group after deducting -0.64 -0.08
non-recurring gains and losses
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Results

Set out below is the summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2024 (as
extracted from the Group’s audited consolidated and company income statement):

As at 31 December

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan
Revenue 8,963,208,271.72  7,968,998,231.49  7,720,202,129.16  6,020,899,000.00  4,685,655,000.00
(Note 3)
Total profit/(loss) 92,056,359.11 75,008,581.99 68,292,726.82 58,843,000.00 23,241,000.00
Income tax expense 23,678,118.31 17,045,642.33 21,777,052.53 16,734,000.00 9,451,000.00
Net profit/(loss) for the year 68,378,240.80 57,962,939.66 46,515,674.29 42,109,000.00 13,790,000.00
Minority shareholders interest 8,435,234.35 1,516,074.74 8,033,866.12 12,961,000.00 13,369,000.00
Profit attributable to equity 59,943,006.45 56,446,864.92 38,481,808.17 29,148,000.00 421,000.00
holders of the Company
RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan
Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the
Company
Basic and diluted-for profit
for the year (Note 1) 037 035 024 018 0.00
Dividends per share 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.05 Nil
(including tax)  (including tax)  (including tax) (including tax)  (including tax)
(Note 2)

Note 1: Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the years ended 31 December2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 by the weighted average number of
shares in issue for the respective years ended 31 December2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 respectively, being 162,064,000,

162,064,000, 162,064,000, 162,064,000 and 162,064,000 shares.
Note 2: The Board recommends the payment of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024, which is subject to approval
of the Company’s shareholders at general meeting.
Note 3: This figure was adjusted according to China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Assets and Liabilities

Set out below is the summary of the Group’s assets and liabilities for the five years ended 31 December 2024 (as
extracted from the Group’s audited consolidated and company balance sheets):

As at 31 December

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan RMB yuan
Non-current assets 136672522073 150450482698 134171330242 1.259,073.000.00 1,225,005,000.00
Current assets 383000081743  3669,90694154  3573957122.08 2.917,203,00000 3.169,621,000.00
Total assets 519672604716 517441176852 491567042450 4.176276,000.00 4.394,626,000.00
Non-current liabilities 110,063,00775 25530626253 19647628244 11169900000  61,387,000.00
Current liabilities 2880,01692099 272954166134  2557.320801.14 1968504,00000 2.292.740,000.00
Total liabilities 200007992874 2908484792387 275379708358  2,080203,00000  2.354,127,000.00
Minority shareholders’ equity 159,146,928.42 173,310,520.72 176,070,582.49 144,382,000.00 122,167,000.00
Equity attributable to owners 204749919000 116 053.323.03 198580275843  1,951,691,00000  1918,332,000.00

of the Company

Total equity 220664611842 218956384465 216187334092  2,096,073,00000  2,040,499,000.00
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 to all shareholders of the Company.

In 2024, benefiting from the continuous upward and healthy development of China’s economy and the automobile
industry, and thanks to the hard work and efforts of members of the Board, management and all staff, the Company’s
revenue reached a record high and profit margin and returns on net assets reached a seven-year high. The Company
has continued to maintain a favourable development trend.

Annual Results

In 2024, thanks to the ongoing effects of a series of policies adopted, such as subsidies for replacing old cars by new
ones and purchase of new energy cars, coupled with the ongoing enthusiasm for promotional activities of automakers,
these multiple measures have collectively stimulated consuming in the automotive market. As a result, the domestic
automotive market has experienced steady growth, with production and sales reaching record highs. In 2024, the
domestic automobile production volume and sales volume were 31.282 million vehicles and 31.436 million vehicles,
respectively, increased by 3.7% and 4.5% year-on-year, and the production volume and sales volume remained the
world’s largest. Under the overall favourable market environment of the automobile industry, Chongging Changan
Automobile Co., Ltd. (“Changan Automobile™), the Group’s major customer, and its associates recorded a steady
growth in the production volume and sales volume in 2024, which amounted to 2,625,658 vehicles and 2,683,798
vehicles, respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.64% and 5.12%.

The growth in production volume and sales volume of our major customer has prompted them to procure more
logistics related services from the Group. In 2024, the Group’s revenue reached RMB8,963,208,271.72, up by
12.48% as compared with RMB7,968,998,231.49 last year. The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was up to RMB59,943,006.45, representing an increase of RMB3,496,141.53 as compared with RMB56,446,864.92
last year. The basic earnings per share was RMB0.37 (in 2023: RMBO0.35).
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Annual Review

In 2024, faced up to difficulties, the Company forged ahead and worked together to consistently promote high
technology, high vitality, high efficiency, high brand, and high quality. The Company’s transformation and upgrading
and high-quality development made progress, achieving upward transformation and upgrading, stronger vitality,
stronger organizational effectiveness, more prominent brand potential, and more solid development momentum. The
Company made outstanding achievements in business performance, strategic planning, technological innovation, and
reform and innovation. The Company’s operating scale reached record highs.

Awards

In 2024, we have been honoured by the industry and our customers for our outstanding service quality and innovation,
and we have earned the trust and praise of our customers for our efficient logistics services. Whether in terms of
supply chain management, transportation efficiency, or customer service, we always uphold the principle of win-win
development to continue to promote the upgrading of industry standards. In the future, we will continue to drive
development with innovation and provide even better services to our customers!

AWARDS ORGANISER

China Enterprise Confederation, China Enterprise

Top 500 Enterprises of China’s Service Industry Directors Association

Top 50 Enterprises of China’s Logistics Industry
AAAAA Logistics Enterprise
Recommended Brands in Logistics Technology and Equipment

KPI Benchmarking Enterprises for Automotive Finished Vehicle
Logistics China Federation of Logistics & Purchasing

KPI Benchmarking Enterprises for Automotive Parts Inbound Logistics

KPI Benchmarking Enterprises for Automotive After-Sales Parts
Logistics

Outstanding Innovation Cases in Automotive Logistics Industry

Silver Award of the Voice of the Most Beautiful Brand
Advanced Unit of Team Building in the New Era in 2024

First Prize for Outstanding Case in Party Building Driving Enterprise
Development

China Culture Administration Association

First Prize for Enterprise Party Building and Enterprise Culture

Innovation

Outstanding Project Award PMI (China)

Top 100 Enterprises in Chongging in 2024 Chongqging  Enterprise  Confederation ~ (Enterprise
Top 100 Enterprises of Chongging’s Service Industry in 2024 Directors Association)

Strategic Partnership Award Changan Automobile

Changan Ford Automobile Co., Ltd. (“Changan

Outstanding Supplier Ford")
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In 2024, we firmly implemented the development strategy of “developing outside Changan Group and outside the
automotive industry”. On the one hand, we continued to improve our quality of services to core customers and won
the highest awards for suppliers from Changan Automobile, Changan Ford and Changan Mazda Automobile Co.,
Ltd. (“Changan Mazda”); on the other hand, the Company further expanded its collaboration with the members
under CSGC. By aligning with the logistics needs of the Chengdu Industrial Park of CSGC, we secured contracts to
provide finished products transportation services for Sichuan Ningjiang Shanchuan Machinery Co., Ltd. and Chengdu
Huachuan Denso Co., Ltd. At the same time, we strengthened our cooperation with upstream suppliers by providing
in-plant logistics and finished products transportation services for Chenzhi Technology Co., Ltd., integrated
transportation, package, storage and distribution services for Times Changan Power Battery Co., Ltd. and storage
and distribution services for CATL. Meanwhile, we have accelerated our expansion outside Changan Group,
successfully breaking into the supply chains of BYD, LUXEED and Li Auto, providing them with such services as
finished vehicles transportation, parts milk-run etc.

Being customer-centric and expanding our business, we accelerated the transformation into a technology company
with digitalisation, intelligence, green development and expertise to make the Company greener. Firstly, we
continuously improved our digitisation capability, with 6 system products developed and applied to 12 projects; we
have deepened our data operation and governance and initially completed the Digital Brain 1.0. Secondly, we have
enriched our intelligent scenarios, with 6 intelligent products developed and applied to 6 scenarios. Thirdly, we
deepened the application of green products, enriched the packaging design database, and realised online management
of 40,000 Internet-connected packages for five projects by relying on the self-developed packaging operation
management system (CMS). Fourthly, the results have been recognised, with the establishment of 10 corporate
technical standards and participation in the compilation of 3 national standards; 35 patents and 25 softwritings have
been accepted; Chongging Saimei Shuzhi Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chongqging Saimei”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has been certified as a national high and new technology enterprise and an innovative small and
medium-sized enterprise of Chongging.

The Company fully implements the New Development Concept and at the same time actively fulfils its social
responsibilities by actively exploring and practising ESG. The Board and the management of the Company
collaborate with each other to incorporate ESG sustainability into the daily operation and management of the
Company. We insist on governing the enterprise in accordance with the law, regulating the internal control system
and institutional construction, and actively practicing clean business practices, so as to build a solid foundation for
the realisation of steady development. On the other hand, the Company continues to promote energy conservation,
emission reduction and carbon reduction, coordinates the relationship between environmental protection and
industrial development, and integrates green concepts into all aspects of storage, transportation, packaging and
recycling to build a carbon-reducing ecosystem.

139
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Outlook and Prospects

In 2025, the global economy may face various uncertainties, including weak global demand, high inflation, ongoing
geopolitical tensions and intensified trade protectionism, making the international trade environment complex and
volatile, while the domestic economy will face the triple pressures of insufficient effective demand, overcapacity and
weak expectations. However, the basic trend of a long-term improvement in the domestic economy will remain
unchanged.

According to the forecast by the China Association of Automobile Manufacturers, the total sales volume of
automobiles in China is expected to reach 32.9 million in 2025, representing a year-on-year growth of 4.7%, while
the export of automobiles is expected to hit 6.2 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 5.8%, and the total
sales volume of new energy vehicles is expected to reach 16 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 24.4%.
Government subsidies, tax incentives and licensing policies will continue to increase the popularity of new energy
vehicles. In particular, improvements in battery technology, driving range and charging efficiency will enhance the
competitiveness of new energy vehicles, fuelling sustained high-speed growth in the new energy vehicles sector.
China’s automobile exports will continue to grow, especially for new energy vehicles, with Europe, Southeast Asia
and the Middle East becoming the key markets. China’s automakers, such as BYD, GWM and Changan Automobile,
have gradually established production bases overseas. The overseas market for Chinese automobiles is growing very
strongly, and it has become a general trend for the industrial chain to develop overseas. The stable development of
the automobile industry will lead the automobile logistics industry to continue to improve steadily.

At the same time, in order to promote the automobile enterprises in Chongging to further seize the development
opportunities of automobile exports, deeply integrate into the global automobile industry chain and value system and
accelerate the construction of world-class intelligent networked new energy automobile industry clusters, Chongging
government released the “Chongqing-Made Cars Going Global” development plan at the end of 2023. The plan aims
for the annual export volume of the city’s finished vehicles to account for 10% of the national annual export volume
by 2027. Changan Automobile has launched its overseas development plan, aiming to achieve an annual sales volume
of more than 1.2 million vehicles by 2030 in overseas markets. The Company will closely follow Changan
Automobile’s overseas deployment by building overseas logistics networks to provide customers with comprehensive
and all-round logistics solutions.

But at the same time, we must also recognise the challenges ahead. On the one hand, many logistics companies are
expanding their networks and optimizing resource allocation, moving towards integrated supply chain logistics and
automobile logistics, which has intensified market competition. On the other hand, the auto industry is going through
a period of transformation, and the negative impact of the ongoing price wars among major automakers will inevitably
ripple through the supply chain, placing significant pressure on the Company. However, with clear strategic focus
and a solid growth strategy, we will increase operational efficiency and implement more stringent cost control
measures to cope with the impact of unfavourable factors.

Going forward, we are committed to meeting our customers’ needs in alignment with our mission of “innovating
logistics services, creating a better life”. We will explore the path of new quality productivity, from technical planning
and design to integrated operation of transportation, package, warehousing and distribution, to digital intelligent
software and hardware products, to provide customers with integrated or modular intelligent logistics services. We
will enhance our international service capabilities, and strategically allocate resources to actively expand into the
overseas automotive and manufacturing intelligent logistics market. By driving the Company’s high-quality
development and transformation, we aim to create greater value for shareholders and society.

I would like to express my thanks to my Board colleagues and all employees of the Company for their valuable
contributions, hard work and dedication. Furthermore, | extend my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and
stakeholders for their long-time support and trust.

Xie Shikang
Chairman
Chongging, the PRC
27 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The principal businesses of the Group are supply chain management services for automobiles and automobile raw
materials, components and parts. Such services include finished vehicle transportation and related logistics services,
automobile raw materials and components and parts supply chain management services, tires assembly and after-
sales logistics service. Separately, the Group also provides non-automobile commodities transportation services to
our customers. The Group’s major customers include Changan Automobile, Changan Ford, Changan Mazda, Hebei
Changan Automobile Co., Ltd., Nanjing Changan Automobile Co., Ltd., Baoding Changan Bus Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. and Chongging Changan International Sales and Services Co., Ltd., etc.

The revenue of the Group amounted to RMB8,963,208,271.72 for the year ended 31 December 2024, approximately
12.48% increase from RMB7,968,998,231.49 of last year.

Picture 1: Growth in revenue for the five years ended 31 December 2024 (unit: RMB yuan)
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Supply Chain Management Services of Automobiles and Automobile Raw Materials, Components and
Parts

1. Transportation of Finished Vehicles

During the reporting period, the Group’s major customer recorded an increase in the sales volume, resulting in the
corresponding growth in the demand of finished vehicles transportation from the Group. Therefore, for the year ended
31 December 2024, the revenue of the Group from finished vehicle transportation services was
RMBA4,445,873,165.89, up by approximately 14.04% from RMB3,898,671,826.86 of last year.

2. Supply Chain Management Services of Automobile Raw Materials & Components and Parts

During the reporting period, the increase in the sales volume of the Group’s major customer led to the increase in the
demand for supply chain management services of automobile raw materials and components and parts. As such, the
revenue from supply chain management services of automobile raw materials & components and parts for the year
ended 31 December 2024 was RMB2,584,677,127.03, up by approximately 7.32% from RMB2,408,300,157.96 of
last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Transportation of Non-automobile Commodities and Other Logistics Services

During the reporting period, the Group adjusted its business structure, which resulted in a significant decrease in the
business volume of non-automobile commodities transportation. As such, the revenue of the Group from such
logistics services was RMB303,699,241.69 for the year ended 31 December 2024, representing a decrease of
approximately 28.39% from RMB424,107,662.09 of last year.

Automobile Components & Parts Packaging Sales and Tyres Sub-packaging

During the reporting period, the core customers of the Group increased in their demand for automotive parts
packaging and tire assembly services. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue of the Group from
automobile parts packages sales and tires assembly was RMB1,628,958,737.11, up by approximately 31.59% from
RMB1,237,918,584.58 of last year.

Logistics Services Network

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had a total of 27 branches, subsidiaries, associated companies and
representative offices, which are mainly located in East China, Central China, North China, South China and
Southwest China (Picture 2). The continuous enhancement of service network enables the Group to provide logistics
services to different parts of the country.

Picture 2: Location of the Company’s existing branches, subsidiaries, associated companies and representative offices
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review
Cash Flow and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents was RMB982,221,928.70 (31 December 2023:
RMB849,334,512.98), among which, RMB787,158,929.59 was attributed to the Company and RMB195,062,999.11
was attributed to the subsidiaries of the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total assets were
RMB5,196,726,047.16 (31 December 2023: RMB5,174,411,768.52), current liabilities were RMB2,880,016,920.99
(31 December 2023: RMB2,729,541,661.34), the non-current liabilities were RMB110,063,007.75 (31 December
2023: RMB255,306,262.53), the equity attributable to owners of the Company was RMB2,047,499,190.00 (31
December 2023: RMB2,016,253,323.93) and the minority shareholders’ equity was RMB159,146,928.42 (31
December 2023: RMB173,310,520.72).

Cost of Operation and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s cost of operations was RMB8,559,911,051.80 (2023:
RMB7,597,717,455.50), up by approximately 12.66% from the previous year. Though the Group’s emphasis on
management and continuous strengthening of logistics and internal management cost control, it faced various adverse
factors such as the rising transportation cost and labour cost, and tumbling logistics service price, resulting in the
gross profit margin of the Group reduced to 4.50% (2023: 4.66%).

Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s selling expenses were RMB50,561,038.70, representing
approximately 0.56% of the Group’s revenue during the period (2023: 0.64%).

During the year, the selling expenses included salaries, travelling, business and market promotion expenses incurred
by the Group’s sales and marketing department. Such expenses decreased by approximately 0.76% from the previous
year.

Administrative Expenses

During the reporting year, the Group’s administrative expenses increased from RMB214,717,665.51 in 2023 to
RMB231,943,315.20 in 2024, up approximately 8.02% as compared with the corresponding period of previous year.

R&D Expenses

During the reporting year, the Group’s R&D expenses decreased from RMB26,803,369.07 in 2023 to
RMB23,011,712.49 in 2024, down by approximately 14.15% as compared with the corresponding period of previous
year.

Financial Expenses

The Group’s financial expenses for the year amounted to RMB611,815.98 (2023: RMB-3,225,090.68).
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Taxation
During the reporting year, the income tax expense was RMB23,678,118.31 (2023: RMB17,045,642.33).
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

During the year, the profit attributable to owners of the Company was RMB59,943,006.45, up by approximately
RMB3,496,141.53 compared to RMB56,446,864.92 of the previous year.

Picture 3: Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the five years ended 31 December 2024
(Unit: RMB yuan)
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Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no change in the Company’s share capital.

Loans and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2024, the balance of short term loans and other loans from financial institutions of the Group was
RMB25,479,206.58 (31 December 2023: RMB158,298,328.28). Please refer to note 23, 30 and 32 to the financial
statements of this announcement for further details.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt) of the Group was
approximately 57.54% (31 December 2023: 57.68%).
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged bank deposits of approximately RMB5,448,998.06 to secure bank
acceptance bills.

Contingent Liabilities

Other than disclosed in note XIlI of the financial statements in this announcement, as at 31 December 2024, the
Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities. For details of legal proceedings, please refer to the “Report
of the Board”.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business prospects may be affected by a number of risks
and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The following are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below
which are not known to our Group or which may not be material at the moment but could turn out to be material in
the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk arising from the movement in market price that deteriorates profitability or affects the ability
to achieve business objectives. The management of our Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its obligations when they fall due because of an
inability to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our Group monitors cash flows
and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations
and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every function at divisional and
departmental levels. Key functions in our Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of authority
and reporting framework. Our management will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Reliance Risk

For the logistics industry, the alliance between automobile manufacturers and logistics services providers are
common in the PRC market. It is typical that a substantial part of the logistics services will be provided by related
entity(ies) within the group of companies. The Group is no exception and China Changan and its subsidiaries
(“Changan Group”) have been the Group’s long-term client. As the Group is primarily engaged in automobile
logistics and relies on the automobile production and sales of Changan Group, the fluctuation of Changan Group’s
automobile production and sales would undoubtedly impact on the business performance of the Group. Therefore, if
Changan Group ceases to use or substantially reduces the use of the Group’s logistics services and if the Group is not
able to secure new customers with similar sales volume on terms acceptable to the Group, the business scale of the
Group will be substantially reduced, and the financial performance of the Group will be adversely affected.
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Exchange Rate Risks

As the Group has limited transactions denominated in foreign currencies, there is no significant effect on the Group’s
existing operations.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred was as follows:

2024 2023
RMB yuan RMB yuan

Contracted, but not provided for:
Plant and machinery - 2,100,440.25
Capital contributions payable to equity investment - -

- 2,100,440.25

Significant Purchase or Sale of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

On 26 September 2024 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange), the Company and Shenyang Changyou
Automobile Supply Chain Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”) entered into the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to dispose of and the Purchaser agreed to acquire 51% equity interest of Shenyang Changyou
Supply Chain Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang Changyou™) at a total consideration of RMB47.90 million (the “Disposal”).
Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group recorded an audited profit before tax of approximately RMB59.97
million from the Disposal, which has a significant impact on the Group’s profit in 2024.

Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group no longer held any interest in Shenyang Changyou and Shenyang
Changyou was no longer a subsidiary of the Group. Accordingly, Shenyang Changyou’s financial results, assets and
liabilities were no longer consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 26 September 2024 and 21 October 2024 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, during the reporting period, there was no significant purchase or sale of subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Group.

Substantial Investment or Acquisition

During the reporting period, the Group had no substantial investment or acquisition.
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Board for the year ended 31 December 2024.
Principal Activities and Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in supply chain management services for automobiles and automobile raw material,
components and parts. Such services include finished vehicle transportation and related logistics services, automobile
raw materials and components and parts supply chain management services, tires assembly, after sales logistics
services, etc. Besides, the Group also provides non-automobile commodities transportation services.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance, Chapter
622 of the laws of Hong Kong, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 141 to 146 of this announcement. This discussion forms part of this Report of the Board.
Major Customers and Suppliers

During the reporting period, the Group’s sales to its 5 largest customers in proportion to the Group’s total sales are
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

2024
A Chongging Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. 22%
B Changan Ford Automobile Company Limited 15%
C Chongging Changan Automobile International Sales 9%
Service Co., Ltd.
D BMW Brilliance Automotive Ltd. 7%
E Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. 4%
Total of 5 largest customers 57%

2023
A Chongging Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. 29%
B Changan Ford Automobile Company Limited 23%
C BMW Birilliance Automotive Ltd. 5%
D Hebei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. 4%
E Hefei Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. 2%
Total of 5 largest customers 63%

According to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, except for
BMW Brilliance Automotive Ltd., all the other largest customers mentioned above are the connected persons of the
Company.
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During the reporting period, the Group’s purchases from the 5 largest suppliers in proportion to the Group’s total
purchases are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

2024
A China Railway Special Cargo Logistics Co., Ltd. Chengdu Branch 7%
B CITIC Decca Co. Ltd 5%
C Chongging Meilian International Warehousing and Transportation 4%
(Group) Co., LTD
D CIMC World Union Daya Asian Union International Logistics Co., Ltd 3%
E MSC Mitsui (China) Limited Guangzhou Branch 3%
Total of 5 largest suppliers 22%

2023
A China Railway Special Cargo Logistics Co., Ltd. Chengdu Branch 11%
B Yuxinou Supply Chain Co., Ltd. 7%
C San Yang Ma (Chongqing) Logistics Co., Ltd. 4%
D MSC Mitsui (China) Limited Guangzhou Branch 3%
E Kunshan Liufeng Machinery Industry Co., Ltd. 3%
Total of 5 largest suppliers 28%

Each of the 5 largest suppliers is not a connected person of the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, excluding treasury shares) had
any interest in the 5 largest customers and 5 largest suppliers mentioned above.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated and company income
statement in this announcement.
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Dividend Distribution Policy

On 7 December 2023, the Board reviewed and adjusted the dividend distribution policy, among which, including
clarifying the dividend appropriation ratio into the policy, which the Board will follow in formulating the dividend
distribution plan. The dividend distribution policy aims to reward shareholders with reasonable dividend payout to
the extent possible while maintaining adequate capital reserves for the current business operation and future growth.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

When deciding to distribute profit, the Company should consider both reasonable returns to investors and its
sustainable development, and the profit to be distributed should not exceed the accumulated distributable profits;

The Company may distribute profits by way of cash, stocks, a combination of cash and stocks, or other means
permitted by laws and regulations;

On the premise that the Company’s distributable profits are positive, cash dividends are allowed;

If the above condition referred to in the previous paragraph numbered (3) is met, the Company will, in principle,
distribute cash dividends once a year. The Board may propose to distribute mid-term cash dividends with
reference to profitability and capital needs of the Company;

Cash dividends in every year shall be no less than 30% of the distributable profits realized in that year. The
shareholders and Directors may propose a profit distribution plan for the undistributed profits retained in
previous years in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”);

The profit distribution plan is proposed and drafted by the management team and the office to the Board with
reference to the provisions of the Articles of Association, profitability, capital needs and shareholder return plan,
and is subject to approval by shareholders at a general meeting upon being approved by the Board.

The Board will continually review these policies and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify these policies from time to time.
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Dividends

Based on the total number of shares in issue on the record date for implementation of the profit appropriation, the
Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.20 (including tax) (2023: RMBO0.20 (including tax)
per share for the year ended 31 December 2024. The above proposal of profit appropriation is subject to consideration
and approval at the 2024 annual general meeting (the “2024 AGM”) of the Company. Subject to approval to the
Board’s proposal being obtained at the 2024 AGM, the final dividend is expected to be paid on or before 26
September 2025.

In accordance with the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China” and its implementation
regulations which came into effect on 1 January 2008, the Company is required to withhold and pay enterprise income
tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members for H shares of the Company when distributing final dividends to them. Any H shares registered not under
the name of an individual shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, agents or trustees, or
other organizations or groups, shall be deemed as shares held by non-resident enterprise shareholders. Therefore, on
this basis, enterprise income tax shall be withheld from dividends payable to such shareholders. If holders of H shares
intend to change its shareholder status, please enquire about the relevant procedures with your agents or trustees. The
Company will strictly comply with the laws and/or the requirements of the relevant government authority and
withhold and pay enterprise income tax on behalf of the relevant shareholders based on the register of members for
H shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the requirements of “Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on
Certain Policies Regarding Individual Income Tax” (Cai Shui Zi No. [1994] 020) {af &35 B R 5405 M
BAFTAFRE FHOR PR 6y E 40> (B4R 52[1994]020%%), individual foreigners exempt from individual income
tax on dividend and bonus from foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As the Company is a foreign-invested joint
stock limited company, the individual shareholders who hold the H shares of the Company and whose names appear
in the H-share registrar are not required to pay the individual income tax of PRC.

The record date of the 2024 AGM, the last day for trading in the securities with entitlement, the ex-entitlement date
and the last registration date of transfer of shares for the purpose of the 2024 final dividend and the period for the
closure of register of members will be set out in the notice convening the 2024 AGM of the Company to be sent to
the shareholders. The Company shall comply with the relevant rules and regulations to withhold and pay the
enterprise income tax on behalf of the relevant shareholders whose names are listed in the register of members of the
share of the Company as of the record date for the purpose of the 2024 final dividend.
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Share Capital

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there had been no change in the share capital of the Company. Details of the
share capital of the Company are set out in note V. 37 to the financial statements.

Connected Transaction in relation to the Proposed Subscription of New Domestic Shares Under the
Specific Mandate

On 22 August 2024 (after trading hours), the Company and SIAMC entered into the share subscription agreement
(the “Share Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
and SIAMC has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 40,000,000 new domestic shares (“Subscription Share(s)”) at
the subscription price of RMB2.54648 (equivalent to HK$2.78) per Subscription Share (“Subscription Price”) for a
total consideration of RMB101,859,200 (equivalent to approximately HK$111,200,000) in cash (the “Share
Subscription™).

Completion of the Share Subscription is conditional upon the fulfilment of the following conditions:

(@) the valid approval of this transaction and Share Subscription Agreement by the decision-making body of STAMC;

(b) the valid approval of this transaction and Share Subscription Agreement by the Board and the general meeting
of the Company (i.e. the Share Subscription was approved by more than 50% of the votes by the independent
shareholders at the EGM pursuant to The Code on Takeovers and Mergers (“Takeovers Code”));

(c) the approval of this transaction by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Department or its
authorised body;

(d) the obtaining of the whitewash waiver granted by the Executive Director of the Corporate Finance Division of
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong to SIAMC in respect of this transaction (“Whitewash
Waiver”) pursuant to Note 1 on dispensations from Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code;

(e) the Whitewash Waiver was approved by at least 75% of the votes cast in favour by the independent shareholders
at the EGM of the Company;

(f) this transaction was registered by China Securities Regulatory Commission; and

(9) the obtaining of other approvals, ratifications and filings from the competent regulatory authorities which may
be involved in respect of this transaction.

As at the date of this announcement, all of the above conditions have been fulfilled.
Completion of the Share Subscription

After SIAMC pays the Company the total Subscription Price for the Subscription Shares, the Company shall appoint
a Chinese Certified Public Accountant to verify the aforementioned payment of the SIAMC and issue a capital
verification report. Within 10 business days after the issuance of the capital verification report, the Company shall
submit a written application for registration of SIAMC as the holder of newly issued domestic shares to China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited or its branches. SIAMC may exercise its rights as a
Shareholder of newly issued domestic shares only after the completion of the aforementioned registration.

As at the date of this announcement, SIAMC has not yet paid the Company the total consideration for the Subscription
Shares.

Use of Proceeds

The maximum aggregate proceeds from the Share Subscription will be approximately RMB101,859,200 (equivalent
to approximately HK$111,200,000) and the maximum net proceeds (after deduction of issuance expenses and other
related costs and expenses) will be approximately RMB100,859,200 (equivalent to approximately HK$110,108,297),
whereas the net Subscription Price per Subscription Share will be approximately RMB2.52 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.75).
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The net proceeds from the Share Subscription are intended to be fully invested in the Company’s overseas capacity
building and smart logistics construction, in order to strengthen capacities in provision of overseas logistics services
to ensure supply, and enhance investment in warehousing and logistics construction, smart logistics and extension of
dual-power supply chains, etc.

Effects on Shareholding Structure of the Company

The following table sets out the (i) shareholding structure of the Company as at the date of this announcement; and
(ii) the potential shareholding structure of the Company immediately after Completion of the Share Subscription,
assuming that there is no other change to the share capital and shareholding structure of the Company prior to
Completion:

Immediately after
Completion of the Share Subscription

As at the date of this announcement

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of total
Number of shares  total number of Number of number of issued
held issued shares shares held shares
Domestic Shares
SIAMC - - 40,000,000 19.80%
Minsheng Industrial 25,774,720 15.90% 25,774,720 12.76%
Non-H foreign Shares
Ming Sung (HK) 6,444,480 3.98% 6,444,480 3.19%
H Shares
China Changan 41,225,600 25.44% 41,225,600 20.40%
APLL 32,399,200 19.99% 32,399,200 16.03%
Public Shareholders of H Shares 56,220,000 34.69% 56,220,000 27.82%
Total issued shares 162,064,000 100.00% 202,064,000 100.00%
SIAMC and the party acting in
concert with it
SIAMC - - 40,000,000 19.80%
China Changan 41,225,600 25.44% 41,225,600 20.40%
Sub-total 41,225,600 25.44% 81,225,600 40.20%

Note 1: The percentage figures as set out above are subject to rounding adjustments.
Note 2: Figures shown above are calculated assuming that no other shares will be issued or transferred from the date of this
announcement to the completion of the Share Subscription.

Reasons for and Benefits of Conducting the Share Subscription

The State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council has proposed to deepen
and enhance the reform of state-owned enterprises to improve their development qualities by leveraging the listing
platforms more effectively to increase the market recognition and facilitate value realization of the listed enterprises.
The Share Subscription is beneficial to the Company by effectively replenishing its liquidity, easing liquidity
pressures, optimising its capital structure and enhancing its overall risk-resistant capability. The issuance of domestic
shares to SIAMC will also showcase the support and confidence of the substantial Shareholders to the market, which
will be conducive to boosting the market capitalisation and share price, and promoting the functioning of the listing
platform and the restoration of valuation, which is required by the operation and development of the Company.
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In addition, the proceeds from the Share Subscription will be used to strengthen the construction of overseas logistics
capacity, providing capital support for the future overseas business, which is conducive to enhancing the Company’s
overall competitiveness, thereby enabling the Company to create greater value for its Shareholders.

Further announcement(s) in respect of the progress of the Share Subscription will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable requirements.

For details please refer to an announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2024 and a circular of the Company
dated 4 November 2024 in relation to, among others, (i) the Share Subscription (including the Share Subscription
Agreement, the transactions contemplated thereunder, and the Specific Mandate); (ii) the Whitewash Waiver; and
(iii) the proposed amendments to the Articles of Association, an announcement of the Company dated 12 September

2024 in relation to delay despatch of circular, an announcement of the Company dated 14 October 2024 in relation
to further delay despatch of circular and a supplemental announcement dated 10 October 2024.

Public Float

Based on the public information known to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this announcement, the Company has met the public float requirement as stipulated under the Listing Rules.

Reserves

Details of changes in the Company’s reserves during the reporting period are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and in note V. 40 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of changes in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during the reporting period are set out in note V. 16
to the financial statements.

Financial Position

A summary which includes the Group’s results and its assets and liabilities for the past five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Financial Summary” of this announcement.

153



REPORT OF THE BOARD

Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had the following subsidiaries.
Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries

CMAL Bo Yu

It was incorporated on 3 November 2005 in the PRC with an address at No.111-5-1, Shengtai Road, Fusheng
Prefecture, Jiangbei District, Chongging City, the PRC and possesses the registered capital of RMB60,000,000 and
the Company holds 100% of its equity interests. CMAL Bo Yu’s main business includes general freight, storage
(storage of dangerous goods not included), logistics planning and consultation and telecommunication services in the
PRC. Please refer to note VI to the financial statements of this announcement for further details.

Chongging Future Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.* (“Chongging Future”)

It was incorporated on 18 March 2009 in the PRC with an address at Logistics Distribution Plant, No.10, Huiliu
Road, Beibu New District, Chongging City, the PRC and has a registered capital of RMB30,000,000 and the
Company holds 100% of its equity interests. Chongging Future is mainly engaged in general freight, storage (storage
of dangerous goods not included), loading and unloading, handling, distribution, package processing (excluding
printing), packaging, automobile components and parts sub-packaging, processing (excluding engine processing) and
sales, international freight forwarding services (excluding international shipping forwarding) and logistics
information consultation and solution design, etc. Please refer to note VII to the financial statements of this
announcement for further details.

Chongging Saimei

It was incorporated on 28 April 2011 in the PRC and on 28 June 2023 it was renamed as Chongging Saimei Shuzhi
Technology Co., Ltd. from Chongging Changan Minsheng Fuyong Logistics Co., Ltd. with an address at Room 1-1,
Building 15, No. 39 Xinggu Road, Hangu Town, High-tech Zone, Chongging, the PRC changed from the previous
address of N0.26-11, Zongbao Road, Shapingba District, Chongging City, the PRC. It had a registered capital of
RMB5,000,000 and increased to RMB 50,000,000 since 5 November 2023 after completion of capital increase and
100% of its equity interests is held by the Company. Chongging Saimei is mainly engaged in technology-related
services, package containers leasing, intelligent sales and leasing businesses etc. Please refer to note VII to the
financial statements of this announcement for further details.
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Fulu International Logistics Co., Ltd.* (“Fulu International”)

It was established on 9 April 2014 in the PRC and was subsequently renamed as Fulu International Logistics Co.,
Ltd. from Chongging Fulu Bonded Logistics Co., Ltd., with an address at N0.88-7-108, Maya Road, Luohuang
Prefecture, Jiangjin District, Chongging City, the PRC and has a registered capital of RMB3,000,000 which was
subsequently increased to RMB60,000,000. Fulu International mainly engages in storage services (excluding
dangerous goods); loading and unloading, handling; freight forwarding; packaging, distribution; processing and
selling automobile parts; import and export of cargos and technology; designing of logistics solution and provision
of related information consultation, Non-Vessel Operating Common Carrier business, etc. Please refer to note VI to
the financial statements of this announcement for further details.

Hangzhou Changan Minsheng Logistics Co., Ltd.* (“Hangzhou Changan Minsheng”)

It was incorporated on 17 May 2013 in the PRC with an address at N0.599, Luyin Road, Qianjin Industrial Park
(Jiangdong Benji Qukuai), Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. After capital increase of RMB360,000,000
on 12 December 2016, its registered capital reaches RMB610,000,000 and the Company holds 100% of its equity
interests. Hangzhou Changan Minsheng is mainly engaged in dangerous goods road transportation, large objects
transportation; freight stowage, forwarding and tally; domestic waterway freight forwarding; processing, producing,
assembling, selling finished vehicles, automobile raw materials, parts and parts package materials; developing
logistics software and providing logistics technology consultation. Please refer to note V11 to the financial statements
of this announcement for further details.

Changan Minsheng (Shanghai) Supply Chain Co., Ltd.* (“Shanghai Supply Chain”)

It was incorporated on 5 August 2014 in the PRC with an address at Room 208A, Building B, No.5, Shuntong Road,
Lin-gang Special Area, Pilot Free Trade Zone, Shanghai City, the PRC. After capital increase of RMB 28,000,000
on 6 May 2015, its registered capital reaches RMB30,000,000. The Company holds 100% of its equity interests. The
main business of Shanghai Supply Chain is supply chain management, road transportation, import and export of
goods and technology, exhibition and display services, development and design of computer software and hardware,
storage (excluding dangerous goods), packaging, development of logistics software and information services. Please
refer to note VII to the financial statements of this announcement for further details.
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Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
Nanjing CMSC Logistics Co., Ltd.* (“Nanjing CMSC”)

It was incorporated on 26 July 2007 in the PRC with an address at No0.222, Qinshuiting West Road, Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Jiangning District, Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC with a registered
capital of RMB100,000,000. The Company holds 67% of its equity interests and Sumitomo Corporation
(“Sumitomo”) holds 33% of its equity interests. Nanjing CMSC is mainly engaged in general freight, domestic
freight forwarding, provision of international freight forwarding for cargo transported via sea, air and land; import
and export and related services, assembly and processing of automobile parts, leasing of machinery and vehicles, etc.
Please refer to note VI to the financial statements of this announcement for further details.

Changzu Feiyue

Previously named Chongging Changliang Logistics Technology Co., Ltd., it was incorporated on 16 May 2014 in
the PRC with an address at Industrial Park Zone, Economic Development Zone, Shuanggiao District, Chongging
City (N0.39-2, Checheng Road), the PRC and has a registered capital of RMB50,000,000. The Company holds 55%
of equity interests of Changzu Feiyue, Chongging Shuanggiao Economic & Technological Development Zone
Investment Group, Co. Ltd.* holds 37.80% of its equity interests and Suzhou Zhongji Liangcai Technology Co., Ltd.
holds the remaining 7.20% of its equity interests. Changzu Feiyue is mainly engaged in developing logistics
technology, technical services and provision of technology consultation; producing, selling, renting and maintenance
of containers; processing and selling of automobile parts; imports and exports; general freight; storage (excluding
dangerous goods); international freight forwarding (excluding forwarding cargos transported by waterway and
international freight forwarding by vessels); provision of packaging information consultation services, etc. Please
refer to note VII to the financial statements of this announcement for further details.

Chongging Changxiang Supply Chain Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Changxiang Supply Chain”)

It was incorporated on 24 March 2021 in the PRC with an address at No.2-4-401, Longgang Road, Guojiatuo Street,
Jiangbei District, Chongging, the PRC and has a registered capital of RMB20 million. The Company and FAW
Logistics Co., Ltd. own 70% and 30% equity interests of Changxiang Supply Chain respectively. Changxiang Supply
Chain is primarily engaged in road cargo transportation (excluding dangerous goods), city distribution and
transportation (excluding dangerous goods), road cargo transport station operation, road cargo transportation
(including dangerous goods and items that need to be approved according to law, and the specific items are subject
to the approval documents or licenses of relevant departments); ordinary cargo storage, packaging, automobile sales,
second-hand car brokerage, business agent service, motor vehicle refitting, car repair and maintenance, auto parts
retail, domestic container freight forwarding agent service, second-hand car dealing, automotive decoration sales and
other businesses. Please refer to note VI to the financial statements of this announcement for further details.

Wuhan Changjiang Zhilian Port Development Co., Ltd.* (“Changjiang Zhilian”)

It was established on 3 November 2017 with the registered address at 1/F, Unit 1, Building 19-3-1, Jincheng Village,
Dengnan Street, Hannan District, Wuhan, the PRC and has a registered capital of RMB30 million. Changjiang Zhilian
is owned as to 55.1150%, 12.7770%, 12.7340%, 12.2340% and 7.1400% by the Company, Hubei Port Group Co.,
Ltd.*, Hubei Hannangang Logistics Co., Ltd.*, Wuhan Shengde Rixin Automobile Industrial Park Co., Ltd.* and
Wuhan Changxin Hengyuan Industrial Development Co., Ltd.* respectively. Changjiang Zhilian is primarily
engaged in licensed business items, including port operation, port cargo handling services, road transport of goods
(excluding dangerous goods), water transport of general cargo, road transport of goods (including dangerous goods),
road transport of goods (Internet freight) and general business items, including general goods storage service
(excluding dangerous goods and items that need to be licensed or approved), domestic container freight forwarding,
domestic freight forwarding, international freight forwarding, non-vessel carrier business, road freight transport
station operation, used automobiles brokerage, used automobiles dealing, house leasing, property management,
machinery equipment leasing, non-residential property leasing, auto spare parts retail, new car sales and other
services. Please refer to note VII to the financial statements of this announcement for further details.
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Capitalized Interests

For the year ended 31 December 2024, no interest had been capitalized by the Company.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and was in force
throughout this year. The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential
legal actions against its Directors and officers.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognizes that employees are our valuable assets. Thus, our Group provides a competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration packages of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group also understands that it is important
to maintain good relationships with business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long-term goals. During the
reporting period, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its business partners or bank
enterprises.

Retirement Plan

Details of the Company’s retirement pension schemes are set out in note Il1l. 23 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES “Employee benefits” to the financial statements.

Employees

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 3,137 employees (31 December 2023: 4,031 employees), and the gender
ratio in the workforce (including senior management) was male: female=2.22 : 1.

The breakdown of the number of employees of the Group by functions is as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023
Administration 246 239
Specialists 1,500 1,482
Operators 1,391 2,310
Total 3,137 4,031

Please refer to note V. 27 to the financial statements for a breakdown of the employee benefit expense.
Remuneration Policy

The salaries of the Company’s employees are determined by reference to the market rates, performance, qualifications
and experience of the relevant employees. A discretionary bonus may also be given based on the performance of
individual staff during the year in order to reward the employees for their contributions to the Company. Other
employee benefits include pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, personal injury insurance
and housing funds, etc.
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Training Programme

During the year, the Company has provided the staff with training regarding technology, security and management,
etc.

Staff Quarters

During the year, the Company has not provided any staff quarters to the staff (2023: nil). Full-time employees are
entitled to participate in the government-sponsored housing fund. The Company contributes on a monthly basis to
the fund at certain rates of the employees’ basic salary.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors of the sixth session of the Board and supervisors of the sixth session of the supervisory committee (the
“Supervisory Committee”) of the Company up to the date of this announcement were as follows:

Executive Directors
Xie Shikang (Chairman)
Wan Nianyong

Non-executive Directors
Che Dexi

Chen Wenbo

Dong Shaojie

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Ming

Man Wing Pong

Chen Jing

Supervisors
Wang Huaicheng
Ang Lai Fern
Yang Gang
Deng Li

Liu Shasha

(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)
(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)

(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)
(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)
(re-appointed on30 June 2023)

(appointed on 30 June 2023)
(appointed on 30 June 2023)
(appointed on 30 June 2023)

(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)

(appointed on 30 June 2023)
(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)
(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)
(re-appointed on 30 June 2023)

Members of each of the sixth session of the Board and the sixth session of the Supervisory Committee of the Company
were elected and appointed on 30 June 2023. For further details, please refer to the circular dated 14 June 2023 and
the announcement dated 30 June 2023 of the Company.

Confirmation of Independence
The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-executive

Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the existing independent non-executive
Directors are independent of the Company and connected persons of the Company.
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Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a service contract with the Company. There
is no unexpired period of any service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”, there was no contract of significance
to which the Company was a party and in which a Director or supervisor had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

There are no relationships, including financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships among
members of the Board, the Supervisory Committee and the senior management of the Company except for their
working relationships within the Company.

Highest Paid Individuals

During the year, the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group are all Directors and senior
management of the Company. Details of the highest paid individuals are set out in note XV.4 to the financial
statements of this announcement.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of Directors and supervisors are set out in note XV.3 to the financial statements of this
announcement.

The remuneration provided to Directors and supervisors is determined on, among other things, the relevant experience
and responsibility of, and time devoted to the Company by the Director or supervisor.

Interests of Directors, Chief Executive and Supervisors in Shares of the Company and
Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors, chief executive and the supervisors of the Company have any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong Kong (the
“SFO”)) which (a) were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (b) were required, pursuant to the Appendix C3 of Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) to the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors, chief executive and the supervisors of the Company were not beneficially
interested in the share capital of any member of the Group nor did they have any right (whether legally enforceable
or not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of the Group, nor did they
have any interest, either direct or indirect, in any assets which have been, since 31 December 2024, made up, acquired,
disposed of by or leased to or are proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group.
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Substantial Shareholders and Parties Holding Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to the Directors, chief executive and the supervisors of the Company,
the following persons, other than a Director, supervisor, or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or are required, pursuant to Sections 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein:

Percentage
of Domestic Percentage
Shares (non- of Total
H Foreign Registered
Name of Number of Shares Percentage Share
Shareholders Capacity Shares Included) of H Shares Capital
CSGC Interest of a 41,225,600(L) - 31.75% 25.44%
controlled (H shares)
corporation
China Changan Beneficial 41,225,600(L) - 31.75% 25.44%
owner (H shares)
Kintetsu World Express, Inc. Interest of a 32,399,200(L) - 24.96% 19.99%
(note 3) controlled (H shares)
corporation
APL Logistics (note 3) Beneficial 32,399,200(L) - 24.96% 19.99%
owner (H shares)
Chongging Luzuofu Equity Interest of a 32,219,200(L) 100.00% - 19.88%
Fund Management Co., Ltd. controlled (Domestic shares and
corporation non-H foreign shares)
Minsheng Industrial (note 1) Beneficial 25,774,720(L) 80.00% - 15.90%
owner (Domestic shares)
Minsheng Industrial Interest of a 6,444,480(L) 20.00% - 3.98%
controlled (Non-H foreign shares)
corporation
Ming Sung (HK) (note 1) Beneficial 6,444,480(L) 20.00% - 3.98%

owner (Non-H foreign shares)

Note 1: Ming Sung (HK) is the subsidiary of Minsheng Industrial.

Note 2: (L) — long position.

Note 3: APL Logistics is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kintetsu World Express, Inc., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kintetsu
Group Holdings Co., Ltd.

Save as disclosed in this announcement, as at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, there is no other person (other than the Directors, supervisors, or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or are
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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Share Appreciation Rights Incentive Scheme

On 28 August 2020, the Board has considered and approved a share appreciation rights (the “Share Appreciation
Rights”) scheme (the “Scheme”). The Scheme has been approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission (the “SASAC”) of the State Council of the PRC and the shareholders of the Company
at the 2021 first extraordinary general meeting held on 27 April 2021. The Scheme became effective and was adopted
by the Company before 1 January 2024. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 August 2020, 1
March 2021 and 27 April 2021, and the circular of the Company dated 12 April 2021 for further details. Unless
otherwise defined, capitalized terms used in this announcement shall have the same meaning as those defined in the
aforementioned announcement and circular.

The purpose of the Scheme is to establish a long-term incentive mechanism closely linking the interests of the
management team with those of the Company and its shareholders and to bring them together in focusing on the long-
term and sustainable development of the Company.

The Board set 27 April 2021 as the date of grant (the “Date of Grant”) and HKD2.98 as the exercise price. The
closing price of the H shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange immediately
before the Date of Grant was HKD2.668 per share. The exercise price of the Share Appreciation Rights under the
Scheme was the higher of: (1) the closing price of H share of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the Date of Grant of HKD2.98 per share; (2) the average closing price of H share of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for five consecutive trading days prior to the
Date of Grant of HKD2.83 pe share; or (3) the par value of the H shares of the Company of RMB1. The number of
units of the Share Appreciation Rights (number of shares) granted under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
ten percent (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company as of the effective date of the Scheme.

On the Date of Grant, the Company granted 4,861,400 units of Share Appreciation Rights to 29 incentive recipients
(“Incentive Recipient(s)”), accounting for approximately 3.00% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Incentive Recipients are the individual(s) eligible to receive the Share Appreciation Rights granted by the Company
under the Scheme, including Directors (external Directors and supervisors are excluded), senior management, and
key employees having immediate impact on the business performance and sustainable development of the Company,
but shall not be a substantial shareholder or de facto controller holding over 5% of the shares, or their parents, spouses
or children thereof. The number of underlying shares of the Share Appreciation Rights granted to any single Incentive
Recipient did not exceed one percent (1%) of the total issued share capital of the Company. The maximum gains
from the Share Appreciation Rights granted to any Director or member of senior managements under the Scheme
shall not exceed 40% of their total annual remuneration (including expected benefits from Share Appreciation Rights)
as at the grant of the Share Appreciation Rights. During the effective period, the actual gains to be received by each
Incentive Recipient from the Share Appreciation Rights shall not exceed his or her total remuneration (equivalent to
an aggregate of two-year remuneration and benefits from Share Appreciation Rights) as at the grant of the Share
Appreciation Rights. Any excess shall be turned over to the discretion of the Company.

The Scheme is valid for a period of five years from 27 April 2021. The Vesting Period is a period of two years (24
months) commencing from the Date of Grant until the first Vesting Date, (i.e. no Share Appreciation Rights shall be
exercised for a period of two years since the Date of Grant). The Share Appreciation Rights granted to the Incentive
Recipients shall take effect by one third each year in the next three years upon the expiry of the Vesting Period. Each
of the Vesting Dates shall be the second, third and fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant. The Vesting Date may be
extended to the next trading day should the anniversary fall to be on a non-trading day.
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The Share Appreciation Rights granted by the Company on 27 April 2021 entered the First Exercise Period on 27
April 2023. Pursuant to the audited financial report prepared by PKF Hong Kong Limited (the “PKF”), the former
international auditor of the Company, the revenue of the Group for 2021 was RMB6.021 billion, the net profit for
2021 was RMB42,109,000 and the return on equity for 2021 was 2.01%. The return on equity for 2021 is lower than
75 percentiles of the respective indicators of benchmark companies and the industry average. Thus, the effective
conditions to the First Exercise Period under the Scheme were not met.

On 12 May 2023, the Board approved that a total number of 1,620,467 units (representing 1/3 of the total number of
Share Appreciation Rights granted) of Share Appreciation Rights in the First Exercise Period was nullified. This
nullification would not affect the remaining number of Share Appreciation Rights of 3,240,933 units to be effective
in the Second Exercise Period and the Third Exercise Period under the Scheme. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 12 May 2023 for further details.

The Share Appreciation Rights entered the Second Exercise Period on 27 April 2024. As at 31 December 2024,
details of the Share Appreciation Rights were as follows:

Number of Share Appreciation Rights
Exercise . . -
Date of . Vesting Exercisable Outstanding .
price . . . Outstanding
grant period period asatl Lapsed during the
(HKD) asat 31
January year December 2024
2024
27 April 2021 27 April 202
27 April pril 20 pril 2023
2001 2.98 to to 3,240,933 0 3,240,933
27 April 2026 27 April 2025
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Competing Interests

Before the listing of the H shares on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of the Stock Exchange, the
Company’s substantial shareholders, APL Logistics, Minsheng Industrial, Ming Sung (HK) and Changan Industry
Company (Group) Limited (“Changan Industry Company”), had all entered into non-competition undertakings
with the Company in favor of the Company. Please refer to the Prospectus of the Company for details of such
undertakings.

Up to the date of this announcement, the non-competition undertakings given by Changan Industry Company are still
effective. As at the end of 2011, the aggregate shareholding in the Company held by Minsheng Industrial and Ming
Sung (HK) (together with their respective associates) fell below 20%, the non-competition undertakings signed
between the Company and Minsheng Industrial and Ming Sung (HK) became ineffective. On 27 December 2023, the
shareholding in the Company held by APL Logistics fell to 19.99%, the non-competition undertakings signed
between the Company and APL Logistics became ineffective.

China Changan acquired all the shares in the Company held by Changan Industry Company on 9 March 2016. The
obligations under the non-competition undertakings signed by Changan Industry Company were assumed by China
Changan since 9 March 2016.

In March 2025, the Company received the confirmation regarding the above-mentioned non-competition
undertakings from each of APL Logistics and China Changan.

Save as disclosed above, during the reporting period, none of the Director(s) or substantial shareholder(s) of the
Company had any interest in any business that competes or may compete with the Group.

Mergers & Acquisitions

No material mergers and acquisitions of the Group were carried out during the reporting period.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected transactions of the Company which need to be
reported pursuant to the Listing Rules during the year.

Background of the Continuing Connected Transactions

China Changan holds approximately 25.44% of the issued share capital of the Company and 17.98% of the equity
interests of Changan Automobile. In addition, CSGC holds 100% equity interests in China Changan and 14.23%
equity interests in Changan Automobile. SIAMC (a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSGC) holds 4.60% equity interest
in Changan Automobile. The ultimate shareholder of SIAMC is CSGC. The ultimate beneficial owner of CSGC is
the SASAC of the State Council. China South Industries Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Zhuangbei Finance”) is a
member company of CSGC in that CSGC holds 22.90% equity interests and China Changan holds 13.27% equity
interests. The ultimate beneficial owner of Zhuangbei Finance is CSGC. As at the date of this announcement, the
Company holds approximately 0.81% equity interests in Zhuangbei Finance. Both of APLL and Minsheng Industrial
are the substantial shareholders of the Company, respectively holding approximately 19.99% and approximately
15.90% of the total issued share capital of the Company. Therefore, according to the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Group and each of China Changan, Changan Automobile, APLL, Minsheng Industrial, Zhuangbei
Finance and their respective associates become connected transactions of the Company.

As the Company and Sumitomo hold 67% and 33% of the registered capital of Nanjing CMSC respectively, and
Sumitomo holds 49% of the registered capital of Nanjing Baogang Zhushang Metal Products Company Limited
(“Baogang Zhushang”). Therefore, according to the Listing Rules, Baogang Zhushang is a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level and the transactions between Nanjing CMSC and Baogang Zhushang contemplated
under the framework agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

On 30 October 2023, the Company entered into the following framework agreements, each for a term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2024 and expiring on 31 December 2026 (both days inclusive):

(1) the framework agreement with Changan Automobile, pursuant to which the Group shall provide logistics services
(including but not limited to the following logistics services: finished vehicle transportation, tire assembly, and
supply chain management for automobile raw materials, components and parts) to Changan Automobile and its
associates;

(2) the framework agreement with China Changan, pursuant to which the Group shall provide logistics services
(including but not limited to the following logistics services: finished vehicle transportation, tire assembly,
supply chain management for automobile raw materials, components and parts; and logistics services for non-
automobile products, such as transformer, steel, optical product and specialty product) to China Changan and its
associates;

(3) the procurement framework agreement with Minsheng Industrial, pursuant to which the Group shall purchase
logistics services from Minsheng Industrial and its associates;

(4) the framework agreement with Zhuangbei Finance, pursuant to which Zhuangbei Finance shall provide the Group
with settlements, deposit and loans, note discounting services;

(5) the framework agreement with Minsheng Industrial, pursuant to which the Group shall provide logistics services
to Minsheng Industrial and its associates;

(6) the procurement framework agreement with China Changan, pursuant to which the Group shall purchase security
and cleaning services and property leasing services from China Changan and its associates;

(7) the framework agreement with APLL, pursuant to which the Group shall (i) provide logistics services to APLL
and its associates and (ii) purchase logistics services from APLL and its associates;

(8) the framework agreement signed between Nanjing CMSC and Baogang Zhushang, pursuant to which Nanjing
CMSC shall provide logistics services to Baogang Zhushang and its associates.

Please refer to the announcements dated 30 October 2023, 3 November 2023 and the circular dated 23 January 2024
of the Company for further details.
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Brief Description and Purpose of the Group’s Continuing Connected Transactions
With respect to the logistics services provided by the Group to Changan Automobile and its associates

The Group has been in business contact with Changan Automobile since the establishment of the Company and has
maintained a good relationship with Changan Automobile ever since. The Group is a major logistics services supplier
of Changan Automobile and its associates. The Group’s logistics services have been highly recognized by Changan
Automobile and its associates. Provision of logistics services to Changan Automobile and its associates by the Group
continues to occupy a major portion of the Group’s business, thus contributing significantly to the overall revenue of
the Group. The Company believes that it is essential to maintain the provision of logistics services by the Group to
Changan Automobile and its associates to ensure a source of revenue. The Company therefore is of the view that the
Group should continue to provide comprehensive automobile logistics services for Changan Automobile and its
associates to maximize the revenue of the Group.

With respect to the logistic services provided by the Group to China Changan and its associates

China Changan is essentially a large enterprise with businesses mainly ranging from parts and components to
automobile retail. It has roughly 18 member companies engaging in parts production such as automobile engines,
transmissions, power components, chassis, shock absorbers, supercharges, pistons and so on. The Group stepped up
efforts in exploring the parts business of China Changan and its associates ever since China Changan became one of
the substantial shareholders of the Company. Currently, the Group has established steady business contact with
several member companies of China Changan by providing logistics services such as automobile parts distribution,
transportation, storage, etc. The Group anticipates that by leveraging on the current business relationship, the Group
can establish more business contact with Changan Group and can tap into the market potentials presented by China
Changan and its associates, thereby increasing business sources and maximizing revenue of the Group.

With respect to the logistic services provided to the Group by Minsheng Industrial and its associates

The Group is a third-party automobile logistics service provider for providing comprehensive logistics solution for
our customers. However, the Group currently does not have any vessels or enough freight carriers to ensure an
independent operation of business. Therefore, the Group needs to purchase logistics services from suppliers with
sufficient transportation capacity and logistics facilities and equipment. Minsheng Industrial is fully equipped with
ro-ro ships of various volumes and car transporters and has extensive, well established logistics network across the
country. Therefore, Minsheng Industrial and its associates are competent in providing logistics services to the Group.
In addition, Minsheng Industrial and its associates have been credible and reliable business partners of the Group and
have been providing various logistics services such as waterway transportation of cars and car components and parts,
finished vehicles transportation by road, customs clearance, container transportation, etc. for many years. As such,
the Directors are of the view that the Group should continue to purchase logistics services from Minsheng Industrial
and its associates to support the smooth running of the Group’s primary business and tap on the strength of Minsheng
Industrial’s various resources to our advantage and provide our customers with quality services and maximize the
revenue of the Group. The Directors are of the view that the transaction is in the interest of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.
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With respect to the transaction between the Group and Zhuangbei Finance

Zhuangbei Finance is a non-banking financial institution in the PRC as approved by the National Financial
Regulatory Administration and is established with capital contribution from member companies of CSGC for purpose
of centralizing capital management and optimizing capital efficiency within CSGC. Zhuangbei Finance has been
providing financial services for member companies of CSGC for years and is highly recognized for its financial
management services. In addition, the major customers of the Group are member companies within CSGC and they
all have maintained accounts with Zhuangbei Finance. It would reduce time costs and finance costs if the Company
deposits and conducts note discounting services with, and/or to obtain loan advancement from, Zhuangbei Finance.
Moreover, Zhuangbei Finance offers more favourable terms and comparatively less finance fees and charges than
those payable to external banks in the PRC.

With respect to the logistics services provided by the Group to Minsheng Industrial and its associates

Minsheng Industrial and its associates specialized in waterway transportation and has affluent resources such as ro-
ro ships, vessels and vast waterway logistics network, enabling them to operate smoothly along the Yangtze River.
However, in order to provide comprehensive logistics solutions to its customers, like combined transportation by
waterway plus road, occasionally, Minsheng Industrial and its associates find themselves in need of logistics services
from the Group such as station management support and road transportation support. As a longstanding business
partner of Minsheng Industrial, the Group’s strength is in provision of comprehensive logistics solutions which could
cater to the needs of Minsheng Industrial and its associates. The Directors are of the view that the Group should
continue to do business with Minsheng Industrial and its associates in the hope that by combining the resources and
strength from both parties, Minsheng Industrial and the Group will find common ground to cooperate to our mutual
benefit.

With respect to the security and cleaning services and property leasing services provided by China Changan and
its associates to the Group

Chongging Changan Smart City Operation and Management Co., Ltd. (the former Chongging Changan Property
Management Co., Ltd.), an associate of China Changan, is a first-class property management company in the country
and a member of the China Property Management Institute and has extensive property management experience. The
Group considers that procurement of security and cleaning services from China Changan and its associates, mainly
from Chongging Changan Smart City Operation and Management Co., Ltd., can provide assurance to the Group that
it would be provided with comprehensive, standard and high-level security and cleaning services, thereby ensuring
the smooth running of the daily operation of the business projects of the Group. As such, the Directors are of the
view that it is in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole for the Group to continue to purchase
security and cleaning services from China Changan and its associates.

China Changan and its associates have long been providing property leasing services for the Group and is rather
familiar with the Group’s requirement on the leased properties and will continue to respond quickly and in cost-
efficient manner to any new requirement that the Group may have. Most warehouses and stations available from
China Changan and its associates are geographically convenient for the Group to store car raw materials and finished
vehicles. In addition, entering into property leasing transactions with China Changan would provide the Group with
stability and substantially reduce the risks of possible shortage of suitable warehouses and stations and the wild
fluctuation in rentals arising from the generally expected appreciation in the value of properties. Besides, the Group
maintains the flexibility in leasing properties such as warehouses and stations from other independent parties.
Therefore, the Directors are of the view that the Group should continue the property leasing transactions with China
Changan and its associates as it is in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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With respect to the logistics services provided by the Group to APLL and its associates

As a seasoned international logistics service provider with advanced logistics technology, APLL has strengthened its
footprint overseas with extensive branches reaching mainland China, America and India. APLL and its associates
have been providing supply chain management services for IT companies in Mainland China. The Group has strong
logistics capacity in Mainland China and is also looking to explore overseas business to achieve further development.
APLL is the substantial shareholder of the Company and is open to cooperation with the Group. Cooperation with
APLL will not only help the Group to obtain various outsourced logistics business from APLL to generate revenue
but also will help the Group keep abreast of the cutting-edge international logistics technology, leading operation
schema and time-tested management method to optimize the business operation of the Group. The Directors is of the
view that the continuing connected transactions exempt from shareholder’s approval with APLL and its associates
are beneficial for the Group’s development and is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

With respect to the logistics services purchased by the Group from APLL and its associates

The Group’s customers, Changan Ford and Changan Automobile have business in overseas countries such as
America, Mexico, Vietnam and Philippines. The Group needs to purchase international logistics services from
qualified international logistics service providers with sufficient capacity and well-established logistics network.
APLL offers a comprehensive suite of services extending from international freight forwarding to both origin and
destination services, including freight consolidation, warehousing and distribution management and operates in
several international trade lines. The Company is of the view that APLL and its associates are competent to provide
comprehensive international logistics services for the Group and will help to ensure the Group’s service quality. In
addition, having APLL and its associates to provide logistics services for the Group will give the Group with more
choice in the selection of international logistics service providers. Therefore, the Directors is of the view that it is in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

With respect to the logistics services provided by Nanjing CMSC to Baogang Zhushang

Baogang Zhushang needs to purchase steel transportation services, etc. Nanjing CMSC has been providing steel
transportation services for Baogang Zhushang for a considerable period of time and is recognized by Baogang
Zhushang for its service quality. In addition, as the business with Baogang Zhushang is rather stable, the Directors
are of the view that Nanjing CMSC should continue to provide logistics services to Baogang Zhushang to ensure a
stable revenue source to maximize the revenue of the Group and is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.
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Pricing of Continuing Connected Transactions

According to the framework agreements signed on 30 October 2023 between the Company and each of Changan
Automobile, China Changan, APLL and Minsheng Industrial and the framework agreement signed between Nanjing
CMSC, the Company’s holding subsidiary, and Baogang Zhushang, the prices of the transactions for the services
provided by the Group to our customers under such framework agreements are determined in accordance with the
principles and order of bidding price, internal compared price and cost-plus price. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 30 October 2023, 3 November 2023 and the circular dated 23 January 2024 for further details.

According to the framework agreements signed on 30 October 2023 between the Company and each of Minsheng
Industrial, China Changan, and APLL, the prices of the transactions for the services purchased by the Group under
such framework agreements are determined in accordance with the principle and order of bidding price and internal
compared price. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 October 2023, 3 November 2023 and
the circular dated 23 January 2024 for further details.

According to the framework agreement signed on 30 October 2023 between the Company and Zhuangbei Finance
regarding settlements, deposits and loans, and note discounting services, the prices of the transaction under such
framework agreement are set on normal commercial terms.

The transactions between the Company and the connected persons were on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favorable to the Company than those available from independent third parties under current local market
conditions, and the relevant connected transactions were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.
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Total Consideration of the Continuing Connected Transactions

During the reporting period, the Group conducted continuing connected transactions with China Changan, Changan
Automobile, APL Logistics, Minsheng Industrial, Zhuangbei Finance, and their respective associates, and Nanjing
CMSC also entered into continuing connected transactions with Baogang Zhushang, which constitute related party
transactions in accounting during the period. The details are set out in note XI to the financial statements of the
announcement. During the reporting period, the Group had strictly complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total consideration paid to the Group by each of the relevant connected
persons for the logistics services is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Actual Transaction Amount Annual Caps or
Revised Annual Caps
RMB yuan RMB yuan

China Changan and its associates:
- Logistics services (including but not limited to the 241,409,746.74 300,000,000.00
following  logistics  services:  finished  vehicle
transportation, tire assembly, supply chain management
for automobile raw materials, components and parts; and
logistics services for non-automobile products, such as
transformer, steel, optical product and specialty product)

Changan Automobile and its associates:
- Logistics services (including but not limited to the 5,681,365,858.69 7,000,000,000.00
following  logistics  services:  finished  vehicle
transportation, tire assembly, and supply chain
management for automobile raw materials, components
and parts)

Minsheng Industrial and its associates:
- logistics services 332,030.16 11,000,000.00

APL Logistics and its associates:
- logistics services 0.00 5,000,000.00

Baogang Zhushang:
- logistics services 580,311.27 7,000,000.00

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total consideration paid by the Group to each of the connected persons for
the purchase of transportation services of automobiles and automobile raw materials, components and parts is as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Actual Transaction Amount Annual Caps or

Revised Annual Caps

RMB yuan RMB yuan

Minsheng Industrial and its associates: 214,192,727.22 450,000,000.00
APL Logistics and its associates: 0.00 5,000,000.00
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total consideration paid by the Group to each of the connected persons for
the purchase of property leasing services is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Actual Transaction Amount Annual Caps or

Revised Annual Caps

RMB yuan RMB yuan

China Changan and its associates: 3,998,616.51 5,000,000.00

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total consideration paid by the Group to each of the connected persons for
the purchase of security and cleaning services is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Actual Transaction Amount Annual Caps or

Revised Annual Caps

RMB yuan RMB yuan

China Changan and its associates: 15,248,654.66 16,200,000.00

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the amount of transactions between the Group and Zhuangbei Finance are as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Actual Transaction Amount Annual Caps or

Revised Annual Caps

RMB yuan RMB yuan

The balance of the maximum amount of outstanding of deposit 188,131,908.59 200,000,000.00

(including interest) on a daily basis

In March 2025, the Company received confirmation letters as required under Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules from
Mr. Li Ming, Mr. Man Wing Pong and Ms. Chen Jing, the independent non-executive Directors of the Company,
confirming that the continuing connected transactions of the Company for 2024 were:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditor to report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In accordance with Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules, the Board of
the Company confirmed that the external auditor of the Company had made a confirmation statement on the issues
mentioned in Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The external auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions set out above.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the twelve months ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note XI to the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a disclosable connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules, except for the transactions
described in this paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”, in respect of which the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

170



REPORT OF THE BOARD

Legal Proceedings
Litigation 1

In March 2022, the Company entered into a storage supervision agreement with Chongging Supply and Marketing
Automobile Trading Co., Ltd.* (the “SMAT”), which stipulates, among others, that the Company shall provide
vehicle storage supervision services to SMAT, for a term of one year from 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2023. In
April 2022, a total of 105 vehicles were stolen. A supervision contract dispute arose between the Company and
SMAT and SMAT filed lawsuits with Chongqing Yubei District People’s Court (the “Yubei District Court™). On
21 December 2022, the Yubei District Court accepted the case of contract disputes and froze a total of over RMB30
million in the Company’s bank account.

On 28 October 2023, the Yubei District Court issued civil judgments with case number of No. (2022) Yu 0112 Min
Chu 37670 and No. (2022) Yu 0112 Min Chu 37681, dismissing the litigation claims of SMAT. SMAT appealed to
Chongqing No. 1 Intermediate People’s Court, and on 11 April 2024, Chongqing No. 1 Intermediate People’s Court
made civil verdicts with case number of No. (2024) Yu 01 Min Zhong 593 and No. (2024) Yu 01 Min Zhong 596,
which revoked the civil judgments issued by the Yubei District Court under No. (2022) Yu 0112 Min Chu No. 37670
and No. (2022) Yu 0112 Min Chu No. 37681, respectively, and dismissed the appeals filed by SMAT.

Under the judicial system in China, the appeal case is final and conclusive, and the Company is not liable for
compensation claimed by SMAT. On 30 April 2024, the Company’s frozen bank account of over RMB30 million
were unfrozen. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 December 2022 and 30 April 2024
respectively for further details.
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Litigation 2

On 18 August 2022, Boyu Tongnan Branch, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a cargo
transportation agreement (the “Agreement”) with Zhongcun Material Trading Yunnan Co., Ltd. (“Zhongcun
Trading”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC, to provide coal transportation services to it and
payment under the Agreement shall be payable by Zhongcun Trading to Boyu Tongnan Branch within 2 months after
completion of the services contemplated under the Agreement and account checking between the two parties. On 18
August 2022, Zhongcun Coal Mine (“Zhongcun Coal Mine”) of Qujing City, Yunnan Province, the PRC, the parent
company of Zhongcun Trading, issued a letter of guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in favour of Boyu Tongnan Branch,
stipulating that Zhongcun Coal Mine, as the guarantor, shall assume an irrevocable joint liability to Boyu Tongnan
Branch for all debts due and owing by Zhongcun Trading to Boyu Tongnan Branch arising out of the performance
of the Agreement. The scope of the Guarantee includes, but is not limited to, the creditor’s rights, interest, penalties,
and expenses for claiming the creditor’s rights (including but not limited to litigation fees, arbitration fees, attorney
fees, etc.) and all other expenses payable.

After the signing of the Agreement, Boyu Tongnan Branch fulfilled all rights and obligations as agreed on or about
6 January 2023. However, despite repeated requests, Zhongcun Trading failed to settle the transportation fees in full
as agreed and owed, as of 13 November 2023, Boyu Tongnan Branch the sum of RMB38,791,900 being the
transportation fees. On 8 September 2023, Boyu Tongnan Branch, Zhongcun Trading and Zhongcun Coal Mine
reached a civil ruling ((2023) Yun 0302 Su Qian Tiao Que No. 438) under the ruling of the Qilin District People’s
Court of Qujing City, Yunnan Province, the PRC (“Qujing Court”). It is agreed that Zhongcun Trading will pay
Boyu Tongnan Branch the outstanding transportation fees in the sum of RMB38,791,900 and capital occupation fees
caused by overdue payment in the sum of RMB3,037,100, totaling RMB41,829,000 (the “Debts”) before 30
September 2023. Zhongcun Coal Mine shall assume joint liability for paying the Debts.

Since Zhongcun Trading failed to pay the said sum of RMB41,829,000 being the outstanding transportation fees and
capital occupation fees as stipulated in the civil ruling, Boyu Tongnan Branch applied to Qujing Court for
enforcement after repeatedly urging Zhongcun Trading and Zhongcun Coal Mine for payment of the Debts. On 6
November 2023, Qujing Court accepted the enforcement application of Boyu Tongnan Branch (case no.: (2023) Yun
0302 Zhi No. 6293), requesting Zhongcun Trading to pay the Debts, and Zhongcun Coal Mine to assume joint liability
for paying the Debts to Boyu Tongnan Branch. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 November
2023 for further details.

On 29 December 2023, Boyu Tongnan Branch received an enforcement payment of RMB597,500 transferred from
the Qujing Court, and from January to December 2024, Zhongcun Trading repaid RMB6,510,000. The debts owned
by Zhongcun Trading to Boyu Tongnan Branch were reduced from RMB38,791,900 to RMB32,281,900.

Currently, the Company is taking active measures to collect the Debts from Zhongcun Trading and Zhongcun Coal

Mine and will make further announcements to keep the shareholders and potential investors of the Company informed
of any significant development on the litigation as and when appropriate.
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Litigation 3

On 7 September 2023, Boyu Tongnan Branch entered into a Cargo Transportation Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Yizhao Huasheng for the provision of cargo road transportation services to it for the period up to 30 September
2024. ELION ENERGY Company Limited holds approximately 76.92% of the shares in Yizhao Huasheng. On 12
September 2023, ELION Dalad Branch issued a letter of guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in favour of Boyu Tongnan
Branch, pursuant to which ELION Dalad Branch, as the guarantor, assumes an irrevocable joint liability to Boyu
Tongnan Branch for all debts due and owing by Yizhao Huasheng to Boyu Tongnan Branch arising out of the
performance of the Agreement. The Guarantee will expire six months after the due date of the debts incurred under
the Agreement.

After the signing of the Agreement, Boyu Tongnan Branch fulfilled its transportation obligations in accordance with
the Agreement. However, Yizhao Huasheng failed to settle the transportation fees incurred from November 2023 to
February 2024 totaling RMB18,306,300. On 6 May 2024, the Company entered into the Freight Repayment
Agreement (the “Repayment Agreement”) with Yizhao Huasheng and ELION Dalad Branch, pursuant to which
ELION Dalad Branch shall make payments to Boyu Tongnan Branch on behalf of Yizhao Huasheng within the scope
of the amount payable to settle the debts of Yizhao Huasheng, and the payment shall be made at no less than
RMB500,000 per week commencing from 6 May 2024 onwards. ELION Dalad Branch only made a payment of
RMB500,000 on behalf of Yizhao Huasheng on 11 May 2024 and then failed to make payment in accordance with
the Repayment Agreement.

On 22 May 2024, Boyu Tongnan Branch filed a lawsuit with Chongqing Tongnan District People’s Court (the
“Tongnan Court”), requesting Yizhao Huasheng and ELION Dalad Branch to jointly pay RMB17,806,300 to Boyu
Tongnan Branch for the unpaid freight rates. The Tongnan Court has issued a notice of acceptance of the case. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 July 2024 for further details.

As at 31 December 2024, the balance of freight charges receivable from Yizhao Huasheng of Boyu Tongnan Branch
amounted to RMB17,806,300, and a provision for bad debts of receivables of RMB7,122,500 was made.

Currently, the Company is taking active measures to collect the debts and will make further announcements to keep
the shareholders and potential investors of the Company informed of any significant development in the litigation as
and when appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the members of the Group was involved in any material

litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or claim was pending or threatened or made against any member of
the Group.
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Designated Deposits

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no designated deposits in any financial institutions in and out of the PRC or
any overdue fixed deposit which could not be recovered.

Compliance with the relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and communities in which it operates.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving
and wastes reduction.

The Company is preparing the environmental, social and governance report (the “ESG report”) for the year ended
31 December 2024 in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix C2
of the Listing Rules. The Company will publish the ESG report on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website at the same time as the publication of the Company’s annual report of 2024.
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Donation

During the year, the total amount of donations in cash made by the Company was RMB600,000 (2023:
RMB600,000).

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

There was no purchase, redemption, sale or cancellation by the Group of the Company’s listed securities (including
the sales of treasury shares) during the year ended 31 December 2024. As at 31 December 2024, the Company did
not hold any treasury shares.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision of pre-emptive rights in the Articles of Association requiring the Company to offer new shares
proportionately to its existing shareholders.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of the Group set out in this announcement have been audited by Grant Thornton
Zhitong Certified Public Accountants LLP, the Group’s auditor.

Review of Final Results
The audit and risk committee of the Company (the “Audit and Risk Committee”) has reviewed the Group’s audited

consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2024.

By the Order of the Board
Xie Shikang
Chairman

Chonggqing, the PRC
27 March 2025
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Dear Shareholders,

Pursuant to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles
of Association, the Supervisory Committee, under its fiduciary duty, took up an active role to work with diligence to
protect the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee carefully reviewed the Group’s operation and development plans and
made reasonable recommendations and suggestions to the Board, frequently examined the financial position of the
Company and supervised the code of conduct of the Directors, the General Manager and other senior management.
The Supervisory Committee exercised strict and effective supervision over whether the major policies and decisions
made by the management of the Company were in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the
Articles of Association and in the interests of its shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee considers that in 2024, the members of the Board, the General Manager and other senior
management of the Company were able to strictly fulfil their fiduciary duties, to act diligently and to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company, to carry out work pursuant to the Articles of Association in
standard operation and gradually improve the internal control system. The transactions between the Company and
related parties were carried out on fair and reasonable terms and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole. As of
the date of this announcement, none of the Directors, the General Manager and other senior management had been
found to have abused their authority, prejudiced the interests of the Company and its shareholders. None of them was
found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is confident in the Company’s future development.
The Supervisory Committee has conscientiously reviewed and agreed with the report of the Board and the audited

consolidated financial statements etc., which will be submitted by the Board to the 2024 AGM.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Huaicheng
Chairman

Chongging, the PRC
27 March 2025
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The Board believes that the Company can enhance its corporate governance and transparency by adhering to strict
corporate governance practices in the interest of the shareholders of the Company. Since 18 July 2013, the provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules have been adopted as
the Company’s corporate governance standards, which coupled with the experience and circumstances of the
Company, help to establish a favorable corporate governance structure of the Group.

Code Provision C.1.6 of Part 2 of the Code provides that independent non-executive Directors and other non-
executive Directors should generally attend general meetings of the Company. During the reporting period, Mr. Che
Dexi and Ms. Jin Jie did not attend the 2023 annual general meeting (the “2023 AGM?”) and two extraordinary general
meetings of the Company due to work reasons. The non-attendance of Mr. Che Dexi and Ms. Jin Jie at the general
meetings did not affect the Company in answering queries from the shareholders nor Mr. Che Dexi’ and Ms. Jin Jie’s
ability to develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders at the general meetings as it is a practice
of the Company to send the proposed resolutions to Directors and supervisors prior to the meeting, and therefore Mr.
Che Dexi and Ms. Jin Jie has an understanding of the matters considered at the general meetings. The Company will
strengthen its communication with Directors and make arrangements for the meetings in advance so that Directors
will have sufficient time to make arrangements for their participation in the Company’s meetings.

Save as disclosed above, for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Code throughout and adopted the recommended best practices as set out in the
Code.

The following is a summary of key corporate governance practices of the Company:
Corporate Strategy

Under Code provision A.1.1 of Part 2 of the Code, the Board is required to establish the Company’s purpose, values
and strategy, and ensure that these and the Company’s culture are aligned.

With “becoming world-class” as the goal, green, intelligent and digital technologies as the key, the “service leading
strategy” as the cornerstone, and building “five high” (high technology, high vitality, high efficiency, high brand and
high quality) as the direction, the Company is committed to transforming and upgrading from traditional logistics to
a world-class green intelligent supply chain logistics technology company in 10 to 15 years by strengthening
automobile logistics, expanding non-automobile logistics, and the logistics ecosystem, so that customers can trust us
and entrust us with their business.

Corporate Governance Principles

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise a high-quality Board, sound
internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

Securities Transactions by the Directors

Since the Transfer of Listing of the shares to the main board of the Stock Exchange on 18 July 2013, the Company
has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on terms of the required standard of
dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) prepared according to the Model Code. After making specific enquiries to all
Directors, the Company confirms that the Directors have complied with the Code of Conduct during the period from
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.
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Board

The sixth session of the Board of the Company was elected at the 2022 annual general meeting (“2022 AGM”) held
on 30 June 2023 and comprises nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Board is of the view that the composition of the Board maintains a
reasonable balance and can provide protection for the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors of the Company fulfil their duties in
formulating the Company’s policies by providing constructive advice. There is no family or material relationship
among the members of the Board. The names of the members of the sixth session of the Board are set out in the
section headed “Report of the Directors” of this announcement.

The Company has 3 independent non-executive Directors, of whom one has appropriate professional qualification
and financial management expertise. The Company received the relevant independence confirmation letter from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in March 2025. There is no relationship between the members of the
Board, the Supervisory Committee and other senior management in finance, business, family and other material or
relevant aspects.

Election of Directors and Supervisors and Provision of Information in respect of and by
Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives Required under Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules

On 19 April 2024, Mr. Chen Zhigang ceased to be the deputy general manager of the Company as he reached the
retirement age and Mr. Tan Chaohu was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company.

Saved as disclosed, for the year ended 31 December 2024, there are no other personnel changes in relation to the
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company.

Ms. Jin Jie resigned as a non-executive Director of the sixth session of the Board of the Company with effect from 3
January 2025 due to a change in work arrangement.
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Directors’ Attendance of Regular Meetings

The Board has held four regular meetings in 2024 to discuss and determine the Company’s major strategies, key
operational issues, financial matters and other matters set out in the Articles of Association. Details of Directors’
attendance records at the Board’s regular meetings held during the year of 2024 are set out in the following table:

Records for

Records for attendance by Individual
Director’s name Due attendance  personal attendance alternate attendance rate
Executive Director
Xie Shikang 4 4 0 100%
Wan Nianyong 4 3 1 75%
Non-executive Director
Che Dexi 4 0 4 0%
Chen Wenbo 4 4 0 100%
Jin Jie (note 1, note 2) 4 3 0 75%
Dong Shaojie 4 4 0 100%
Independent non-executive Director
Li Ming 4 4 0 100%
Man Wing Pong 4 4 0 100%
Chen Jing 4 4 0 100%

Note 1: Ms. Jin Jie resigned as a non-executive Director of the sixth session of the Board of the Company with effect from 3 January
2025 due to a change in work arrangement.

Note 2: Ms. Jin Jie attended three of the four regular meetings held in 2024 in person, and neither attended in person nor delegated
another Director to attend on her behalf for the other regular meeting.

Composition of the Board

Directors (including non-executive Directors) are elected in general meetings of the Company with a term of 3 years
and can be re-elected and re-appointed upon the expiry of the term.

The terms of all the existing Directors will end upon the expiry of the sixth session of the Board. The Directors shall
then retire but may be available for re-election.

On diversity, the Board consists of Directors with different backgrounds that can provide the Company with
professional advice on various aspects. Currently, the Board has one female Director. The independent non-executive
Directors are independent of management of the Company and have adequate business and financial experience.
They provide advice to the Board and the management on the strategic development of the Company and ensure the
interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole by implementing measures.

According to the Listing Rules, the Company received the relevant written independence confirmation letter from
each of the independent non-executive Directors for the year 2024. The Company confirmed that all the independent

non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.

The Company has provided liability insurance for all Directors and supervisors.
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Duties of Directors and Management

Pursuant to the regulations of the Articles of Association, the duties of Directors are: to be responsible for the
convening of and reporting to the shareholders’ meeting; to implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders’
meeting; to determine the Company’s business plans and investment proposals; to formulate the Company’s
preliminary and final annual financial budgets; to formulate the Company’s profit distribution proposal and loss
recovery proposal; to make plans for the Company’s increasing or decreasing its registered capital and issuing bonds;
to formulate plans for the Company’s merger, division, changing of forms and dissolution; to decide on the
Company’s internal management structure; to appoint or remove the Company’s general manager and secretary to
the Board of Directors, and to engage or remove the Company’s deputy general manager, person(s) in charge of the
finance department and other senior management according to the nomination of the general manager, and to decide
on their remuneration and payment method; to formulate the Company’s basic management system; to formulate
proposals for any amendment to the Articles of Association; to formulate plans for the Company’s acquisition or sale
of major assets; in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, to exercise the Company’s right to finance and
loan as well as mortgage, rent, contract for or transfer the Company’s major assets and authorizing general manager
and vice general managers to exercise the foregoing rights within certain scope; to propose at the shareholders’
meeting the engagement or replacement of an accounting firm for the audit of the Company’s accounts; to listen to
the opinions of the Party Committee of the Company before making decisions on material issues of the Company; to
exercise any other functions and powers conferred upon by the shareholders’ meeting and the Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the regulations of the Articles of Association, the duties of management of the Company are: to operate
and manage the Company as well as implement resolutions of the Board; to implement the Company’s annual
operation and investment plan; to make plans for the structuring of the Company’s internal management departments;
to formulate the Company’s basic management system; to formulate regulations for the Company; to propose to
appoint or remove vice general managers and CFO of the Company; to decide to appoint or remove management
staff except those that shall be appointed or removed by the Board; to decide the rewards and punishments,
promotions, pay raises, appointments, employment, removal and dismissal of the Company’s employees; to represent
the Company to handle major business as authorized by the Board; to exercise other functions and powers conferred
upon by the Articles of Association and the Board.

During the year, the Directors and the management of the Company strictly fulfilled their duties in accordance with
the requirements in the Articles of Association. The Board has reviewed its performance during the reporting period,
obtained advice from the senior management and considered the advice contained in the Report of the Supervisory
Committee. The Board is of the view that it has effectively performed its responsibilities in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders in the year under review.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in compliance with the mandatory
disclosure requirements under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules and paragraph J of Part 1 of the Code.

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and does not apply to
diversity in relation to the employees of the Company, nor the board and the employees of any subsidiary of the
Company. In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity, including without limitation,
differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender, age and other qualities of the
members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills, experience and
background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee
will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree on the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on
the Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may seek to improve one or
more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.

Chairman and General Manager

The Company’s chairman is Mr. Xie Shikang, and the general manager is Mr. Wan Nianyong. The chairman is
responsible for setting the strategic direction of the Company and formulating the business strategies, while the
general manager is responsible for overseeing the daily operations of the Company. The chairman is also responsible
for the Board and ensuring the effective operation of the Board. The chairman encourages all the Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) to be fully dedicated in carrying out their duties to the Board and its four
committees.
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Continuing Professional Development of Directors (Training for Directors)

Directors should participate in continuing professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that they will remain well informed to make their contribution to the Board.

Below is a summary of the training received by the Directors for the period between 1 January 2024 and 31 December
2024 based on the records provided by the Directors and supervisors:

Name Category of Continuing Professional Development
Directors

Xie Shikang A/B
Wan Nianyong A/B
Che Dexi A/B
Chen Wenbo A/B
Jin Jie (note 2) A/B
Dong Shaojie A/B
Li Ming A/B
Man Wing Pong A/B
Chen Jing A/B
Supervisors

Wang Huaicheng A/B
Ang Lai Fern A/B
Yang Gang A/B
Deng Li A/B
Liu Shasha A/B

Note 1: A refers to seminar materials and other updated information regarding the amendments to the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulations. B refers to attending briefings and/or seminars.
Note 2: Ms. Jin Jie resigned as a non-executive Director of the sixth session of the Board of the Company with effect from 3 January

2025 due to a change in work arrangement.
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Four Committees of the Board

The Audit and Risk Committee, the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the Nomination Committee and the strategy and investment committee of the Company (the “Strategy and
Investment Committee) have laid down specific terms of reference, detailing the powers and responsibilities of
these committees. All the committees shall report their decisions or submit their proposals to the Board within their
authorities, and under certain circumstances, have to request for the Board’s approval before taking any actions.

1. Audit and Risk Committee

The Company has set up an audit committee pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules and the “Guidelines
for the Establishment of Audit Committees” published by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
set out its duties, powers and functions with written terms of reference. With effect from 30 June 2023, the audit
committee of the Company was renamed as the Audit and Risk Committee. The major duties of the Audit and Risk
Committee are:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards. The Audit and Risk Committee should discuss with the auditor the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non-audit services, if any, to ensure
that provisions of such services would not impair the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. For
this purpose, ‘external auditor’ includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit and Risk
Committee should report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any matters where action
or improvement is needed;

monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and the annual report and accounts, half-year report
and (if prepared for publication) quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them. In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the Audit and Risk Committee
should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(ii1) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to financial reporting;

regarding (d) above:

(1) members of the Audit and Risk Committee should liaise with the Board and senior management and the
Audit and Risk Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors; and

(i1) the Audit and Risk Committee should consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in the reports and accounts, it should give due consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance officer
or auditors;
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(f)

@)

(h)

()
(k)

(M

(m)

(n)

(0)
()

@

(r)

review the Company’s financial controls, and review the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

discuss risk management and internal control systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal control matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and review and monitor its effectiveness;

review the group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

review the external auditor’s management letter, any material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response;

ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s management
letter;

report to the Board on the matters on the corporate governance code contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules;

review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management and internal control or other matters. The Committee
should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the fair and independent investigation of these matters
and for appropriate follow-up action;

act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

study policies for risk management and compliance management of the Company, review the regulatory updates
on risk management related issues and consider their material implications to the Company’s risk
appetite/tolerance and risk profiles, oversee the implementation of risk management policies and compliance
with respective statutory rules and regulations;

monitor the establishment and enforcement of risk and compliance management systems, and the prevention
and control of major risks, review and recommend for the Board’s approval the Company’s risk management
framework, risk management system and corporate governance framework including their appropriateness,
effectiveness and independence of risk management functions;

listen to reports on risk and compliance management, put forward suggestions on how to improve risk and

compliance management, and consider proposals in relation to risk and compliance management to be submitted
to the Board for review and approval;
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(s) review and recommend for the Board’s approval the Company’s overall risk management strategies and risk
appetite/tolerance, which shall take into account the business, financial, operational, compliance, and all the
relevant risks faced by the Company and the prevailing and prospective market and economic conditions;

(t) evaluate the risks of major investment and funding projects and issues concerning the operation of capital, and
advise the Board on such decision-making;

(u) review reports from the management and to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s risk
management policies, which govern the identification, assessment, monitoring, and reporting of the major risks

faced by the Company; and

(v) consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The Audit and Risk Committee currently comprises Mr. Li Ming, Mr. Man Wing Pong and Ms. Chen Jing, who are
all independent non-executive Directors, as well as Mr. Dong Shaojie, a non-executive Director, and Mr. Li Ming has
the requisite financial experience.

During the year, the Audit and Risk Committee held 4 regular meetings.

The Audit and Risk Committee met on 21 March 2024 to review and discuss the Group’s annual results, financial
statements; principal accounting policies and internal audit matters for the year ended 31 December 2023, listened to

the auditor’s suggestions for the Company, and approved such reports.

The Audit and Risk Committee met on 10 May 2024 to review the income statement, cash flow statement and balance
sheet of the Group for the three months ended 31 March 2024.

The Audit and Risk Committee met on 16 August 2024 to review the unaudited interim report of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2024 and approved such report.

The Audit and Risk Committee met on 17 October 2024 to review the income statement, cash flow statement and
balance sheet of the Group for the nine months ended 30 September 2024.
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Details of the Audit and Risk Committee members’ attendance records at the regular meetings during the year are set
out in the following table:

Members of Records Records for

the Audit and Risk for personal attendance by Individual
Committee Due attendance attendance alternate attendance rate
Li Ming 4 4 0 100%
Dong Shaojie 4 4 0 100%
Man Wing Pong 4 4 0 100%
Chen Jing 4 4 0 100%

In 2024, the Audit and Risk Committee worked actively mainly on the following aspects:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

reviewed the policies and systems on internal financial supervision & operation, compliance monitoring and
risks management, for the purpose of ensuring the effectiveness of the policies and systems on internal financial
supervision and operation, compliance monitoring and risks management;

monitored the accounts of the relevant reporting period and reviewed the financial statements and all the
financial reporting materials which are set out in the report and took the view that all of these were in accordance
with the requirements of Chinese Accountant Standard and complied with the relevant laws and regulations of
PRC and the Listing Rules;

made in-depth communication and discussions with the Group’s external auditors regarding the 2024 conducted
annual financial auditing nature and scope; and

the Audit and Risk Committee made recommendations to the Board to appoint Grant Thornton Zhitong Certified
Public Accountants LLP as the auditor of the Company for 2024.
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2. Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Man Wing Pong, Mr. Dong Shaojie, Mr. Li Ming and Ms.
Chen Jing. Mr. Man Wing Pong, Mr. Li Ming and Ms. Chen Jing are independent non-executive Directors and Mr.
Dong Shaojie is a non-executive Director. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Man Wing Pong.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@)

make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(b) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and

objectives;

(c) determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior

(d)
(€)

()

(9)

(h)

()

management. These should include stock appreciation stimulating plan, benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the group;

review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair,
reasonable and not excessive;

review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration;

review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, including any grants of options or awards to Directors
or senior management, and to make disclosure and give explanation on the appropriateness to such material
matters (if any) being approved in the corporate governance report; and

consider other topics, as authorized by the Board from time to time.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one regular meeting.

Details of the Remuneration Committee members’ attendance records at the meeting during the year are set out in
the following table:

Records Records for
Members of the Due for personal attendance by Individual
Remuneration Committee attendance attendance alternate attendance rate
Man Wing Pong 1 1 0 100%
Dong Shaojie 1 1 0 100%
Li Ming 1 1 0 100%
Chen Jing 1 1 0 100%

In 2024, the Remuneration Committee worked actively mainly on the following aspects:

(@) submitted suggestions to the Board on the remuneration policy and composition of the Directors and senior
managements of the Company in 2024, and suggested the establishment of a normal and transparent
remuneration system;

(b) analyzed and continuously refined the procedures of meetings of the Remuneration Committee; and

(c) reviewed annual performance contract for management members of the Company.
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3. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Xie Shikang, Mr. Dong Shaojie, Mr. Li Ming, Mr. Man Wing
Pong and Ms. Chen Jing. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Xie Shikang, who is also the chairman of the
Board, and comprises a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are:

(@) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the chairman and the general manager; and

(e) consider other topics, as authorized by the Board.

In identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, the Nomination Committee will fully
consider if his or her skills, experience and diversity of perspectives is appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s
business and has a thorough knowledge regarding the candidate’s occupation, educational background, professional
titles, specific working background, part-time jobs and other background information required under the Listing
Rules, the Articles of Association and the relevant PRC authorities (if any). In addition, the Nomination Committee
will also take into account the potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills, experience, independence and gender diversity and comply with the Procedures for shareholders to Nominate
Candidate(s) for Election as Director(s) or Shareholders’ Representative Supervisor(s) established by the Company,
and all of the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Company held one regular meeting.

Details of the Nomination Committee members’ attendance records at the regular meeting during the year are set out
in the following table:

Members of the Records Records for

Nomination Due for personal attendance by Individual
Committee attendance attendance alternate attendance rate
Xie Shikang 1 1 0 100%
Dong Shaojie 1 1 0 100%
Li Ming 1 1 0 100%
Man Wing Pong 1 1 0 100%
Chen Jing 1 1 0 100%

In 2024, the Nomination Committee worked actively mainly on the following aspects:
(a) analyzed the framework, population and composition of the current Board of the Company;

(b) assessed and reviewed the independent non-executive Directors of the Company, ensuring their independency.
The Company shall abide by relevant rules of the Articles of Association and Listing Rules in selection of the
candidate(s) for non-executive Director(s), with reference to his/her character, experience and integrity and
competence; and

(c) analyzed and continuously refined the procedures of meetings of the Nomination Committee.
The Board has adopted the Director nomination policy in compliance with the mandatory disclosure requirement

under paragraph E.(d)(iii) of Part 1 of the Code pursuant to which the Company should disclose its policy for
nomination of Directors in the summary of work performed by the Nomination Committee in its corporate

governance report.
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4. Strategy and Investment Committee

The Strategy and Investment Committee currently comprises Mr. Xie Shikang, Mr. Wan Nianyong, Mr. Li Ming, Mr.
Man Wing Pong and Ms. Chen Jing. The chairman of the Strategy and Investment Committee is Mr. Xie Shikang.

The Strategy and Investment Committee shall be responsible for the following duties:
(a) study and advise on the Company’s development strategy and interim and long-term development plan;

(b) study and advise on the annual business plan, total budget plan, yearly investment program and major investment
program subject to the approval of the Board;

(c) study and advise on major financing activities, the disposal of assets, and mergers and acquisitions subject to the
approval of the Board;

(d) study and advise on mortgages, pledges of major assets and the provision of security to external party subject to
the approval of the Board;

(e) assess and examine the implementation of the above stated activities; and
(f) exercise other functions and powers conferred upon by the Board and relevant laws and regulations.

During the reporting period, the Strategy and Investment Committee held one meeting and discussed the development
strategy and direction of the Company.

Details of the Strategy and Investment Committee members’ attendance records at the meeting held during the year
are set out in the following table:

Members of the Records Records for
Nomination Due for personal attendance by Individual
Committee attendance attendance alternate attendance rate

Xie Shikang 1 1 0 100%
Wan Nianyong 1 1 0 100%
Li Ming 1 1 0 100%
Man Wing Pong 1 1 0 100%
Chen Jing 1 1 0 100%
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Corporate Governance Responsibility
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision C.3 of Part 2 of the Code.

The Board reviewed (i) the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices; (ii) the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (iii) the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) the code of conduct applicable to the employees and
Directors; and (v) the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report. With
respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company is
aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced immediately if it is the subject of a decision; and that the Company’s affairs be conducted with
close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
in June 2012. The Company has been working on developing its own disclosure policy aiming at preventing selective
disclosure of material non-public information and providing broad non-exclusive distribution of material information
to the public. The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate governance practices and standards of
the Company to ensure that their business and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner.

During the year of 2024, the Board reviewed the Company’s status on compliance with the Code and other rules
applicable according to the requirements of the Code and approved the annual corporate governance report of the
Company and its disclosure on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Adoption of China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

Since the listing of the H shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Company has been preparing its financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the “Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and
Mainland Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong” ( A M5 & &% EH 69N
HUE A AR S 8] BR ) P9 M 69 B3 B 3 R B AR ISR N e 3R F R AT 69 35 14845 ) ) issued by the Stock
Exchange in December 2010 and the related amendments to the Listing Rules, Mainland incorporated issuers listed
in Hong Kong are allowed to prepare their financial statements using China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (“CASBE”), and Mainland accounting firms that have been approved by the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China and the China Securities Regulatory Commission are eligible to provide auditing related
services to the aforementioned issuers using CASBE.

In light of the above arrangements and in view of the fact that the Company mainly conducts its business in mainland
China, in order to improve working efficiency of audit, the Board has resolved to align the preparation of its financial
statements and disclose relevant financial information in accordance with CASBE commencing from the financial
year ended 31 December 2023.

The alignment of the preparation of all of its financial statements in accordance with CASBE commencing from the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 did not have a significant impact on the operating results and financial
position of the Company and there was no material financial impact of the transition of the accounting standards of
the Company on the Company’s immediately preceding published information. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 30 October 2023 for further details.
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Auditors and their Remuneration

PKF and WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP (“WUYIGE”) were re-appointed as the 2023 international
auditor and the 2023 PRC auditor of the Company respectively at the 2022 AGM held on 30 June 2023 to hold office
till the conclusion of next annual general meeting of the Company.

PKF and WUYIGE resigned as the international auditor and the PRC auditor of the Company, respectively, with
effect from 30 October 2023, since the above-mentioned changes in the standards for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company, the Board and WUYIGE had not reached a consensus on the audit fee in respect of the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

With the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Board has resolved to appoint Grant Thornton
Zhitong Certified Public Accountants LLP as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 30 October 2023 to
fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of PKF and WUYIGE and to hold office until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 October
2023 for further details.

The 2023 AGM held on 28 June 2024 approved to appoint Grant Thornton Zhitong Certified Public Accountants LLP
as the auditor of the Company for 2024.

Save as disclosed above, for the three years ended 31 December 2024, the Company did not change its auditor.

The responsibilities of the external auditors in respect of their financial reporting are set out in the independent
auditor’s report attached to the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The remuneration of the auditor for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:

Services provided Fees (RMB)
Audit services 1,280,000
Non-audit services 200,000
Total 1,480,000

The Directors took the view that they have the responsibilities for preparing the account and have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The Audit and Risk Committee presented their
opinions on the appointment of the auditors and approved the above-mentioned appointing arrangement.

Company Secretary

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Yuan Quan, the company secretary of the Company, has received no
less than 15 hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Rights of Shareholders

The Company’s shareholders of ordinary shares shall enjoy the following rights:
(1) the right to receive dividends and other distributions proportional to the number of shares held;

(2) the right to attend shareholders’ meeting of the Company, either in person or by proxy, and exercise their voting
right;

(3) the right to supervise, advise or inquire about the operating activities of the Company;

(4) the right to transfer, bestow, or pledge the shares held according to the laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association;

(5) the right to be provided with relevant information in accordance with provisions of the Articles of Association,
including:

(A)to obtain a copy of the Articles of Association, subject to payment of a reasonable charge;
(B)to inspect and to make duplicate copies, subject to payment of a reasonable charge, of the following:
(i) all parts of the register of shareholders;

(if) personal profiles of the Company’s Directors, supervisors, general manager and other senior
managements including:

(@) their present and former names and aliases;

(b) their principal addresses (residence);

(c) their nationalities;

(d) their full-time and all other part-time occupations and duties;
(e) their identification documents and the numbers thereof.

(iii) report(s) on the Company’s share capital;

(iv) report(s) showing the aggregate par value, number, maximum and minimum price paid with respect to
each class of shares repurchased by the Company since the end of the last financial year, and the
aggregate amount incurred by the Company for this purpose;

(v) minutes of shareholders’ meetings; and

(vi) audited financial reports.

(6) the right to receive distribution of the remaining assets proportionate to the number of shares held at the point
of the Company’s dissolution or liquidation;

(7) other rights conferred by the laws and regulations and the Articles of Association.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Company attaches great importance to communication with shareholders and investors. The Company uses a
number of channels to account for the performance and operations of the Company to shareholders, particularly
periodic reports such as annual and interim reports. In addition to delivering circulars, notices and financial reports
to our shareholders, the Company also publishes its corporate information on its website (http://www.camsl.com) by
electronic means. The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and the shareholders of the Company. The Company regards the AGM as an important event in the year
and all Directors, supervisors, senior management and the Chairmen of the Audit and Risk Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy and Investment Committee should make an
effort to attend and answer questions raised by the shareholders. For the year ended 31 December 2024, in responding
to investors’ enquiries, the Company held conferences and/or conference calls.

The Company encourages the shareholders to be involved in the Company’s affair and to discuss the corporate
business and prospects directly at the AGM or extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”).

Shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more of the shares are conferred on the right to vote at the
forthcoming EGM and can sign and submit one or more written requests of the same format and content to the Board
to request the convening of an EGM, with the issues to be discussed clearly stated. The Board shall convene an EGM
as soon as practicable upon receiving such written request(s). The number of the shares will be calculated as at the
date of the submission of the written requests.

If the Board fails to send notification of the meeting within 30 days from the date of the receipt of such a request, the
Supervisory Committee shall call and preside over the meeting in a timely manner; if the Supervisory Committee
fails to do so as well, the shareholder(s), individually or jointly holding over 10% or more of the voting shares of the
Company for more than 90 consecutive days may call the meeting within 4 months of the date of the receipt of such
arequest by the Board, and the procedures for calling the meeting shall mirror the procedures of the Board to call the
meeting to the extent possible.

Enquiries may be made to the Board either by contacting the company secretary of the Company through office and
address of correspondence (No. 1881 Jinkai Road, Yubei District, Chongqing, the PRC, Zip Code: 401122), directly
through questions at the AGM or EGM, or by contacting the Board office of the Company (which is in charge of
investor relations, email: dongshihui@camsl.com).

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in compliance with the Code Provision F.1.1 in
the Code as contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.

The Dividend Policy aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to
the declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company. In
recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves to meet its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value and does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
subject to the Articles of Association and all applicable laws and regulations and the following factors concerning the
Group when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

(a) financial results;

(b) cash flow situation;

(c) business conditions and strategies;

(d) future operations and earnings;

(e) capital requirements and expenditure plans;

(f) interests of shareholders;

(g) any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

(h) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

Under Paragraph L of Part 1 of the Code, the Board is required to conduct an annual review of the shareholders’
communication policy to ensure its effectiveness and make disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report which is
to be incorporated in annual report of the Company.

Anti-Corruption Policy

Under Code provision D.2.7 of Part 2 of the Code, the Board is required to establish an anti-corruption policy and
system that promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations.

The Board has adopted the anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-Corruption Policy”) which sets out the principles and
guidelines for the Company to promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations. The Anti-Corruption Policy
sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies to all Directors, officers and employees of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. It also provides guidance to all employees on the acceptance of advantage and handling
of conflict of interest when dealing with the Company’s business. The Company also encourages and expects our
business partners including suppliers, contractors and clients to abide by the principles of the Anti-Corruption Policy.

Whistleblowing Policy

Under Code provision D.2.6 of Part 2 of the Code, the Board is required to establish a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with
the Audit and Risk Committee or any designated committee of the Company about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Company.

The Board has adopted the whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing Policy”) and has set the Discipline
Inspection Commission which plays an important role in clean corporate governance and compliance management.
The terms of reference for the Discipline Inspection Commission set out, among other matters, the reporting and
investigation procedures for the employees of the Group and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in matters related to the Group.

The Whistleblowing Policy aims to enable the Company’s employees and those who deal with the Company to raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Discipline Inspection Commission, about possible improprieties in
matters related to the Company, in order to help detect and deter misconduct or malpractice or unethical acts in the
Company.

The Whistleblowing Policy and the terms of reference for the Discipline Inspection Commission set out, among other

matters, the reporting and investigation procedures for the employees of the Group and those who deal with the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters related to the Group.
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Remuneration policy

The salaries of the Company’s employees are determined by reference to the market rates, performance, qualifications
and experience of the relevant employees. A discretionary bonus may also be given based on the performance of
individual staff during the year in order to reward the employees for their contributions to the Company. Other
employee benefits include pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, personal injury insurance
and housing funds, etc.

Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism

Under Code provision B.1.4 of Part 1 of the Code, the Board is required to establish mechanism(s) to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.

The Board has adopted the board independence evaluation mechanism (the “Mechanism”) which sets out the
principles and guidelines for the Company to ensure independent view and input to be available to the Board.

Continuing improvement and development of the Board of the Company and its committee processes and procedures
through the Board independence evaluation provides a powerful and valuable feedback mechanism for improving
Board effectiveness, maximising strengths, and identifying the areas that need improvement or further development.
The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the
Board performance, for instance, addressing individual training and development needs of each Director.

The Mechanism is designed to ensure a strong independent element on the Board of the Company, which allows the
Board to effectively exercise independent judgment to better safeguard shareholders’ interests.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company established an audit and legal affairs department to perform internal control assessment, risk
management and internal audit. The Company’s internal control system was effective, and the Company did not have
any material operation risks.

(1) Constantly improving the internal control system

The Company has revised and implemented the protocols in instructive documents such as the Internal Control
Manual, the Internal Control Assessment Manual, the Internal Control Assessment Management Workflow, the
Annual Risks Assessment Workflow, the Regular Risks Assessment Workflow, the Internal Audit Workflow
and other internal control, risk management and internal audit related administrative rules and relevant work
instructions to guide the relevant work regarding internal control, risk and audit management.

The Company persistently refines and improves the internal control system, vigorously builds a lean operation
and management system to internalize, improve and computerize relevant work processes, and constantly
complete the authorization system and internal management system. The Company has also identified risks and
how to control them in the flow plan contained in those documents and has effectively linked the risk control
responsibility with individual job description to strengthen the internal control system.

(2) Conduct internal control assessment and risk management and supervision

The Company has conducted a series of assessments and supervision such as annual internal control
assessments, internal control deficiency remedy, annual risk assessment, monthly risk status update, regular risk
identification and control, special assessment and audit, accountability audit to examine the Company’s internal
control and risk management status. The internal control deficiencies and risks identified were corrected and
follow-up actions were taken to monitor the results. A sound system of internal controls is designed to manage
rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance.

(3) Continue to raise risk management and internal control awareness

The Company took various opportunities to provide training to officials, managers and employees regarding
risk management, internal control, legal affairs and spread the concept of risk management and control, and
lawful operation in an effort to integrate risk management and control into the everyday operation and
management of the Company.

One of the duties of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Board is to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s financial control, internal audit functions and risk management systems. The Audit and Risk
Committee examined and reviewed the work of the audit and legal affairs department, the Group’s external
auditor and the regular reports on internal financial control, operation and compliance control, and risk
management policies and systems for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms, and management has also confirmed to the Board, that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate (including the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions are adequate) and have complied with the Code provisions on risk management
and internal control throughout the reporting period and up to the date of this announcement.
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General Meetings

On 19 February 2024, the executive Directors Mr. Xie Shikang and Mr. Wan Nianyong, the non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Wenbo and Mr. Dong Shaojie, and the independent non-executive Directors Mr. Li Ming, Mr. Man Wing
Pong and Ms. Chen Jing, attended the extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

On 28 June 2024, the executive Directors Mr. Xie Shikang and Mr. Wan Nianyong, the non-executive Directors Mr.
Chen Wenbo and Mr. Dong Shaojie, and the independent non-executive Directors Mr. Li Ming, Mr. Wan Wing Pong
and Ms. Chen Jing, attended the annual general meeting of the Company.

On 22 November 2024, the executive Directors Mr. Xie Shikang and Mr. Wan Nianyong, the non-executive Director
Mr. Dong Shaojie, and the independent non-executive Directors Mr. Li Ming, Mr. Man Wing Pong and Ms. Chen
Jing, attended the extraordinary general meeting, the H shareholders class meeting and the domestic shareholders
class meeting of the Company.

Amendments of Articles of Association

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company did not make any amendments to its Articles of Association.
Subsequent Events

Establishment of a JV Company

On 16 January 2025, the Company, Minsheng Shipping (Thailand) and CTI entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “Joint Venture Agreement”), pursuant to which the three parties agreed to establish a joint venture company
(the “JV Company”).

Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, the registered capital of the JV Company shall be denominated in Thai
Baht, equivalent to RMB30 million. The capital contribution of each of the Company, Minsheng Shipping (Thailand)
and CTI shall be denominated in Thai Baht, equivalent to RMB13.2 million, RMB9 million and RMB7.8 million,
respectively. Following completion of the capital contributions to the JV Company by the three parties, the JV
Company will be owned as to 44% by the Company, 30% by Minsheng Shipping (Thailand) and 26% by CTI.

Upon completion of capital contributions, the Company shall hold 44% of the equity interests in the JV Company
and will nominate three out of five members to the board of the JV Company. As Minsheng Shipping (Thailand) and
CTI have both confirmed the Company has actual control over the JV Company’s operations, the financial results of
the JV Company will be consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

On 21 January 2025, the JV Company has been incorporated in Thailand under the name of CCM Logistics Co.,
Ltd.

By Order of the Board
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
Xie Shikang
Chairman

Chongging, the PRC
27 March 2025
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As at the date of this announcement, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises:

Executive directors:
Mr. Xie Shikang
Mr. Wan Nianyong

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Che Dexi

Mr. Chen Wenbo

Mr. Dong Shaojie

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Li Ming

Mr. Man Wing Pong

Ms. Chen Jing

* For identification purposes only
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